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YTL e-Solutions
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2016 2,778,350 | 10,803,910,559 (571123252()) 1,080,39%5(7)?268())
2016 29,893,017 | 10,833,803,576 %7282520(1,1;;) 1'083'38?53?32122
2016 26,983,692 | 10,860,787, 268 iaggfogegég 1’086’0735;?2538
2016 14 7,111,852 | 10,867,899, 120 (1;%%’,3253? 1'086'789(’5%%32
2016 20 17,257,097 | 10,885,156, 217 %&ﬁégiégg 1’088’5%%%)
2016 22 1,596,861 | 10,886,753,078 (‘11588882619 1'088'67525?%532
2016 26 1,902,837 | 10,888, 655,915 (}193758?623 1’088’86%??;{32?
2016 28 3,758,713 | 10,892,414,628 (372227(1)629 1'089'24%5‘7‘?35'322
2016 30 3,294,130 | 10,895,708,758 (?Zég?gégg 1’089’57253?8623)
2016 30 10.895.703.758 1,089,57?53?8623
2016 10 892,077 | 10,896,600,835 (2?25;:21%6;3 1’089’66253?362;)
2016 10 1,164,047 | 10,897,764,882 (ggéﬂézg 1'089'77?5‘7‘?3632
2016 10 11 1,926,727 | 10,899,691,609 (i?géi?;;g 1’089’9635%?&2?
2016 10 13 373,838 | 10,900, 065,447 %5382939 1,090,006(355?49%2
2016 10 18 1,702,476 | 10,901,767,923 (i?gég"‘gﬁ;’ 1’090’17?5;?333)
2016 10 20 218,931 | 10,901,986, 854 %éegggsg 1'090'19§é$?gég§
2016 12 15 8,572,575 | 10,910,559,429 (zf‘f’géi‘zég;’ 1’091’05%?‘}352’;)
2016 12 3L 10,910,559 429 1,091,05%34’132122
2017 31 10,910,559 429 1,091,05%3?3‘.152);)
w om0 | T [T
2017 30 10,910,559 429 3,340,11(2{,3;1;&)
2018 30 10,910,559 429 3,340,11(25,;24’1;1‘.182
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2019 30 10,910,559, 429 3’340’11?§gf2489
2019 12 31,102,986 | 10,941,662,415 %gég?géi?iigﬁ 3’375’56§§gf34g§
YTL

2019 19 4,944,682 | 10,946,607,007 (fiﬁ?gé??éégf 3,381,20?ég?gég§ YTL
2019 29 1,204,688 | 10,947,811,785 %égfi?ifgigi 3’382’57352?253§' YTL
2019 1,819,519 | 10,949,631,304 %gg?iéi?éégg 3’384’65§ég?éé§§ i
2019 798,912 |  10,950,430,216 (zgfgél?§é§§ 3’385’56§égf%6i§ Y7L
2019 15 1,715,718 | 10,952, 145,934 %ég?géifg%gi 3’387’51252?3519 YTL
2019 22 3,555,341 | 10,955,701,275 (iég?gég?gég§ 3’391’57§égfgég§ YTL
2019 29 17,456,575 | 10,073,157,850 | (2o 0PgetSR 0 | SALLATEOEE v
2019 16,080,433 | 10,989,238, 283 %ﬁéé?i;i?ﬁ;ﬁi 3’429’8°éé§?£é§§ YTL
2019 11 2,154,454 |  10,991,392,737 %ég?868TIAZ§ 3’432’262é$%363§ i
2019 19 2,299,537 | 10,993,602,274 %é??iéé?éé%? 3’434’88§é3?gé§g YTL
2019 23 1,666,409 | 10,995,358,683 %AS??&I??%?? 3’436’78%ég?gig§ YTL
2019 30 10,995,358,683 3’436’78%é;?8ig§

2019 10 1,575,523 | 10,996,934,206 %A;?gég?géii 3’438’57253?8é2§ "
2019 10 13,225,079 | 11,010,159, 285 %gég?fi§?252§ 3’453’65§§37243§ m
2019 10 14 186,778 | 11,010,346,063 (gfigg?gégi 3’453’86253?251§ i
2019 10 17 6,380 | 11,010,352,443 (}égfgéig 3’453’87§§STZ§Z§ m
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858,758.58 | 3,454,733,438.54 | YTL
2019 10 24 753,297 | 11,011,105,740 (21.992.807) (88.476)
1,908,505.50 | 3,456,641,944.04 | YTL
2019 11 1,735,005 | 11,012,840,745 (48.876.826) (88.525)
1,379,742.10 | 3,458,021,686.14 | YTL
2019 11 13 1,254,311 | 11,014,095,056 (35.335.195) (88.560)
1,312,966.60 | 3,459,334,652.74 | YTL
2019 11 21 1,193,606 | 11,015,288,662 (33.625.075) (88,594
741,687.10 | 3,460,076,339.84 | YTL
2019 11 29 674,261 | 11,015,962,923 (18.994.607) (88.613)
892,144.00 | 3,460,968,483.84 | YTL
2019 12 811,040 | 11,016,773,963 (22.847..808) (88.635)
464,491.50 | 3,461,432,975.34 | YTL
2019 12 16 422,265 | 11,017,196,228 (11.895.627) (88.647)
1,132,313.60 | 3,462,565,288.94 | YTL
2019 12 23 1,029,376 | 11,018,225,604 (58.998.551) (88.676)
1,338,874.90 | 3,463,904,163.84 | YTL
2019 12 30 1,217,159 | 11,019,442,763 (34.288.536) (88.711)
2019 12 31 3,463,904,163.84
11,019,442,763 (88.711)
2020 484,088.00 | 3,464,388,251.84 | YTL
440,080 | 11,019,882,843 (12.397.494) (88,723)
2020 3,125,277.10 | 3,467,513,528.94 | YTL
2,841,161 | 11,022,724,004 (80.038.,347) (88.803)
2020 15 42,169.60 | 3,467,555,698.54 | YTL
38,336 | 11,022,762,340 (1.079.963) (88.804)
2020 31 3,467,555,698.54
11,022,762,340 (88.804)
2020 30 3,467,555,698.54
11,022,762,340 (88.804)
618 2
2017 31 2016 12 31
3,340,110,644
O)
(A)2012 16
@ 119,495,000
®)
© 204,336,450
(B)2018 14
@ 247,973,000
) 1.26
© 312,445,980
(i)
@
®
©
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2020 21
)
)
55100 4,704,491,387 44.17
205
33
)
50450 619,378,987 5.82
165
8
SS0-DOC MY
HSBC 50100 491,954,721 4.62
No
RHB 50400 460,000,000 4.32
RHB
)
284,237,844 2.67
50400
201-A
23 PNB
048543 261,798,317 2.46
No. 06-01
048543 217,078,398 2.04
No. 06-01
048543 196,796,355 1.85
No. 06-01
048543 183,087,748 1.72
No. 06-01
10 59000 137,552,943 1.29
SA
No.1
11 55100 115,217,861 1.08
55
11
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1 2009
ABC 2020 2 20
YTL
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3
www.ytl.com
ABC
CoVID-19

ABC

(integrity pledge)

ABC
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2019 9 5

33.3

2020 6 30
50.02% 2016

37 AGM

AGM

www.ytl.com
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YTL
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®
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www . ytl.com.my www . ytlcommunity.com

(circular)
2016 21
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@
(2020 12 26 )
25
1954 23 66 1984
1988
(Executive Chairman) 2018 29
2004
2014
1988
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL L&D 2018
29
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL
YTL
2016
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2005 2012
25
2002
2010 CNBC
2006
(CBE) 2019 (KBE)
2008
2010 Primus
Inter Pares Honouree
2015

2016

2017

2017 Asian Power Awards
2018
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(Managing Director)

1957

17

OooooOodd
63 1984 24
2018
29
1981
«C ) 2017
1984
(UK)
YTL
YTL L&D
2018 29 YTL
YTL L&D
YTL REIT
YTL YTL
YTL
SGX-
ST
YTL
REIT
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1948 10 27 72 2004 30
(Independent
Non-Executive Director)
2003 12
1956 13 64 1984 24
(Executive Director) C )
1990
12
1IN
YTL
YTL
YTL
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ooooOoog
1959 22 61 1985 19
(Executive Director) 1982
«c )
YTL
2010
YTL
YTL
YTL
YTL YTL L&D YTL
YTL
YTL
1960 10 20 60 1985 19
1983
(Executive Director)
YTL
YTL YTL L&D
YTL YTL
YTL
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1963 10 57 1996 16
(Executive Director) 1985
YTL
2013 2015
YTL
YTL
YTL
YTL
1965 14 55 1995 22
LLB
(Executive Director) 1988
( ) 2014
1989 YTL
YTL
UK PT
YTL
REIT
YTL L&D YTL
YTL
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ooooOoog
1950 24 70 2015 11 26
(Independent
Non-Executive Director) 1973
1973
Lembaga
Penggalakan Pelanchongan Malaysia, Malaysia
Industry- Government Group for High Technology
YTL
YTL REIT YTL
1954 14 66 1999 10 20
1977
( ) ( )
(Executive Director) 1984 1994
1994
11 1996
MIDF
YTL
YTL
1958 23 62 2011 12
(Independent Non-Executive
Director) ACCA 1982 1993
1998 1982
The New Straits Times Press (M) Berhad
1999 2003
2003
2006 2007
YTL
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1958 12 13 61 2019
MARA Institute of Technology Twinning
(Independent Non-Executive Programme
Director) 2008
(ICLIF)
30
2018 12 2015
2018 CIMB ( CimB
) 2007 2015
CIMB Investment Bank Berhad( CIMB 1B )
GAM
CIMB CIMB
CIMB GAM
CIMBMapletree
CIMB JP Morgan
JP Morgan
JP Morgan
M&A
2020 2
MASCOT
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2020 21
(@)
145,011,239 1.36
56,621,344 0.53
53,421,290 0.50
52,425,780 0.49
56,213,386 0.53
21,932,775 0.21
9,592,215 0.09
2020
90,399,000 882,000
2019 2019 ESOS
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®
HLB PLT  HLB
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2020 30 HLB

HLB 244 2,349
HLB 16 34

HLB 12 299

28 333
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YTLIA

HLB

PLT

YTLIA
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YTLIA YTLIA
ACCA

( )
244,000 14,000 244,000 16,000
9,904,000 713,000 9,872,000 1,585,000
10,152,000 727,000 10,116,000 1,601,000
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100

( )

33,937 35,231 100 - -

10,508 9,594 349 - -

) 15 18

119/620



30
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2020 12
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133
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oOoOooodn

[€)) (2020 30 )
2020 2019
4 19,178,449 491,160,079 18,047,528 462,197,192
5 (15,594,783) (399, 382,393) (13,940, 465) (357,015, 309)
3,583,666 91,777,686 4,107,063 105,181,883
623,644 15,971,523 403,255 10,327,361
(470,836) (12,058,110) (405,168) (10,376,352)
(1,428,981) (36,596, 203) (1,333,690) (34,155,801)
(284,651) (7,289,912) (398,549) (10,206, 840)
6 (1,860,747) (47,653,731) (1,747,499) (44,753,449)
257,199 6,586,866 411,095 10,528,143
7 419,294 10,738,119 1,036,507 26,544,944
8 (414,636) (10,618,828) (315,152) (8,071,043)
4,658 119,291 721,355 18,473,902
(189,221) (4,845,950) 242,589 6,212,704
193,879 4,965,241 478,766 12,261,197
4,658 119,291 721,355 18,473,902
« D
(©3) 9 (1.78) 0) 2.30 1
10 4.00 1 4.00 1
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30 o )
2020 2019

415,331 10,636,627 548,616 14,050,056
415,331 10,636,627 548,616 14,050,056

6,255 160,191 6,210 159,038
(73,645) (1,886,048) (63,626) (1,629,462)
(171,886) (4,402,000) (175,950) (4,506,080)
176,055 4,508,769 315,250 8,073,553

(6,462) (165,492) (16,802) (430, 299)
169,593 4,343,277 298,448 7,643,253
169,593 4,343,277 298,448 7,643,253
169,593 4,343,277 298,448 7,643,253
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30 )
2020 2019

4,658 119,291 721,355 18,473,902
(183,829) (4,707,861) (50,743) (1,299,528)
(35,344) (905, 160) (20,987) (537,477)

(5.302) (135,784) 184,661 4,729,168
(149, 487) (3.828,362) (353, 606) (9,055,850)
(17,419) (446,101) 128,360 3,287,300
(256,748) (6,575,316) — —
(648,129) (16,598,584) (112,315) (2,876,387)
(643,471) (16,479,292) 609,040 15,597,514
(657,305) (16,833,581) 132,512 3,393,632

13,834 354,289 476,528 12,203,882
(643,471) (16,479,292) 609,040 15,597,514
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) (2020 30 )(
2020 2019
169,593 4,343,277 298,448 7,643,253
C )
123 3,150 277 7,094
( ) 123 3,150 277 7,094
( ) 169,716 4,346,427 298,725 7,650,347
C )
169,716 4,346,427 298,725 7,650,347
169,716 4,346,427 298,725 7,650,347
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OooooOodd
®) (2020 30 )
2020 2019

11 30,499,583 781,094,321 30,759,493 787,750,616
12 1,636,035 41,898,856 — —
13 1,811,126 46,382,937 10,217,573 261,672,045
14 1,128,221 28,893,740 1,127,238 28,868,565
15 — — — —
16 4,216,843 107,993,349 2,581,165 66,103,636
17 165,174 4,230,106 264,184 6,765,752
18 404,911 10,369,771 409,971 10,499,357
19 8,631,094 221,042,317 8,023,200 205,474,152
20 1,419,705 36,358,645 1,159,120 29,685,063
24 1,705 43,665 5,616 143,826
21 10,585 271,082 18,722 479,470
49,924,982 1,278,578,789 54,566,282 1,397,442,482

22 2,184,363 55,941,536 2,783,723 71,291,146
23 140,857 3,607,348 561,937 14,391,207
20 3,204,981 82,079,563 4,198,733 107,529,552
24 227,619 5,829,323 239,524 6,134,210
21 74,259 1,901,773 65,022 1,665,213
134,459 3,443,495 121,292 3,106,288

25 53,694 1,375,103 31,131 797,265
18 2,301,989 58,953,938 2,352,947 60,258,973
26 10,396,221 266,247,220 10,635,496 272,375,053
26 1,265,011 32,396,932 1,171,006 29,989,464
19,983,453 511,776,231 22,160,811 567,538,370

69,908,435 1,790,355,020 76,727,093 1,964,980,852
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®3) (2020 30 )(
2020 2019

27 3,467,555 88,804,084 3,340,111 85,540,243
28(a) 512,535 13,126,021 907,066 23,229,960
8,982,083 230,031,146 9,488,302 242,995,414

27(a) (501,837) (12,852,046) (472,793) (12,108,229)
12,460,336 319,109,205 13,262,686 339,657,388

3,149,593 80,661,077 7,631,855 195,451,807

15,609,929 399,770,282 20,894,541 535,109,195

29 1,257,300 32,199,453 1,231,419 31,536,641
24 31,326 802,259 26,264 672,621
30 19,655,639 503,380,915 18,961,666 485,608, 266
31 12,592,683 322,498,612 11,760,855 301,195,497
32 1,447,352 37,066,685 — —
33 596,669 15,280,693 560,828 14,362,805
34 2,164,004 55,420,142 2,073,144 53,093,218
35 910,898 23,328,008 759,646 19,454,534
21 15,401 394,420 54,116 1,385,911
38,671,272 990,371,276 35,427,938 907,309,492
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OooooOodd
®) (2020 30 Y )
2020 2019

37 3,044,929 77,980,632 3,685,052 94,374,182
24 633,343 16,219,914 996,420 25,518,316
21 174,944 4,480,316 63,491 1,626,005
25 39,212 1,004,219 16,006 409,914
30 220,000 5,634,200 520,024 13,317,815
31 11,097,556 284,208,409 14,837,243 379,981,793
32 176,495 4,520,037 — —
36 136,601 3,498,352 147,613 3,780,369
35 5,281 135,246 4,874 124,823
98,873 2,532,138 133,891 3,428,949

15,627,234 400,213,463 20,404,614 522,562,165

54,298,506 1,390,584,739 55,832,552 1,429,871,657

69,908,435 1,790,355,020 76,727,093 1,964,980,852
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OooooOodd
®) (2020 30 )(
2020 2019

11 3,852 98,650 4,474 114,579
12 9,069 232,257 — —
13 — — — —
14 — — — —
15 7,764,014 198,836,399 7,807,515 199,950,459
16 376,235 9,635,378 205,241 5,256,222
17 — — — —
18 44,825 1,147,968 44,445 1,138,236
19 — — — —
20 — — — —
24 — — — —
21 — — — _
8,197,995 209,950,652 8,061,675 206,459,497

22 — — — —
23 — — — —
20 6,110 156,477 13,345 341,765
24 — — — —
21 — — — —
2,930 75,037 22,271 570,360

25 1,303,468 33,381,815 1,014,435 25,979,680
18 755,199 19,340,646 797,277 20,418,264
26 102,070 2,614,013 198,360 5,080,000
26 1,929 49,402 122,948 3,148,698
2,171,706 55,617,391 2,168,636 55,538,768

10,369,701 265,568,043 10,230,311 261,998,265
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®

(2020

27

28(a)

27(a)

29
24
30
31
32
33
34
35

21

30 )(
2020 2019

3,467,555 88,804,084 3,340,111 85,540,243
82,781 2,120,021 66,676 1,707,572
3,038,245 77,809, 454 3,294,895 84,382,261
(501,837) (12,852,046) (472,793) (12,108,229)
6,086,744 155,881,514 6,228,889 159,521,847
6,086,744 155,881,514 6,228,889 159,521,847
2,500,000 64,025,000 2,500,000 64,025,000
— — 550 14,086
2,479 63,487 _ _
113 2,894 113 2,894
2,502,592 64,001,381 2,500,663 64,041,979
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
®) (2020 30 )(
2020 2019

37 17,462 447,202 17,488 447,868
24 — — — —
21 — — — —
25 4,708 120,572 5,546 142,033
30 — — 10,000 256,100
31 1,750,654 44,834,249 1,467,420 37,580,626
32 7,254 185,775 — —
36 — — — —
35 287 7,350 305 7,811
1,780,365 45,595,148 1,500,759 38,434,438

4,282,957 109,686,529 4,001,422 102,476,417

10,369,701 265,568,043 10,230,311 261,998,265
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Ooooooo
0 (2020 30 )
C M (27
2020
%019 N 3,340,111 907,066 9,488,302 (472,793) 13,262,686 7,631,855 20,894,541
MFRS 16 — — (21,567) — (21,567) (34,581) (56,148)
5019 , 3,340,111 907,066 9,466,735 (472,793) 13,241,119 7,597,274 20,838,393
« ) — — (189,221) — (189,221) 193,879 4,658
— (366,176) (101,908) — (468,084) (180,045) (648,129)
¢ — (366,176) (291,129) — (657,305) 13,834 (643,471)
— — 311,615 — 311,615  (3,820,251)  (3,508,636)
ICULS — (46,825) (79,524) — (126,349) — (126,349)
— — (426,770) — (426,770) (641,264)  (1,068,034)
127,444 — — — 127,444 — 127,444
— 19,343 — — 19,343 — 19,343
— (527) 527 — _ _ _
— (346) 629 — 283 — 283
— — — (29,044) (29,044) — (29,044)
2020 30 3,467,555 512,535 8,982,083 (501,837) 12,460,336 3,149,503 15,600,929
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Oooooooo
) (2020 30 Y )
CMD 0 ¢ 2@
2020
5019 , 85,540,243 23,220,060 242,995,414  (12,108,229) 339,657,388 195,451,807 535,109,195
MFRS 16 - - (552,331) — (552,331) (885,619)  (1,437,950)
iom , 85,540,243 23,220,960 242,443,083  (12,108,229) 339,105,058 194,566,187 533,671,245
') - — (4,845,950) — (4,845,950) 4,965,241 119,291
—  (9,377,767)  (2.,609,864) —  (11,987,631)  (4,610,952) (16,598,584)
(S — (9.377.767)  (7.455,814) —  (16,833,581) 354,280  (16,479,292)
- — 7,980,460 — 7,980,460 (97,836,628)  (89,856,168)
ICULS —  (1,199,188)  (2,036,610) —  (3,235,798) — (3,235,798)
- —  (10,929,580) — (10,929,580) (16,422,771) (27,352,351)
3,263,841 - - — 3,263,841 — 3,263,841
— 495,374 — — 495,374 — 495,374
— (13,496) 13,496 — — _ _
- (8,861) 16,109 — 7,248 — 7,248
- - — (743,817)  (743,817) — (743,817)
2020 30 88,804,084 13,126,021 230,031,146 (12,852,046) 319,109,205 80,661,077 399,770,282
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OoooooO
4 (2020 30 )( )
C D ey (27
2019

2018 3,340,111 971,877 9,803,376 (337,142) 13,778,222 7,516,285 21,294,507
— — 242,589 — 242,589 478,766 721,355
— (82,065) (28,012) — (110,077) (2,238) (112,315),
¢ — (82,065) 214,577 — 132,512 476,528 609,040
— — (109,797) — (109,797) 133,640 23,843
— — (422,748) — (422,748) (494,598) (917,346)
— 19,635 — — 19,635 — 19,635
— (1,748) 1,748 — — — —
— (633) 1,146 — 513 — 513
— — — (135,651) (135,651) — (135,651)
2019 30 3,340,111 907,066 9,488,302 (472,793) 13,262,686 7,631,855 20,894,541
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Ooooood
4 (2020 30 )( )
C 2D C 21@a)
2019
2018 85,540,243 24,889,770 251,064,459  (8,634,207) 352,860,265 192,492,059 545,352,324
— — 6,212,704 — 6,212,704 12,261,197 18,473,902
—  (2,101,685) (717,387) —  (2.,819,072) (57,315)  (2,876,387)
¢ —  (2,101,685) 5,495,317 — 3,393,632 12,203,882 15,597,514
— —  (2,811,901) —  (2.811,901) 3,422,520 610,619
— —  (10,826,576) —  (10,826,576) (12,666,655) (23,493,231)
— 502,852 — — 502,852 — 502,852
— (44,766) 44,766 — — — —
— (16,211) 29,349 — 13,138 — 13,138
— — —  (3,474,022)  (3,474,022) —  (3,474,022)
2019 30 85,540,243 23,229,960 242,995,414  (12,108,229) 339,657,388 195,451,807 535,109,195
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ooooooo
® (2020 30 )
(G2)) (__28@) 27
2020

2019 3,340,111 66,676 3,294,895 (472,793) 6,228,889
— — 169,593 — 169,593
_ 123 — — 123
— 123 169,593 — 169,716

— — (426,770) — (426,770)
127,444 — — — 127,444
— 16,509 — — 16,509
— (527) 527 — —

— — — (29,044) (29,044)
2020 30 3,467,555 82,781 3,038,245 (501,837) 6,086,744
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OooooOodd
) (2020 30 o )
() (__28@2) (__271(a)
2020

2019 85,540,243 1,707,572 84,382,261 (12,108,229) 159,521,847
— — 4,343,277 — 4,343,277
— 3,150 — —_ 3,150
— 3,150 4,343,277 — 4,346,427

— — (10,929,580) — (10,929,580)
3,263,841 — — — 3,263,841
— 422,795 — — 422,795
— (13,496) 13,496 — —

_ — — (743,817) (743,817)
2020 30 88,804,084 2,120,021 77,809,454 (12,852,046) 155,881,514
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— 277 — — 217
— 277 298,448 — 298,725
— — (422,748) — (422,748)
— 16,679 — — 16,679
— (1,748) 1,748 — —
— — — (135,651) (135,651)

2019 30 3,340,111 66,676 3,294,895 (472,793) 6,228,889
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— 7,094 7,643,253 — 7,650,347
— — (10,826,576) — (10,826,576)
— 427,149 — — 427,149
— (44,766) 44,766 — —
— — — (3,474,022) (3,474,022)

2019 30 85,540,243 1,707,572 84,382,261 (12,108,229) 159,521,847
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419,294 10,738,119 1,036,507 26,544,944
12,808 328,013 (13,172) (337,335)
7,842 200,834 11,569 296,282
(5,209) (133,402) (4,579) (117,268)
(15,166) (388,401) (15,973) (409,069)
69,606 1,782,610 10,806 276,742
(2,949) (75,524) (4,187) (107,229)
10,901 279,175 5,552 142,187
1,554,423 39,808,773 1,497,585 38,353,152
193,895 4,965,651 — —
(10,083) (258,226) (29,411) (753,216)
16,765 429,352 19,981 511,713
(25,976) (665,245) (62,507) (1,600,804)
(1,172) (30,015) — —
_ — (3,709) (94,987)
() (18,739) (479,906) (4,820) (123,440)
(258,506) (6,620,339) — —
183,203 4,691,829 159,514 4,085,154
1,860,747 47,653,731 1,747,499 44,753,449
(279,072) (7,147,034) (311,520) (7,978,027)
44,656 1,143,640 77,662 1,988,924
7,675 196,557 — _
51,896 1,329,057 26,793 686,169
8,175 209,362 3,392 86,869
43,790 1,121,462 64,699 1,656,941
( (4,437) (113,632) 7,520 192,587
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21,637 554,124 22,020 563,932
(257,199) (6,586,866) (411,095) (10,528,143)
(96,052) (2.,459,892) (109,570) (2,806,088)
3,532,753 90,473,804 3,720,556 95,283,439
638,001 16,339,206 389,591 9,977,426
481 12,318 (57,401) (1,470,040)
690,251 17,677,328 (675,753) (17,306,034)
(39,277) (1,005,884) (79,135) (2,026,647)
(405,019) (10,372,537) 354,963 9,090,602
93,104 2,384,393 451,648 11,566,705
(12,666) (324,376) (12,024) (307,935)
4,497,628 115,184,253 4,092,445 104,807,516
399,216 10,223,922 438,742 11,236,183
(1,723,489) (44,138,553) (1,659,978) (42,512,037)
311,049 7,965,965 316,368 8,102,184
(129,759) (3,323,128) (111,214) (2,848,191)
(376,563) (9,643,778) (350,349) (8,972,438)
64,621 1,654,944 43,794 1,121,564
3,042,703 77,923,624 2,769,808 70,934,783
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(20,677) (529,538) (35) (896)
§ 18,977 486,001 (2,596,753) (66,502, 844)
(19,253) (493,069) (367,340) (9,407,577)
(92,311) (2,364,085) (132,229) (3,386,385)
49,342 1,263,649 29,432 753,754
176,000 4,507,360 1,285,382 32,918,633
_ — 13,837 354,366
42,521 1,088,963 20,039 513,199
238,148 6,098,970 11,806 302,352
(245,871) (6,296,756) — —
4,129 105,744 — _
(175,368) (4,491,174) (4,215) (107,946)
(559,216) (14,321,522) (43,496) (1,113,933)
(1,579,690) (40,455,861) (2,412,100) (61,773,881)
(785,059) (20,105, 361) (192,641) (4,933,536)
(94,651) (2,424,012) (60,305) (1,544,411)
(3,042,979) (77,930,692) (4,448,618)  (113,929,107)
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(426,770) (10,929,580) (422,748) (10,826,576)
(641,264) (16,422,771) (494,598) (12,666,655)
(29,044) (743,817) (135,651) (3,474,022)
@ (1) (198,625) (5,086,786)
1,312,199 33,605,416 510,000 13,061,100
5,514,829 141,234,771 6,657,542 170,499,651
(10,000) (256,100) (500,000) (12,805,000)
(6,097,544) (156,158,102) (3,763,118) (96,373,452)
(429,879) (11,009,201) — —
— — (1,950) (49,940)
(807,475) (20,679,435) 1,650,852 42,278,320
(807,751) (20,686,503) (27,958) (716,004)
143,990 3,687,584 190,142 4,869,537
11,763,827 301,271,609 11,601,643 297,118,077
11,100,066 284,272,690 11,763,827 301,271,609
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1,579,690 40,455,861 2,412,100 61,773,881
_ — 2,210 56,598
18,554 475,168 8,348 213,792
91,836 2,351,920 56,766 1,453,777
58,733 1,504,152 — —
16,182 414,421 5,135 131,507
1,764,995 45,201,522 2,484,559 63,629,556
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46,079,788 1,180,103,371 41,786,512 1,070,152,572
N (1,723,489) (44,138,553) (1,659,978) (42,512,037)
1,312,199 33,605,416 510,000 13,061,100
5,514,829 141,234,771 6,657,542 170,499, 651
— — (1,950) (49,940)
(10,000) (256,100) (500,000) (12,805,000)
(6,097,544)  (156,158,102) (3,763,118) (96,373,452)
(6,405) (164,032) — —
— — 1,001,103 25,638,248
138,134 3,537,612 117,621 3,012,274
24,607 630,185 (12,295) (314,875)
— — (44,430) (1,137,852)
ICULS (2,736) (70,069) — —
(3,493,431) (89,466,768) — —
— — 1,195 30,604
4,906 125,643 12,463 319,177
1,808,555 46,317,094 1,747,499 44,753,449
16,465 421,669 227,624 5,829,451
30 43,565,878 1,115,722,136 46,079,788 1,180,103,371
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2020
953,623 24,422,285
953,623 24,422,285
(429,879) (11,009, 201)
1,053,070 26,969,123
47,286 1,210,994
(420) (10,756)
167 4,277
1,623,847 41,586,722
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176,055 4,508,769 315,250 8,073,553
809 20,718 889 22,767
4,535 116,141 — _
(371,871) (9,523,616) (487,269) (12,478,959)
(823) (21,077) (1,288) (32,986)
) — — 72 1,844
171,886 4,402,000 175,950 4,506,080
(43,200) (1,106,352) (61,056) (1,563, 644)
«C )
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6,654 170,409 6,667 170,742
(55,955) (1,433,008) (50,785) (1,300,604)
7,234 185,263 (3,049) (78,085)
(40) (1,024) (3,394) (86,920)
(237,265) (6,076,357) 84,010 2,151,496
(286,026) (7,325,126) 26,782 685,887
347,132 8,890,051 487,269 12,478,959
(171,591) (4,394,446) (175,950) (4,506,080)
43,200 1,106,352 61,056 1,563,644
(11,092) (284,066) — —
23,971 613,897 — —
(54,406) (1,393,338) 399,157 10,222,411
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@7 (1,204) (35) (896)
( _ _ _ _
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_ — 58 1,485
3 77 11,806 302,352
N _ _ _ _
(187) (4,789) (292) (7,478)
42,639 1,091,985 (55,047) (1,409,754)
( ) 42,408 1,086,069 (43,510) (1,114,291)
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(426,770) (10,929,580) (422,748) (10,826,576)
(29,044) (743,817) (135,651) (3,474,022)
— — 510,000 13,061,100
465,784 11,928,728 — —
(10, 000) (256, 100) (500, 000) (12,805,000)
(200,565) (5,136,470) (1,058) (27,095)
(4,716) (120,777) — —
(205,311) (5,258,015) (549,457) (14,071,594)
(217,309) (5,565,283) (193,810) (4,963,474)
321,308 8,228,698 515,118 13,192,172
103,999 2,663,414 321,308 8,228,698
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— — 1,195 30,604
187 4,789 1,487 38,082
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3,977,970 101,875,812 3,967,833 101,616,203
- (171,591) (4,394,446) (175,950) (4,506, 080)
— — 510,000 13,061,100
465,784 11,928,728 — —
(10,000) (256,100) (500, 000) (12,805, 000)
(200, 565) (5,136,470) (1,058) (27,095)
ICULS — — — —
_ — 1,195 30,604
171,591 4,394,446 175,950 4,506,080
17,465 447,279 — _
30 4,250,654 108,859,249 3,977,970 101,875,812
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(4,716) (120,777)
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2020 2019 2020 2019
18,504,298 17,153,379 260 291
674,151 894,149 415,071 548,325
19,178,449 18,047,528 415,331 548,616
@

2020 2019 2020 2019
5,837,626 6,705,782 — —_
3,479,290 3,432,281 — —

171,900 211,048 — —
396,858 863,289 — —
389,427 154,832 — —

10,275,101 11,367,232 — —

4,077,724 2,655,217 — —_
14,479 19,035 — —
4,092,203 2,674,252 — —
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2,316,005 1,219,499 — —
1,113,986 1,198,333 — —

18,529 27,292 — —_
1,132,515 1,225,625 — —
478,046 435,872 — —
— 9,050 — —

17,213 19,546 — —
495,259 464,468 — —
3,500 3,669 — —

41 153 — —

3,541 3,822 — —
139,023 144,529 — —
14,659 26,923 — —_
35,992 27,029 260 291
189,674 198,481 260 291
18,504,298 17,153,379 260 291
481,471 639,938 — —
183,887 224,804 43,200 61,056
8,793 29,407 371,871 487,269
674,151 894,149 415,071 548,325
19,178,449 18,047,528 415,331 548,616
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2020 2019 2020 2019
874,796 896,991 116,028 115,070

946,231 852,637 55,563 60,880

47,286 — 295 —

15,894 18,682 — _

1,884,207 1,768,310 171,886 175,950

23 (4,906) (12,463) — —
11 (18,554) (8,348) — —
1,860,747 1,747,499 171,886 175,950

194/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020 2019 2020 2019
( )

24 7,842 11,569 — —

19 69,606 10,806 — —

10,029 10,098 244 244

87 54 — 4

1,601 727 16 14

10,901 5,552 — —

154,819 (144,316) — _

11 1,554,423 1,497,585 809 889

12 193,895 — 4,535 —

57,993 73,308 6,102 4,896

1,821 2,423 822 848

1,106 587 — —

16,210 — — —

— 15,059 — —

38(e) 100 34 — —

14 — 1,080 — _

19 1,723 — — —

38(e) 153,645 155,134 — —

1,135 — — —

17 898 — — —

11 28,958 4,347 — —

195/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2020 2019 2020 2019
13 7,675 — — —
44,656 77,662 — _
84,967 — 634 —
8,683 — — —
27,502 23,620 — —
28,433 12,360 — —
20,122 36,074 — —
11 51,896 26,793 — —
36 (4,437) 7,520 — —
— 188,442 — 931
( )

13 (12,808) 13,172 — —
5,209 4,579 — —
33 15,166 15,973 — —
2,949 4,187 — —
258,506 — — —
1,172 — — —
— 3,709 — —

18,739 4,820 — (72)
3,281 6,868 366 1,983
124,485 121,930 — —
1,290 4 — —
26,947 29,916 — —

196/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020 2019 2020 2019
91,170 82,582 — —

4,015 4,134 _ _

746 — — _

— 29,243 — —

3,357 16,093 — —

18 25,976 62,507 823 1,288
139,548 — — —

10,166 11,657 — —

11 — 1,024 — —
38(e) 278 57 — —
14 2,978 — — —

197/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020
( )
289 10,969 2,477 1,090 1,114 2 148 16,089
KBE CBE FICE
182 4,969 1,521 632 1,114 2 679 9,099
— 3,681 1,244 547 1,114 1 36 6,623
— 3,913 1,331 585 1,114 2 37 6,982
— 4,100 1,333 596 1,114 2 56 7,201
— 3,232 1,212 533 1,114 1 29 6,121
— 3,523 1,184 521 1,114 3 41 6,386
— 648 120 31 111 1 80 991
) 328 — — — — 23 — 351
410 — — — — 21 — 431
439 — — — — 27 — 466
173 — — — — 7 — 180
1,821 35,035 10,422 4,535 7,909 92 1,106 60,920

198/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020
( )
— — — — 667 — — 667
KBE CBE FICE

— 812 305 134 667 70 — 1,988

— — — — 667 — — 667

— — — — 667 — — 667

— — — — 667 — — 667

— — — — 667 — — 667

— — — — 667 — — 667

— — — — 66 — — 66

) 220 — — — — — 14 234

210 — — — — — 12 222

219 — — — — — 13 232

173 — — — — — 7 180

822 812 305 134 4,735 70 46 6,924

199/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
( )
306 14,265 2,477 1,486 1,114 2 184 19,834
KBE CBE FICE
193 6,987 1,521 924 1,114 4 113 10,856
— 5,341 1,244 746 1,114 1 43 8,489
— 5,685 1,331 798 1,114 1 69 8,998
— 5,822 1,272 792 1,114 2 54 9,056
— 4,848 1,212 727 1,114 2 31 7,934
— 5,099 1,184 710 1,114 3 13 8,123
— 648 120 42 111 1 80 1,002
) 647 — — — — 30 — 677
) 440 — — — — 29 — 469
410 — — — — 24 — 434
427 — — — — 19 — 446
2,423 48,695 10,361 6,225 7,909 118 587 76,318

200/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
( ) — — — — 667 — — 667
KBE CBE FICE
— 100 — 12 667 — — 779
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 66 — — 66
) 208 — — — — — 13 221
) 220 — — — — — 15 235
210 — — — — — 13 223
210 — — — — — 8 218
848 100 — 12 4,735 — 49 5,744
2020 2019 2020 2019
( )

1,222,551 1,166,520 20,577 18,188

124,950 79,867 2,306 2,117

43,824 64,699 — —

14,557 14,944 1,922 1,932

34,647 28,907 1,406 1,190

1,440,529 1,354,937 26,211 23,427

201/620



34

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2020 2019 2020 2019
130,626 159,742 6,462 16,802
139,452 146,015 — —
144,558 9,395 — _
414,636 315,152 6,462 16,802
319,075 307,876 9,851 18,980
(48,997) (2,119) (3.389) (2.178)
144,558 9,395 — —
414,636 315,152 6,462 16,802

202/620



24

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2020 2019 2020 2019
419,294 1,036,507 176,055 315,250
24 (2019 100,631 248,762 42,253 75,660
379,548 340,440 57,390 58,031
(128,308) (165,548) (89,792) (114,711)
. 158,866 (30,647) — —
(974) (3.467) — —
(48,997) (2,119) (3,389) (2,178)
(61,728) (98,663) — —
362 2,036 — _
15,236 24,358 — _
414,636 315,152 6,462 16,802
162.4 2020
17 19 (2020 1 )
2020 30 2020 30
19

203/620



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

(
2019
«C ) ( ) 242,589
« ) 10,569,956
« ) 2.30
ESOS 119,495,000 (2019 120,900,000 )
10
2020 2019
( ) ( )
2019 30
2019 11 13 4.0 426,770 — —
2018 30
2018 11 13 — — 4.0 422,748
4.0 426,770 4.0 422,748
2020 30
2020 28 30

2020 10 28

204/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ooooooo
11
.
2020
%019 11,673,973 8,467,160 23,970,206 2,080,562 780,288 3,117,440 2,085,460 52,184,089
MFRS 16 (824,201) — — — — (86,696) —  (910,897)
%019 N 10,849,772 8,467,160 23,970,206 2,080,562 780,288 3,030,744 2,085,460 51,273,102
249,495 — 319,615 7,627 13,112 — 22,962 612,811
64,172 419 77,878 43,412 26,170 2,349 1,550,505 1,764,995
(440,020) — (47,200) (2,707) — — — (489,927)
(13,254) — (17,701)  (32,807)  (42.,969) (741) — (107,472
(21,081) (740)  (256,021)  (123,793) (821) (1,202) (606)  (404,264)
(26,005) - — — - - — (26,005)
345,402 444,389 1,558,573 58,494 30,161 104,401  (2,541,420) —
14 542 — — — — - 89,960 90,502
13 270 6,133 — — - - - 6,403
23 316,700 — 56,281 — — — 8,375 381,365
A 254,611 880  (753,005) 16,804 243,725 (56,635)  (92,584)  (386,204)
77,468 26,336 45,803 15,162 1,601 — 20,100 186,470
2020 30 11,658,081 8,944,577 24,054,429 2,062,754 1,060,267 3,078,916 1,142,842 52,901,866
§°19 3,541,042 686,166 14,614,240 1,001,960 563,088 1,018,100 — 21,424,596
WFRS 16 (251,924) — — — — (16,349) — (268,273)
%019 N 3,289,118 686,166 14,614,240 1,001,960 563,088 1,001,751 — 21,156,323
107,076 — 156,008 5,482 9,816 — — 278,382
241,157 77,802 910,524 134,131 67,914 132,185 — 1,563,713
(27,559) — (31,860) (2,626) — — — (62,045)
(1,776) — (13,931)  (29,845)  (37,921) @7) — (83,690)
(14,067) (130)  (243,747)  (92,926) (785) (713) —  (352,368)
— — 2,953 — — — — 2,953
A 181,984 487 (440,267) 10,847 132,704 (48,885) —  (163,130)
39,031 16,737 (1,563) 6,886 1,054 — — 62,145
2020 30 3,814,964 781,062 14,952,357 1,033,909 735,870 1,084,121 — 22,402,283
2020 30 7,843,117 8,163,515 10,002,072 1,028,845 324,397 1,994,795 1,142,842 30,499,583
N

205/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
.
2019

2018 10,232,886 8,228,973 19,072,492 1,932,357 620,060 2,789,896 2,072,452 44,949,116
604,297 — 4,231,549 74,687 19,862 — 118,415 5,048,810
495,187 316,914 677,605 428,625 104,504 14,588 447,136 2,484,559

(714) — (25,220) (23,094) (41,367) — — (90,395)

(60,747) (426)  (100,138) (22,381) (660) (10,044) (14,409)  (208,805)
1,024 — — — — — — 1,024
405,689 — 17,848 (309,660) 83,680 323,000 (520,557) —
14 6,900 — — — — — — 6,900

(10,549) (78,301) 96,070 28 3,209 — (17,577) (7,120)
2019 30 11,673,973 8,467,160 23,970,206 2,080,562 789,288 3,117,440 2,085,460 52,184,089
2018 3,018,136 616,042 11,052,098 879,412 437,798 834,397 — 16,837,883
359,028 — 2,864,896 62,355 17,135 — — 3,303,414
222,614 75,960 829,456 107,594 76,517 193,034 — 1,505,175

(125) — (21,725) (18,480) (34,846) — — (75,176)

(54,630) (426) (98,117) (19,455) (53) (9,331) — (182,012)
— — 4,347 — — — — 4,347
4,235 — (63,541) (4,947) 64,253 — — —
(8,216) (5,410) 46,826 (4,519) 2,284 — — 30,965
2019 30 3,541,042 686,166 14,614,240 1,001,960 563,088 1,018,100 — 21,424,596
2019 30 8,132,931 7,780,994 9,355,966 1,078,602 226,200 2,099,340 2,085,460 30,759,493

206/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020
2019 ( )

1,054,959 601,385 317,870 7,334,743
6,083 200 — 2,478
MFRS 16 — (506,645) (317,556) —
2019 ( ) 1,061,042 94,940 314 7,337,221
199 — — 18,670

(207,177) (94,940) — (111,748)

(3,006) — — (9,034)

_ — — (11,220)

_ — — (26,005)
74,037 — (314) 593,183
10,355 — — 47,084
2020 30 935,450 — — 7,838,151
929,367 — — 7,835,642
6,083 — — 2,509
2020 30 935,450 — — 7,838,151

2019 ( )

40 77,824 179,218 2,496,654
— 32 — 748
MFRS 16 — (68,393) (179,218) —
2019 ( ) 40 9,463 — 2,497,402
_ — — 165,930

— (9,463) — (15,008)

— — — (591)

_ — — (6,364)
— — — 3,255
— — — 33,263
2020 30 40 — — 2,677,887
929,327 — — 5,158,552
6,083 — — 1,712
2020 30 935,410 — — 5,160,264

207/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020 ()
2019 ( )
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,665,212
— — — 8,761
MFRS 16 — — — (824,201)
2019 ( ) 1,409,972 943,648 2,635 10,849,772
249,495 — — 249,495
11,213 34,090 — 64,172
(26,155) — — (440,020)
(622) (592) — (13,254)
(6,060) (3,656) (145) (21,081)
_ _ — (26,005)
292,622 (58,952) 16,958 917,534
11,451 8,578 — 77,468
2020 30 1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,658,081
1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,649,489
_ — — 8,592
2020 30 1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,658,081
2019 ( )
408,428 375,955 2,143 3,540,262
— — — 780
MFRS 16 — (4,313) — (251,924)
2019 ( ) 408,428 371,642 2,143 3,289,118
107,076 — — 107,076
46,867 27,640 720 241,157
(3,088) — — (27,559)
(593) (592) — (1,776)
(5,639) (1,924) (140) (14,067)
209,204 (35,183) 4,708 181,984
4,445 1,323 — 39,031
2020 30 766,700 362,906 7,431 3,814,964
1,175,216 560,210 12,017 7,835,322
_ — — 7,795
2020 30 1,175,216 560,210 12,017 7,843,117

208/620



2019
2018
2019 30
2019 30
2018
2020 30
2019 30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

1,033,325 472,694 166,383 6,953,618
6,271 200 — 2,478
1,039,596 472,894 166,383 6,956,096
31,862 48,963 126,743 —
667 73,568 — 162,883
(188) — (464) —

_ _ — (60,747)
— — — 1,024
(23,262) 8,022 19,314 316,020

12,367 (1,862) 5,894 (38,055)
1,061,042 601,585 317,870 7,337,221
1,054,959 601,385 317,870 7,334,743
6,083 200 — 2,478
1,061,042 601,585 317,870 7,337,221
— 55,553 72,830 2,407,449
— 30 —_ 700
— 55,583 72,830 2,408,149
40 15,776 92,880 —
— 6,219 11,056 162,604
_ _ (94) _

_ _ — (54,630)

— 146 — (4,757)

— 132 2,546 (13,964)
40 77,856 179,218 2,497,402
1,054,919 523,561 138,652 4,838,089
6,083 168 — 1,730
1,061,002 523,729 138,652 4,839,819

209/620



2018

2019

2019

2018

2020

2019

30

30

30

30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,223,937
— — — 8,949
1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,232,886
— 396,729 — 604,297
247,340 10,729 — 495,187
— (62) — (714)

— — — (60,747)

_ — — 1,024

80,095 12,400 — 405,689
(5.287) 16,394 — (10,549)
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,673,973
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,665,212
— — — 8,761
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,673,973
374,083 105,385 2,106 3,017,406
_ — — 730
374,083 105,385 2,106 3,018,136
— 250,332 — 359,028
26,380 16,318 37 222,614
— (31) —_ (125)

_ _ — (54,630)

8,336 510 — 4,235
(371) 3,441 — (8,216)
408,428 375,955 2,143 3,541,042
1,001,544 567,693 492 8,124,950
_ — — 7,981
1,001,544 567,693 492 8,132,931

210/620



2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

2018

2019

2018

2019

2019

2020

2019

30

30

30

30

30

30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

7,208 9,292 16,500
187 — 187
7,395 9,292 16,687
6,701 5,325 12,026
415 394 809
7,116 5,719 12,835
279 3,573 3,852
7,055 8,417 15,472
153 1,334 1,487
— (459) (459)
7,208 9,292 16,500
6,305 5,161 11,466
396 493 889
— (329) (329)
6,701 5,325 12,026
507 3,967 4,474

211/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
@
2020 2019 2020 2019
1,554,423 1,497,585 809 889
24(c) 9,290 7,590 — —
1,563,713 1,505,175 809 889
(b)
2019 2019
94,987 —
4,302 2,528
99,289 2,528
©)
2020 2019
168,961 164,166
892,218 1,381,634
1,061,179 1,545,800

212/620



(D
18,554,000
(2019  83.4
( PPE
( ceu )
FVLCD
PPE
FVLCD
15
ceu 27
il 2020

0.5 100

(2019

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno
8,348,000 )
30 97.1
)
PPE
FVLCD
2020 2019
7.7 8.2
20.7 21.4
PPE
2.5 (2019 2.5 )
2019 22 ceU
24.7
90

213/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
12
2020
2019 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
( )
WFRS 16 122,117 666,781 94,207 4,674 12,378 572,621 — 1,472,778
2019
( ) 122,117 666,781 94,207 4,674 12,378 572,621 — 1,472,778
6,446 11,885 314,447 260 — 10,199 2,096 345,333
— — — — — 6,482 — 6,482
(24,900)  (114,136) (17,957) (2,461) (7,135) (25,575) (1,731)  (193,895)
426 — 612 7 50 4,892 2 5,989
— (395) (257) — — — — (652)
2020 30 104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
2020 30
130,728 1,327,862 411,161 4,942 12,403 848,623 2,114 2,737,833
(26,639)  (763,727) (20,109) (2,462) (7,110)  (280,004) (1,747)  (1,101,798)
104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
2020
2019 —
13,604
(4,535)
2020 30 9,069
2020 30
13,604
(4,535)
9,069

214/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

30
12

13
547,452,000
2020 523,529,000

215/620



13

(2019

2020
23
11
2019
23
30 31
2,455

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2,960,906 7,256,667 10,217,573
343,257 215,959 559,216
(1,633) (11,175) (12,808)
(12,741) (42,968) (55,709)
(1,979,583) (6,851,698) (8,831,281)
(51,787) — (51,787)
(6,403) — (6,403)
(7,650) (25) (7,675)
1,244,366 566,760 1,811,126
2,902,048 7,101,841 10,003,889
2,304 2,163 4,467
40,574 2,922 43,496
79,932 (66,760) 13,172
(34,799) 216,501 181,702
(10,128) — (10,128)
19,382 — 19,382
(23,225) — (23,225)
(15,182) — (15,182)
2,960,906 7,256,667 10,217,573
481

216/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2020
— — 547,452 547,452
— — 672,000 672,000
— 34,610 557,064 591,674
— 34,610 1,776,516 1,811,126
2019
— — 8,947,689 8,947,689
— — 667,000 667,000
— 34,592 568,292 602,884
— 34,592 10,182,981 10,217,573
526,819,000 (2019
594,936,000 )
6,548,000 (2019 118,826,000 )
11,251,000 (2019 201,473,000 )

@

39(b)

217/620



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

(b)
©) ( )
()
2020 6.5 7.50
2019 3.50 8.50
3.70 6.88
()
6.00 7.50
(2019 6.00 7.50 )
6.00 7.50
(2019  6.00
7.50 )
()
2020 2019
1.50 1.75
3.00 2.25
9.1 11.0
12 24 12
18-28 18-28

218/620
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

COVID-19
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14
2020
@
23
®
11

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

412,956 232,403 242,096 887,455
— 4,948 18,827 23,775
7,322 — — 7,322
— (10,898) (332) (11,230)
420,278 226,453 260,591 907,322
(530) (27,767) (480) (28,777)
— 2,978 — 2,978
(530) (24,789) (480) (25,799)
419,748 201,664 260,111 881,523
— 177,057 91,503 268,560

— 3,867 64,669 68,536

— — (8,175) (8,175)

— 5,966 2,313 8,279

— — (90,502) (90,502)

— 186,890 59,808 246,698
419,748 388,554 319,919 1,128,221

220/620



2019
@

23
Q)

23

11

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

411,576 235,425 233,789 880,790
— — 12,244 12,244
1,380 62 (1,442) _
— 1) (1,123) (1,134)
— — 457) (457)
— (3,073) (915) (3,988)
412,956 232,403 242,096 887,455
— (27,315) (382) (27,697)
(530) (452) (98) (1,080)
(530) (27,767) (480) (28,777)
412,426 204,636 241,616 858,678
— 159,144 115,154 274,298
— 13,772 106,670 120,442
— — (3,392) (3,392)
— 4,141 3,180 7,321
— — (40,078) (40,078)
_ — (83,131) (83,131)
— — (6,900) (6,900)
— 177,057 91,503 268,560
412,426 381,693 333,119 1,127,238
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(Business Viability Guarantee Letter)

15
ICULS *
ICULS
* 1CULS
2011 10 31
10 ICULS
I1CULS
0.99
ICULS
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
1,080,000
327,064,000 (2019
PT PLN( ) 30
2018 2020
2020 2019
3,470,029 3,972,483
4,300,374 3,449,919
— 391,502
(6,389) (6,389)
7,764,014 7,807,515
3,491,567 4,701,802
— 238,816
3,491,567 4,940,618
ICULS
1.32
0.66
2019 10 21
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2020 2019

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

( SGREIT ) *8§
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

+
98.03  98.03
100.00  100.00
(UK) 100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
( ) 3
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
e
100.00  100.00
, ( ) 100.00  100.00
REIT 56.95  56.95
( YTL REIT )
100.00  100.00
SARLE

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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C )
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
96.60 65.26
*
55.21 55.21
( YTL )*
100.00  100.00
*
SV 90.00 90.00
2020 2019
51.00 51.00
( )
51.00 51.00
( )
2020 2019
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
2020 2019
SCI 100.00  100.00
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( SGREIT )

2020 2019

*§ —  36.46
—  36.46

*§
SG REIT(M) *§ —  36.46
SG REIT(WA) *§ —  36.46
SG REIT(WA) *§ —  36.46

SG REIT(WA) 1*§ —  36.46
SG REIT(SA) 2%§ —  36.46

REIT SPC — 36.46
*8
REIT SPC — 36.46
*§
REIT MTN — 36.46
*§
REIT One TMK*§ — 36.46
ML 8 — 36.46

— 36.46
*8

2020 2019

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
o 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

25 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
« )
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( )
100.00  100.00
® *
90.00  90.00
70.00  70.00
100.00  100.00
99.21  99.19
THP JV 70.00  70.00
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
*
REIT 100.00  100.00
t
REIT 100.00  100.00
+
74.89  74.89
( ) *
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
t
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
REIT
*
100.00  100.00
REIT * SGREIT
2020 2019
75.46 —
*@
98.03  98.03
(Sg. 98.03  98.03
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« )
2020 2019
98.03  98.03
*
49.02  49.02
68.62 —
*
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
(KL) 98.03  98.03
& 98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
ChCM 75.46  75.46
*@
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
*
1 98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
68.62 —
*f
68.62 —
*f
68.62  68.62
75.46  75.46
*@
75.46  75.46
*@
98.03  98.03
( ) 75.46  75.46
*0
98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
t
98.03  98.03
75.46  75.46
*@
( 98.03  98.03
( ) )*0
75.46  75.46
*@
75.46  75.46
( y5
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2020 2019
75.46  75.46
*@
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
( 75.46  75.46
*@
( 75.46  75.46
) *@
75.46  75.46
*@
( 70.38  70.38
) (
)*0
( ) 70.38  70.38
*@
70.38  70.38
*@
75.46  75.46
*@
75.46  75.46
*@
LCS ( 75.46  75.46
)*@
LCS 75.46  75.46
*0
LMCB 75.46  75.46
*@
98.03  98.03
@ 75.46  75.46
' «@ 75.46  75.46
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
*
98.03 —
*#
35.00  35.00
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
PHS 98.03  98.03
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PMCWS 75.46  75.46
*@
75.46  75.46
( )0
P.T. 98.03  98.03
*
RC 98.03  98.03
75.46  75.46
*@
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
( ) 98.03  98.03
shC 98.03  98.03
50.00  50.00
98.03  98.03
75.46  75.46
*0
98.03  98.03
( ) 98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
X ( ) 98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
*
( ) 98.03  98.03
*
( ) 98.03  98.03
*
« ) 98.03  98.03
75.46  75.46
(
)*e
98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
*
( ) 98.03  98.03
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2020 2019
) 98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
98.03  98.03
*
98.03  98.03
*

2020 2019
80.00  80.00
80.00  80.00

2020 2019
56.00  56.00
70.00  70.00
MSC 60.00  60.00

100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00
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( )
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
(SAY( ) s
REIT
( YTL REIT )
2020 2019
( 56.95  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.95  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.95  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.95  56.95
) *
REIT( ) 56.95  56.95
*
REIT( 56.95  56.95
)
( ) 56.95  56.95
( ) 56.95  56.95
*
( ) 56.95  56.95
*
( ) 56.95  56.95
*
REIT( ) 56.95  56.95
*
REIT G.K.* 56.95  56.95
REIT MTN 56.95  56.95
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
* 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  51.00
100.00 —
+
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C )
2020 2019
( ) 100.00  100.00
*
( ) 100.00  100.00
*
* 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
64.00  64.00
51.00  51.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
( ) 100.00  100.00
*
t 100.00  100.00
(S) 100.00  100.00
*
1 100.00  100.00
P.T. 1 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
RW * 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
*
RW 100.00  100.00

100.00 100.00

100.00  100.00

( ) 100.00  100.00

' ( ) 100.00  100.00
( ) * 100.00  100.00

X ( ) 100.00  100.00

( ) 100.00  100.00

' ( ) 1 — 100.00

. ( ) 100.00  100.00
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2020 2019

( ) t — 100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00 100.00

* 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

s 100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
ICHM 70.00 70.00
( 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2020 2019

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2020 2019

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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2020 2019

96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26

96.60 65.26
67.62 45.68
96.60 65.26

96.60 65.26

96.60 65.26

PYP 96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26

96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
SR 96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26
96.60 65.26

96.60  65.26
(MM H)

96.60 65.26

96.60 65.26

( YL )
2020 2019
* 28.16 28.16
45.75 55.21
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( YTL )
«C )
2020 2019
t 55.21 —
45.75 55.21
*
55.21 —
*
45.75 55.21
*
55.21 —
33.13 33.13
* 35.89 35.89
55.21 55.21
* 38.06 38.06
38.06 38.06
*
38.06 38.06
) 55.21 55.21
*
* 55.21 55.21
( ) * 55.21 55.21
55.21 55.21
( 55.21 55.21
) 1
KJS * 23.19 23.19
33.13 33.13
*
* 55.21 55.21
P.T. 55.21 55.21
*
P.T. 52.45 52.45
T
P.T. 44.17 44.17
*
55.21 55.21
*
55.21 55.21
*
sC GmbH* 55.21 55.21
sC GmbH* 55.21 55.21
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( YL )
«C )
2020 2019
sc 55.21 55.21
*
SIPP 38.65 38.65
55.21 —
( ) — 55.21
N
A — 55.21
A — 55.21
A — 55.21
55.21 —
n (
)
* 38.65 38.65
55.21 55.21
*
— 55.21
N
55.21 55.21
*
— 55.21
N
— 55.21
N
— 55.21
N
— 55.21
N
— 55.21
N
55.21 55.21
+
55.21 55.21
*
55.21 55.21
+
* 55.21 55.21
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( YL )
«C )
2020 2019
55.21 55.21
s
55.21 55.21
*
55.21 55.21
*
55.21 55.21
i
55.21 55.21
*
16.23 16.23
*
(1oT) 33.13 33.13
26.50 26.50
33.13 33.13
i
33.13 33.13
33.13 33.13
o *
55.21 55.21
(UK) *
33.13 33.13
55.21 55.21
(UK) t
55.21 55.21
55.21 55.21
T
55.21 55.21
*
( 55.21 —
) t
33.13 33.13
t
55.21 55.21
*
55.21 55.21
55.21 55.21
s
55.21 55.21
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( YL )
2020 2019
55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
*
31.55  31.55
55.21  55.21
1
31.55  31.55
55.21  55.21
*
55.21  55.21
*
55.21  55.21
*
55.21  55.21
UK *
55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
1
55.21  55.21
*
55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
1
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
*
(
)
( ) 55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
)
55.21  55.21
(UK) *
t 55.21  55.21
55.21  55.21
SIPP 38.65  38.65
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
1
55.21  55.21
t
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« )
2020 2019
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t
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
t
55.21  55.21
®)
*
55.21  55.21
®) *
55.21  55.21
(UK) *
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
( )SARL*
100.00  100.00
® *
2020 2019
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
— 100.00
*N\
*
t
0 2019 11 18 12 31 30
t 2021
#
§
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( )
)
( )
69,000 46,000
( )

185,600,000,000

715,178

655,448

(141,450)

513,998

201,180
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333,293
3,394
872
180,291
282
40,539
24,973
101,640
36,823

(66,659)

655,448

715,178

(632,515)

82,663

(101,640)
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)
2019 2

LMB
1,625,042,598.75

(
2019

220,764,635
YTL

17

LMB

LMB

(
51.0
LMB  YTL
( MGO

LMB

LMB

76.98
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)
( YTL )
YTL
LMB 433,344,693
3.75
YTL YTL
LMB 3.75
) 2019 13 MO
827,867,381
2,452,910
2,466,070
(248,360)
2,217,710
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1,677,633
4,467
1,404,349
22,332
4,107
72,027
353,639
398,351
42,970
48,938

(571,838)

(929,835)

(54,816)
160

(6,414)

2,466,070

2,452,910

(48,938)

2,403,972
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)

) 40,236,655
HSL ) 90.78
HSL  YTL

201,950

17,090

(1,576)

15,514

186,436

68,597
5,387
18,008
8,650

(34,586)

(48,966)

17,090
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2020
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MFRS
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201,950

(8,650)

193,300

(
( )
( )
( )

2,452,910 201,950
(2,192,135) (794)
260,775 201,156
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(b) SGREIT
2020 SGREIT
REIT
SGREIT SGREIT

60
9,244,013
2,030
45,571
2,349
245,871
(219,235)
(3,493,431)
(2,053)
(19,348)
(54,814)

(9,639)

5,741,374

2,109,770
(256,748)

258,506

2,111,528

(245,871)

(245,871)
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©
( NCI )
YTL SGREIT YTL REIT
2020
et 44.79 — 43.05 23.02
NCI 1,884,214 — 696,741 208,172 360,466 3,149,503
NC; ( (41,527) 24,603 17,276 (31,150) 44,632 13,834
2020 30
35,685,632 — 4,490,243 3,044,454
11,452,503 — 194,293 585,797
(25,418, 661) —  (2,037,464)  (243,197)
(9,676,720) —  (00,173) (1,095,706)
12,042,754 — 2,555,809 2,291,348
2020 30
10,637,177 435,212 426,446 1,399,476
« ) 127,704 174,354 9,594  (133,136)
¢ (130,651) 38,558 (66,811)  (134,534)
1,121,786 302,696 185,381 93,769
(1,517,957) (74,709) (8,624) (24,791)
(328,076)  (201,991)  (184,305) (49,640)
(724,247) 25,996 (7,548) 19,338
NCI 171,879 138,495 43,235 —
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YTL SGREIT YTL REIT
2019
et 44.79 63.54 43.05 23.02
NCI 2,637,806 3,741,188 716,437 246,378 290,046 7,631,855
NCI ¢ ) 270,738 198,445 44,125 (3,378) (33,402) 476,528
2019 30
34,168,822 9,379,782 4,681,459 3,432,128
12,104,156 235,935 183,318 1,008,743
(23,275,311)  (3,208,684) (1,017,356)  (323,255)
(10,127,005)  (500,398)  (1,110,321) (1,573,537)
12,870,662 5,906,635 2,737,100 2,544,079
2019 30
11,732,716 623,355 490,905 162,022
« ) 613,528 198,282 104,673 (17,294)
¢ 414,374 312,310 152,743 (17,155)
(
) 1,248,400 293,749 221,676 (9,355)
(
) 137,412 (23,202)  (347,693) (2,365)
) ¢ (1,267,562)  (247,234) 120,382 —
118,250 23,313 (5.635) (11,720)
NCI 171,879 183,212 56,005 —
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16

2020 2019 2020 2019
2,111,715 — 170,994 —
1,324,168 1,743,643 205,241 205,241

849,170 902,538 — —
(68,210) (65,016) — —
4,216,843 2,581,165 376,235 205,241
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45.00 45.00
50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00
49.00 49.00
49.90 49.90
36.74 —
*§
49.01 49.01
— 49.04
*#
29.40 29.40
— 49.01
*#
49.01 49.01
20.58 —
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30.00 30.00
Q
32.00 32.00
Q*
Q~* 49.00 49.00
50.00 50.00
18.50 18.50
+*
s 16.56 16.56
P.T. +* 11.04 11.04
*
Q 12 31
t
+ P.T.
33.5 35.0
#
§
30
12 31
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@
P.T.
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
4,543,425 4,446,818 10,879,751 9,670,335 9,035,122 373,817
1,048,472 1,074,410 147,284 127,112 429,202 162,045
(562,414)  (815,962)  (8,769,136)  (7,087,636)  (3,400,846) (900)
(282,964)  (269,317) (923,519)  (1,453,774) (627,963) (66,657)
4,746,519 4,435,949 1,334,380 1,256,037 5,435,515 468,305
) C 1,159,080 899,088 79,229 122,925 (472,072) 30,774
— — (21,757) (179,855) (860) —
) C 1,159,080 899,088 57,472 (56,930) (472,932) 30,774
2,296,168 2,365,529 1,088,992 1,150,574 113,671 212,577
349,682 385,772 — — — 7,974
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2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
( ) 4,435,049 4,524,030 1,256,037 1,347,235 — —
— — — — 5,741,374 —
_ _ _ _ 5,807 —
« ) 1,159,080 899,088 79,229 122,925 (471,044) —
¢ — — (21,757)  (179,855) 159,501 —
150,581 115,027 20,871 (34,268) (123) —
(999,091)  (1,102,205) _ _ _ _
( 30) 4,746,519 4,435,949 1,334,380 1,256,037 5,435,515 —
35.00 35.00 33.50 33.50 36.74 —
1,661,282 1,552,582 447,017 420,772 1,997,377 —
1,661,282 1,552,582 447,017 420,772 1,997,377 —
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2020 2019 2020 2019

( ) — 210,640 5,691,986 6,081,914
— — 5,741,374 —
— 251,472 5,807 251,472
« ) — 30,774 767,265 1,052,787

¢ — — 137,744 (179,855)
— 1,795 171,329 82,554

— (26,376) (999,091)  (1,128,581)
( 30 ) — 468,305 11,516,414 6,160,291

— 50.03
— 234,293 4,105,676 2,207,647
— 15,154 — 15,154
— 249,447 4,105,676 2,222,801
23,357,000 (2019 38,511,000 )
111,167,000 (2019 358,364,000
) 36,176,000 (2019
6,090,000 )
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2020 2019
276,786 265,363
(107,326) 2,209
(4,286) (3,388)
165,174 264,184
2020 2019

37.73  37.73

48.30  32.63

24.84  24.84

24.84  24.84

24.84  24.84

27.61  27.61

16.57  16.57



2020 2019 2020 2019
8,049,694 6,484,153 9,290 3,251
61,145 31,528 337,590 354,220
(7.880,832) (5,731,014) — —
(310, 466) (578,558) (132,650) (125,313)
(80,459) 206,109 214,230 232,158
(35,117) (20,135) 16,844 107,234
(253,294) (198,096) — —
(288,411) (218,231) 16,844 107,234
— — 357,960 475,499
_ — 18,930 9,278
32,457 26,135 26,633 73,868
(2.,464,519) (1,936,891) — —
(4,976,577) (3,625,914) — —
(431,520) (168,208) — —

256/620
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()
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

( ) 206,109 59,245 232,158 141,524 438,267 200,769
* — 362,924 — — — 362,924
«C ) (35,117) (20,135) 16,844 107,234 (18,273) 87,099

(253,294) (198,096) — — (253,294)  (198,096)

— — (42,087) (20,617) (42,067) (20,617)
1,843 2,171 7,295 4,017 9,138 6,188
( 30) (80,459) 206,109 214,230 232,158 133,771 438,267

45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0

(36,207) 92,749 96,404 104,471 60,197 197,220
36,207 — — — 36,207 —
— 92,749 96,404 104,471 96,404 197,220
(36,207) — — — (36,207) —

362.9

69.0 (2019  67.0
) 42.3 (2019 7.7
) 36.1 (2019  81.4
)
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2020 2019 2020 2019
18(a) 362,195 346,510 35,226 34,968
18(b) 42,716 63,461 9,599 9,477
404,911 409,971 44,825 44,445
18(a) 2,301,989 2,352,947 755,199 797,277
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2020 2019 2020 2019
476,102 631,707 — —
912,940 859,158 — —

5,909 5,976 5,909 5,976
341,799 326,391 18,437 18,489
3,071 4,155 3,071 4,155
7,809 6,348 7,809 6,348
3,607 3,640 — —
912,947 862,082 755,199 797,277
2,664,184 2,699,457 790,425 832,245
25,976 62,507 823 1,288
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OooooOodd
()
2020 2019 2020 2019
8,097 10,833 4 4
14,141 31,239 1 1
20,066 21,343 9,594 9,472
412 46 — —
42,716 63,461 9,599 9,477
) (12,325) (11,713) 123 277
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19
2020
143,995 7,960,260 — 89,869 8,194,124
13,266 — 162,102 — 175,368
— 243,332 — — 243,332
3,829 36,031 (2,659) 127 37,328
* — — 386,204 — 386,204
161,090 8,239,623 545,647 89,996 9,036,356
(24,720) (120,167) — (26,037) (170,924)
(8,883) — (55,230) (5,493) (69,606)
(545) (150) 816 — 121
— (1,723) — — (1,723)
* — — (163,130) — (163,130)
(34,148) (122,040) (217,544) (31,530) (405, 262)
2020 20 126,942 8,117,583 328,103 58,466 8,631,094
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2019
137,385 5,922,469 62,314 6,122,168
4,215 — — 4,215
— 1,776,586 27,783 1,804,369
2,395 261,205 (228) 263,372
143,995 7,960,260 89,869 8,194,124
(17,281) (117,021) (11,991) (146,293)
(7.283) — (3,523) (10,806)
— — (10,523) (10,523)
(156) (3,146) — (3,302)
(24,720) (120,167) (26,037) (170,924)
2019 20 119,275 7,840,093 63,832 8,023,200
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
( coU
2020 2019
5,484,637 5,454,797
2,143,823 1,895,968
299,556 298,444
96,231 96,231
69,579 69,174
23,757 25,479
8,117,583 7,840,093
coU
coU
46
) ( A ) 820 (2019 820
)( B ) ( C
16 (2019 16 )
2020 2019
A B C A B C
6.3 2.1 9.1 6.3 4.4 11.3
20.0 0.8) 2.2 2.0 0.1 2.1
4.0 1.0 — 4.0 2.7 —
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CGU
CGU
CGU A
CGU
CGU B
OFWAT
CGU C
()
CGU
2020 2019
A B c A B c
( ) 7.4 42.6 19.3 7.7 21.0 12.1
0.7 (1.8) (19.8) 0.3 1.2 1.0
2.0 6.7) — 2.0 2.0 —
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2020 2019 2020 2019
413 43,669 — _

2,133 11,556 — —
(2,133) (2,544) — —

— 9,012 — —

16,670 591 — _
66,345 13,888 — —
11,693 — — —
220,318 220,208 — —
1,104,266 871,752 — —
1,419,705 1,159,120 — —
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2020 2019 2020 2019
2,081,689 2,732,974 — —
23,742 67,103 — —
2,105,431 2,800,077 — —
(557,230) (491,117) — —
« ) 1,548,201 2,308,960 — —
o 481,705 699,654 6,705 14,420
(154,615) (158,036) (1,765) (1,765)
« ) 327,090 541,618 4,940 12,655
766,106 962,863 — —
(7,568) — — —
C ) 758,538 962,863 — —
360,608 304,699 98 363
32(a) 4,193 — — —
206,351 80,593 1,072 327
3,204,981 4,198,733 6,110 13,345
2030 10
13.25
( APCO )
APCO
554 APCO
( NEPCO ) 30 3.5
) NEPCO ( )40
15.00 2019 FVTPL
FVTPL
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** 2015
2017 2018 11
2019 2019 30 70.7
(23.4 )
( ECL ) 38(e)
21
2020
1,343,133 51,469 171,622
1,427,691 24,663 5,148
92,613 8,712 13,388
4,740 — 187
84,844 190,345
74,259 174,944
10,585 15,401
84,844 190,345
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2019

1,657,600 74,701 47,972
1,869,378 7,433 10,320
2,931,554 — 49,533
112,538 665 —
273,138 657 4,942
213,439 288 1,507

* 1,656,800 — 3,333
83,744 117,607

65,022 63,491

18,722 54,116

83,744 117,607
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« )
2020
2020 -
1,163,143 (130,493) (371,407) 371,407 — 11955 90
(HSFO)
179,990 10,340 11,993 (11,993) 151.0 2020 -
2022
(LNG)
4.2
2020 .
1,427,691 19,515 47,199 (47,199) — o
1.00
2019
1,573,146 27,329 (55,116) 55,116 — 1,450 20 -
-573, : . : 4250 Tompr g1
(HSFO)
281.9 2019 .
84,454 (600) (1,073) 1,073 o 1
(LNG)
4.1
2019 -
1,830,909 (3,819) (5,499) 5,499 — o3
1.00

269/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

@

31 (019 29 )
®

33 (2019 31 )
©
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©)

1,143,395,000

(2019
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2020 2019
72,086 24,297
174,013 258,487
59,734 207,225
1,288,681 1,679,118
228,483 234,562
341,342 355,823
20,024 24,211
2,184,363 2,783,723
1,595,960,000

oOoOooodn
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2020

13

11

14(a)

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

99,299 88,998 391,063 579,360
— — 27,155 27,155
51,787 — — 51,787
(69,122) — (312,243) (381,365)
— (5,290) (101,469) (106,759)
(7,322) — — (7,322)
— (2.,852) (20,425) (23,277)
(245) — 2,991 2,746
74,397 80,856 (12,928) 142,325
(17,423)

(7.322)

23,277

(1,468)

140,857

2721620



2019

12,463,000

13
14(a)

14(b)

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
76,461 84,050 206,521 367,032
— 1,875 97,421 99,296
23,225 — — 23,225
— 3,073 915 3,988
— — 83,131 83,131
(387) — 3,075 2,688
99,299 88,998 391,063 579,360
(17,423)
(17,423)
561,937

4,906,000 (2019
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2020 2019
540 2,486
1,165 3,130
(31,326) (26,264)
201,468 205,932
26,151 33,592
(633,343) (996,420)
202,008 208,418
(664,669) (1,022,684)
(462,661) (814, 266)
27,316 36,722
(187,272) (155, 487)
(133,202) (208, 850)
(109,000) (411,767)
(29,934) (36,765)
(3,241) (1,397)
12 —
(462,661) (814,266)




@
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2020 2019
158,566 78,171
(6,749) (76,495)
2,771 157,263
— 15

278 (388)
154,866 158,566
314,053 322,096
(313,562) (319,806)
340,800 314,635
847 (2,872)
342,138 314,053




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2020 2019
36,721 39,353
27,975 35,889
(7,842) (11,569)
(29,669) (26,688)
131 (263)
27,316 36,722
2020 2019
111 597
27,205 36,125
27,316 36,722
2020 30 357.2
(2019  382.6 )
15 (2019 15 )

MFRS 15
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(

)

(2019

51,579,000
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2020 2019
(208,850) (70,175)
420,087 481,203
(345,111) (619,988)
672 110
(133,202) (208, 850)
28,638 39,456
(161,840) (248,306)
(133,202) (208, 850)
95,758,000



©

(D

(

)

(2019

(2019

7,590,000

67.5
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2020 2019
(411,767) (40,816)

2,316,005 1,219,499
6,432 (43)
(2,019,670) (1,590,407)
(109,000) (411,767)
9,290,000

45.7

2020 2019
29,934 36,765




©)
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2020 2019
36,532 20,714
151,770 169,248

2020 2019
3,241 1,397
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Ogoooood
2020 2019 2020 2019
@
17 38 — —
— — 1,299,910 1,011,391
23,389 13,831 3,498 2,987
27,549 17,238 60 57
2,739 2 — —
53,694 31,131 1,303,468 1,014,435
®)
329 — — —
— — 4,655 5,496
5,946 8,661 53 50
10,139 531 — —
22,798 6,814 — _
39,212 16,006 4,708 5,546
©
4.1 (2019 5.4 ) 21.4
(2019  18.0 )
() 40

280/620
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26
2020 2019 2020 2019
10,396,221 10,635,496 102,070 198,360
1,265,011 1,171,006 1,929 122,948
11,661,232 11,806,502 103,999 321,308
31 (45,147) (42,675) — —
90 (516,019) — — _
11,100,066 11,763,827 103,999 321,308
1966 ( ) 7A 4,682,000
(2019 8,882,000 )
2020 2019 2020 2019
0.03-4.25 0.25-3.95 0.03-3.35 1.60-3.50
365 (2019 365 )
57,846,000 (2019 4,167,000
) 31
RAM
P1

281/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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27
2020 2019 2020 2019
10,910,560 10,910,560 3,340,111 3,340,111
112,202 — 127,444 —
11,022,762 10,910,560 3,467,555 3,340,111
11,022,762,340 (2019  10,910,559,429 ) 372,906,618
(2019 341,862,418 ) 2020 30
( ) 10,649,855,722 (2019  10,568,697,011 )
( )
@
2019 12 12
31,044,200 (2019 109,030,600 )
0.94 (2019  1.24
) 2016
127
2020 30 11,022,762,340 (2019  10,910,559,429 )
372,906,618 (2019 341,862,418 )
501,836,889 (2019 472,793,189 )
(b) (ESOS)
2011 2010 11 30

ESOS  ESOS ( )
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ESOS
( )ESOS 10 2011
( )ESOS ESOS
15

) ( ) ( )
ESOS

a) 18
b)

3.1C )

( )ESOS

10

) 13

10 11

)
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2020 30
< >
2012 16 2021 31 1.71 120,900 — (1,405) 119,495
2018 14 2021 31 1.26 252,294 — (4,321) 247,973
373,194 — (5,726) 367,468
2019 30
< >
2012 16 2021 31 1.71 125,895 — (4,995) 120,900
2018 14 2021 31 1.26 259,483 — (7,189) 252,294
385,378 — (12,184) 373,194
2012 16 2015 2018 14
2021 14
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oOoOooodn

2012 16 2018 14
23.6 22.1
4.5 3.6
) 3.1 3.4
2020 2019 2020 2019
16,509 16,679 16,509 16,679
5,133 5,353 — —
— — (9,850) (10,000)
® 12) ) 12)
21,637 22,020 6,654 6,667
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28
@
ICULS
1
2020
97,317 73,848 749,375 92,881 19,042 (29,798)  (95,599) 907,066
— — — — — (12,325) (79,685  (92,010)
— —  (274,166) — — — —  (274,166)
— —  (274,166) — — (12,325)  (79,685)  (366,176)
ICULS — (46,825) — — — — — (46,825)
_ _ — 19,343 — — — 19,343
— — — 27) — — — (527)
— — — (346) — — — (346)
(147) — 5,286 — 650 — (5.,789) —
97,170 27,023 480,495 111,351 19,692 (42,123)  (181,073) 512,535
2019
07,427 73,848 628,989 75,627 18,554 (18,085) 95,517 971,877
— — — — — (11,713)  (198,713)  (210,426)
— — 128,361 — — — — 128,361
N ( — — 128,361 — — (11,713)  (198,713)  (82,065)
— — — 19,635 — — — 19,635
— — — (1,748) — — — (1,748)
— — — (633) — — — (633)
(110) — (7.975) — 488 — 7,507 —
97,317 73,848 749,375 92,881 19,042 (29,798)  (95,599) 907,066
1
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2020

2019
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2871620

64,040 2,636 66,676

— 123 123

16,509 — 16,509
(527) — (527)

80,022 2,759 82,781

49,109 2,359 51,468

— 277 277

16,679 — 16,679
(1,748) — (1,748)

64,040 2,636 66,676

2020 2019

1,087,304 958,774

48,662 123,517

120,241 116,365

1,093 32,763

1,257,300 1,231,419
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OooooOodd
30

2020 2019 2020 2019
30(a) 220,000 510,024 — —
— 10,000 — 10,000
220,000 520,024 — 10,000
30(a) 9,652,636 10,373,669 2,500,000 2,500,000
3.52 30(b) 435,657 422,492 — —
5.75 30(c) 1,824,667 1,818,003 — —
5.375 30(d) 1,046,940 1,043,000 — —
1.75 30(e) 1,171,955 1,136,539 — —
1.369 1.374 30(F) 1,171,955 1,136,539 — —
1.489  1.495 1.499  56¢0) 1,104,074 1,074,176 — —
2039 2.186 30(h) 360,010 349,611 — —
4.0 30(i) 1,583,640 1,582,157 — —
1.5 30(j) 1,304,105 — — —
30(k) — 25,480 _ _
19,655,639 18,961,666 2,500,000 2,500,000
19,875,639 19,481,690 2,500,000 2,510,000
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2020 2019 2020 2019
220,000 520,024 — 10,000
7,079,115 6,090,388 1,000,000 —
12,576,524 12,871,278 1,500,000 2,500,000
19,875,639 19,481,690 2,500,000 2,510,000

2020 2019 2020 2019
3.98 2.21 4.63 4.47
4.00 4.82 — 3.60
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2020 2019 2020 2019
3.52 292,651 301,271 — —
5.75 2,763,282 2,661,429 — —
5.375 1,364,607 1,335,425 — —
1.7 1,735,032 1,728,881 — —
1.39  1.374 1,743,250 1,737,755 — —
1.489  1.495 1.499 1,737,765 1,730,838 — —
2039 2.186 424,060 424,696 — —
4.0 1,635,886 1,671,827 — —
1.5 1,327,959 — _ _
10,460,962 8,704,698 2,366,078 2,366,078
— 25,480 — —
23,485,454 20,322,300 2,366,078 2,366,078
@ ( MTN )
() MTN
a) ( cp ) ( MTN )
2019 17 50
500.0 cp (
)
2019 25 500 MTN
500 MTN MTN 4.60
(2019 4.60 ) MTN 2034 23
10 cP cP
3.60
b) 2013 26 20
MTN
2013 25 4.38 (2019 4.38 )
1,000,000, 000 MTN

MTN 2023 25
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(

2016

2036
2016

2026

)
MTN

a) 2011

(2019
b) YTLPI

11 11

11 11
11 11

11 11

11

4.35
MTN

2,500,000,000

a)

b)

c)

MTN(
2014
002
002

BBB+
MTN(
2015
003
003

BBB+
MTN(
2016
004
004

BBB+

4.99 )
2017

002

100

003

125

004
10
70

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno
5.15 (2019
500,000,000 MTN MTN
4.63 (2019
500,000,000 MTN MTN
( YTLPI )
MTN 5,000,000,000
4.49 4.99
20 (
)
5.05 (2019 :5.05 )
REIT( SGREIT ) MTN
)
20 MTN
MTN(2021 )
) 3.50
)
20 MTN
MTN(2023 )
) 3.40
)
20 MTN
10 MTN(2026 10 )
) 3.14
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OooooOodd
d) MTN
SGREIT 325 330
( MTN
) MTN 4.48
2019 30 329.8 (107.80 )
2019 2021
SGREIT
) REIT MTN
MTN 2016 11
1,650 MTN
810 (2019 :810 )
a) 2017 23
65

MTN MTN 2022 23

b) 2017 11 REIT
385 MTN MTN

2024 11

) 2017 11 23 REIT 265
MTN MTN 2022 11 23
d) 2019 24 REIT 10 MTN
10 MTN MTN 2022

23

e) 2019 28 Jw
85 MTN MTN 2023 28

MTN 4.21 5.05 (2019 :4.70 5.10 )
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Q)
2016
)
2017 13 KCSB KCSB
(
100,000,000
2018 2020
2017 12 13 2019
100,000,000
2020 12 11
2019 10 KCSB KCSB
(
4.10
2020 13 2020
180,000,000
2023 13

10

)( KCSB
KCSB
)
180,000,000
KCSB  KCSB
(
2022
) (
KCSB  KCSB
(
2023
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)

KCSB

4.40

YTL

4.80

5.00

4.60

OooooOodd
) MTN

(
500,000,000

(

5.06

120,000,000
2020

4.55
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OooooOodd
(b) 3.52 ( RPIG )
RPIG 30 30
3.52 2020 30
5.77 (2019  6.71 ) RPIG 2023 30
(c) 5.75
2003 10 15
( )
350,000,000 2033 5.75
( 5.75 GU ) 5.75 GU 2003 10 15
5.75 GU 350,000,000 346,532,441
(2019 346,358,915 )( ) 2020 30
5.75 GU
5.75 10 14 2033 10 14
(d) 5.375
2005 10
( )
( ) 200,000,000 2028
5.375 ( 5.375 GU ) 5.375 GU 2005 10
5.375 GU 200,000,000 198,830,197 (2019
198,708,230 )( ) 2020 30

5.375 10 2028 10
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OooooOodd
() 1.75
2006 31 (
) ( )
75,000,000 1.75 ( ILG
) ILG 2006 31
ILG 31 31 1.75
2020 30 4.00 (2019 4.94 )
2046 31 2051 31
(F) 1.369 1.374
2007 31 (
) ( )
2057 75,000,000 1.369
75,000,000 1.374 ( ILG
) ILG 2007 31
ILG 31 31 1.369 1.374
2020 30 3.62 (2019  4.56 )
2057 31
(g) 1.489  1.495 1.499
2007 28 (
) ( )
2058 50,000,000 1.489
50,000,000 1.495 50,000,000
1.499 ( ILG ) ILG
2007 28
ILG 11 29 29 1.489  1.495 1.499
2020 30 4.12 (2019  3.93 )

ILG 2058 11 29
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(h) 2.186
2009

)

ILG 12

2020

2039

(i) 4.0
2012 24

4.00 (
199,667,155 (2019
GU

2012 30

4.00 (
101,090,703 (2019
GU

4.00

2021 24
200,000,000

50,000,000
2009

30

GU

199,400,879

GU

102,025,593

GU

2039 2.186

GU
)(

GU
)(

24

100,000,000
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2.186

2.74 (2019  2.54 )

200,000,000
el 2012
200,000,000
) 2020

100,000,000
el 2012
100,000,000
) 2020

2012 24

24

30

30

30

2021

oOoOooodn

ILG

ILG

2021

2021

24

GU
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OooooOodd
a 1.5
2019 17
)
( ) 250,000,000 2029
1.50 ( 1.5 GU ) (50,000,000 ) 1.5 6U
2019 17 1.5 GU
200,000,000 198,438,600 ( ) 2020 30
1.5 GU
2020 15
( ) 50,000,000 2029 1.5
1.5 GU 50,000,000 49,231,124 (
) 2020 30 1.5 GU
1.50 17 2029 17
Q)
REIT  TMK( SGREIT  TMK ) 2019
30 2021 678 (8.5 )

(SGREIT  TMK)

SGREIT
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2020 2019 2020 2019
31(a) 28,726 24,347 — —
31(b) 45,147 42,675 — —
31(c) — 30,265 — 565
31(d) 2,103 15,609 — —
31(e) 3,688,009 3,354,043 1,750,654 1,266,855
31(F) 7,333,571 11,370,304 — 200,000

11,097,556 14,837,243 1,750,654 1,467,420
31(c) — 17,489 — 550
31(d) 3,539 — — —
31(e) 1,747,204 565,935 — —
31(F) 10,841,940 11,177,431 — —

12,592,683 11,760,855 — 550
31(a) 28,726 24,347 — —
31(b) 45,147 42,675 — —
31(c) — 47,754 — 1,115
31(d) 5,642 15,609 — —
31(e) 5,435,213 3,919,978 1,750,654 1,266,855
31(F) 18,175,511 22,547,735 — 200,000

23,690,239 26,598,098 1,750,654 1,467,970
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2020 30
28,726 — — 28,726
45,147 — — 45,147
ICULS 2,103 3,539 — 5,642
3,688,009 1,747,204 — 5,435,213
7,333,571 10,173,500 668,440 18,175,511
11,097,556 11,924,243 668,440 23,690,239

2019 30

24,347 — — 24,347
42,675 — — 42,675
30,265 17,489 — 47,754
ICULS 15,609 — — 15,609
3,354,043 425,935 140,000 3,919,978
11,370,304 9,555,068 1,622,363 22,547,735
14,837,243 9,998,492 1,762,363 26,598,098
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2020 30
1,750,654 — — 1,750,654
1,750,654 — — 1,750,654
2019 30
565 550 — 1,115
1,266,855 — — 1,266,855
200,000 — — 200,000
1,467,420 550 — 1,467,970
2020 2019 2020 2019
3.21 3.11 — 4.34
4.16 4.10 2.85 3.90
ICULS 7.49 7.49 — —
4.01 3.05 — —
1.10 2.89 — —_
— 1.60 — 2.40
@
(b)
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Oooooodo
©
2019 30 MFRS 16
2019 2019
MFRS 16 44
1.56 4.97
2.27
2019 2019
31,721 599
17,702 566
53 —
49,476 1,165
(1,722) (50)
47,754 1,115
(d) ( ICULS )
2011 2021 ICULS
2011 10 31
( YTL ) 10 2021 10 31
( ) ICULS 0.50 992,378,023
2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS (
3.0 4.5
2011 2021 ICULS 6.0
( )2011 2021 ICULS YTL
1.32
0.99

0.66
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OooooOodd
( )2011 2021 ICULS 2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS
YTL
2011 2021 ICULS ( 15 )
®
288,209,000 (2019 180,000,000 )
®
)
a) 394,912,500 75,000,000 (2019 393,667,500
75,000,000 )
1.21 1.27 (2019  1.05 1.50 ) 2021
22
b) 1,053,100,000 200,000,000 (2019  1,049,780,000
200,000,000 )
50,000,000 2015 30 2.16 (2019
2.16 ) 50,000,000 2015
1.27 1.41 (2019  1.15 1.42 ) 50,000,000
2015 1.99 (2019  1.99 )
50,000,000 2016 25 1.65
1.76 (2019  1.49 1.77 ) 2024 30

2025 25
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c) 1,053,100,000
[140,000,000

728,262,084

2.03 )

)
a) 828,400,000

3.63 4.04 )
b) 856,000,000
200,000,000
2020 12 17

¢) 1,070,000,000

250,000,000
1,063,537,133

2022 31
d) 942,305,000

)
1,964,450,000

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
[200,000,000 1(2019 734,846,000
D
1,044,436,968 [198,354,756 1(2019
[138,745,658 D( ) 2020 30
1.81 2.03 (2019  1.83
2026 31 60 40 2021 31
200,000,000
( YTLPI ) 2015 28
3.06 3.71 (2019
200,000,000 (2019 828,400,000
YTLPI 2015 12 17
1.25 3.36 (2019  3.36 3.74 )
250,000,000 (2019 1,035,500,000
) YTLPI 2017 31
248,489,984 (2019 1,025,841,237
247,668,092 ( ) 2020 30
1.37 3.60 (2019  3.27 3.72 )
227,500,000
( ) 2016 16

3.26 (2019  3.74 )

(2019 1,996,313,000 )
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)
a) 6,064,279,851
6,038,721,474
2017 14
1.55 3.16 (2019
YTLPS
30
YTLPS
1,102,464 ,000
)
(vi)

236,600,000

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno

1,974,177,958 (2019

1,973,180,458 )
( YTLPS )
2022 12
2.83 3.44 )
2020 30
2020 23 YTLPS
2020 11 30
(
(2019 759,284,000 )

304/620



32

305/620

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020 2020
176,495 7,254
1,447,352 2,479
1,623,847 9,733

39(a)



@

MFRS 16
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2020

16,739
5,087
1,128

(7,068)

15,886

4,193

11,693

15,886
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oOoOooodn

2020

4,766
4,507
3,524
2,598
1,345

537

17,277

(1,391)

15,886

77,000

2020

2019

560,828
1,665
(15,166)

49,342

548,493
(1,124)
(15,973)

29,432

596,669

560,828
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34

OooooOodd
2020 2019 2020 2019
( ) 2,073,144 2,143,967 113 113
MFRS 16 (5) — — —
( ) 2,073,139 2,143,967 113 113
144,558 9,395 — —
184,067 22,386 — —
692 (750) — _
2,226 589 — —
16,550 4,360 — _
707 (1,131) — _
(20,625) (5,591) — —
(21,677) (8,989) — —
(3,575) — _ _
(13,807) (1,479) — —
10,234 (3,778) — _
4,933 (68,497) — _
* (49,984) (7,943) — —
(18,876) — — —
2,164,004 2,073,144 113 113
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2020 2019 2020 2019
(168,899) (115,428) — _
(174,567) (133,293) — _
(229,587) (231,316) — _

(5,915) (16,406) _ .
(8,166) — — _
(113,352) (20,637) — _
(700,486) (517,080) — _
700,486 517,080 — —
2,800,277 2,530,401 113 113
38,825 37,892 — _
25,388 21,931 — _
2,864,490 2,590,224 113 113
(700,486) (517,080) — _
2,164,004 2,073,144 113 113
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35(a)

35(h)
35(c)

35(d)
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OooooOodd
2020 2019
1,390,181 1,681,878
1,300,968 2,251,985
170,634 77,406
(620,424) (1,188,767)
2,241,359 2,822,502
2019
2019 2018 12 31
2020 2019 2020 2019
5,281 4,874 287 305
21,937 55,346 — —
869,245 687,950 — —
19,716 16,350 — —
910,898 759,646 — —
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ooooooo
@
Q)
)
)
2020
29
2020 2019
3.9 5.1
5.0 5.0
0.5 C ) 1,081,738 1,016,616
(2019 2,373,490 2,598,869
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2020 2019

55,346 —

— 54,816

(19,487) 530

(16,261) —

2,339 —

21,937 55,346
2020 2019

21,937 55,346
2020 2019

55,346 —

— 54,816

2,339 —

(16,261) —

(1,695) 304

(17,879) —

87 226

21,937 55,346
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©

(

(

)

)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2020 2019
(1,695) 304
87 226
(17,879) —
(19,487) 530
2019 30
2019 30
2020 30
27 16 57
17 18 (24 ) (24 )
(13 )
2019 30
157.0 (826.7 )
2020 13.04 (68.6 )
2021 14.80 (77.9 )
2022 16.60 (87.4 )
2023 18.40 (96.9 )
2024 20.20 (106.4 )
2025 22.00 (115.8
2026 23.80 (125.3 )
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(

7.4
(68.6

)

24.6

2022

30

2021 30
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2026

21.7 (2021

13.04



30
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oOoOooodn

2020 2019
687,950 671,629
76,778 80,526
(125,949) (110,159)
1,063 (6,355)
229,403 52,309
869,245 687,950
2020 2019
4,424,366 4,081,555
(3,555,121) (3,393,605)
869,245 687,950




30
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oOoOooodn

2020 2019
4,081,555 3,922,374
9,610 (38,238)
95,364 111,022
57,175 56,506
530 1,068

— 2,669
(143,046) (147,852)
(73,643) (146,250)
321,589 327,729
75,232 (7.,473)
4,424,366 4,081,555




30
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2020 2019
3,393,605 3,250,745
8,547 (31,883)
79,470 92,340
125,949 110,159
530 1,068
(143,046) (147,852)
(3,709) (2,669)
93,775 121,697
3,555,121 3,393,605

2020 2019
57,175 56,506
15,894 18,682
— 2,669
3,709 2,669
76,778 80,526
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2020 2019
45,663 46,383
15,221 15,461
15,894 18,682
76,778 80,526
2020 2019
1.60 2.30
1.90-2.60 1.90-3.00
1.80 1.70
RPI 2.70 3.10
CPI 2.20 2.10
2020 2020 2019 2019
60 25.9 28.3 26.2 28.3
40 47.0 49.5 47.4 49.5

S3P(M/F)A 105
CM12018
1.0
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oOoOooodn

MFRS 119
15 ) 0.1 (1.6 80,036 4,424,366 4,504,402 869,244 949,280
0.1 (CPI
2.2 2.3 RPI 70,558 4,424,366 4,494,924 869,244 939,802
2.7 2.8 )
182,713 4,424,366 4,607,079 869,244 1,051,957
2020 2019
1,142,087 32.1 1,335,845 39.4
1,948,235 54.8 1,802,472 53.1
193,770 5.5 191,585 5.6
271,030 7.6 63,711 1.9
3,555,122 100.0 3,393,613 100.0
2020 2019
173,245 214,037
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30

)
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2020

2019

17,261

2,455

14,021

2,329

19,716

16,350

2020 30

14

2020

2019

14,021
1,924

(633)
534

1,415

11,916
1,689

(537)
220

733

17,261

14,021
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2020 2019

17,261 14,021
2020 2019

14,021 11,916

534 220

1,013 911

911 778

(633) (537)

1,698 —

— 779

(283) 46)

17,261 14,021
2020 2019

911 778

1,013 911

1,924 1,689




(

30

)
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)

2020 2019
2,455 2,329

2020 2019
2,329 1,964
503 636
(32) —
(424) (311)
79 40
2,455 2,329
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30

2020 2019
2,329 1,964
79 40
485 636
32) —
18 —
(424) (311)
2,455 2,329
2020 2019
485 636
2020 2019
7.3 7.3
9.0 9.0




36

2020

2019
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oOoOooodn

2020 2019
1,172 1,303 923 1,029
1,701 1,562 1,339 1,224
36(a) 36(b) 36(c)
6,528 39,903 101,182 147,613
(6) 43 2,192 2,229
— (4,437) — (4,437)
1,712) (7,092) — (8.804)
4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
8,132 35,382 102,491 146,005
134 (79) 165 220
— 8,219 (699) 7,520
(1,738) (3,619) (775) (6,132)
6,528 39,903 101,182 147,613
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@

(b)

©

37

2020 2019 2020 2019
1,331,951 2,011,355 — —
605,750 633,442 879 720
8,138 10,491 — —
117,802 112,510 — —
* 981,288 917,254 16,583 16,768
3,044,929 3,685,052 17,462 17,488
*
30 180 (2019 30 180 )
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@

(b)
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12 (408.1



©

7.3

(2019

11.3
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2020 2019 2020 2019
19,490,639 20,188,682 2,500,000 2,510,000
11,309,168 11,497,578 857,269 995,637
24,075,239 25,891,106 1,750,654 1,467,970
35,384,407 37,388,684 2,607,923 2,463,607
50
120.4
129.5 ) 8.8
)
10
(2019  11.5 )
(2019 1.0 )
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(D
1,422,160,000 (2019 1,543,440,000 )
10,382,000 (2019 10,503,000 )
2020
487,270 10 48,727
934,890 10 93,489
2019
646,695 10 64,670
896,745 10 89,675
2020
3,071 10 307
7,809 10 781
2019
4,155 10 416

6,348 10 635
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OooooOodd
ECL MFRS ECL
13
( GDP )
90 91 120 120
2020

1,045,367 169,582 45,814 844,668 2,105,431
766,106 — — — 766,106
202,118 — — — 202,118
2,013,591 169,582 45,814 844,668 3,073,655
(12,631) (21,203) (10,353) (513,043) (557,230)
(7,568) — — — (7,568)
(110) — — — (110)
(20, 309) (21,203) (10,353) (513,043) (564,908)
1,993,282 148,379 35,461 331,625 2,508,747
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90 91 120 120
2019
1,794,997 327,834 16,322 660,924 2,800,077
962,863 — — — 962,863
208,806 — — — 208,806
2,966,666 327,834 16,322 660,924 3,971,746
(66,343) (15,971) (5.,824) (402,979) (491,117)
(388) — — — (388)
(66,731) (15,971) (5.824) (402,979) (491,505)
2,899,935 311,863 10,498 257,945 3,480,241
MFRS
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OooooOodd
ECL
ECL
ECL

12 ECL

90 ECL

365 ECL

12 ECL ECL PDx LGDx EAD
PD( )

LGD( )

EAD(

PD LGD
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2019
2020 30
2019
2018
2019 30
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491,117 — 388 34 160,580 652,119
7,158 — — — 199 7,357
160,965 7,615 — 100 1,979 170,659
(2,201) — — — — (2,201)
(12,285) — (278) — (4,629) (17,192)
(88,238) — — — (1,699) (89,937)
714 47 — — 318 985
557,230 7,568 110 134 156,748 721,790
490,009 445 — 84,109 574,563
6,625 — — — 6,625
89,128 — 34 76,001 165,163
(9,605) (57) — (390) (10,052)
(80,916) — — — (80,916)
(4,124) — — 860 (3,264)
491,117 388 34 160,580 652,119
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116,859

1,765 118,624

116,859

1,765 118,624

334/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020

3,115,572 169,997 — 3,285,569
12,764,591 17,744,755 27,742,528 58,251,874
270,109 830,439 1,192,724 2,293,272
39,212 — — 39,212
16,189,484 18,745,191 28,935,252 63,869,927
171,711 13,299 — 185,010
3,233 2,103 — 5,336
174,944 15,402 — 190,346
2020
17,462 — — 17,462
1,939,236 1,375,080 2,037,850 5,352,166
7,074 2,358 — 9,432
4,709 — — 4,709
1,968,481 1,377,438 2,037,850 5,383,769
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2019

3,674,378 272,645 — 3,947,023
16,906,218 19,411,741 26,676,237 62,994,196
16,006 — — 16,006
20,596,602 19,684,386 26,676,237 66,957,225
19,182 17,559 — 36,741
38,642 14,272 — 52,914
9,633 1,885 309 11,827
668 2,665 — 3,333
68,125 36,381 309 104,815
2019
17,488 — — 17,488
4,105,268 2,911,767 2,053,777 9,070,812
5,546 — — 5,546
4,128,302 2,911,767 2,053,777 9,093,846
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18

20

21

18

21

20

25

26

26

— 362,195 — 42,716 404,911
1,353,360 — — — 1,353,360
— — 10,585 — 10,585

— 2,301,989 — — 2,301,989

— 8,712 65,547 — 74,259
2,844,373 — — — 2,844,373
53,694 — — — 53,694
10,396,221 — — — 10,396,221
1,265,011 — — — 1,265,011
15,912,659 2,672,896 76,132 42,716 18,704,403
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2020

29 — — 169,996 169,996
30 — — 19,655,639 19,655,639
31 — — 12,592,683 12,592,683
32 — — 1,447,352 1,447,352
21 13,575 1,826 — 15,401
37 — — 3,036,791 3,036,791
21 — 174,944 — 174,944
25 — —_ 39,212 39,212
30 — — 220,000 220,000
31 — — 11,097,556 11,097,556
32 — — 176,495 176,495

13,575 176,770 48,435,724 48,626,069
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18 — 35,226 9,599 44,825
20 6,012 — — 6,012
25 1,303,468 — — 1,303,468
18 — 755,199 — 755,199
26 102,070 — — 102,070
26 1,929 — — 1,929

1,413,479 790,425 9,599 2,213,503
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2020

30 2,500,000 2,500,000
32 2,479 2,479
37 17,462 17,462
25 4,708 4,708
31 1,750,654 1,750,654
32 7,254 7,254

4,282,557 4,282,557
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2019

18 — 346,510 — 63,461 409,971
20 273,480 871,752 — — 1,145,232
21 — — 18,722 — 18,722
18 — 2,352,947 — — 2,352,947
21 — 945 64,077 — 65,022
20 3,894,034 — — — 3,894,034
25 31,131 — — — 31,131
26 10,635,496 — — — 10,635,496
26 1,171,006 — — — 1,171,006

16,005,147 3,572,154 82,799 63,461 19,723,561
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2019

29 — — 272,645 272,645
30 — — 18,961,666 18,961,666
31 — — 11,760,855 11,760,855
21 9,782 44,334 — 54,116
37 — — 3,674,561 3,674,561
21 — 63,491 — 63,491
25 — — 16,006 16,006
30 — — 520,024 520,024
31 — — 14,837,243 14,837,243

9,782 107,825 50,043,000 50,160,607
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2019

18 — 34,968 9,477 44,445
20 12,982 — — 12,982
25 1,014,435 — — 1,014,435
18 — 797,277 — 797,277
26 198,360 — — 198,360
26 122,948 —_ — 122,948

1,348,725 832,245 9,477 2,190,447
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2019
30 2,500,000 2,500,000
31 550 550
37 17,488 17,488
25 5,546 5,546
30 10,000 10,000
31 1,467,420 1,467,420
4,001,004 4,001,004
()
) ( )
) ( ) (
)
() ( )
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2020

— 8,712 — 8,712
— 2,326,334 323,363 2,649,697
10,880 3,607 — 14,487
— 76,132 — 76,132
22,238 412 20,066 42,716
33,118 2,415,197 343,429 2,791,744
— 13,575 — 13,575
— 176,770 —_ 176,770
— 190,345 — 190,345
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2019

_ 945 — 945
— 2,377,412 307,902 2,685,314
10,503 3,640 — 14,143
— — 871,752 871,752

— 82,799 — 82,799
42,072 46 21,343 63,461
52,575 2,464,842 1,200,997 3,718,414
3,333 — — 3,333
_ 6,449 — 6,449

— 107,825 — 107,825
3,333 114,274 — 117,607
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40

2020

2019

10,880 755,199 24,346 790,425
5 — 9,594 9,599
10,885 755,199 33,940 800,024
10,503 797,277 24,465 832,245
5 — 9,472 9,477
10,508 797,277 33,937 841,722
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2020 2019
( 767 1,225
6,300 6,300

2,314 2,735

2,377 3,025

7,420 26,577

21,626 21,626

2,665 3,647

539 445

17,602 7,058

REIT 13,653 —

78,510 —

10,267 —

7,440 7,975
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2020 2019
8,820 8,820
1,138 2,754
1,726 2,173
_ 5,529
1,675 4,475

IT

36,425 42,003

2020 2019
ICULS 9,731 21,511
1,081 1,290
606 705
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()

2020 2019

78,766 43,602
(b)
( )

2020 2019 2020 2019
59,882 76,416 1,985 997
4,616 6,334 134 12
1,294 772 — —
7,909 7,909 4,735 4,735
73,701 91,431 6,854 5,744
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2020 2019

782,205 795,078

1,088,500 2,517,419
2020 2019

75,174 72,880

2019

193,993

366,051

473,658

1,033,702
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(b) 2019 MFRS 16
2020 30 ROU

)
2020 30

2020

168,860
121,113
116,035
110,862

94,272

73,979

685,121

32(a)
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2019
594,941
1,525,156
672,479
2,792,576

33
15
334
(PPA)

2020 2019
55,874 60,779
9,839 65,821
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( CODM )

MFRS
CODM
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2020
2,345,514 8,361 1,134,146 4,117,832
(29,509) (4,820) (12,481) (22,658)
2,316,005 3,541 1,121,665 4,095,174
17,482 3,873 2,257 30,944
(5,199) ©) (22,940) (252,926)
— — 4,041 13,417
194,681 41 96,563 (2,468)
_ — 36,715 48,670
1,187,730 93,128 2,701,767 9,642,046
378,726 — 926,006 4,824,394
386,390 420 329,029 1,009,239
24,543 39 115,418 126,930
« ) — 1,744 (5,461) 31,954
18,772 648 81,018 407,618
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2020
612,702 1,206,981 10,341,524 19,767,060

(240,993) (211,727) (66,423) (588,611)

371,709 995,254 10,275,101 19,178,449

17,593 10,213 12,823 95,185

(615,938) (271,013) (692,729) (1,860,747)

(40,228) (173,286) 453,255 257,199

179,628 (282,769) 233,618 419,294

51,931 2,022,190 2,222,511 4,382,017

13,166,329 7,259,250 31,476,168 65,526,418

14,269,038 3,985,054 19,182,660 43,565,878

946,939 1,197,115 6,863,496 10,732,628

56,707 559,511 1,533,374 2,416,522

« ) 2,110 32,218 120,638 183,203
16,286 148,295 1,154,577 1,827,214
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1,360,876 84,375 1,239,796 2,681,555
(141,377) (80,553) (16,415) (7.303)
1,219,499 3,822 1,223,381 2,674,252
9,536 8,431 1,601 27,410
(16) — (23,943) (78,097)
— — 7,326 14,799
80,497 2,560 176,576 145,473
— — 40,777 487,495
1,082,207 102,704 2,607,860 9,485,356
15,259 — 799,770 4,884,144
791,269 5,742 364,346 1,191,630
33,716 163 150,087 118,949
— 81 (203) 6,290
9,877 660 84,682 236,554
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737,473 1,343,209 11,381,864 18,829,148
(281,427) (239,913) (14,632) (781,620)
456,046 1,103,296 11,367,232 18,047,528
20,657 11,080 7,911 86,716
(641,134) (291,481) (712,828) (1,747,499)
(12,424) 854 400,540 411,095
14,887 (8.825) 625,339 1,036,507
92,052 28,047 2,196,978 2,845,349
13,442,398 16,568,410 30,592,809 73,881,744
14,943,993 7,766,445 17,670,177 46,079,788
766,283 596,667 6,036,827 9,752,764
35,682 753,064 1,569,080 2,660,741
1,020 2,470 149,856 159,514
17,195 99,211 1,067,802 1,515,981
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2020 2019 2020 2019
7,430,763 5,764,796 12,329,432 10,608,467
3,647,137 3,648,577 18,786,918 17,934,854
6,841,129 7,447,068 8,243,533 17,718,828
1,259,420 1,187,087 4,346,176 3,865,355

19,178,449 18,047,528 43,706,059 50,127,504
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2020 2019
30,499,583 30,759,493
1,636,035 —
1,811,126 10,217,573
1,128,221 1,127,238
8,631,094 8,023,200

43,706,059 50,127,504

()
10
2020 2019
2,452,877 3,184,498

360/620



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

43

30

31

26

)

40
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2020 2019 2020 2019
19,875,639 19,481,690 2,500,000 2,510,000
23,690,239 26,598,098 1,750,654 1,467,970
43,565,878 46,079,788 4,250,654 3,977,970

(11,661,232) (11,806,502) (103,999) (321,308)
31,904,646 34,273,286 4,146,655 3,656,662
12,460,336 13,262,686 6,086,744 6,228,889
44,364,982 47,535,972 10,233,399 9,885,551

72 72 41 37
17/2005
) 25
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2019 MFRS 16 (2019
2019
(ae)
() MFRS 16
MFRS 16
MFRS 16
2019
MFRS 117 ( MFRS 117
( IC )
( DIA
117 IC
)
a) MFRS 117
MFRS 16 MFRS 117
4.50
ROU 2019 30
12 )
MFRS 16

MFRS 16
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2019

MFRS 16
MFRS 117

ooooood
)
MFRS 16
MFRS 16
DIA
MFRS
1.23
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2019 12
DIA ROU
b) MFRS 117
( )
MFRS 117

DIA ROU
MFRS 16
) ( EBITDA )

()
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MFRS 117
2019 30
« D
«C D
« D
« D
2019 30
¢ )
2019
)

MFRS 16

2019

30

364/620

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019

1,033,702
(18,036)
(932)
(294,484)

(66,119)

654,131

489,875

47,754

74,236

341,758

953,623

190,844

762,779

953,623
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OooooOodd
()
MFRS 16
2019 30 VERS 16 2019
2019

30,759,493 (642,624) 30,116,869

— 1,472,778 1,472,778
1,159,120 15,885 1,175,005
4,198,733 3,677 4,202,410
9,488,302 (21,567) 9,466,735
7,631,855 (34,581) 7,597,274
2,073,144 ) 2,073,139
11,760,855 (17,489) 11,743,366

— 762,779 762,779
14,837,243 (30, 265) 14,806,978

— 190, 844 190,844

365/620



45

46

COVID-19

2020

COVID-19
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¥TL CORFORATION BERHAD

Income Statements

for the financial year ended 20 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Hote RM'O0D RM'O00 RM'ODO RM'O00
Reyvenue 4 19,178,449 18,047,528 415,331 548,616
Cot ol sales 5 [15.594,783) 113.940.465) -
Gross profit 3,583,666 41070683 415,331 548,616
Qther operatng income 623,644 403,255 6,255 6210
Sefiing and drribution cets (470,836) (405,168) - .
Adminstration expenses {1.428,981) (L.333,690) {73.645) [53.626)
Cther nperating axpansas (284,651} {A9H.549) - -
Fimance costs 1] (1.BED.747) (L.747459) [171.B8E) [1rh,960)
Share of results o associated companias and
point vehbures, net ol tax 257,199 A1 L0495 -
Profit before tax T 419,294 1,036,507 176,055 315250
WCoMe TaK axpanie [ {414, 635) (315152 (6.462) {16,802)
Profit for the year 4,658 721,355 165,593 293 AGE
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent {189.221) 242,589 165,593 298448
Han-cantialling intonesis 193,879 478 TG -
4,658 721,365 160,593 ZHAAE
[Lossirearnings per share (sen)
Bacir fdilitad EPS (<) q L7a) 2310
Dividhand per ardinary shares (sen) 10 4.00 400

The accompanying accounting policles and saplanatony notes form an integral part of the financial statements

100
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the financaal year ended 30 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMO0D RMOOD RMO0D RM000
Profit for the year 4.658 721,355 169,593 290,448
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Itemns that will not be reclassified subsequently
o Income statement:
- re-measurement af post-employment
bemafit obigations {183.829) {50,7439) - -
= thanges i the fair value of equity
Investments at fair value throogh othar
COmFet e noome {35,344} [20,987) 123 err
- foteign cumency translation {5.302) 184,661 - -
Itermns tisak will be reclassified subseguently to
Income statenent:
= garsh Tlow hedges [149.487) 1353, 606) =
= Taregn curmency tramilation, et of
Inwestment hedges af forelgn operatians
- fareign curency ramilation (17,419} 128360 =
- gain reclassilied 1o profit or less on
demecogrition of forelgn sutsidiary (256,748} . -
Other comprohensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax [G48,129) {i12.315) 123 27
Total comprahensive (loss)fincoma
for the year {643.471) B8040 160,716 298,725
Total comprehensive (loss)/incomea
attributable to:
vmers af the parent (657.305) 132512 169,716 Faz i F
Naon-controfing interests 13.834 476528 - -
{643,471) 609,040 169,716 290,725
The accompanying acoounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financal statements,
101
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¥TL CORFORATION BERHAD

Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Hote RM'DO0 RM'000 RM'O00 RMOOO
ASSETS
Hon-current assoets
Property, mant and sguigement 11 30,499,583 40,759,494 3,852 a4aia
Rght-of-use sssars 12 1,636,035 - 2,069 -
Investmant properties 13 1811126 10.217.573 - :
Devilopment expeniditures 14 1.128.221 1127.238 - -
Investment In subsidiaries 15 - - 7,764,014 7.807.515
Imvestmeant in assoclates 16 4,216,843 2581165 376,235 205,241
Irviestment in joint wentues 17 165,174 ohd, B4 - -
Ivestmerts 1a 404,911 409,971 44,825 44,445
Intanghle asets 19 8,631.094 8,023,200 - -
Trade and other nbcanssbles 20 1,410,705 1159120 -
Coniract assets 24 1.705 5,616 -
Derivative fmantial instruments 21 10,585 18,722 - -
49,924,982 S 566,282 8,197,945 BO6LETS
Currant assats
ErenTore i 2,184,363 CNGENTE] 3
Property dedelapment (osts 2 140,857 561,937 - -
Irade and other recervables £0 3,204,981 4,194,743 6,110 14.34%
Cofiract 255018 24 227,619 230524 - d
Detlwative Tinancial Insruments 21 74,259 SO - -
nCome tax aswets 134,459 121292 28930 222N
Acrouets due from related pariss &5 53,694 .13l 1.303. 468 LOl4.435
EryEsTments 18 2,301,989 2352947 755.199 a7arr
Fized deposits 26 10,396,221 10,635,496 102,070 198,360
Cash and bank balances ch 1,265,011 1171006 1929 1z2.948
19,983,453 22160811 2,171,706 2,168,636
TOTAL ASSETS 60,008,435 T6.727.093 10.369.701 10,230,311

The accompanying accournting palicles and ssplanatong notas form an integral part of the financial statements.

102
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Statements of Financial Position

as at 20 Jung 2020
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Hote RH0OD RH'0DD RHO00 RMODD
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable o owners of the
parent
‘Share capital - 3,467,555 3340411 3,467,555 3340111
(aher resenves Zh[a) 512,535 907,065 B2, 781 B6GTE
Retaited eamings 8,982,083 488,302 3,038,245 2204805
Treatury shates, af cost 2Ha) (501.837) [472,793) [501.837) (472,793}
12,460,336 13,262,686 6,086,744 G.228,889
Nan-controfing inforests 3,149,593 7 B3LASS - -
Total Equity 15,600,929 20,554,541 B6.086,744 5.220.8689
MNon-current lakliities
Long-term payabiles il 1,257.300 L2419 - -
Lontract lkabilties 24 31,386 PPt - -
Bands 30 19,655,639 18,961,666 2.500,000 2.500,000
Bomowings a1 12,592,683 11.760,855 - 550
Lo llalsfities E 1,447 352 - 2479 .
Grants and confributions EE] 596,663 360,028 - -
Defermad b labiies 34 2,164,004 2073144 113 1ni
Post-employment benefit ablgatiom E 910,898 Fo8,646 -
Derivative financial instroments. 21 15401 Si.116& -
38,671.272 F5.427.938 2,502,592 2500663
Current Habilithes
Trada and other payahles ar 3,044,929 3,665,052 17.462 17 488
Conmtract Babilities 24 633,343 F9b.40 - .
Dervative inanoidl nsirumans 2l 174,944 [ZEELT - .
Amounts dee 1o related parties 25 39,212 16,006 &, 708 5.546
Bonds 30 220,000 20024 - 10,000
[Botrawings E! 11,057,556 14.837.243 1,750,654 LAGT. 480
Lease habelitles Iz 176,495 = 7.254 -
Provision for labilities and charges 36 136.601 147,613 - -
Past-employmant benefit oblgations E L2 4874 287 i
Ircomi tax Nabilities 98,673 133,891 - -
15,627,234 20,404 514 1,780,365 1,500,759
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54.200.506 55837552 4,282,957 A001 428
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 69,908,435 M 72003 10,369,701 10,230,311
The accompanying acoounting policies and explanatory notes form an integra part of the financal statements
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¥TL CORPORATION BERHAD

Statements of Changes in Equity

for the financial year ended 20 June 2020

£ sttt Attributable to Owners of the Parent - onn ¥
Covares MRS A BIRIE oo e « Distribitabilg - ]
Share Other Treasury Han-
capital RSB Retained shases cantralling Tetal
[Note 27)  (Mete 268{a)) eamings  [Wate 27(z) Total Imterests equity
B RMOOD AMD0D RMTO00 EH000 000 RM'DO0 RM'DO0
Group - 2020
AL iy 2009, o8 pewanly fepotted A0 907,066 5,488,302 (472793} 13252806  T.6ILOSS  20,0947541
Efects of aogtng MFFS 16 : - e - RLsER ase)  (seaem)
AU1 paly 2019, as restated 3,340,110 907,056 9.486,735 (472753) 13240119  TSWEIM4 20630393
(Lees)profi lor 2 yoor - . (189.221) - (189, 221] 153,879 4650
Oither comyrebensive ks for the yar - (¥66.176)  [100.908) +  (4GELOB4]  (1B0.0M5]  (64A120)
Tt dompishinahe fiosalingome
for e year . (¥56.176) (291,129} 22 [657.305] 13,834 (543.471)
Tramactions with owners
Changes in eompariition of e Dioup - - 116G - JILEIS  (3.8B20.251)  (3.504.,636)
Corversion of K115 < weEx) (9524 < () - nzmwy
Cividends paid - = [(4zE770) < [42E770)  (B4L28d)  (LOBBDI
Tusue of shate capital 127444 - - - 127444 - 127,444
Shaie option cepenscs - 13,243 = * 13,343 - 19,343
‘Share optien lapsed - &N 527 - - - -
Subritiany’s thare optios lipsed - {346) L7 - 28 - 83
Tiatary s - - - [23.044) (29.044) - [25.044)
At 30 june 2020 3,467,555 51253 982,081 (OLEWT) 12460336 3,046,503 15,500,820
Group - 2019
At 1ty 2008 33411 e QB0LIE {33142} Tz TSRS Lm0y
IFrofir for 1y * - Pl ] - 42583 ATHTEE T35
Other compretersive kes I Be yeur - (B2065) [BE.0RE) - 12077 (2238 U235
Total comprehnane foisynoome
for the yax {H20E5) 2450 - 132512 415528 B0
Transactians with owners
Changss in comparsition of the: Goup . - {073 - foarer) 133640 2343
Disacdend pad - - 22 748) = [422.748) 454598 {917, 346)
‘Share option expenses - 196% - . 19535 - 19635
Share aption Lgned . (1748} 1748 . . ‘ H
Sttnichnys e ontion Livad . (BT L1&R . 513 . i
Tressury shaes - - - [135451) [135.851) - {135.651)
A% 30 [une 20019 ERL AN | 07,066 S4e0302 472793 13262505 TEILASS 20,654,541

The accrsmpanying accounting pellies. and explanasmey notes fom an imegral mart of the finanial sasements

104

371/620



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 jung 2020

s BLtributable to Owners of the Pamnt -

asamssaiessssasnsansi¥

N T YL [ L [ ITLF | [ A A — Diztributable weeeee H
Shara Other Treasury
capital reserves Ratainod shares
(Note 27) (Mote 2B({a)) earnings [Note 27{a)) Tatal
RMO00 RMO0D RM'O00 RMODO RMO00
Company - 2020
Al 1 july 2009 3,340,111 G6.676 3,294,895 (472,793} 6,228,889
Pralit for the year - - 169,593 - 169,593
Other comprehensive incomse - 123 - - 123
Total comprehenshye incams - 123 169,593 - 169,716
Transactions with ocwnoers
Divickancs. paid - = (426.770) - (426, 770)
Issue of share cepital 127,444 - - - 127,444
Share aption axpenies - 16,509 - - 16.509
Share aplion lajred - {527y 527 - -
Treatury shates - - - (29.044) (29.044)
At 30 June 2020 3467555 B2, 701 3,030,245 (501,837 G.OBG, 744
Company - 2019
At 1 puly 2018 3340111 31,48 417447 [337.142] 5471884
Profit for the year - 298,448 - 298,448
Orther comprehensive Income Frr &7
Total comprehenshve iIncome - 2 298,448 - 208,725
Transactions with awners
Divicones pakd - (422 TaE) - {A22.748)
Shara pption expenses 16,6749 - - 1b,614E
Shane ogition Lapred . {L.748) 1748 - .
Treatury shares - 135651) {135.651)
At 30 June 2019 3340411 BEETE 2294895 [472.753| 6.2208,869
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory rotes farm an integral part of the financial statements,
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¥TL CORPORATION BERHAD

Statements of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 20 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'O00
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 419,294 LO36.507 176,055 315250
Adjustmants for
Adustment on fair value of iInvestment properties 12,808 (13.172) - -
Aanaortisation of cosracl costs T.B42 1.569 - -
Amortisation of deferred income {5.200] (4.579) - .
Amartisation of grants and contributions {15.166) {15.973) - -
Amartisation of intangble assets 69,606 10B06 - -
Bad dabts recovered (2.949) (4.187) - :
Bl debts wiithen off 10,901 5,552 - -
Depreclation of property, plant and eguipment 1,554,423 L497,585 Bo9 BEY
Depraciation of right-of-ine asats 193,895 - 4,535 -
Dividiend incoema (10,083} (29.411) {37LETL) [457.265)
Fair value changes of dertvatives 16.765 19,9681 - -
Fair value changes of investments (25.976) (62507 (B23) (L26E)
G wi 34posal of irestmsdts {1172) - - .
Gain on dspesal of Investment poperties - (709 - -
{Gain)/less on disposal of property, plant and
Bquipment (18, 739) (4,820) - s
Cain on derecognition of sutisidiary (258,506} - - -
Engainmeni ksses - nie 183.203 159,514 - -
it oxpense 1.B&0.747 LTaz483 171.B8E 175,950
Interest incoma (279,072) [FIL5200 (43, 200) EL06E)
Eenitories written down = net 4,656 77662 - :
Inwestiment propestes written of! 7.675 - - -
Property, plant and equgiment written olf 51,896 26,793 - -
Frospective axpendture written off 8175 3392 - -
Fronisan for post-amplaymant benalits 43,790 B4.659 5 r
{Write back alypravisicn for liabdities and changes (4.437) 7520 - -
Share option expenses 21.637 22020 6,654 6,667
Share ol feilts of assaciatad comgaries amd jaint
WENiLEs (257.1949) (A1L.095) - -
Urveaiised gain on Toresgn exchange - nat [5G, 05:2) (10500 - -
Operating profit/{loss) before changes in working
capital 3,532,753 3,720,556 {55,955) [=0.783)

The accomparrying acouming policles and explanaton notes foem an integral par of e financlal STatements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
for thi financial year endad 30 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM"000 RM'OD0 RM'00O RM'0C0
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES [CONT'D.)
Changes in working capital:
Imventories G38,001 389,591 -
Frapesty development costs 481 (57.401) - -
Recetvabias 690,251 (B75753) 1.234 {3,049)
Contract assets 39.277) {79.135) - -
Contract Rabilitios Mm] 354,963 - .
Payzbles 93.104 451,648 (Ele]] {3.394)
Retated parties halances (12,666 [l2.024) {237, 265) Ba, i
Cash flow generated from/{used in) operations 4,497 628 4,097 445 (2686, 026) 26,782
Divicerids receivad 399,216 430, Fa2 347132 4B7.265
Interest paid (1.723.489) {1,659,5749) {171,591) {175.550)
Intetes) received 311,049 316368 43,200 61056
Fayment to post-employment benefit oblgations (129,753) [1Lzt4) - -
Incamir tax pakl {376,563) (350,349 {11.092) -
Income tax refunded B4621 43,734 23,971 -
Mot cash flow from/f{used in) oporating activitios 3,042,703 2.7649,808 (54.406) 15T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of additional shares in exdsting subsidistes (20,677} (25 {47) (25)
Aoquisiton of now subsidaanes (net of cash acquined) 18,977 (2596759 - -
Additional investment in assowiated companies. and
joint venTure {19,253) (367340 - -
Development expend turs incumed (92.311) 132,249 - -
Grants received i orespact of infrastnaciune sssets 49,342 29,432 - .
Maturities of moome lunds 176,000 1,285.382 - -
Procesds from disposal of Irvestment properties - 13,837 - -
Proceads from disposal of propaerty, plant and
equpment 42,521 20,039 - 58
Procoeds from disposil of Imeestments 238,148 1L80& E] 11806
Nat deracoqnition af subreidiary [hot of cash and cash
equivalenis) (245,871} - - "
Proceads from linande lease redehubles 4,129 - - -
Purchise of intangile assets [175.368) (4,215 - -
Purchase of investment properties (559,216) 44, 456) - -
Purchpse of proporty. plant and equipment (1.579,690) (24 121000 a7 (29Z)
Purchase of investments (785.053) {122,541) 42.639 {55,047}
sharehalder loans (94,651) {60,305) - -
et cash flow [used In)ftrom Investing activities (3.,042,979) [4.440,610) 42,408 (43,5100
Tht ACcompanying scoounting policies and explanatory notes fonm as imegral part of the finanda staements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
for tho financial year onded 30 June 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'DO0 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'O00
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Dividends pald [426.770) [422. TaH) [426.770) [422.748)
Divifends pald to nan-coitmlling ntarests by
wibsidiaries {641.264) [494,588) = 2
Rapuirthase of own shares by the company (at net) (24,044) (135.651) (29,044) [135.651)
Rapurchase of subsidaries’ shaoes by subsidianes 21 (158.5:25) - -
Froceeds from bonds L312.199 510,000 - 510,000
Froteeds fram Dorowings 5,514 829 5657542 465,784 :
Ritpaymisit of Bons (10.000) (00,000) {10, 000) (S00,000)
Repayment of bormsaings (6,097, 544) [A763.0118) {200,565) (1.058)
Rapayment of leass Labilities (429,879) - [4.716) E
Uplrant fes and discosnts an bodrovwings = {1950 = =
Met cash flow (used in)/frem financing activities (B07.475) L&50,652 {205,311} (549.457)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (BO7.751) (27.95H) (217.309) (1928109
Effects of exchange rate changes 143,990 190,142 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,763,827 11,601,643 321,308 515118
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
(Note 26) 11,100,066 11,6387 103,999 37,308
NOTE TD THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Analysis of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'C00 RMO00 RMO00
Cash 1,579,600 2,412,100 187 292
Fimanee lease arrangomont - 2210 - 1195
Intenest expense pakdfpaybie 18,554 B.348 - -
Tranafer of aysats fom cusbomen 51,836 56, TEG - -
Tranafer from prepayments 58.733 - - -
Payabias 16,182 5135 - -
1,764,995 2484559 187 1,487

The accompanying accounting palicles and esplanatong notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of Cash Flows
far the financial year ended 30 June 2020

MOTE TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONT'D.)
Reconclliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:-
1. Bonds and barmowings

G ... .
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
AL T July 46,079,788 41,786,512 3.977.970 3ISE7HII
Changes frem findneing cash fiews
nterest paid (L723,409) [LE2.97) {171,591} [E75,950)
Proceads from bonds 1312.199 S10000 - 10,000
Proceads from bormwings 5.514. 829 B/557.542 465,784 -
Uprbrnt fess oo hormowings - (1,950 L =
Repayment of bonds (10,000} [ SP0O0H D0} (10.000) S 000)
Repayment ol boruwings (6.097.544) (3763118 [200,565) (L8]
Transactiors costs paid [6.405) - - -
Other changes in bonds and bormawings
Acguisicon of subsidanes = 1001103 =
Amcrtisation of Hsuance costAunwinding of premium 138,134 762t -
Bark overdrafts 24,607 (12.295) %
Captalisation of Bsuance cost - (44,4300 - -
Conversion of KULS into ordinary shases [2.736) - - -
Devecognition of subskdiany [3.493.431) - - -
Fnanii sy = L1395 - L195
Frvnce coshs cagitalsed in property development costs 4,906 12453 - .
Interest expenzes 1.B08,555 1747495 17551 175,950
Forelgn excharge movemen: 16,465 227624 17,465 -
At 30 june 43,565,878 46,079 /88 4,250,654 ER rA ]
2. Leaso liabitities
Group Campany
2020 2020
RM'000 RMO00
ALty 2015, 05 prevoinsdy reported - -
ETICLOUAg 1 WS 25 : 958,623 z
At 1 by 2019, as restated 953,623 -
Repayment of kxase Habdines {429,879) 4.716)
Diber in baase labilities
Addnons 1,053,070 14,154
Iritesest expenies 47,286 2495
Termination (420) -
Fortign mcharge movemin® 167 -
At 30 june 1623847 9,733
The accompayirg accounting poicies and explananoty nates form an imegral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2020

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tre principal acnytees of the Company are thive of an irvesiment hoidieg and mManagement company. T pnocipal a1 Tes of
thi subsididies ane w0l out n Rabe 15 1o [he finandisl stataments.

Thie Company b a lmitid lability company, neorparati and domicied in Makaysia and listed an the Man Markiet of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and the foreign section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The ackiress of the rogisterod offico and prindpal place of business of the Company is a5 Falloer-

A3 Fioar, Menara YTL
205 [alan Bukit Bintang
55100 Eualy Lumpur

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Basis af preparation

The financial staterments of the Group and the Company have been prepared under historical cost convention (unless stated
otherywtse in the sigreficant accounting policies below) and in accordance with Maiaysian Fanancal Reparting Standards (THFRST),
Irtefmational Financial Reponing Standands ("IFRST) and the requinements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysie

T preparation of financlal satements in confoiminy wah the MPRS and the Comparses Act 2016 requires the Directors 1o make
rulmAtEs a0l dsiamptione 1Al Athoect thi meparted Aroiants of asaets sl hatsEtey and diclosann of comingent asets and
liabilities 2t the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expensas during the reported pariod.
It alsa reguires. the DiRectors 1o exeddse Thelr judgements in the process of appiying the GRoup's accownting pelicles. Athough
these estimates and judgements ae based on Directors’ best knowledge ol ourrent events and actions, actes results may differ,

Thir areas invahving a higher degree of judgement of complaxity, or aneas where fasumptions shd estimates. are sgnificont to
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3 fo the financdal statements.

The financial staternents are presentad in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are rounded 1o the nearast thousand [(RMOO0)
euept & othenwise indicated.

{b) Changes in accounting policles
The accounting policles adopted are consistent with those of the previcus fimandal year except as follows:

On 1 juby 2019, the Group and the Company have adopted the following MFRSs, IC Interpretations and amendments which are
mandatery for annual financial periods beginning an or atter 1 july 2019

Effective for annual

periads beginning

Description on or after
MFRS 16 Loases 1 Jarwsary 2019
Amendment 1o MFRS 3 Business Combination: Proviowsly Held Interest in a jaint Operaticsy 1 Jaraary 2019
Amendment 10 MFRS 9 Finandal instruments; Frepsyment Featues with Negitive Compensation 1 Jarweary 2019
Amendment 18 MFRS 11 Joint Arangements: Previously Mol Interest In & |oint Dperaticn 1 Jarnsary 2009
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2020
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.]
(b} Changes in accounting policies (cont'd.)

Eftective for annual
periods keginning
Description on or after

Amandment to MFRS 112 Tncome Taxes: Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial
Ingtruments Classlied an Equety” 1 parviary 2015
Amondment to MERS 119 Plan Amandment, Curtallment or Sertlemant” 1 january 2019
Amerdment to MFRS 123 Dorrewing Costs Dorrawing Costs Eligible for Capitabsation’ 1 january 2019
Amerdment 1o MFRS 128 Long-Tenm nerests in Assocates and jont Venures 1 fanuary 2019
L interretation 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatmeants’ 1 january 2019

The adaption of te abowe niw standands, IC interpretations and amendments 1o published standands b pob ghaen rise 1o
any matenial impact on tha financial statements of the Group and the Company, except for changes &rising from the adeption
af MFES 16 as disclosed in Mote 44.

(e} Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of ksuance of the Group's and the
Compary's Tinancial statoments ane dislesed below, The Group and 1he Compary inered 1o adapt these standands, if applicabls,
whan they bacome effective.

Effective for anmual
periods beginning
Description on or aftar
Amargimints 1o Rilersnces 10 1he Conoipual Framewark in MRS Standads
- Amendment To MFRS 2 Share-Based Papment 1 jamsary 2020
= Amencment to MFRS 9 Financial instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 jarsary 2020
= Armendmaents 1o MFRS & Explaration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 1 Jarnapry 2020
- Amendment to MFRS 101 Presentation of Finandal Statcments 1 jamssy 2020
- Amendment to MFRS 108 Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ermors 1 jarmsary 2020
= Armendment o MFRS 134 Intedm Financial Reporting 1 Jampry 2020
- Arnesndinont ta MFRS 137 Provislons, Contimgant Liskdities and Comtingont Assets 1 jarvasty 2020
- Amendment to MARS 130 infangible Assets 1 jaruary 2020
= Armendment 10 I intarprataton 12 Service Concession Arrangemants 1 Jarmusry 2020
= Arnenciment To I Inerpretatan 13 Extinguishing Financial Liabilices with Equity Instrements 1 jarmpary 2020
- Arnendment 1o I Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs In the Production Fhase of a Swuiface Ming 1 jamusy 2020
- Amendment to I Interpretation 22 Forelgn Cumency Transactions and Advance Consderation 1 jammsey 2020
= Arnendment to 1T nterpretation 132 ntangide Assels - Web Site Costs 1 jarmesry 2020
Definition of & Business {Amendments to MFRS 3 Business Combinations) 1 jaruary 2020
Definition of Materal (Amendments to MFRS 100 Presentation of Financlal Statemeants and
Amangments to MFRS 108 Accounting Policdes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors) 1 jamuary 2020
Ameredments to MFRS 8 Financial Instroments, MFRS 139 Financial instruments. Recagnition and
Meauremant and MRS T Finandal Instruments: Disclosures on Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 jarmsry 2020
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 Jung 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ICONT'D.)
(#) Rovenue recognition

Revenus is recognised 10 the extent that it & probabie that the scanemic benatits will low to T Groug and ths revenue (an
b reliabty msasured. The spocific regognition oriern Tof revense am as fallows:-

(i) Revenue fram contracts with customers

Revenup which represents swome ansing n the course of the Groug's ordinary activties s recognised by reference to earh
distinet performane s chldgation promised n the coitiast with oustomer, Reyeaus friom ontraets with sustomams s maasuned
% its transaction prica, being the amaunt af consideration which the Gmoup expects tn be entitlad in eschange for transferning
promised goads o Services 1o @ customeer, net of goods and sendce Tax, fetums, rehates and Sscoums. Transaction prioe
i allcated to each perarmance olligaion of the basis of 1he relatve Sand-alona saling prces of sach distingt good of
services promised 0 the contract. Depending on the substances of the respective contract with the customer, revenue is
recogrised when the performance obligation is satisflied, which may be at @ point in tire or over time.

al  Sole of electricity

The Growp's eleciricity is generated and sold into national electricity company or market in the respective counfries
it iwdileh the Growup oparates

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognsed over time upan dellvery of the electricity to the customerns at a single
paint within the electricity grid.

Reverme are presented, net of goods and service tax, penafties, rebates and discounts. Collection of the contract
corsderation fram customers i considencd probable. Mo elemant o financing & deemed present a4 the Group has
adopted the practical expediont svailalla in MFRS 15 whare the nferval between transfer of the promised goods
o services and payment by the customer |5 expected to be less than 12 menths

Electricity revenue Intludes an estimated value of the electricity consumed by customer from the date of the last
meter reading avallable and reporteng period end. Acorued unbiled revenue & recognised as recetvables ard is
reviersed the fallawing month when acteal bilngs ooour.

by Sme of deon waber ond the treanment and dhspasl of wasie wirer

Thaa Group, under the licerse granted by the United Kingdom (UK™) Covernment, has the rght to supply water and
stwifagie Stviies 1o oo, togither with ai obligation fo maiitain snd dievelog e nitwork and ensure i
contirmesl awadability,

T et i 1he water ingdustry in this UK & Such Thal ievenus recogton i suljes 1o a degroe al estimation.
The assessment of water sales 10 customess % based on internal deta where fina! wettiement data is not yet avallabée,
At the end of each period, amounts of water delivered to customers are estimatied and the comesponding billed and
urIhillind res e i ASsessed and recordid i rashie, For 1 puipose ol [he judgement, varows Tanors am congidenid
such as seasonality, historic billing profiles, leakage data and general economac conditons
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.]
[d} Revenue recognition [cont'd.)
{l} Revenue from contracts with customers [cont'd.)
b} Sale of clean water ond the remtment ond disposal of woste warsy fcantd )

Far metered ustomers, revenus 5 detarmired by the meter reading. For unmetened (usiomers, 1he amount 1o
whic b e Group has & right to recehe B determined by the passage ol tima dunng which the custamar ocougies a
property within the Group's lcenced regean. Hevenue represents income recefwahle in the ordirary course of busness,
exchiding VAT, for sarvices proviced. Bevenue is recegnised to the extent that itis probable that econame; benefits
wiil Plored Dor WP Group,

Do pnr sorvices relaten 10 th abanation under stanmo to Alow pooperty Gowsapsrs 1o estanlish an autharised
crmnner tion tn the water andfor sewenage netwark. In ohtaining the copnection, e develnper may requice the Goup
10 undertake one or more of the following:

Iy Connections and metar instaliation i exchanges for paymant
iy Requisitons of water mains in exchange for payment; and
iy  Adoptions of water and waste waler mains

Thi develaper i aluo roquined 1o pay infastreciure chamges being & contibution to netwed enfoniement.

These activities are not separable poe distinct and instead form a buncle of aciivites necessary to establish an
authersed cannecton from shich the nebwork access can b cbrained. Also, the Group has an additional ebligatan
under statute to keep the connestion in place for af cunnent and future ocouplers and fadilitate ongoing atcess fo
the network for as long as the property requires service provishkon. Conseguently, revenue from developar sarvices
will be defermed aver the shorter of expecied poried of sonvice provigion o the neod 1o replace the assets at the
end af thair usetul life {typically in the range B0 to 125 yoars).

No element af Tinancing s deemed present Tor developer services os the timing difference does not ane as & result
af the provriicn of finance, but rather comes a3 a comequence of the naoture of The requintony emviflonment.

Uinbilled receivables are considensd 1o be a variatle corsaderation which is not consiraned a5 the Group comsiders
It to be highly probable that a sgnificant amount will not be reversed after year enid. Uinbiliad recehables and the
variable conskieration are estimated using the most likety outtome approach.

©) Sole of cement ond relried products
Revenue from sale of cement and refated products Is recognised at the point in tme when control of the goods is
transfemed 10 the customer.

Agontract with cuslomes exists when the contrac! has commescial substanca, the Group and thel oustomers hawve
approved e contract amd intend o perform ther respective obiligations, the Group's ami the customen's tghts
redjading e goids oF Senaes 10 b wransforned and thi: payment iems can b kenified, and it s probabia That
fhe Group will cofect the considaration to which it will be entitled in exchange of those goeds of senvioes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenus recognition [cont'd,)
{ij Revenue from contracts with customers (cant'd.)
€)  Spie of cement and reforad products foondial)

In determaning the ransaction price for the sake of cement and related products, the Group consders the effects
of yaristile consideration,

It thir consideration m a contract includes a variabky amount, the Group esimate the amouit of comideration to
wehich they will be ertitled in exthange for transfening the goodts to The customer. The varisble comsideration
astimated a1 contract inceptien and monstrained onil it is highly probable that a significent revenes reversal in the
Aot of cumulative maaenon meognised will nat occur when 1he assacatml uncortainty with the varahie conloenaton
i subrenuently rescbverd Some contracts lor the sale of cement and related preducts prode customars with pomge
payment rebates and volume rebates. The early payment rebaties, prempt paymsent rebates and volume rebates give
s t0 varlabbe corsideration.

d] Hotel operoiions
The Group generates revenue manly from providing the service of room rentals to tesants within the hotel and

rental of spaces for functions and banquets. The Gloup sso generates revenue from thie ssie of sorvices such s
Toad and Bewerage, as well ps minar sendces such as telacemmunication, Liundry, intarnet and ather minar sehies.

Rovenue |s recognised when the e of a contract have been satisfied, which ooturs whon control has baen
tramsherred to customers and performance obligations are satesdied. Far room revenue, this eccurs evenly throughowt
thie duration of the temant's use on a straight-line basis. For functions and banguets. evenue & recognised at a
point in ime when the pedormarce abligation s satistied, gererally a1 the provision of the space.

2]  Construction controcrs

Under such contracts, the Group ts engaged o constiuct budldings and redated Infrastructure and incertaln instances.
1o supply equipments. These contacts may include muliple promises to the custamers and thersfare accounted
for as separate performandce obligations. in this case, the transaction price will be allocated basad on redative stand-
alone seling price of the conskderations of each of the separate performance obligations. When these are not directly
observabile, Ehiy are estimated based on dxpected £as! plus madgn.

Revenue from censtruction contracts is measwed 2t the Hxed transaction price agreed under the agreement

The Groug determines the transaction price of a comtract after comidering the effect of varlable consideration,
comsiraieng estimates of varabie consderathon, effect of significant financing component. non-tash consideration
anl corsideration paydlde 1o osionmer,

When the fai value of varlabie consideration is uncertain, the Group estimates the amount of cormsiderstion by using

i mast kel amount irethod and oy recagnises 1 thir eaent That is highly probable that & significant reversal
I cumutative revenue will not ocour,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.]
[d) Revenue recognition (oent'd.)
{l} Revenue from contracts with customers [cont'd.)
B} Consructian controcrs fronr'd,)

Revenue is recognised as and when control of the asset & transtermed to the customer and it s probable thet the
Group would tollect the condderation towhich it sl be antitled in axchandge Tor 1ha assat that iwould be tranifermed
to the customes. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply 1o the contract, contml of the
ssiet may transfed ovir time ar 4l a paint in time. Control of thi asset is franstemed over time (iF the perlonmance
ol 1he Group coes mol tranle sn assel with an alternative use to the Group and the Groug has an enforceable rght
to payment for perlormance completed 1o date,

I pentenl af the avwet inansfier oues me, fevenue i reognised over the pornd of the rantract by elerence In
the progress towards comolete satisfaction of that performance obigation wsing the irput method, which s hased
o the total achual construction cost incumad to date a5 compared 1o the total budgeted costs for the respective
construclion projects

I gartral af the ascel tranclers at a pont i time, roveng is recognisod at a point in tme wion the customer
ohtans control of the asset

1 Broodbang ond folecommamoerians

The Croup genprates rsenue from providing toledommirnication services, suth 25 access 10 the netwodk, aitme
usage, messagng and infemet senices a5 well as from sades of products. Products and services may be sold separately
or in bundled packages. The typical length of a contract for bundled packages i 11 months to 24 months.

Far bundied packages, the Group adcounts Tor ndividual products and sendces separataly  they are distinet, e if
@ product of service |s separataly identifiable from other items in the bundied peckage and B a customes can benedit
fram L The conalderation |s aflocated between separate products and sendces in & bundie based on thelr Pelative
Stand-alone Sefling Poces (RESPT). The RSSFE are determined besed on the B0 pices at which the Group sells the
products and telscommunication services. RS5P are based on oosenmble sales prices; however, where BRSSP are not
directly abuervabls, estimates wil be made maximising the use of observable nputs.

W Telecommunicotion senices
Telecommunication revenue from postpaid and prepald servces provided by the Graup is recognised oves time,
s thee benefits of telecommanication serdcoes are simullaneously received and conumesd By thee customer,

Revenue [om prepaxd services s recognived when servioes are rendered, Starter packs with @ sim cand and
rietad voudcher 15 accounted Tor @ 4 snghe performance obisgation as The am cand can oy be wsed togeths
wilh the services provided by the Group. Prepaid credits ae recognised @ contract Bability in the statemsnis
ul financal position Revenuie is recognised when the osdis are dilised of up (o the polnt of customer darn
oF Lupan expiry, whichover is earlier,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(d) Revenue recognition (cont'd,}
{iy PRevenuve from contracts with customers (cant'd.)
{I  Broadband and pelecommunioations (oo
(I Telecommunication senioes (conTid)

Postpad senices are provided in postpaid packages which consist of various sendces (e call minutes, inamet
diata, srs and ec.) Thesa postpad packages have boen amsessed to maet the: definition of a saries of distingt
sarvices that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer and as such the Group reats
thirse packagos a5 a single pedormanto oblgatian.

Postpaid packages are either sold sepaately or bundied tagether with the sale of device to o customer. As
postpaid packages and device ane capable ol being distinet and separately identiliable, there ane twa perfarmanee
obligations within a bunded framaction Accosdingly, the Group allocates the transaction price based on the
5P of the postpaid packages and device.

iy Dewres

Dewices may be sold separately or in bundied packages. The Group recognises reveme when conrol of the
dendte has transferred to the customer upon delivery and acceptance of the device at the polit of sale,

For devices sold separately, (he consideration bs red anhed in Tull at thi point of sala, For devices sold in bundied
packages, the customers ususlly offered to pay at a discounted proe on the device. The amount of revenue
recogrised for devices sold in bundied packages s measured ar the allocated consideration based an the RSSP

as explaned previously

Davwic o That thie Group promises 1o rarster as part of the bunded package with network serice plans ane
corsdered distinet and thus accounted for & o sefaeate performance obligaton. Devices that are transtered
as part of a fixed line telecommumication sendees burdled package which can only be wsed tngether with the
servises provided by the Group, @ consideres & a single performance obligation in Wlecommunications sendcs
raEVEILIE

A pontract assol is racogrised whon the Group dolivers the dovices baloda the paymant is dus. IF the paymiont
happens befare the defivery of device, then a contract lability is recognised. Contract assets and contract
Rahilities are presented In the statements of financiad positon.

The Group generates revenue from telecommunication infrastrectum usiness. Telecommunication infrstructune
buskness revenue is generated from tha leasing of space on the Group's Telecommunication towers. where the
customers install and maintan their individual communication network equipment. The revenue b recogrised
on a straaght-line basis aver the fixed and non-cancallable term of the lease agreemeant, imespective of when
paEyment &= due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.]
(d) Revenue recognition [oont'd.)
{l} Revenue from contracts with customers [cont'd.)

4} Propery devslooment Wojects

Contracts with customers may include multiple promises to customers and therefore accounted for @s separate
performance chiigation. The transaction price will be allocated to each performance chligation based on the stand-
alore seflirg prices. When these are not deectly obsarvable, they are estimated based on expected cost-phus margin.

Their merwisnuwe Frowm propesty developmint is measured at Fied fransaction price agreed uides the sale aml punthae
agreament,

Reinrioue from piopisty dissdopnent is recognised as anid wibe (s comtiol of twe s @ tanslened o e
customes and it bs protiastile that the Groug will collact the onskderation to which it will be entitied in exchange for
A assed it will be Damdeied 1o e customer. Depening o e teons of e contract sd he laws tal apply
1o U contrach, carnol of U assal may transler over time of a8 4 point n tme, Contrel of e sisat is ramdemed
ower time il the Growa’s performance does nat creats an asset with an altemative use to the Group and the Group
has an enfarceable right to payment Tor parformance comissted o date,

The promised properties ate specifically identified by its lot and unit number and its attributes (such as its size and
locarion) in the salie and purchase agreaments and the attached layour plan Thie purchasers could enlorce s rights
o T promised praparties F the Group seeks o 5o the und 1o anmber puechased, The contraciual mstrictkon an
the Group’s abllity to cirect the promised property for another use s substantive wse to the Group. The Grow Is
entitied o continue 10 transfer 10 the cusomer the development units promised and has thie rights 1o compiete
the consinaction af the propertes and enfonoe 15 mights 10 Tull payment,

1P Rhie Eomired af The AsSet ransheds Cuor Time, Fevisnue |5 eCognesed o T paiod aff thie Coniract by reference
o T progress twancs complete satisfacton of that performance obligation, Othenyise, revenue is recognised at
@ paint in time when the customer obtans controf of the asset.

Thit Croup fecoghised mevenus over Hime using the inpul maethod, which 18 based on the 22Tl cost intufted 19 date
on the property development prosects a5 compared 1o the total idgeted cost for respect ive developmant projects.

Thie Group recognsed sales at a paint i ime jor 1he 5ae of compieted proparties, wisen The contr of the properties
has been transferrsd to the pachasers, being when the properties have teen completed and delivered to the
customess and i 5 prodable that the Croug will caliec the considarations 1o which i will be entiiied to in exchange
for the assets sold,

Thit Growp has determimned that it nas a significant finanging component related to the sales of s propeety wnits
baing develeped undar the deferrad paymant scheama, As 3 result af this the ampunt af the promisad canaderation

Is adjisted tor the significant financing cempenent and the related interast income Is recognised ising tha e ective
Irepenst matha cuoe thie toem of this doleman.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition [cont'd.}
{ij Revenue from contracts with customers (cant'd.)
M Sole of steom

The Groug's sae of s1eam is mainly derved from wholesale market customers, Revenue trom sales of steam s
recogrisad s and whan the Group's customens simullanaously medeve and consume the banelits (e, the customers.
are able 1o utilise the steam for their benefit as and when the steam is being supplied) arising from the Group
perferming it abligations. bated an the 1orme ol the contracts with the customeds. Accordingly, ieweno [rom the
wupply of steam i recognined owar tims e a5 and when the steam Supplied & consumed by the ountomars,

Na element of financing is deemisd present as the Grodp has adopted the practical expedient availabis in MFRS 15
whiene interaal between transfer af the promised geods of services and payment by the customern s expected 1o be
less than 12 months

i} Othars
Other income eamed by the Group is recognised as the following beses:

i) Sake of fuel il

Salir of fuel oil i recogiised when control of T products has transhemed, bt when the poducts ae delvened
1o the customer and there is no unfullilled abligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the
products. Delivery ocours when the products have been transported to the specific lacation, the riskes of
absofestence and lass have been transferred (o the customer, and sither the oustomer has accedied the
prochEs in accordance with the sales contract, the atoeptanca provisions have lapsed, of the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satsfied

Revenue from these sales is recognesed hased on the price spacified in the confract and revenus ks only
recognisad to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Mo element of
financing s desmad present as the Groug has adopted the aatical expedient available in MFRS 15 whaore thi
mtenval between transfer of the promised goods or senvices and payment by tha customer is expecied to be
lass than 12 manths

A recehable is recognsed when the goods are delivered as this s the peint in time that the comideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required bafore the paymert is dua,

W) Gabe of natural gas

ftevenue from sake of matural gars is recognised s and when the Growp's customers simultaneously receive and
corsume the benefits (Le. the customers are able to utiiise the gas far thelr benefit as and when the gas &
besng supphed) arfing from the Group performing its oblgatons based on the terms of the contracts with the
customers. Accordingly, revenue from the supply of gas is recognised over tima; Le, as and when the gas
supplied |s consumed by the customers. Mo element of fimancing ts deemed present as the Groug has adopted
e practicd eaprdient avalalde in MFRS 15 whine the mterval betwanen trarder of the promised goods o
services and payment by the castomes is expected to be less than 12 months.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONT'D.)

[d) Revenue recognition (cont'd.)

U]

(i

Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
i Others {eome)
iy  Dpevation and maimenance laes
Management fees ts recognised over the period in which the serdoes ans rendered.

] Tank leasing fees
Tank keasing fees fram operating ieases @e recognised on a stralght-line hasks over the lease term,

Revenue from other sources
Spedific referue recognition critena for other revenue and income eamed by the Group and the Company are as follows:

) ST o
INEERET MCOME IS (eCOgrised a5 T iNTRMST NCOTIE SCTUS, taking g a0count e effeclive Yokl on thit asset.

o} Diwdend income
Dndend income is recognised when the nght 1o receive the payment s estabished.

)} Rentol come

Rental income from opesating beases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease t2rm.

[e} Employes benatits

U]

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salanes, sooal security contributions, paid anneal ave, pald sick Ieave, bonases and non-monetary benetifs e
rerognised a5 an expense in the finandal year when employees have rendered thesr senaces to the Group and the Comparry.

Barmmes are recognised a5 an eapense whan there is 3 presant, lagal or ranstroctive ohligaticn fo make sarh payments,
a5 @ rasult of past events ard whon 8 roliable ectimate can be made of the amount of the obligatan.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

(#) Employee benefits (cont'd.)
(i) Post-employment benefits
The Group has various post-employment benefit schemes in accondance with local conditions and practices n the Industries
Inwhich it operates.
These benafit plams are either defined contribution or defined benefit plans.

o) Defined comtritwtion plan

A dafired cortrbution plan 15 & person plan under which the Group and the Company pays fived contrbutions imo &
separate antity (2 fund) and will have no legal of constructive chigations to pay further contributions if the fund does
mat hotd sufficent assets to pay al employees benefits relating o employee service in the ourrent and prior periocs.

The Caonprs and the Company's confributions to & defined contribatinn plan are changad to the prodit o oss i the
penod b wiith ey reata,

by Defined benefit plan

A defined benafit Fan & & pension plan that defines an amount of pension benedit 1o be provded, usualy @5 & function
of mne o mona factors such &s age, years of service or compansation

The kabllity In respect of a defined benefit plan ks the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
e mimes the Fair value of plan assabs

The defined benefit obligation Is canulated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method
Tha presant valug af the defined benafit obligation & determine by discourting the estimated future cash outliows
wlng interest eates af high-qualty corporate bonis that ae dencminated in the currency (0 which the berafits will
e paid, and that have tenms to matirity appioximating 1o the terms of the mlated pension ohligation,

Re-MEBASUTENENT gans and ksses of post-emplayment bensdit obligations ane recognised in Other Comprahensive
income,

Past-service costs are recognised mmediataly in the Incoma Statements.

{lli} Share-based compensation

The Company and certan sudsidiories operate equity-settied, shame-based compermsation plan for the employees of the
Group, The fak value of the employoe servioes receved in exchange for the grant of the share options is eopgnised as an
mpera N the profit of loss ower the vesting periods af the grant with a corresponding intregse in aguity

The total amount to be espensed ovar the vesting paniod ks determined by referenca to the fair value of the share optiors
grantad and the numbes of share aptions to be vested by vesting date. AL each reparting date, tha Group revises its estimates
of the number of sham optons that are expected to vest. i recognises tha impact of the mvision af original estimaes, i
any. in the profit ar loss, with a comesponifing adjustment 1o equety. For ootions granted by the Company fo its subsikdaries’
emploieg, e axpeise will b recognised in the subsidianies’ inancial STaements oo This vesting porlods of the grant.

The proceeds receted mat of @y directly attributtable Wansocbon costs ae oedited 1o share capital when the opboms ae
i,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONT'D.)

(1) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitaised as pan of the cost ol a qualifying asset il ey ae diectly attiliutable 1 the acquisition,
construction or production of that assel. Bormowing (osts are copllalised untd the assens ane substantially compheted Tor thiir
Intended use or sala,

Al ather bammeing costs are recoqnised in prafit o less in 1he perod they ate incurred. Bomowing costs consist of Intedest
and other costs that the Group and the Company incumed N connection with the barmowing of furds.

{g] Income tax and deferred tax
FEoen Tax an e profit of loss foe thie finandlsl year comprises curmond anid delomed Tas,

Current fax is the expected amount aof income taxes payable in respect of the taxable prodit for the financial year and is
maasuned usng The Tax rates that have been enacted or sufstantively enacted at the repaning date.

Dedarred tax |5 recognised in Tul, using the liabsty method, on temparary GHerences aising betwean 1Me amaunts airbutabie
1o a55ets and Babilities fof ta purposes and thelr cammying amounts in the financlal statements. However, defermd L i not
atcounted for |f it arfkses from initial recognition of an assel o labliity In a transaction that at the time of the ransaction
affects naithir accounting nor tadabie profit or ks

Deferred tax avsets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available aganst which the
deductiile temporary differences or unussd 18 losses can be utilsad

Defarred tax is detenmined wsing t2x rates (and tax laws] that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the reporting
diate and are cxpected 1o apply whion the related defomed tax 35501 5 reaised or the deferred tax liabilty s settied,

[h)} Property. plant and equipment. and depreciation

Froperty, plant and equipment excapt for certain freehald land and buldings 15 stated at cost less actumulated depreciatian
and accumulbated impairment hosses, Cost indludes expendture that is diectly attributable 1 the acguisiten of the items. Cost
alsa inchudes borrorwing costs incunad for property, plant and equipmant under constructian, The cost of cerain property,
plant and equipment include the costs of dismantling, removal and restoration, the obligation of which was incurred as a
comsepience of nstiling the asset,

Subsequent costs ane included in the aswat’s carmying amount or recognised as a separale asset, 4s appopnalte. only when it
% prehabiin that fmee sconcimic benelins assodiatod with thie dem wil Tow 10 this Group and the cost of the item can be
measuned rellably. The carmying ammint of the replaces part is derecognised. All other repairs ard malrtenange ae charged
to the peofit or koss during the financial year in which they ane ncured.

Certain fraghold land and huildings ware revalued by the Directors in 1563 baead an valuations carried out by independant
professional valuers on the open market basis. In accordance with the transitional provisions tssued by MRS 116 Property,

Prant A Equipmant’, 1ha valuation of these praperties, plant and squapment have i Bsen updatod ani Huy Eontinu to be
stiated at their presiowsly revalued amounts lass daprecintion and imgairment besses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ICONT'D.}

{(h]) Property, plant and squipment, and depreciation (cont'd.)

Property. plant and eouipment rEtined from actve wse and held for dspesal ane Stated at the lower of net book valie 2nd net
realisamlie vske,

Freehokd land and freshald rd palm plantation are not amomsed,

Assats Lnider construction are stated st cost and are not deprecaated. Lipon completon, assets under construction ame rensfemed
to rategoiies of property, plant and equipment depending on nature of assets and dapreciation commences when they ane
ready for thoir intondad s

Depreciation on all ather property, plant and equipment & caloulated on the straght-kne Basks at rates required 1o wite aff
the coit of the praparty, pant and equipment over thair estimatod uselul |ite,

The princapal annual rates of depreclation used are as follows:-

W
Bulldngs i-10
Leasehold kand -
Infrastiiure & sily Taciklis. 0.9 - 20
Plant & machinedy 4 - 20
Furniture, fictures & equipment 10 - 50
Vahicles 10 - 33%
Telacommurication equipment 4 - 20

Residual wabue, uselul ife and depreciation method of assets are reviewed at each financlal year end 1o ensure that the amount,
method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected patiem of consumption of the
futun economic Demnsgfins emboded in 1he Tems of property. plan i sauipmen]

Gains and lrsses an deposals ame determined by comianng net dsposal proceeds with Nt carmying amawnt and are recognised
I s prodil oo lods,

{i} Investment properties

Ireestment propertses inciude those partions of buddings that are held for long- term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation
and freehold land and/or land undes apesatng leases that is held tor long- term capital appeesiation o for & cuntendly indetanminate
use, livvestment properties include propertsas that e being constoucted or developed for futies wse an investment properties.

IFvosEmint properties afo measaned inilially At cost and subrecuently 41 Lai vilue with aay chango thofein mcognised in prodit
of loss for the pedod inwhich they arise. Whare the fair value of the investment property under construction s not reliably

daterminable, the investment property wider constraction (s measwred at cost untll elther its fair vaiue becomes reliably
determinabke o construction |s comgilete, whithever iy sarker,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.]
[i} Investment properties (cont'd.)

Cost inchuded expanditure that is directly attributable 1o the scquisitan of the iwestment proparty, The cost of seil constructed
iwestment property inchedes the cost of matedtals and direct labour, any other costs dinectly attributable to bringing the
Investment praperty to a working condition far their intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

An investment property s derecognised on 15 cesposal, o when it i permanently withdraam from use 2nd no future economic
nenefits are expected from its dispesal, The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amaunt is recognised
it pralie or kass In thi porod m which i iem |5 derecognissd.

i} Development expenditure
{i} Land held for property development

Land held for property development consests of land where no development activities have been camled out or wifee
development acthdtes are not expected to be complated within the narmal operating cycle. Such land is classified within
AEN-EUTENE assets and i stated at the loveer of cost and net realisable velue,

Cost comprises cost of land and all related casts incurred an activities necessary to prepore thr Land for its intendaed use.

Land held for property devalopment is reclassified as property developmert costs and included under current assets when
development activities have commenced and whare it can be demorstrated that the developmeant activities can be
comeeted within the normal operating cycka,

(1) Project development expenditure

Development expenditure incurred is capitalised when it maets certan criteria that indicate that it is probabie that the
corsts will ghve rise to future economic benefits and are amortised over the period of the projects, They ane written down
1o their retoverable amounts when there k& insulficent certainty that future ecaramic benedits will Tlow to the enterprise.

Development cests previously recognsed as an experse are ot recoghtsed & an ssset in subeguent perlods.
Capitalsed dinedaprent exponditure is stoted ot cost less accumulated amortisation and impaiment leddes.

[k} Impairmant of non-financial assats

The casryirg amounts of aviots are reviewed at oach reparting dato 1o determine whoihier thor i any indication of imparment.
A any siach indicatian axists. a0 asset's recoverable amount is sstimated 1o diterming tha amount of mpairment ks,

An irpaiment loss s recogrsed Tor the amount by which the camying amount of the @sset exceads its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s falr value less cost of disposal and valee in use. For the purposes of
F5essing impaimment, assets ane grouped at the lowest levels for wihich there are senarately identifiable cash fows cash-
generating unitsh. Non-fnanclal assets other than goodwill that suffened impasment are isviewed for possibe reversal of the
mpairment at each reporting date.

Animpairment 1058 18 changed 1a 1he profit o loss immediately, unles the aSoet £ carmied at rosvalued amount. Any impainment

loss of a revalued et 5 treated a2 revaluation decrease 1o the extent of previously recognised resalustion seplus Tor the
e atiat
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

(k) Impairment of nan-financial assets (cont'd.)

Impaiment kxsses on goodeill ane not reversed. 0 Fespect of other 35St any Subssquent INcrease in the recovedable amount
of an asset & reated a5 reversal of the pressous imparment loss and 15 ecognised To the qaent of the carmying amount of
the asset that would have been determined [net of amortisation and depredation) had no Impaiment ioss been recognisad
The reversal is recogaised in the profit or loss mmediately, unless the aset s carried a1 revalued amount. A reversal of an
imgrairnent lass on a revaluad asiel i credited directly to ravaluation surplus. Howevar, to the axtent that an impairment lows
on tha same revaiued asset was previowsly recognised a5 an expanse in the profit or loss, a reversal of that impairment loss.
ts recognised as income in the profit or loss.

{I} Basis of consolidation
The consalidated financlal stat=ments comprise the finandal statements of the Company and its subsidianies as at the reporting
date. The financal statements of the subssdiaries used in the preparation of the consoldated tinancial statements ame epansd

for the same reparting data as the Company, Control B achieved when the Group s exposed, or ban ights. to vanable miurm.
from its invohement with the investes and has the ablity 1o affect those retums through its power over the investes.

Thiz Group contros an investae f and only if the Group hat & the follawing

+  Power over the investee (1. existing rights that give it the current ablity to drect the relevant activities of the investeel
*  Expodung, of nghts, 10 variable matur from ik imeestment with the ifsastes: and

= The ability b s its power oved thie investes 1o affect s retums,

When the Gmaip has Iess than @ majorty of the wating rghts of an nvestea, the Group considers the following in assessing
whather of not He Group's voting nights in an investes are sufficient tn give it power oves the investes:-

+  The contraciual arrangement(s) with the other vote halders of the imestee.

= Haghts arising from other contractual armangements: and

+  The Group's woting rights and potentis voting rights.

The Growp re-assesses whathes or nat it controls an investee I facts and cioumstances indicate thal there are changes 1o
o ar mafe ol the thiee elements of candrol, Consolidation of a subsidiary beqing when the Group olvains contrel over the
subsidiary and ceasas when the Group koses control of the subsidiary. Assets, labilities, Income and expenses of a subsidiary
acouired o despased of during the year are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains.
pontral until the cane (e Group ceases 10 contne 1he subsidiang,

Prodit or loss and each comoonent of OCF are attributed to the egquity holders of the patent of the Growp and to the non-
centraling inlerests, even IF IS results s the non-controfing inferests having a deficlt lance, When netessary, ddjisiments
e mate to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thes sccounting pobickes. into line with the Group's stcounting
malicies. All intra-group assets and liabdities. squity, income, papenses and cash Hows redating to Transactions hetween mambers
ol i Cavaiagh sre plirmiiabsgd @ Pl on conlisning
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{l} Basis of consolidation (contd.)

i charge in 1he cvmership interest of a subsidiay, willsout a loss of controd, s eccomnted Tor as an equily irasasciion. |1 the

Goup loses contrd over a subsidiany, it

«  garecognises the assets (inchuding goodwill) and flablities of the subsidang

+  demognives the curying amount ol any non-controliog inferests

*  cerEcognises the cumuatve tranckation differences recorded in egquity;

+  recognises tha fair wahse of tho cormideraton roecived
recogrises the fair valee of any Investment retained,

* recognisas amy suplus or defit in profit or loss: and
reglassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive inome to prodit or loss or
retained gaenings. 43 appropniate, & would be required if the Group kad directly diposed of the relted assots or Rabilities.

Agundlions of subsidiaries are accountad For by applying the purchase method, identifiable assets acguired and lisbilives and
contingent kablidies msumed in a business combination are measured initially at thesr Fair walues at the atquistion date,
Adjustments 1o those falr values relating to previously held interests are freated as a revaluation and recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The cost of a usiness combénation k= measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets
given, liabilities incumed or assumed. and equity nstruments issued, plus any costs directly attributabie to the businets combination.
Aty ewiend of Th eost af business combinatian ovaer tha Groug's shara in Tha nat Fair valss of tha scdquired sulmidiany® doentifiable
aveets, llabiities and contingent llabBtes s reconded 2= goodwill in the statements of financial position. The accounting policy
for goochasll Is sat out in Nate 2(q) to the financlal statements. Any excess of the Group's share in the net fair value of the
acouired wibdidan's identifable msets, kalilites and contingent kabilites over the cost of busineds combiration s recognised
&% income in profin or koSS on the date of acguisifian Wnen the Group acquines a business, embedded derlvatives separated
from the host confrect by the scquiree are reassessad on acoquisition unless the business combination results inoa chamge in
A teires o thix contiact Wt sigrificantly modifies the cish Mows that swould otberwise b reguined usder B contact

[{m) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group reats ransacticns with non- controlling intereots as fransactions «ith cquity owners of the Groug. For purchases
from mon-controfing interests, the difference between any considesation paid and the relevant shares acquired of the carmying
walus of matl asse1s of tha subsidiany is moorded in equity. Gaire or losses on disposali 1o non-confroling interests are ako
recorded (n oquity.

(n} Investment in subsidiaries
& subsidary s an entity over which the Group has all the follmaing:-
Power over the investee (Lo, existng rights 1hat give [t the cument sbility 1o direct the relovant activities of the imestes):

« Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from Its iwestment with the investes; and
o Tha abdlity 1o e (5 powasr ovor the nseston 10 atfect [ redurms

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accownted for at cost less accumulated
impairment kosses. On dispasal of imvestments in subssdiades, the difference betwoen disposal proceeds and the canrying
amaunts of the iInvestments are recognised in profit or boss
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{o) Investment in associated companies

Aszociated companies are enttias in which the Group is In a position to exercise significant influence it which is neither a
sutrskliany nor an interest n A joint venture, Sanificant inflieence bs the power to partcipate in the financial and operating
paolicy decisions. but not control over their policles. The exstence and effect of potential woting rights that are currently
exercisable or conwertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant influence over anather entity.

Irvestmients in assoclated companies are accounted for in the consoldated financial statements wsing the equity mathod of
aceourting and are imtally recoghised at cost. Thi Group's mvestmant in scociated compansss neludes goodadll kontified
on acduisition, net of any accumuated impaimment loss

In apphyng the equity method af accounting. the Group's share of is associated companies’ post-acquisilion profits o lolses
ate recognised in profit of lowd and its share of past-acquisition mavimants in e s recognised in other comprohermie
ircome, The cumulative post-acguisition mavements and distributions recefved froen the associated companies are adjusted
agairrst the camying amourtt of the investment. Whien the Group’s share of losses in an associated company equals or exceads
Its interest in the associated company, including any other urseowed obligations, the Croup does not recognise further losses.
unbass [t has ohligations or has made payments on behalf of the assodated company.

Thie most recent avalable audited financial statements af the associated companies are used by the Group In applying the
ity mathod, Where thir dates of the sudited financial statgments used ane not cotermancws with thiose of the Group, the
share of resus & arrfeed 31 From the last sudited financial statements available snd managoement Tmanclal statemants 1o the
end af the &counting period. Whare necesiany, adiustmants ame made to the finencial statements of assotiated companies
to erure consiktency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

Unrealsad gains on transactions between the Group and its assocated companies ae eliminated to the extent of the Group's
Irterest in the associated companies, Unrealsed fosses are also eliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of an
Imparment of the asset transfemed.

Calrs and losses arteng from parial dispoesats or diutions in irmvestments in 2ssociatied companies ae ecognesed in profit or loss.

IFvestments in associyied companies are demcognised when the Group lases significant inllisente. Amy elensd interast in
tho antity i omaasurod a1 it Lair value, Tha differmncs betweon the carrying amount of tha ratained imeasiment at the date
whan significant influance is lost and Its fair value & recognised in profit or los,

In the Company’s separate firanclal statements, investments in assoclated companies are stated at cost kess acoumulated
Impairment losses. On dsposal of investments in associated companies, the difference between dsposal proceads and the
carrying amourts af the mvestments ane recognised in prafit o loss,

Jeint arrangements

A point arrangement |s an arrangement of which there is contractually agreed sharing of control by the Group sith one of
more parties, whene deckskans sbout the relevant activities relating to the joint arrangement require unanimous consent of

the partes sharing contrel The classilication of a joint amargement 35 a jont operation of J joint venteo deponds upan thi
righis and obligations af the parties o the arrangement. A pint venture is & joint arangement whaereby the joint vontureds
have rights ta the not aveots of the arangament. A foint operation s a joint arargomant wharehy the jeint operatoes Rave
rights te the psseis and ebilgations far the lablities, relating 1o the arangomen.

P
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONT'D.)

(P} loint arrangemants (cont'd.)
[oint ventire

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are sccounted for by the equity method of atcounting based on the audited Financial
statemonts of the jont ventures mado up To the end of the finandal yoar,

Equity accounting involves recognising in the profit of less the Croup's sham of the esults of pint ventures for the fmancial
yiar. The Groug's investmsants. in jont ventures are camed in the Statlements of Financlal Position at an amaunt that reflects
its share of the net assets of the joint ventures and Includas goodwil on acquisition

Unraalised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventunes are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s intefest
i the paint ventunes: unrealised kosses are alsa eliminated unlass the transac bion provides endence on mmpairmant of tha asset
transtovred, Where necesssary, in apiing 1he equity method, aqustments e made 1o 1he Binandlal Staomsemns ol joint ventunes
T @RS CORSEIRNCY OF Soounling pobos with 1hose af the Graup

i thee Company's separate lnancial statemeints, Ieestments in it wentues ang stated at cost bess impaimment losses

On disposal of such investments, the difference batween nat disposal procesads and ther carmyng amounts s inchuded In profit
or boss.,

(q) Imtangibie assets
(i} Contract rights

Cantract rights comwise aoquined contrxts and fghts 1o contracts from fariness combnation, Thewe are amartian over
e confractisal pediod on s sirsght-line basis and ae assessed at each rponting date wheiher thene (5 any indeation
That Thi Contract Fights may be imaained. See accounting peicy Note 2(k) o the financial Statements an impaement of
noit-financlal asseds.

[l Goodwill

Goodwill 15 mnitially measured &1 cost Fabowing the initial recognition, qoodwill 5 measuned 8t cost less stcumulated
i e oL

For the purpose of Impairment testing, goodwill acquired & alloCated, from the acguisition date, to each of the Groups
cash-genersting units that are expocted to benefit from the syrergies of the combination

Thee cash-genarating unit ta which goodwill has been allocated s tested or impairment armually and whenever there is
an indication that the cash-genarating unil may ba mmpaired, by comparing tha carying amount of the cash-gonetating
unlt, ncluding the allorated goacwill, with the rocoverable amount of the cash-generating wnit. Where the recowerablie
amauet af the cash-generacing LV is less than the camying Amount, an impaiement loss s recognised in pratie o Irss.
Impaiment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.

‘whera goodwill Fofms part of a cash-ganerating unit and part of the oparaticn within thal cash-genarating unit is dsposed
af, the goodwil assoclated with the operation dispoted of is included In the carrying amowt of (he operation when

dti mining e gain af less on disposa) of the operation. Goodhwill deaposisd of in B cliumstanie b meadimed bikoed
o Thee nebativee Lir values of the operations disgorsed ol angd the porton ol the casd-generating wil retsnest
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{q) Intangible assats (cont'd.)
(i) Others
i)  Cusiomar dsts

Customer lists are amonised over the contractal period on a strEght-line hasts and are assessed at each eponing
date whethar there is @ny Indication that the other intangile assets may be impaired. Se@ arconting policy Mot
2(k) 1o the financial statements on impairment of non-fin2nclal assets,

b Quany rights

Quarry fights ase amonised on the strasght-ne basls ever the lease term bess imparment losses

£) Embssion rights
The emission rights that ame acquired by the Group are measured at cost less any acoumulated impairment losses

The pakcy tar the recognition s measurement of mpairmant kesses i in accordancg with Note 2{k),

{r} Financlal assets
{i) Initial recognition and measuramant

Financlal assets ate recagnised In the Statemrants of Financla Position when, and only wihan, the Group and the Company
become a party to the contractual provsions of the instrument

Fancial pssets are classibied, at initial rmoognition, and sfeqently messred ot amortised cost, Tair valsie thouogh
ofher comprebensive income (007 of Fai value througn profie or loss

Thar classiication of Pinancisl Fses at initial recognition degends on th Tnancial asseys Conrad sl cash Mow charchriscs.
ar the Group's and the Company's business madal for managing them. With the excemion of rade recaivables that do
nat contain a sgnificant financing component o for wiich the Coup and 1he Company Nave appied the praciical expedient.
the Croup and the Campany initialy measore @ financial asset a1 its fair value phes, in the case of a financlal asset not
it Fair value thowgh prefit o loss, tramsaction costs. Trade recefvables thal do not contain a significant financing companent
o o wihich the Group ard the Compary have apolied the practical expedient are measurad at the transaction price
datemingd under MFRS 15,

Inieched T a financeal assel o b Classilied and medasunid ol armcdtesed cost of FYOCL L reeds oo give Tive 10 cash lnes
that are solely payments ol prindpal and interest ("S9P an the mindpal amount outstanding. This assessment |s refered
a5 the SPPI lest and & perfoemed at an nstrument level.

The Group's and the Comparny's business modse! for managing financial assets reters to how it manages its financial assets
inofder to genetate cath flowsd, The business model detefmines whethor cash flaws will it from collecting contrad lud
cash flows, seling the financial msets, or both

Purchases or sales af financial assets that require delbvery of assets within a time frame estabished by requlstion or

convention in the markat place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 2. the date that the Group and
the Company comimits o purchase or sell the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

[r} Financial assets {cont'd.)
(i) Subssquent measurement
For purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four catagaries:

*  Fmancial assets at amartised cost (debt Instruments)

= Financial assets at Lair walie thicugh GO wath recycling of cumulative gaing and iosses (debt instruments);
Financial assats designated at far vaue through 00 with no recycing of cumulative galrs and kesses upan derecognition
{equity imstuments) and
Financial assets at tair value through profit or s,

o}  Finmcial gssels ol amortised cost (dedt nstruments)

This cateqgony is the mast relevant to the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company measunes Fnancial
wssets at smortised cost IF both of the following conditions are met:
Tha tinancal asset 15 Pesd within a busness model with the ofjective 1o hokl Tancial 255 n onder 1o colecl
contractual cash flows and
Thie costra il tedms af e financial assot give rse on spoeified dates 10 eash Tows that ane solely paymenis
of principal and interest on the prancipal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amorized (ost arg sutsequently measured usng the effective interest rate (ER7) method and
e sifiject t impaiment, Gains and losses are recognised in profit of loss whien the asset ks derecognised, imaditied
or impaired.

Thei Groud's and the Company's financial as5ets at amonised cost ncude receivalies and amoums du Fiam assotines
and joint ventures induded under other non-current financial assets.

bf  Financiol assels desgrated of folr vkie Miough DO fequiTy smstraments)

Upan initial recognition. the Graup and the Company can alect to dassify irmevocably its equily irvestments a5
equity imstruments dasignated at fair vakie through O when they meet the definiton of eguity under MERS 132
Financial Instruments: Prosentation and ame nat held for trading, The elassificatian is datemined an an insTrsmant -
by instrument basis.

Gidrrs and borssies on thess financal assets ane never moytied 1o profit or bss. Davddends ae moognised as ather income
i the statement of profit of leds whan tha right of payment has been eatablished, excapt when the Gloup and the
Company banefits from such proceeds as a recoveny of part of the cost of the financial asset. inwhich case, such gans
are necorded in OCL Equity instrumenis designated at falr value through 00 are not subgact to Impalrment assessment.

The Group and the Company elected to classify rrevocably its mon-listed equity Investments under this category
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{r) Financial assets {cont’d.)
(i} Subsaguant measuramant (cont'd.)
£l Fnancinl aesers of fair vahse feough profit or foss

Financial assets at Tair vahoe theoigh profit or lss Include financial assets el for trading, financal assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value theaugh pealit of loss, or finannal asats mardatory required to be measwed
at fair value, Finangial assats am classified as he'd for trading # thay ane agquined for the purpose of seding or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded dervatives, are also classified as hald for
tradhng urdess they are designaced as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
soledy paymants of principal and interest are classifiod and measuned at tair value through pralit or loss, imgspective
of the meiness model Notwithstanding the criteria for debt nstruments to be classified 3t amartisod cost o at far
value through OCL & dosoribed above, debit instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss o
initial recogaition il deing so eliminates, of significantly reducies, an atdownting mismatch,

Financial assets at far value thicugh profit or less are carried inthe statement of financial positien at falr value
with et changes in falr vahae recogrised n the statement of pralit or kass.

This category includes derivative instruments and Isted equity Imvestments whch the Crowp and the Company had
il birevnceldy el ted Lo dlasily ot Nar valu ieough OC), Divicksnits gn eguity Bisestinents s o Dsogiised &
wiher intame in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been estabished,

A darivatee embadood inoa Fybad contract, wath a financial Rabity or non-Tenancial host i separated From the hos
and accounted for as a separate dernvative if: the economic charactenstics and risks are not dosely refated to the
hast: @ separate instrument with the same teims. as the embedded dervataee would mest the definitian of a
damrvaltives and the hytid contract |5 mon measared a1 fair value ihmugh profit o ess. Emisbided derivatives ame
measired at fair vale with changes in fair value recognisad in profit or lbss. Reassessment only oonires i theee &
@ther a charge in the terms of the montract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would othemrdse be
raquired oF 4 reclassification of a Tinantiad asetl out of the lair value through prafit o lods category.

A cerfvative embedded within & hybrid contract containing a finenclal asset hast is not accounted for separatedy.
Th Finasncial aset hast togather with the embedded daimative & required 1o bo clssilied in it emticety o% o financia
assot at fadr value through profit or loss

{ili} Derecognition
A fmancial asset (of, where applicatile, a part af 3 finamcial asset or part of 2 group of simdar financial assets) is pimary
dofecognised (Le. remaved from the statemonts ol financlal pesitian} whens
- The rights to recesve cash Flows tram the asset have expired,; o

The Group and the Company have transfiermed its fghts 10 recove cash fows from the asset of hai assumed an
obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without material defay to a third party under a ‘pass-throwgh’
amangement; and sither (2] the Group and the Comgany have trarsfered substantislly all the ks and rewards of
the asset, ar (b} the Group and the Compary have naither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewands of the assat, but hes transfemed control of the assat
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

[r} Financial assets {cont'd.)
(iii} Derecognition (cont'd.)

‘when the Group and the Company huve transferred (ts dghts 1o recebee cash flowes from an asset or has emared info a
pass-through amangement. it evahsatas I, and to what extent, i has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has mdier ransiermed nol retaned substantaly all of e risis and risards of the asset, nof ranstemed conol of the
assel. the Group and he Company contimess o recognise the trarmfemed asset 1o the extent of s coninwng imslhement.
In that case, the Loup and the Company alsg recognises an associated liabdity. The transferned asset and the assacisted
fabdty ani maasured on & Dasis that roflects thie ights and obganens that thi Group-and th Com{kany has imcaned.

Continuing Invoksement that takes the {form of a guarantes aver the transfermed asset B maasured at the lower of the
ariginal camying amount of the assel and 1he masimum amount of consderation 1hat the Group and the Company could
be required o repay,

[s} Impalrment of financial assets

Thie Canup and the Company recogrese an allwance for expected rreckt bsses [ECLST) for 38 debit instruments nof held ar
Fair valua thiough profit o lass, ECLS are basod o tha diffenancs Batwesn the contractual cash flows dua in accordancs with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group and the Company expect to receive, discountad at an approsmation of the
original affoctve interest tate. Tha expected cash fhows will inchice cash Tiows from th s of colateral hold o othes cradit
anhancpmants that are integral 1o the contraciual terms,

ECLs are rocognised in Twa stages. For oedit coposures for whech thore has nat been a signilicant increase in credit dsk since
Intlal recognition, ETLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are pessible within the next 12-months
("a 12-month ECL"). For those credit exposures. for whith there has been a signficant increate in credit risk since initiad
recogretian, a hoss allowance is required for oedit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposune, imespecthe of the
timing of the dofaut (% lifotima ECL™)

Ear trade recelvables pnd conract assats, the Group and the Company applies a simplified approach in calzudating ECLs.
Thedefore, the Group and the Company does nat track changas in credit rak, but instead recognises 3 loss allowance based
on ifatime ECLs 3t each reporting date. The Group and the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on s
nistoncal credt loss expenente. adjusted for forward-loaking factors specific 1o the debtors and the economic emeEanment.

The Group and the Company considers a financial assat in dafawlt when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group and the Campany may also conslder a linancial asset ta be In default when intemal o extarnal
information indicates that the Group and the Comparny is unlikely 10 recelve the cutstanding contractual amounts in full befoce
taking infto account any credit enhancements held by the Group and the Compamy. A financlal asset b written off when there
& o reasoialle ecpedLation ol mecovising e contiadiuas Casds Fows.

Further disthosures redating 1o impaiiment of financial assets are also provided In the folimaing notes;

Nate
Trade and other receivables. 20
Financial risk managgament 26
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{t} Comtract costs assets

The Groap capitalises sales commisshons s costs to obtain a confract with a customer when thiey are inoremental and axpected
o be recovensd over mare than a year, The Group cpects 1o recover these costs in the futune thiough tebecommunication
semvices revenug aarmed from tha customar, Tha Group also capitalises the axpendibure on avsats such as water mans/sewans.
o new connactions relating to contracts as they ane inourred to fulldl the contract and are expected to be recaived over mare
thin ane yoar.

Sales commissions are amartised on a straight -line basis cver the term of the specific contract to which the cost refates to
Amortration of cantract costs are induded a5 par of drect codt within "Cost of Sakes” in the come Statements. Whils, the
eapendituie on aisets ame treatird &% cost of sales when the contract s complite,

AN impairment s is recognised to profit or oss 10 the exent that the carmyng amount of The contract cost #5sets recognised
exgeads the remaning smount of consideration that the Group expects to recehe for the specific contract that the cost relates
o less additional costs requred fo compiete the specific contract

{u) Contract assets and labilities

Contract assad is Ui gl 1o consideration in sochaogie Tor qoocks @l seavices thal e Gioup has translermed o o cusiome.
If the Group transfers goods or senvices 10 a customer before the crstamer pays consideration or before payment is due, &
coatract asset ts recogrised for the eamed consideration that & conditional, Cantract assets are subject to Impalrment
aasessment based o thit ECL modal,

Contract liabaity i5 the unsatistied obligaton oy the Growp to ranster goods of servides to @ customes far which the Group
fns rciived Eansideration (or & Amaunt of conskeeration i dus) Iom 1he tesiamor, I & cistamer pays corsdeation batane
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract Babiity is reoognised when the payment is made or the
paymant is due (whichever i earlier). Gontract kabllities are recognised as revenus when the Croup performs under the contract.

(v} Dervatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Derdvatives oo initially racognied @ Fair valug on the date a dervatve cottract i entered info and e submeguently e-measined

at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whather the dervative &5 designated as a

hieclging instrument. and if so, the ratune of the Mem being hedged. The Group designates cenain dernatives as eithaen

[} Hedges of the faif vaue of recognised assats o labilities or a firm comenitment (Tair valee hedgel; or

M Hedges of a panicuar rsk associated with @ recognised asset or [izbility or a lughly probabde forecast tansaction (cash
Flow hedigel: or

[W] Hedges of @ net imvestment in @ forelgn operaton.

Tha Group documents at the inteption of the Irankaction the miatiamhip betwean hadgng imuments anid hedged Rems,

as well as its risk management obfectives and strategy for undertadng varous hedging transactions. The Group also documents:

{25 assossmant, beth at hodge nceptien ard on an ongoing ba, of whothor th dedvatives that G used in hidging tFansae lions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash Hows of hedged Rers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

(%) Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities (cont'd.)

The fair values of variows derivative instuments wsed for hedging puposes are dscdosed in Note 21 Movements on the hadging
FESETVE N other comprehensive Income are showm in Nate 28, The full fair value of 3 hedgng dervative is cssified as a ron-
curient asset of llabadly when tha remaining hedged lem i mane than 1 manths, dnd as a cumrant asset of liability when the
remaining matunty of the hedged item s 'ess than 12 months. Trading dervatives are classified as a current esset o bability,

(i} Fair value hedge

Changess s e Lair value of dermvalives that are desgnated and qualily o5 FEr walue hisdges are racarded in the profit or
IS, tngether with any changes in the far value of the heoged asset or Rability that ane artributaie to the hadged sk,
Thie Craup anty applies fair value hidge accounting far hedping fixed interest ik an homaisings. This gain ar kess relarting
1o the affac tive portion of interest rate swaps hedging Fixed rate borrowings is recognised in profit or loss within finance
costs’. The gain or loss relating 1o the neffective portion is recognisad in profit or loss within ‘other gains/[iosses) - net’.
Changes in the Tair value of th edge fioed rmte borrowings antributable 1o intenst rato risk we recognised in pealit or
loss within “firance costs.

i thi: hedge na longer mests the erbtea for hedge acceunting, the adustment to the camying amount al & hedged Hem
for which tha elfective interest method is used B amonised to profit or loss over the period to maturty,

(li) Cash flaw hedge

The Fair walue charges on the effective partion of the defvatives. that are desigrated and qualily as cash flow hedgos
&8 recogrised in other comprehensve ncome. The gain or koss relating to the maffective partion is recagnised immediately
in prefit or loss

Amaints accumuilated in equity are reckissified fo profit o loss in the financial periods when the hedged item alfects
profit or loss (for examgle, when the forecast sale that ks hedged Takes place) When the Terecast ransaction that |s
hedged results in the recogaition of a non-Tnanclal asseq [Tor cxamgle. inventony of Tied assuets), the gairs and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
The ceferred amounts are ultimately recognésed in cost of goods sold in the case of Inventary of In depreciation in the
case al groperty, plant and equpiant.

when a hedging instrumint explres of s sold, or when a hedge no longer mesds the criteria for hedge accourting, any
cuirailativ Qain of loxs exsting in couty ot that time femair inoequity and is regognised wien thie fonecast ramssction

 witimatedy recogrised m the profit o lows. Wen o Forecast tansaction s no longer eapected to ooour, the camalative
i or foss that was (eported inegquity |s immedistely tansfemed o pofil o loss
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{v) Derlvatives financlal instruments and hedging activities (cont'd.)
(i)} Hedges of net investment in fereign aperations

Ther Camup apohes hidge accounting by designating a non-cermative financal lability as a hedge of a net imestment in
the foreign aperation, with the cormeponding forsign cummency difforences arising on the translation being roclssitied
to the Group's forelgn currency transkstion reserve. To the extent that the hedge s ineffective, such differences are
recogresad n the Income Statements, wWhan the hedged net nvestment k disposed of, the relevant amount in the foresgn
currondy iranslation raseree & transformed to the Income Statemonts retum as part of the gain o loss on disposal

Thee Group wses @ loan &6 a hedge of it5 exposure 10 foreign exchange risk on s investments in foreign subsidiaries

{w)] Inventories
Irventores are stated at the bower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost is determinad on the weighted average or first in. first out basis and incudes the coat of purdhase and ather costs incumed
In bringing the inventaries to thelr present kocation and condition

Thae coit of Finkshid goods and wonk-in-progress. comsists of raw materals, direct labour, other drect charges and an apgrogiate
prapartion of production overheads {based an normal operating capacity)

Fued and diesel oil held for generation of electricity are nat written down below cost If the alectricity gererated is expected
o obtain 3 gross margin at oF above cost. Last for this purpose inciudes the applicable costs required to enable the fuel and
desel ol to be wsed for the gengration ol slecincity.

Imvertonies for ol trading are acquired with the punposs of =eling in the near fuhiee and genaerating @ profit from T tuations
in perice, Thise arn a1 Laif vakee koot eosts 1o sell, with changes in fair valuo less costs 1o sell recognised in tho come Statemants
in the periot of change.

The cost of dovetoped properties Comprses costs assonated with e acquisiton of land, drect costs and appropriate prapartians
of common costs.

Ket realisabie yalue IS thee estimated seliing price in the ordnary colrse of busness, less the costs of campletion and spplicable
variable seliing expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

[x] Property development costs

Srpperty develogiment costs compse all costs that am directly atnbitabhe 10 development actistes o that an be alocted
an a reasonabio Dasis 10 Such actvibes. Progerty divelepment (osts e necognised when ingurmed.

‘when the financal outcome of the development arttsany fan be reliably estimated and the safe of the cevelopment unit s
allecisd, property development renue and axpenses e recognised in prodit o loss by refermnca 1o the stage of completian
of development activities at the reporting date in accordance with MPRS 15; Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The
stage of completion is detemminid by the progonion mat property development costs incured for work perdormed o date 1o
the octimated total proporny dovelopmant cotts.

‘Whaesa tha financial outzoine of a devplopment activity cannat be relably estimated, property dovelopment fevenue k& recogniced
anly 1o the extent of property davelopmant costs incourred that & prebable will be recoverable, and proporly dovelopment
costs on properties sold are recognised as an expense in the pefod In which thay are incumad.

hny eupacted loss an a devalopment praject. induding costs to be inturred over tha defects liahbility period & recognised as
an expensa immediaiely

Property devolopmant cosls nat recoghised o6 an cxperse are recognised o an assol, wihich B measurod at the lower of gost
and net realisable valus,

‘where ievenue recagnised in the profit o lods esteed biings to purchasers, the balance is shown as conlract assets (within
current assetsh Whene billings to purchasers exceed revenus recognised In the profit or loss, the balance is shown as contract
liahilities (within current latalthes)

{¥) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents constst of cash and bank balances, bank avesdrafis, deposits held at call with fnancial institutions
anef highly liguid Fnvestments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the Statements of Cash
Flows, cash and cash equivalionts aie prosonted net of bank averdralts

[z} Share capltal

Dugfenary shin s are eguity instrumients and eoondisd ot Be proceeds eceived, nit ol diectly antrilutabbe noemental taisaction
Costs

Dividendls an ordnary shanes are accounted for in shameholders” equily a5 an appeopristion o melad pamings and atorued
At bty in the Ginanclal yest in wihich the abdgation to pay is estaldished,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{aa) Treasury shares

whane the Company purthases Rs own shares, the consideration paid, inchading any directly attributable incremental costs
nat of tax, is deducted fram equity attrbutable 1o the owrers of the Compary o troasury shames until the shares ane
cancelled, reissuad

Should swch shares bo cancolled, the costs of the troasury shanes am applicd in the mdwction of the profits. othonwise
available for distribution as dividends, Showld such shares are subsequently retysued, any comsideratian received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related tax effects, s Included In eguity attribuatable to the owners
af the Company,

Whane the reasury shases are subsequently distributad as dividenids 1o tharehalsers, the costs of the reatury shares on
the ariginal purchase ane applied in the reduction of the funds atherwise aailable for detrbutian o daidends,

{abk) Imedeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks (“ICULS™)

Thie ICULS are regarded @ compound instiuments, comststing of 3 lability componeant and an equity component. At the date
of issue, the fair waue of the lability component ks estimatid tsing the presafing manket infenest e fofa smilar irstrumeant.
The difference between the proteeds of issue of the ICULS and the fair value assigned to the Ratility comaonent, represamting
fhe camversion afEtan 5 Incuded in euiity, The lialility companent i subsequently stated af amonised (ost using the affective
nterest rare mithad untd axtinguishisd on cormversion of canoellation, whilst the value of th Bquy Campoenent is not adjusted
in subsequent penods. Attributable transaction costs are apportioned and deducted deectly from the babdlity and equity
components based on thelr camying amaunts at the date of isswe.

Under the effective interesi rate mathod, the interest expense on the liability comonnant is calculated by applying the
proasilng mankot intenest re for 2 similad non-carvertible irstrument an the daie of isue The ditferonce batwesn this
amaunt and the interest pald ks added ta the camying amaunt of the KULS.

The vahue of thee convershon asgiion is not adjusted n subequent periods, except in times of ICULS comaersion into ordinary
shares. Upan comversion of tha instrument into ondinary shares, tha smawnt crodited to shasa copital is thi aggregata of thi
amaurts tlassidfied within lability and couity 3t the time of conversion, No gain o loss §s recognised in profit or loss.

{ac) Deferred income

The deferred income s in relition 1o assets transfered from orstomens in respect of services which are yet ta be provided,
Such amounts are recorded as iabilities in the Statements of Finandal Position and are amortfsad to the income Statements

aver thie sxped ted useful economic ives of the related asse1s

{ad) Bonds and borrowings

Boids and borrowings are inltlally recognised based on the proceeds recelved, net of transaction costs inourred. Subsequently,
Dcids arnd ooty anis stalid il drnod Used Cost usiing D ol Fed e yiehd method; ey SToreioe Dityanen (ocesds (nis
0f transan o oosts] el (e redemprion vale: b ecogbsed n e goolin or less over this gesiod of The Boends and Bormeedngs.

Ingmiest relating 1o a tnancial instrument classifed 85 a liabslity s reported sathin Inance cost in the Indome Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ad) Bonds and berrawings (cont'd.)

Bonds and bomawings e dassified as current Habdites urkess the Croup and the Company have an urcorditional dght 1o
geter settioment of the labity for at feast 1€ monins atter tha repoeting dite.

Besroweng cast inourred 10 fnance the construction of property. plant and equipment that meets the definmion of guatiying
ansed are capitalised as part of the cost af the pasets during the peried of time that s equred 1o get the asset ready far
its Etended ose,

[am) Leases
{i] Aeenunting as leces

| Baes, wte rertgnised A% rght-al-ume (ROLR assets and o marresponding labiling a1 the date an which the leased et
s awallzble for use by the Group and the Company (Le. tha commencement date),

Contracts may contain both leate and non-kease components. The Group and the Company dllocates the cansidaratian
i the contract to the lease and nod-lease companents based on their refative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
o prepertes far which 1h Craup and the Cempary & a lessoe, it sloctad the peactic M oxpodiant pravided in MFES
16 not 1o separate waser and non:lease components. Bath components are accounted Tor a5 a single lease comparent
and payments for both companents ane Included in the measurement of lease liabdty.

n)  Lomse oo

In determining the lease term, the Group and the Company considers all facts and cicumstances that ceate an
eoonomic incentiva to exercise an extension option. or Not to exerclse a terminatson option. Extersion options (or
periods aftes termination oplions) ane anly included in e lease tem 0 the lease 16 reasenalily cortain 16 be
extended [ar not to be termingted)

The Croup and the Company reasiess the leade 1emm upon the occufreénce af a significant event ar changs In
circumatances 1hat B within thee control of Yhe Croup and the Company and affects whother the Group and the
Comparry are reasonably cerain to exercise an aption not previowsly included in the determination of leasa term,
ar nit o Ensreiae an aption previoushy incuded in e determnation of lease 1Emm. A fseion in Base term results
mremeasurement af the lease llabBtes. See accounting policy 2(ae)ijd)) on reassessmant of lease liabdtas

B} ROU assels

ROU assets are initially measured At ¢osl comprising the foloweng:

«  The amount of the inltial measurement of kease llabiliny;

= Afy beade payments made &t or belore the commencement date [ any lease Intentive redened:
«  Any initial dvect costs and

»  Depommisicning of restarstion ool

137

404/620



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

¥TL CORPORATION BERHAD

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 Jung 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{ae) Leases [cont'd.)
(I} Accaunting as lessea [cont'd.)
b} ROU ossers frontid )
RiOU assets that are not investment properties are subsequently measwed at cost. less accumidated depraclation
and impairmnent loks [if any). The ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the sset’s usefid life
and the lease term on a stralght-line basis. If the Group and the Company are reasonably certain to exercise a

purehase aption, the ROU assets are deprociated over the underging aswot's usedul life. n sddiion, the ROU assets
ww adjusted for cortain measwremant of the kase iabilives,

Thir Group and the Company presents ROU assets sithin which the cormespording underlying asiets would be
preseoded if they were owned, those gssets am preseaied in thie Statéments of Finantkal Pasition s property,
plant and equipment. ROU assets are presented as a seperate line item in the Statements of Financlal Position
expept for sbave.

¢} Lleose lobites

Lease Habilities are initially measured at he present valus of the payments that are not paid at that date,

Thiee s praguiiesils gl e Tollowding:

+  Frued paymants (including in-substarce fixed payments), less any leate incentive receivable;

= Mailabie bease payments that are based o an indes o & rate, initlaly meased wsiing the des of (ate a1 the
commercement dats

= The sxendse price of a purchase and extension option |f the Group and the Company are reasonably certasn
to exgrcies that aptons: and

= Payments of penatiies for t2mminating the keasa, If the lease term refiects the Group and the Company axercising
That oplan,

Lease payments are dsoounted usang the intersst rate implot in the lease I that rate cannot be readity determined,
wihic b is generally the case Tor loassd in the Groop and the Company, the lesses’s Incremoental borrosing is used.
Thi s the rate that the individual lesses would hive 10 oy B0 borrow thie funds necessany 10 olitain an assat of
simiar vadue 1o the BOU im @ similar economic emdronment with similar temm, security and conditions,

Lease payments are alocated between prircipal and finange cost. The finance cost s charged to income Statements
over the lease period 50 a5 to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Hability
for cach period.

Vaniable lpase payment that depend on sales are recogrised in the statement of comprehensive intome in the
peried i which the condtion that trlggers thode payments scous.

The Group and thie Company presents lease kabilities as a separate bne item In the statemant of financal position,
Interesl expirre on e lease lio ey is poesented witlan e Tinence ookt in e profin ar hoss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ae] Leases jcont'd.)
{iy Accounting as lesses (cont'd.)
o} Reassessment af lease fabdties

The Group ard the Company are also expesad to patential iuture inmreases in vanable lease payments that depend
on an index or fate, which are ot included in the lease kabiity untl they ek effect. When adjustments to lesse
payments based on an index o rate take effect, the lease lablity s remeawred and adusted against the ROU assets.

Ledse Balilities 15 afs0 remadgsured i hera is o dhange i 1he Group™s and the Compamy's assessmant al whther
it wiil execise an extension option and there are mndifications in the scope or the comsideration of the lease that
wirs not part af the argnal tHm.

8)  Short-terrn leases and leases af kow volus asssts

Short-term laases ane lBases with a lease term of 1.2 months or less. Low-waue assets comprise IT equipmeant and
amall [tems of office fumiture. Payments associated with short-1emm leases of equipment and a8 eases of kow-
walus aszets arp recognised on a straight-line bates a5 an eapene in Intome Statemants.

{il) Aceounting by lessor

As @ bessor, the Group ard e Comparny determing at lease inoeption whether pach lease 5 & financoe lease of an
operating kease. To dassily each lzase, the Jroup and the Company make an overall assessment of whather the lease
rarsters substantialty all of the risks and rewards Incidental 1o the ownership of the underying asset 1o the lesses.
As part of this assessment, the Group and the Company consider certain indicators such as whather the lease is for the
major part of the economic ife of the aswet.

o) Finonco iooses

Thia Graup and tha Company clasafies n loase & a lnance leate If the leas translers substantialy &1 tho nsks
and newards incidental to ownership of an underlying assct to the lessoo,

Thi Croup dercoognises the underlying assct and recognises a receivabio 21.an amount cqual to the not irvestment
im a finance kease. Met imestment in a finance lease is measued @t an amomt equal to the sum of the present
value of lease payments from lessee and the unguarantesd residual valee of the underdying asset. Initial deect
coits et sbo incheded in the initlal measwement of the net investment. This net investments |8 subjiect to MFRS
G impairment (refer to Note 2(5) on impairment of financial assets), In addition, the Group meviess equlary the
estimated unguaranteed residual valus,

Lease income |s recognised ower the term of tha |ease using the net investmant method so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of retum. The Group revises the iease income allocation il thede is a reduction in the estimated
ungsr @y Tee) residual valoe,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{an) Leases [cont’d)
(i) Accaunting by lessor (cont'd.]
b Operoling ledses

Thee Group classifies a lease as an operating lease it the lease does not transter substantially ail the risks and
regards inCidental [o ownership of an undeslying 05561 10 The festes

Thie GITUP TECOGIHSES IBE3E PAyEts Ieceived under aperating lease a5 I8ase MCume o 3 straight-ine basis over
thee lease term,

Rental ingami on opetating leases i mecogriesed ower ihie term of the lease on @ stralght-Ene basis, Rental intome
Is shown net of rebates and dicounts. Rertal moome indudis base ment, pircentage nind and ather fent felated
Incorne from tenanis. Base rent |s recognised on a straight-line basks oves the kease tenm Percentage rent is
recognised based on sales reparted by tenants. When the Group provide incentives. or rebates 1o the enants. the
cost of incentives or rebates is capitalsed as defarred lease incentive and Is recognised over the lease term, on a
strakghit-line basis, a5 a reduction of rental income. Inital direct cost incumed by the Ceoup in negotiating ard
amanging an opetating lease & recognised as an asset {deferred ledse intontive) and amontised over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

¢} Sublegse clessificabion
Lintill the financial year ended 30 june 2019, when the (roup was an ntermediate lessor the subleases weare
classifiad s finance or operating leasas by reference to the underying assets,

From 1 July 2009, when tha Graup i an intermediate lesgar, [t avtessos the lease classification of a sublpaso with
reference to tha ROU asset arising from the head lease, not with refenoe 1o the uniderlying asset. Il a hoad oase
Is short-term lease to which the Croup and the Company applies the exempthon described above, then it dlassifies
the sublease as an operating lsase.

] Seporating lense and non-iease companenis

IF 1 AFTANGSMEnT Coatans oS And non-lease ompones, thie Group and the Compary allacates the consaderation
In the cantract 1o the lgase and non-lease components based on the stand-alane selling prices in acoordance with
the principles In MFRS 15,

{af)} Grants and contributions

Grans it contribations dre benelits receved in respet of specfic qualilying expemditoe, amd svestment bx cedis and
tax banefits in respect of qualfying property, plant and equigment. These ae released to the profit or loss over the expected
economic usefid Ives of the related assets.

{ag) Provisions

The Gioup recogrises pravisions when iT has & present leqa or canstiuctive sbilgation arisng a5 & resull af & past event,
and it & probable that an outflow ef econamic benedits will b required (o sette the obligation and a reliatle estimate can
be made. The recording of prowiskons requires the application of judgements about the ultimate resoknion af these obligations.
A i result, prowisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the Group's cument best estimate,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONT'D.)

[ah) Financial Habilithes
(i} Initiad recognition and measurement
Financlal llabdities ae classified, a1 niial tecognition, as financial Aatilitles at fai value throwgh olit or loss o at
amortisid cost, a5 agpiopriate,

The Gioup’s antd e Coinpay's Tinancial lizbiites indude trade and other payatiles, smoums due o related parties,
ol el homeowings and derivitive financial instrumenis.

{il} Subsequent measurement
The measureiment of Ninancisl Rabitees depends on el classification, as descriled o

o) Finonciod lobiltes af foir wive tvowgh profit o loss

Fimancial lialilities at Tak value through profit of loss incude financial |iabdites bhelo for trading ard financial lsbilities
designated upon initlal recognition as at fair vasue through pofil o loss.

Financial Babilities ave classified as held Tor trading if ey are incured Tor the purpose of repurchasing in the near
ik This catisgory also isdludes dervalivie financia imsbuments enteved inlo by (e Company Lhat aie i
desigated] drs Dardging instramesnts & heige melatiombips as Sefined by MERS 9, Separated embedded derivatives
are also classilied as held for trading unless they are designated &= effective hedging instiuments.

Galris of losses on labilities beld for trading are recognised In the arofit or loss.

Finangial labilives gesignated upon initial recognition at fair value theowgh pralit o less ane designanid a1 e
initlal date af recognition, and anky If the critena in MFRS 9 ama satisfisd The Group and the Company hive nat
desskgnated any financial liabllity as at fair value through profit of loss

by Fnonciol Dobilthes ar amaviised cosr

This is the cateqory matt relevant 10 the Grouo and the Company. After initial recognitian, all finandial llabnes
are subsequently measured at amoriised cost wsing the EIR method. Gains and losses ane recognised in prefit ar
lass whan thie llabdivies ane denecogrited o well & through tha EIR Amarisation process.

Amariised cost is caltuiated by taking indo account any discount of premiuarm on acquisitlon and fees or cosis that
are an megead part af o ER. The EIR amortsation is intuded & Tinance oosts Inome of profic or Kss

{ill) Derecogniticn

A financial lability = deracognised when the oblgation under the llability 5 dschangad of cancelisd or aaplres. When
an exrsting fmancial labiky 5 replaced by another fram the same eader on substantially diff erent 1erms, of the Tems
of an existing Mability sfe substantially modfed, such an exchange of modification IS treated s the darecognition af
thie owiginal Babiliy and The recognition of 3 nevw labilicy, Thi Gifference i 1he respeCTve Carmying amounts is recogrised
kv 1P prafin o loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ICONT'D.}

{al) Foreign currency
{l} Functional and presentation currency
tems inchuded In the timandal stalements of the Group are measured usng the oumency of the primary Economs

prvircnmont in wiach e entity opocates e Tuncliond owrency™) Th corsabdated fnancial STRemens Me prosented
In Hinggit Mataysia (AM], which s akso the Company's functional and presentation currency.

{ii} Faroign currency transactions

Foraign cuffenty ansactions are translated into the funchional curfancy wing The exchange rates. prevadng an the
dates, of the transactioms, Forelgn exchange gains aned losses resulting frsm the settiemant of such transactions and
from the translation a1 yaar-ond sxchange rates of monetary assets and Babidities donominated in foreign ourreneles
wte repaghsed in the prafit o loss,

{lil} Group companies

The results and fnancial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the curency of a hyperinflatanany

ecgnomy] that have a fTunctionsl currency different from the presentation cumancy are translated into presentation

currency &5 follows:

= asse1s and liabaiies for each stalement of Ninands posiion presented ae iranstated a1 thie diosing rate an e dane
of that staterment af financa position

= incomd and adponces for path Incoise sTatemens are ranslatod 31 Maerags exchangs rates: and

+  all resulting exchange differences are recognised a5 separate components of other comprehansive income,

On corsaldation, exthange differences amsing from the translation of the met ivestment i forsgn oRerations ane
tzken 1o shareholders' equety. When a Toneign operation i partaly cispased of or soid. eichange differences that ware
recored in equity are recognised in the profit orioss &s part of the gain or loss on deposal,

Goochwill and Tair walue aduistments amsing on the acquistion of 4 fadeign entity on or after 1 july 2011 ate treated as
assets and labitihes of the forelgn entity and transkated at the chosing rate. For acquisition of foreign entities completed
ke 1a 1 july 2011, goocdwill aned fair vaios adustments contined to be recarded at the s hanga @t an he respocthve
date of acquisitions. This is in accondance to 1he adoption of MARS 1.

{aj} Segment reporting
DOparating segments an reported in a mannes corssiant with 1he ivtermal reporting providaed 1o the chief operating dedision
maibsr whi 5 responsible for allocating resouces and assessing performance of the operating segments

{ak) Financlal guarantes

Finaelal guaranioe comirscts ang conbracts that roguire the Group and the Campany 1o make specified paymsents 1o ramburse
thie hoider for a kass it incus becawse a spedified debtor fails fo make payments when due, in accosdance with the terms of
a debt nstrument,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ak) Financial guarantee {cont'd.)

Financial guarantes cantracts ane recognised a5 a tinancial llabivty at the time the guarantes (s ssued. The liabikty (s initiatly
mirasured a1 fair value and subsequently msasured at thie highes of The amount detenmned in scordance with i expected
mredit loss model undar MFRS 9 Fnancia instruments’ and the amount mitially recognsed less cumuistive amount of ncome
recognised in accordance with the princples of MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. where appropriate.

The fair value of finandial guarantaes s determined a5 the present valie of the diffenence in net cash flows batween the
rontractual payments undar the debt instrument and the payments that would be reguired without the guarantee, o the
eitimatod amount that would bo payadlo to o thind pary for assuming the abigatiors.

Where financlal guarantoes in relation to loars oF payables of subsidiaries are prowvided by the Company Tor no compensation,
that Falr walues are accounted for as corributons and recognised o part of thie cost of irvestment |n sulmidiaties

[al} Contingent llabllities and contingent assets

The Growp and the Company do not recognise a contingent labiity bt disdose s existence in the financial stalemants,
exepl ina siness combinaticn

A contingent Eability ks 3 pessible obtiligation that anses (ram past ovents whase custence will be conlirmed by usertain
futute events beydond the control of the Greup and the Comgdny o a present shligation thal is not recogrised because it is
nat probable that an outflow of resounces will be reguined to settie the cbligation. When a change in the probability of an
eutiiew of Bronomic resources ooours and the autflow s probable. It will then be recognbsed as a peowision.

A pontingent asset s a possibla asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by uncertaln futue
evirrits birpard the contral af thir Graup and the Compary, The Group and 1he Campany do mot recognise contingent assets
bt disclosa their exstence where milows of economic benefits are probable. but not virtually certain, When inflow of
ECONOMIC resomes |5 virtually certain, the asset is recognised,

In thae acquisiticn af subsidiaries by the Croug under a business combination, the contingent liabilites ssiumaed are measured
irethally at thew far value at the acquisition date, inespecive of the extent of any non-controling inberests

The Group recogniyes Seporately the contingeni Habilities of the acguirees as part of allocating ihe cosl of & business
combination where the Fair vabues can be measured refizbily. Where the fair values cannot be measured refiably, the resutting
et will De reflected in thi gocdwdll arising from 1he acouisitions.

[am} Offsetting financial instruments

Financlal assets and Sabilities are offset and the nat amount presented in the Statements of Financal Position when there
Is & legaly enforceable night 1o offset the recognésed amourts and there i an inentian 12 seTil on @ net basls, or reaise
tha asset and setila tha Rability simultaneowsly. The legaly enforceable ight must nat be contingant on future events and
miust be enforceabls in the nommal course of business and n the event of default. insclvency or baniruptoy.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

ESTEMATHS Andl juidgemients are continusly ovaluated and are hased on historical expenends and ather Factors, ncluding ppectations
nf NAvre events that ame heoysd to b masonatile e the Hirurmstanies.

Thie Geoup ard the Company make estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by
difinitien, rarely equal the related actual results. The estenatos and sccamptions that Faee o sgnificant ik of eausing o matoeial
adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and llabd thes within the maxt financial year are discussed belows

{a) Estimated assessmaont of goodwill

Tha Group 1ests goodwill Tor impairment anmually, in accordanca with its acoounting policy, Tha recoverable amounts of cash
penarating units have been detamined based on either value-n-use or far value less costs 1o sell cakulations Thase cakulations
require the wse of estimates 35 et out ;m Kate 19 to the financal statements,

Management has factoned in the potential impact with respect to the Cowd-19 outbreak within the impainment sssessments
based an the best estimate on the trajectory of recovery from the Covd-19 outbreak Significant judgement s invohed as
thera may be potontial untertainties on the hill extort of impact as & result of Covid-19.

{b) Capitalisation policy of property, plant and equipment on Infrastructure assets

Thie irfrastnocture asse1s of the wabes and Lewerage Legmen] comprised cost inturred to meet the development and regulatary
requiriment af thie busnews and this includies employes and ovorbead costs that are dimectly attributable o the censtruction
of the asset,

Estimates and judgements ane imvobved in detesrmining whather cost incurred, specifically employee and overbead costs, meet
the relevant critera for capitaksation of property, plant and eguipment,

e} Estimated impalrment of property, plamt and equipment

[etermining whiothes the property, plant and equipment are impaired reguires an estimation of value in use of the property,
plant and equpment. The vaiue in wse calculation requires the management to estimate the future cash fhows and an appropriate
dacount rabe in order to calculate the present value of future cash flows. The management has eviluated such estimates and
Is confident that no allowance Tor impainment ks necessany

Thut Groug matagisment folows its accountiog policy set oul in Note 20k) in deletminang whion eopeity, plant and equipmisil
e conmicered npaired,

I Nt i recognised whish fvents and ciriumstances indicate that these Fsaets may b impatred and th carrying amount
of these assets excends the recoverabie amounts, In determining the recovsrahle smopnt of these aswats, certain estlimares
regarding the cash fiows of these assets are mada,

(d) Assassmaent on allowance for impairmant of trade receivables of water and seworage

The axpected credit loss on outstanding recesvahles i= a key estimate undar MFRS 9 The Croup estimate of recoverabiliny by
grouping cusiomers into sinilar economic profiles and apphying 3 percentage loss rate based on forward looking judgements
o thie fulung Dollection rates That ane libely 1o be & hiewed I partcusr for the Tinsncial year ended 30 ure 2020, 18IS has
incheded addtiens considerations of the possible impsct of the Cowid-149 pandemic on the expadlad collaction ratas ol
pirtstanding receivahles.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND |UDGEMENTS (CONT'D.)

(&) Estimated useTul lives of property. plant and equipment ["PPE")

The Group revews the usetu ees af s PPE at aach reportng date and any adustments ane made on a prospective bass as
changes in dCcounling estmates. The wietul lives of the Telecommuni ations equipment ane astessed penodically based an
the canditions of the equipment, market conditions and ather requlatdry requirements. Dunng the tinancial year, the Group
nas revigd the operational conditions of the aquipment in telerommunications business segmeant and tevised the estmated
iyl fhwes of certain telacommunications equepmant From 725 yaars to 1030 yaars with affect from 1 July 2009 to banar
raflect the econom e usaful lives,

(7)) Fair value estimates for investment proportios

This Growp Farries imastmant prepenties a1 Lair valua, which requifes extensive ke of stcounting estimates and jidgamonts.
while significant components of fair value measurament were determined wsing verilizble objective avidence, the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Croup uses diffesent valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these
INESTMET properties would affect ncome s1atoment.

[g) Assessment of lower of cost and net realisable value
Thie Group recognised ionteses at v of cost and net roalisabie valuo.
Significant judgement is required In determining the net realisable value which is the estimated sellng price in ondinary course
of business less they pstimated cost to sale.

(h)} Assumptions used in determining the post-employment benefit obligations

The present value of the post-emplayment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial badds usang a number of assumptions. The asumptions used in determinmng the net costfingome oo dsclosed in Note
35 1o the Financlal stements, Any changas in these assumptions will impact the carmying ameunt of pension obligatiens.

[i} Control ever Starhill Global Real Investment Trust [“SGREIT™)

The Group has approcmately I6.74% [201% 36.46%) gross ownership inerest of units (n ("SCREM as a1 30 une 2020,
("SGREM™) is managad by YTL Starkill Glabal RET Managemsant Ltd [YTLSCMT), & wholly-cwned subsifiary 'of the Group, Since
Apnl 2020, the Group has proviced an undertaking to the tnestes of ["SCREITT) to grant the other unitholders the rght fo
endorn o re-endore the sppaintment of directoss of YTLSGM at the mnnual genersl mestings af [SSGREFTT). The Group has
determined that it does not have control over ("SCREMT) but contimees to hawve significant infheence over the imestment,

(i} Construction contracts

Thix Grougy has significant oeigoing Constrectiaon coniracts. For these constructian contracts, revinug i retognised over teme
oy reference to the Group's progress towards completing the constructian. The measure of progress i determined based on
the pregortian of contract costs inourmed to date 1o the estimated tatal contract costs (Tinput method®).

Management has to estimate the total contract costs to complete, which are used in the input method to determing the
Canup's tecogition of coistruction revere. Wisen itis probatie that the 1ot coniract (osts will excesd 1he Ll comsti o
Piyenue, i pravision lor anirows contracts i recognised immediately.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'DL)

{il Construction centracts {cont'd.)

Significant judgament is used to estimate these total centradt costs to complete. In making these pstimates, management has
rodied on the experte of th inermal saports 10 dptenmine e progress of th construction and alwa on past expenancs of
complated projects.

(k) Rewenus recognition from accrued income

The unbited Income accmual from motoned water servites af the water and sowerage segmont reguires an estimation of the
amexnt of untbilled charges at the period end. This is caloulated using system genaratod information based on provicws customer
volurmie usage,

{1 Leases

The measurement of the “right-of-use” assets and lease lahility for beases where the Group is a lesses requives the wse of
significant judgements and assumptions, such &5 lease 12rm and iINcremental barrowing rate

In determining the lease temm, the Growp and the Company consder all facts and crcumstances that oreate an economic
[P i L e sl ali el Ol o 0oL 0 eoomLRE A efmis e Opleein Extirdion ok (o penods alte teiinmatio
ophians] e onby acluded oy B hae 1erm i the lnase s reasonably certsin o be extended (or mat ferminatixd),

Thie lease TR 15 meassessed [T an option 5 exendsed (of not exendsed) or the Group and the Company become obigated 1o
pxarcis (nof 1o eense) ik The assedsment of reasonabla certainty s onby revised if a significant event or a significant change
In circumstances acourred, which atfect this assessmant. and that s within the conftrol of the lessee.

In determaning the infremental hotmwing rate, the Groeip and the Company fird determine the ciowest Bovmwing rate bafam
using significant judgament to detarmine the adpstments required to reflect the term, seousity. vale or ecomomic sméranment
of the respactive laases.

4. REVENUE
Group Campany
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'ODO
Revenue compnse the folowsng: |
Hewvenue from contracts with customens 18,504,298 1A154.404 260 241
REvenue from other Sources 674,151 9,149 415,071 SiE,325
Total revenue 19,178,449 18047528 415331 S48,616
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4, REVENUE ICONT'D.I
{a) Disaggregation of revenus from contracts with customers and other souroes:
Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
RMOOO RAM 000 RMOOO RMOO0
Utilities
Sade af electicity 5837626 E.706,782 -
Saks af Chaan water, eatment and disposal of
Wit winer 3,479,290 3432281 - .
Sale al sléah 171,900 Z11,048 - -
Broadband and telecommunkations revenus 396,858 B63.2659 - -
Others Ing.427 154,032 - .
10,275,101 11,367,232 -
Cemant manulacturing & trading _
Sata af coment and related products 4,077,724 2655217 - -
Others 14.479 19,035 - -
4,092,203 674,252 -
Construction
Consruction contracts revense Z,316.005 1219453 =
Hotel operations
Hated room and food and baverages 1.113,986 1196333 -
Others 18,529 27282 -
1.132.515 LEE5625 - -
Property
Property develapment and sales of complated
proparties 478,046 435872 -
Sabiy ol larsd bk ot prapany divelopmint = 9050 = .
Others 17.213 19,546 - -
495,259 A0, A0 -
Intormation technology & e-commerce
related business
Misdia and advertising services 3.500 3660 -
Others. 41 153 -
3541 1822 -
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4. REVEMUE (CONT'D.)

{a} Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources: (cont'd.)

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2018
RM'OO0 RM'00D RM'000 REMOO0
Management services & others
Doperaticn and maintenarce services 139,023 144,529 -
Faod and béverages cperations 14,659 26,923 - -
Cthers 35,992 27,029 260 2491
189,674 15EA81 260 2491
18,504,298 17153379 260 291
Revenue fram ather sources
Rental income AHL47T1 B39.938 - -
IFtesast income 183,887 224804 43,200 BLOSE
Dovidend intome 8,793 23407 37L871 487,260
674,151 B9, 145 415.071 58,325
Total revenue 19,178,449 18,047,528 415,331 548,616
{b) Timing af revenue recognition for revenue from contracts with customers:
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'OO0 RM'0O0O RM'OO00 RM'00O
- at a point In time 7.019,342 8,661,719 - -
= gvar time 10,684,956 B.A7LEGD 260 291
18,504,298 17153.379 260 241
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COST OF SALES
Includesd in COST OF Salis are the following:
Group
2020 20139
RM'O00 RMO00
ot ol nventorics 3,011,036 2,043,851
Construction Conracts cogsts 2061477 1,047 401
Cost of fusal, raw materials and consumatda 5.996,783 G.B43.1859
Pioparty development costs 7322 17423
FINAMCE COSTS
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
MNate RM000 RMODD RM000 RE"OD0D
interest eapense
- Bands B74.796 B96,99] 116,028 115070
= BaMmpaings 945,231 BSZ63T 55,563 60,880
= Laasa liabilitias 47.286 - 285 -
- PoSt-empiayment benafin obligatong 15,894 16682 -
1.884,207 1,768,310 171.886 175,950
L Aot s Laga alised in
- Property desselopment Costs 23 (4,906 [12.463) = e
- Property, plant and sgupment 1 (10,554) (B3 - -
Interest expense of financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost 1.B60.747 L4749 171.686 175.950
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Group Company
2020 2019 200 2019
Note RM'OO00 RM'OOO RM'OO00 RMOOO
Profit before tax is stated atter

charging {other than those disclosed

in Note 5 & & to the Financlal

Statements):

Amonisation of contract (osts 24 7.842 11563 - =
Amorisation of intangible assets 19 59,606 10,806 - -
Aaddors remunesatian

= SLAnaary audit

- qurrent financid year 10,029 10,098 2d4 244
- undar provision in prior financial year az 54 - 4

= gihery 1.500 ks 16 14
B debts wemen off

- igCetdbiey 10,900 5,552 = -
Cash flow hedges, reclassifiad from hedgng

reseng 1o (ot of sales 154,819 144, 316) - -
Dapraciation of propevty. plant and

eyuipment 11 1,554,423 LAS7.585 Bog BES
Depreciation of rght-of-use assers 12 193,895 - 4,535 -
[Dhresctors’ remunesation

- emolumants £7.993 73,308 6102 4 796

- e 182 23 BZZ a4

- barelits - - kind 1106 s87 - -
Hedge Ineffectiveness rmoognised In prafit

or joss 16,210 - -

Hining of pant and machenery < 15050 : -
I rment hrses on

= amount due from related parties e 100 34 - -

- Covelopmant expenditunms 14 - LoB0 - -

- goodwdl] 19 1,723 - - -

- receivaties - nat of reversal 36(E] 153,645 155134 - -

- i strment in associabos 1,135 - - -

Investrnent in joint yoniune 17 riaki] -

- property, plant and equipmant i 28,958 A,347 - -
Imestinent propertises written off 13 7.675 - - -
Irrve b e wTiTTer cowe 44,656 FEA T - .
Lease piperse nol recogrised in ke

liabidities.

= Gt -tpem lewsn B4.967 - B34 -

- low waliE ASSRTS 8,683 - - -
Loss on foreign exchange - net

reaised 27,502 23620 -

= Lifurpalised 28,433 12360 - -
Met fair walue loss on dedyvatves 20122 074 - -
Property, plant and equipment written off 11 51,896 26,193 - -
(Write back of iWProvision Tor Rabities and

charges. 36 (4.437) 7.520 - -
Rental of land and budld ngs - 168442 - 931
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And crediting (other than those
disclased in Note 4 to the
Financial Statements):

Adustment ga Fair value al investment
properties

Amartisation af delorred incoma

Amotisation of gramts and contibutions

Bad debts recovered

Cain on derscognition of subkidiany

Gaind[koss} on cisposal of
- investmants - nat
= iImyestmant properties
- propedty. plant and squipment

Galn on forelgn exchange - net
= reqlised
= unnssined

Gross dividend from quoted investments,
within Malaysia

Hiring income from plant, machinery and
eimpirnent

Interest income from financlal assets
measured &t amartied cos
- faed deposits

others

Interest intome - nat investment in lease

Liguidated assats damages income

Wt fair walia gain on derivatives

Mt Tair walis gain on imesments

Opnrating ease indome

Hental incoma
= olher operties

Wit back of impalrmant ks oh
- propedty, plant and eguipment
- fontract assets
- dislepmint expenditures

Note

33

u

14

l.'-l'l:lul_h

i

(12.808)
5,209

2,948
258,508

1172

18,739

124,485

26,947

91,170
4,015
746

3.357
25.976
139.548

10,166

2019
RM0D0

13172
4579
15,973
4187

A
A B2

G868
121,930

4

el
B2.582

4134
20,243
16,083
E2507
1L65T

L0244
57
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2020 2019
RMO0D RMOOD
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration

Detaks ol the total remunaration of each Direclor of the Company receted fram YTL Corparation Berhad Group of Comaanies
categorised into appropeiate companants s s follows

Estimated
Defined Share manzy walug
wontributien barsed of benelits:
Fees  Salaries Banus plan  payments Others In-kind Total
EM000 RE000 RW'000 RW 000 RW000 RW000 [R50 R¥T000
Group - 2020
Eveoutie Direrions
Tan 5 Catn (Or) Francis Yeoh Sock Fg.

I (K, FIE 289 10,9639 2477 Logo L4 z 148 16069
Dz’ Yaoh Seck Han 182 4,968 158 LT+ 1114 ] 174 3099
D" Yieoh S Hin - 3,581 1244 =y L4 1 36 EE3
Dy Yot Sk Hoeyg - 1913 LI 5B L4 z a 6,962
Dae’ S Michael Yesh Sock Song = 4100 113 556 L4 2 56 1o
Date! Wergh S0 Keng - ine L2z 523 Li4 1 ] [ Fa
Deae’ Mark Yeoh Seck Kzh - L] L1B4 52 L4 3 a 5306
Syed Abdula Bin Syed Abd. Kade - B4R 120 1 m 1 ] i1
Non:Executive lirectors
D! Theareg kitap Thal @ (heong Keap Ta e - L - - a - E
Dt Abmad Fuged Bin Mohe Cibalan a1 - - - - it - Li s
Feiz Bin what FEL - - - . n E 466
Raga Naormu Bl Ragz: Ouivman 13 - " - B T 180

181 H.035 10422 4555 1.509 a2 L106 £0.920
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration foont'd.)

Estimated
Dufined Share-  maney vahue
contritation based  of benefits-

Feei  Salaries Banu plan  payments irkind Difers Total
RH'O000  RHO0O  AWOOD  RMOO0  RWOOD RHOOO  RHO00  RHO0O
Cempany - 2020
[Executive Directors
Tan & Dt v} Franc Yend Sock Pl
KBE [BE. FLE = = = - 67 = B&T
Dt e Send Kan - aiz 305 134 BE7 0 1988
Dlang’ Wish 500 Min - - - . irim . B5T
Diste’ Wesah Seal beng - - - - 567 - 657
it S Mirhasd Yerh Sk Song = - . 567 . 567
[t Weah 500 Keng - ~ = BET = B&Y
D’ Mak Weoh 6ok Lan - - - BET - BT
Syed Aboukah Ein Sped Abd iadk - - - E6 - 66
Man-Executive Directon
Dl Chor) Ky T ¢ Cheong K T 20 - . - = 14 34
Dz’ Ahmad Fusad Bin Mahd Dshaian o C = = = = 12 2
Fiiz Bin hhak s - - e 2
R N Biath A Ot m . 7 180
Bz aiz 305 134 4735 n 4% 6.924
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration [cont'd.)

Estimated
Delined ‘Shame- maney walue
conribution e ol benefits
Fees  Salaffes Banus plan  payments Others In-Kind Tatal
MO0 RMC00 RM000 RH000 RH000 EM'D00 RM090 RMOO0
Croup - 2019
Evequtine Direciors
Taan i D' (D} Francis Yeoh Sock P
V3. ([, FIE 6 14265 2477 1486 L4 ? 164 156834
Dts’ Yeoh Seck Han 183 aoar 1521 fiz4 (RIE} 4 1m 1056
D’ Yieoh So0 Min . a3 1244 TG L4 1 L] B4BS
D! Yeoh Seak Hosg - 173 131 T L114 1 i} L.%3
Dasr’ SniMichael Yeoh Sock Shng - SAe2 172 e 114 2 54 )66
D Yieoh Sod Keng 4548 1212 r L4 ) ] 1534
Dot Mark Yeoh Soek Kan 3099 L1E4 el L4 i bE} BLE
Syed Ahdullah Bin Syed Abel. Kadie - BAg L & m 1 L L2
Non-Executive Directon
Eu Forg Mang & Linke Eu 647 . . . . 0 - o)
Diatn’ Chong Kieap Thal & Dhenng Keap Ta 440 : = : - » x 48
Thato Wemad] Fuacar] Bim Moha! [k slan an . . . - M : 434
Fou B B an . - - - 12 . Ak
L Fa | by 101 bt L9H i} E - Ta318
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration foont'd.)

Estimated
Defined Share: menay vales
contributien based of Benefits-

Fees  Salaries Bofus plin  paymenti i ined Otfeia Total
RMOO0 RMGO0 RMO00  RMOOD  RMUDO RMQ00  EMDOO RHO0G
Cempany - 2002
Expcutive Directors
Tan & Dista' v} Francs Yend Sk Pleg.

XEE. (BE. FICE . BT . . 6T
Disto' ¥eh Seol dan - 100 - 12 567 - - ™
Dty Wogth 500 Min . . . . BET . 4 BT
Dty Wenh Seol bong + - - - 567 - 3 gaT
[ty Sl Michasl veoh Sock Song - . . . s 2 , [
[t Weoh 50 Keng . . - a BE? = 3 56T
Dt Mk eoh S0k Kan * - * - T - - BaT
Syt Aboukzh Ein Syed Abd, Lat - - : - % - 3 %
Mon-Executine Disecton
Eu Perng Heng @ Lt u i . . - - - 1 k|
Dein' Thong Keap Tral @ Dheong Keap Tai 20 - - - - H 5 =
Dot Ahma Frusad fin Mohd Dahaén an . - . . - 13 bt
Fixf B Rk 210 B il

E4 100 - 12 415 - 44 BT
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Employes benefits expenses
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2015
RM'000 RM'00D RM'000 RMOO00
Emaloyees compensation
{Exciudng Drechors remuneraton
Wages, salaries and borus 1222551 L166520 20,577 16,168
Defired contribution plan 124,950 79,0867 2,306 2117
Detined benelit plan 43,824 64,6009 - -
Share option expenses 14,557 L4044 1.922 a3z
Othar benalits 34,647 28,907 LA0E L1580
1.440.529 1,354,037 26,211 23427
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group Campany
2020 2019 2020 2019
HNote RM'O00 RM'O0D0 RM'O00 RMO00
CumTent income tx
- Malayslan income tax 130,626 150,742 6,462 16,802
Fareign Income tax 135,452 146,015 -
Dutimirod Tax EL ] 144,558 9,395 - -
414,636 315152 G462 16.A02
Curremt income tax )
- Curren?t finandial year 315.075 207,876 5,851 La.980
- Dror prosdsion in prior Tinancial yoars {48.997) 12119 (3.389) [217E)
Deferiod 1ax
- Rislating by ouigeiation and ievelsal
of enponany diffenones 144,558 9395 - ,
414,636 315,152 6,462 16,802
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B. INCOME TAX EXPENSE ICONT'D.)

A reconciliation of moome tax exqense applicatle 10 ot Beione 13 af thie STAutery incme tax rie to NCome fax capense at
e eflective indamee tax mte af (e Group ani the Comgany is o Mol

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMTO00 RM000 RMO0O0 RM0O0
Prafit before tax 418,294 036,507 176,055 315,250
Taation at Malayslan statutory tae rate of 24%

(2015 24%) 100,631 2AH, 762 42,253 75,660
HNon-deductile expenses 370,548 340,440 57.390 503
Incoma not subgect 10 tax [128.308) [VEG.548) [B9.782) (L1711}
Diffetont tax rates 0 athar countnos inckiding

ra-maasuning of deferred tax® 158866 (300647 -

Diesibde dadurtible aupprs (a74) {1467 - -
Ower prewdision in peior years (48.997) (2119} [3.389) (21TE)
Tiax @flect on share of profits of assocated

Companses and joint ventures (61.728) [28.663) -

Tax effect of ower orovision of deferred tas 362 203 - -
Tix @flact of recognised defened Ta assats 15,236 24,358 - -
Incoma tax expense recagnised in profit

or loss 414,636 Fi5152 6,462 15802

Th re-moasursmant of deforred ta during the fnancial yoar of RM1E2.4 mellion in respect of a subsidiany wis due to
#n increase in the United Kingdom corporation tax rate from 17% fo 19% (effective from 1 Aprd 2020) following the March
2020 Budget in United Kingdam. This reductian will increase the subsidlary's future current tax charge accordingly. The deferred
T Badility at 30 june 2020 has boen calculatod bided on the e of 19% substantively enacted af the financal yoar endid
30 june 2020
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ILOSS5/EARNINGS PER SHARE ["EP5")
Basic/diluted EPS

Basic EPS of thir Groug is calowaned by dividing the profit Tor thi year amriburaie 1o ownedss af the panent by th weightod average
rumbier o ordinary sliares in Bauie during the Tinangial yea.

Group.
2020 2019
{Loss)/Prodit for the Toanclal year attributible to owners of the parent (RMDOO) (1e9,221) 242,509
Wizighted werage number of ondinary shangs in kaue for Basic EPS (000) 10,648,839 10,569,956
Basicidikted EP5 (sen) (L7a) 230

115,455,000 (2019; 120,900,000} share optians granted to employees under E505 have not been included In the calodation of
dikited earfings per share becacse thoy are smi-dilutve.

10. DIVIDENDS
Groug/Company
2020 2019
Gross Amount of Gross Amount of
dividend dividend, dividend dividend,
par share nat of tax par share net of tax
[sen) RM'0DO [sen) RM'DDO
Dividend paid in respect of financial year
ended 30 june 2015
Irterim dividend of 4 sen per orlinary shae
paid tn 13 Novenber 2019 4.0 426,770 - -
Dividend paid in respect of financial year
ended 30 june 20168:
Irtteficn dividend of 4 san per ordinary shee
paid on 13 November 2018 = = 4.0 A£d, FAE
Dividend recognised as distribution to
ordinary equity holders of the Company 4.0 426,770 40 422, T4E
Trig Direc1ors o nol propase any Timal dividend in cospect of thie Tinancial year eded 30 [une 2020,
Destribiustion of treswury shares (“Share Dividend ]
On 29 August 2020, a Share Diidend af ane (1] reasury share Tor evedy thirty (30] existing ordnary thades held was declaned and
the book clomure date for the Share Dividend Is 28 October 2020,
158
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11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

lnlra:
e Famiture, Teletan- Ll
Lid & Lite Fanik il P et
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Wtz M [ e 2238 2] ik L] R T ]
Fewertal o il bt 1 1024 . . ' E Lad
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.]
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)
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Land kand Lard land lezsehold bind  leasehald kand beilgings Tatd
L] L] RHD0G RO AMDM BMO 000 RECO0D
Grsp - 2013
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At LoEE AT % i BFEaslE 104764 St i1 nzsmE
B Aten M ol - e - - L]
Li¥sg ATZEH =% i Lt S 1067 SraE L 1032 AEE
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Aadfony &7 el - |BLEas FLhE lara L
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Furniture,
fittings &
equipment WVehicles Tatal
Hote RM'000 RMOO0O RMODO
Company - 2020
Cost
At 172009 r.zoe 9,292 16,500
Additions 187 - 187
AN I0E.A020 7395 9,292 16,687
Accumulated depreciation
At L7.2019 6,701 5325 12,026
Chargi Tor tha Tinandkil year 7 415 394 a0g
AL 3062020 7115 5,19 12,835
HNet book value
AL 062020 2719 3,573 3.852
Company - 2019
Cost
At 20| 7055 8417 15,472
Additions 153 1,334 L4BT
Dispersal - (459 (455}
Ar d0b.A019 J208 9.2a2 16,5000
Accumulatad depreciation
AL LT.2008 6,305 161 11466
Charge o the Hnandal yeal r 396 403 BED
Dispasal - {325) (325}
Ar 30.6.2019 6,701 5325 12,086
Met book value
Al 3062019 507 3867 474
163
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

(a) Depeiation charge for the financial yoar i aliocatod as follows:

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Hote RM'0O00 RM'000 RM'O00 RMO00
Prodit oo loss 7 1,554,423 1497585 Bog BEg
Comstreclion contract costs 24} 9, 290 7,590 - -
1.563,713 1505175 Bog agg

(b} Assets wider Tinance lease

Tha met book viluie of 1he property. plant and sauipmedt o5 at reporting date beld urder finanoe kases are a6 follows:

Group Company
2019 2019
RM'000 RMO00
Plant and machinery 94,587 -
Vihitles 4302 2528
99,269 2528

fr}  Security

The net book value of the Croup’s property, plant and equipment that have been pledged a5 security for the bank fadlities

el Baricts [y iy of o and oating thamgis ane a5 follows

Land
Buikigs

B ... R
2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'DOO
168,961 164,166
892,218 1.3131.531_
10611790 1545800

(d} Bomowing cost

Boapowing costs of RMIAES4,000 (2005 RMEI4E,000) aisirg vn Teancing speciflicaly sntersd nto for e costoction of

proparty, pant and equipment was capialised dunng the financial year,
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.]

The Groug has revised the useful Ives of Gartain property. plant 300 eguipment dunng 1he financial year. The revision was accounted
Ter as 4 change = actoenting estimate and as 4 reslt, the depeecation charge for the linancial year ended 30 june 2020 has
decreased approsdmataly by RMES2.1 million (2019 AMB3 A milkan)

Impaimment assessment for property. plant and equipment (“PPE”} of a subsidiary
The recoverable amount of tha PPE assetsed an part of a cash generating unit (/OGUF) ane determined hassd on the fair value oes
wosts of disposal {"FYLOT) caloulation

The Tolowing ara th koy asumplions applied in the FYLCD caculation fof impairmant assessmont of PPE ol a tubkidiory in the
telecommanications busmess dvision:

2020 2019
Disount rate T B.2%
Aversge revenue geowih 1ate 20.7% 1A%

The discount rate applied to the cash tlow projections are dermed from the Cost of capital at the date of the assessment.

Thi cash o ropecTaors wused in the FYLCD cakculation wiene based on approvisd financial buogers and Toaecases covening a 5 year
periand, adjisted 1o reflect market's participants assumptions. Cash s hayond the 5§ year parind were estrapolated a turther 15
years representing the estimated useful ives of the PPE of the subsidiary, using the estimated leng-temm growth rate of 25%
{2019: 25%)

Falr valui s hild wdthan Level 3 in fair value hieaichy discosures

The carrying amount of the COU s AMAT billon (2019 BM2.2 hilion), No impement charge was recognised as the recoverable
amaunt of the CGU was in excess of its camying amount.

The subsidiary was awarded contract during the financia year and Is expected to be continued in the coming years, If the contract
value decrease by 24, 7%, the recoverable amount of the COU will be equal to the corresponcing carmying amount in 20200

I the discount rate introase by 1%, the cammang vans will be reduced by approssmate RMSO milion. And, if the average rovenie
growth rate dacrease by 05%, thie carmying value will Be reduced by approsimately RM100 millon
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Telecom-
munication
netwatk
st and Mate Plam asd Leasehold
land  aqupment  Buiding viticles  machinery nd Othars Total
Were EM000 ANDOD AN 1000 AM003 RHO0D RMD0
Groep - 2020
Wt Bk Viliss:
] e 0, ey RSO - - - . - - L
Effirms of adoption of MRS 16 12117 666,701 LMY 4674 1238 STLGH 14T
K11 ke 2007 renimied 12117 §BETEL wam 45m 1238 L1 | - l4mme
Roers BA4E 11885 FILEE %0 i hi-N ] EX) ] ML
hempisiton vy - - - . g BAl2 . £l
Drrge for P frardi yex T [24.500) [114,136) LR T (A {7,135 (5575 [ eaEs)
Cumeney aresiation SHferences L1 - (37 1 50 LY i 50
Sohrmhe L. B S S S U N .. |
A1 30 june 2000 104968 564135 1w 450 S5 565,419 FLTA 1 1)
30 Jure 020
Cmt 13078 L3GES 40181 48 12483 MO a4 1hnEm
ot s O i O, o L O O o SR N i
et ook vakie 14269 564,135 e LAED 525 568,618 36 LERE
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D.)
Bullding
Hote RM'000
Company - 2020
HNet Book Value:
At 1 july 209 -
Aulclitions 12,604
Charge for thi: nandial yisal 7 [#.535)
AL 30 June 2020 9,069
At 30 june 2020
Corst 13,604
Accuimidated depreciation {4.535)
Het book valus 9,068

The Croup and the Compary hawe lease contracts for variows temn of land, buidings, telecommunications netwonk site and equipment,
Buikhings, matod vebiche, plant and isachinery, leaehold land aivd othe wsed 0 theii operation. Leases of those sssets genesially
it b Lt Detwisisn 1 to 30 pisats

Thee Group and the Company 50 have c@riain feadses with lease wenms of L2 manths or fess and lesses tnat have been cetemined

te e low valiee, The Group and the Compary apply the shart-1erm lesse’ and Tease of low-vahee avers recognition exemption for
these lpatas,

Tha right-af-use assets miating to commarcial properties presented under Inestment proeperties (Note 13) 5 stated Tir vakse snd
s @ carying amoant at reporting cate of HMS47, 452000,

Tatad cash outliaw for a1 the leases in J020 was RM523.529,000,
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Long-term
Freehold Ieasehold
land & land &
bulldings buiidings Total
Hote RM'D00 AMO00 RMO00
Group - 2020
AT beginning of the tinancial year 2,960,906 7,256,667 10,217,573
Adifitions 343257 215,959 558,216
Change in fair value recognised in prodit or loss ¥ (1.633) {11175) (12.8082)
Cusrency tramslation differences 12,741) (42.968) |55,709)
Derecognition of subsidiany {L.979,583) {6,851, 698) (8,831,2681)
Transfer 1o property development costs 23 (51,787) - (51.787)
Transfer 1o propey, plant and squipmen 11 (6,403) - [G.403)
writhan off 7 (7.650]) (25} {7.675)
At @nd of the finangial year 1,244,366 566, 760 1811126
Group - 2019
A1 baginning of tha financial year 2802048 7101841 10,003 8R%
Acguisitian ol sibsibery 2304 2164 £ 4hR7
Addetians A5 2942 43,490
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss 7 Ta.632 (66, 760) 13472
Curency translation difgrences (34,799) 216,501 181.702
Disposal {10.128) - (10,128}
Transfer from imventony 149,362 - 149,382
Transfed 10 propery disaslopiment costs 23 (23.225) - [23.225)
Transfer 1o preperty. plant and equipment {15,162 - 15,182)
At end of the financial year 2.960,906 7.256,667 10.217.573

Imyestment propertes with carmying amount of AMAE] mlkon (A019: RM2, 455 milion) are charged as security for 3 bonowang
granted o the Group as dischosed i Nate 30 and Yote 31 10 the finenclal statemonts
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13, INVESTHMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.}

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

RM'000 RMO00 RM000 RM000
Group - 2020
Recuning far value measurements
Investment propertias
= Cornmarcial propettiss - - L47.452 547,452
- it properties - - GT2.000 BFZ000
- Other propertes - 34.610 557.064 591.674
Tots - 34,610 1.776.516 1.B11,126
Group - 2019
Recuming far value measurements
Imvastment propertias
- Commerclal properties - - B RED AL947 RES
- Hotel properties - - BE7.000 Ba7.000
= Other propertas - 34 592 SbH 292 B2, BE4
Tata - 34,592 10162961 10:217573

Rental incomse from imesiment propoerties of the Croup during tha financial yoar amounted 1o AMS2E,E19,000 (20159: RM504,935,000)

Direct aperating expenses from investment properties in respact of income and non-noome generating properties of the Group
durng the Minanciol year amounied 19 RMES4E.000 (2012 RM118,826.000) and RM11.251,000 [2019: RMZOLATL000), respectvely.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ICONT'D.)

{a} Falr value informatien

Thie Group's ivestrent properties an valued based on cale comoarison appenach and unobsendable inputs and classified in
Lined 2 arsd Lawgl 3 respectivety of the Tair vahes hiorarcty, The diffemnt levirs of thae fair vahe higvachy am dofned m Nate
38k} to the financlal statements.

During the current financial year, thon wore no translors betweon Loval 1. Lovell 2 and Lovel 3 fair vaue meassroments.

{b) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 falr values

Lewed 2 fadr walues of the Group's properties have been genesaly derived using the sales compansan oparoach. Sales peices of
compyable properties in clows proodmity are adjiusted for differentes n ok alfributes such as property size. The inast significant
Irgpuit im0 this valsation approach |s seling peice per square meter,

{c] Fair value measuremants using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
The folleeing tisble shows the valuation techrigues used in the determination of far walues within Level 3. as well as the
significant unctservable inputs used in the valisation models.

{i)y Commercial properties

Inter-relationship batwean significant
unobservable inputs and fair value

Valuation technique Signlficant unobservable inputs  measurement

2020

Discounted cash flow approach which  Discount rate from 6.5% to 7 50%
irenlves the estimation and projection

of income stroam over a pariod and

dsoounting the future income stream

to affive at the presem value

Tha highesr the discaunt rate, the lower
the fair wahae,

Estimate rental valea per squate feet  The higher the estimata rental per squane
peor month foer the higher the valuation,

2019

170

Discounted cash Flow method is the
total of discounted income stream
and prasont value of tho praporties’
anticipated sale value in aming at
the total prosent market value.

Discount rate from 3500 to
BS0

The higher the discaunt rate, 1he lower
the fair vakue,

Capitalsation rate from 3 70% to
BB
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.}
(e} Fair value measurements using skgnificant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (cont™d.)
(i) Hotel properties

Inter-relationship between significant
unobservable inputs and fair value

Valuatien technigue Significant unobservable inputs  measurement
Income approach which capitalise the  Distount rate of B00% 10 750%  The higher the discount rate, the lower
astimate rental incame stream, net (2019 600% 1o 7505} hie Fair vl
projected operating costs, using &
discount rate derived from market yield
Capltalisation rate of 6,00% to  The higher the capitalisation ate, the
750%: (2019: 5.00% to 7.50%:) lowier the Fsir value
(iii} Other properties - UK
Range
Valuation technique  Significant observable inputs 2020 2019
Hangars  Capitadiced incoime Estirnanod rental value pof 5G-710 pec annum - ELS0 - E3LDD. €175 - £225
Nel yield percentaye 91% 11L.0%
Vald periads 12-24 months 12 months
nirfield  Tronsaction prices Unit density per acre 18-28 18 28

Koy unobservable inputs comespand to:
Lapitabsatan rates denved from speciaksed publications from the related markets and comparable transac tions,

Discount rate. which are largely based on the risk-free rate of goverament in the relovant marked, adjusted or a risk
premum to refiact both the increased risk of investing in the asset dhass.

Sama of the independont valuation reports have highlightod that with the heightened ustertainty af the COMID-19 pandemic,
a higher degree of raution should be exercised when relying upon thelr valuation The valustions are based on the infomation
ndqilabie as at the date of vaheton, Valoes may change mane rapidly and Sgrificantly than dusing noomal mackst conditions.

The Investment properties are vahed using the incoms caphalisation metho, whers 3 propery's far vabue s estimared based
an the nommealsed rel operating income genevated by the property, which is divided by the capitéisation (discoun) rate based
on curent market-derived yield rates which reflect the expected retum on vestments commensarate with the rsk exposue
ausociated to the aswel

The significant unobsarvaole input is the adjustment far factors spedfic 10 the properties. The extent and direction of this
afjustment depirds o0 the number and charactedstics of the abservibiie market transactians o simia properties that ae

used as the staring polnt for valuation. Although this Input |s & subjective judgement, management considers that the owerall
wilisat hon woiddd ot b matedtally alfected by reasonably possible altEmatie ssam plions
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14. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

Thi movisment 0 development sxpenditues of the Grou during this firancial year 15 a5 iolivers-

Freehold Leasehold Development
land land costs Total
Group - 2020 Mote RM 000 RM'DOO RM'OOO RMOOO
Land held for property
{a) development cost
Cost
At beginning of the financi year 412,956 232,403 242,096 887,455
Additiar - 4,948 18.827 23,775
Transfes from property deviopment
coLts a 1.322 - - 7322
Tran&fer to Imentony - (l0,89a) (332} (11,230)
At end of the financial year 420,278 226,453 260,551 5a7.322
Accumulated impalrment losses
At beginning of tha financial year (530) [27.767) (480} [(28.777)
Revarsal of impairment 7 - 2978 - 2,978
At end af the financial year [530) (24.7849) [4a0) [25.794)
Toral land held Tfor property
devalopmeant 419,748 201,664 £60,111 881,523
(b} Project development expenditure
Al bignning af tha Nnascial year - 177.057 91,503 268,560
Adlitiors - ER: 64,669 BH,536
Chamge 1o profit or loss - - (8.175) (8.175)
Currency transiation difference - 5,966 2313 B8.273
Trans{es to propery. plant and
equipment 11 - - [90.502) (90.502)
A1 end far the financlal year - 186,890 59,808 246,698
Total development expenditure 419,748 388,554 319,919 L1lz8.221
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14. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONT'D.]
The mesement 0 ceveopment expendiures of the Group duing the Hnandal year is 35 follows:- joontd)
Freehold Leasehold  Development
land land costs Tatal
Group - 2018 Nota RMODO RMO00 RM000 RMODO
{2) Land held for property
developmant cost
AT beginning of the finanoal yeas 41157 E30AES FEEN ] BE0, a0
Additions - = 12244 12.244
Reclossilication 1.380 6B (LA4) 5
Disgairsal - (11} (L123) .134)
Wiitten off - - {457} {457}
Transfer to property development costs 23 - (3.073) [915) {3.9668)
At end of the financial year 412,956 232403 242,006 BE7 455
Accumulated impairmont losses
Al beginning of the linantial yeas - [#7.315) (382) [Z7.697)
mpaimment kassas T {5301 (452} (a8} {1,080
At end of the financial year {5301 (27767 {480} (@R,T7T)
Tatad land held for property
devlapmenl 412 A0 204,536 24LEG16 B5R.ETE
{b) Preject dovelopmant axpenditure
At beginning of the financial yea . 159,144 115,154 274,298
Agditions - 13,42 106,670 120442
{Charge to profit ar koss - . [3.352) {3,392)
Currency teanslaton diffmrence 4141 3180 73
Transfer from inventory . (#0078} {40.078)
Transfer to property deveiopment cosks 23 - - [B3.131) [63.131)
Teandfer to property, plant argd
aquipmeant 1 - - {6, 2600) {6,900)
At end of thie financisl year - 177067 91,509 P6E 560
Total development expenditure 41248 LA EEERIL 1127238

Iy thee presiouws finandal year, the mmpalnrent review has ted 1o the recognitlon of impairment loss amountng o RML080,000 dus
te declng in estimate recaverable amaunt of develcpment cost.
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14, DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONT'D.)

Lanel hekd Tor praparty teutopment with carrying amount of RM327,064,000 (2019 RMIEZ,500,000) an charged &5 secunity Tor
['I'Il'l‘n'ﬂl'lj Gfd‘lh‘ 1o he rnl"ﬂlq‘lM drtlnwsd in Mote 2 1o the linsnoul STaremsnts.

Inchided In poject developmient espenditure, land acquisition costs relating 1o the constrisction of the power plant by P.T. Tanjung
Jati Powar Company undor 8 30w powor purchase agroomant with PT PLN [Persor), indanasias state-owmed aleciric utiity
comparny, & second amended and restated version of which was exacuted in March 2018 In February 2020, P.T. Tanfung jati Power
Company obtained the Business Viabdlity Guarantae Letter from the Ministry of Finance of the Republc of Indoneslz and is working
Tawaids achisang financial cloke,

15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2020 2019
RMO00 RMO00
Cuatd shafers, a1 Cosl 3.470,029 972483
Linwgjistrled shares, at ¢osi 4,300,374 34409919
Quated ICULS, at cost® - FE5L.502
L Accurnudatidd impalrment losses (&.289) {6, 309)
7.764,014 7.607.515

Market value
- Qumted shares 3,491.567 4701802
- Qumed KULS - A
3.491.567 4940618

* Quoted ICULS, at cost

These ane relaied to ten (10) yoars KULS issued by ¥TU Land f Development Berhad, a subsadiary of the Group, on 31 October
2011 These ICULS bear a step up coupan rate ranging fram 39 to 6% per annum wivid is maturity date. The interest is payable
sami-anmualty. The comersion price of the ICULS i fixed at a step-down bass. in the first four (4) years, the corversion price
Is at RM1.32 for one (1) ordinary share n YTL Land & Development Barhad, atter which it Is at AMOSD in the next three (3)
yiars and sl RMDGEE Mor the remaining three (3} years.

The ICULS were guoted on Bursa Securities and have been delisted effective from 21 Octobsr 2019
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of i subsicharies an as tollows: (oontd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Hald by the Company:
Arah Asas Sdn, Bhi Malaysid Propery disaslogime 100.00 10000
Business & Budget Fotels Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Managament & investment holding 100.00 10000
Canis Creations Sdrn Ohd Malaysia Irmeiitmisi halding 100.00 10000
Lomerstong Lnest Son. Bhd, Malaysia Imvestment holding 100.00 N0
Divine View Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Commaorcial trading, proporty deoaling & 100,00 10000
Imyestrment holding
Ingellectual Missian Sin, Beul Muslimysia Education & training using advanced 10000 10000
technolooy
Puisma Tudin Sdn. Bhed. Malaysia Mot aperator 100,00 10000
Spectacular Comer Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Darmant 100.00 10000
Stamill Chabal Real EStatg investment SMngapare IFrvtmisnt in prifne real astate = Jb.4b
Trust (SGRETY**
Syarikat Pembenaan Yeah Tiong Lay Malaysia Ciwll engineering works, construction.  100.00 10000
Sdn Bhd, property developmant & real astate
Imvestment, investmant holding & related
SETVCES
Titiwrangsa Developmant Son. Bhd, Mataysia Inactive 100,00 10000
¥TL Cayman Limited' Cayman Wlands  Iiwsestment holding, ownorship B chartoring 100,00 10003
of yachts B vassels
¥TL Cement Beihad Malaysia Ippstireint holding. management compary  98.03 SR 03
& hirlng of yelicles
¥TL Charters Scn. Bhd. Malaysia Chartering of aireratts, neficopters, ships & 100000 10000
vehicles
¥TL Corporation (L) Pic*® England & Wales  Inactive 100.00 10000
¥TL Corp Finaneo (Cayman) Limited' Cayman Blands  Inactive 100.00 (0000
¥TL Corp Finance (Labuan) Limited" Malaysia Special purpose vehicle for ssuance of 10000 10000
spgurities b invesiment holding
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Etfective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %

Held by the Company: (cont'd.)
YL - Solutions Berhad Malaysia Inyestment holding, provision and 100000 10000
maintanance af information technology
harwane and software systems, retwork
arl imamat conneCivity Inlrstrucir,
wieh hosting samices, content development,
prowision of e-commerce systems,
hardhwaaine sakirs and ather relsted Sereces

¥TL Emangy Scn. Bhd. Malaysia invastmant holding 100,00 10000

YTL (Cussrrey) Limited ' Gusarreiry Inasimant & praperty halding 100,00 10000

YTL Hospitality REIT {"¥TLREIT™] Malaysia Management of real estate investmeant 56.95 56.95
Trusts

YTL Haotel Management Sant Tropez France Hotel aparator & management servies 100,00 10000

SARL!

YTL Hotels & Froperties Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia nyestment holdng & management sernvices 100000 10000

YL Industnng Berhad Malaysia Iearstment hakding, propery devilopment 100,00 100,00
and peamarty inves Bt

YTL Land Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Praperty invesiment, property and project 10000 10000
manapimiht

YL Land E Development Berhad® Malaysia Investment haiding & provision of  96.60 B5.26

management. financial, treasury &
sacmetanal senices

YTL Power international Berhad Malaysia Inyestment holding & provision of 55.21 E5.21
[TYTL Power™)® administrative & technical suppat
ETVICES
YTL Singapare Pre. Lid.* Singapang imestment holding & managemant (ompany 100.00 10000
YTL-5V Carbon Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Providing consultancy sendces 20,00 an.00
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Dtails of i subsidharies ané as follows: (contd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 020 2019
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L T
Hald through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Business & Budget Fotals (Penang) Malaysia Hatal aporatar 51.00 51,00
Sen. Bhd
Buniness & Budgel Hoels [Sebarang Makaysia Inactive 5100 5100
Jaya) Sdn Bha.
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.:
Cane Creatlons [Marketing) Sdn. Bhd Mataysia Trading m care furninwe, local handicrafts.  100.00 10000
accessones & relaled serdoes
MNatuwal Adventure Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Hetading of merchandise and provision of  100U00  100.00
cnling refail services
Hiche Retaiing Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Retailing of tashion apparels and related 100,00 10000
BELESEOMS.
Prestige Lilestyles & Living Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Trahing of Tumilune sl scoessoriesy 100,00 10000
Star Hill Living Com Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Project managemsent services, trading of 100,00 100.00
paintings, furnities, aecessoded R rolaled
SEIVERS
Teendy Retailing Son. P Malaysla Inactive 100,00 10000
Held through Divine View
Sdn. Bhd.:
S0 YTL Motels Saint Trogpes! Framnie Acquisition, management, renting & 100,00 10000
adminktration anddor resale of real estate
Held through Starhill Clobal Real
Estate Investment Trust
["SGREIT"):
Ara Bintang Borhac™ Malaysia Propedy invesiment » 36,46
Chiengelu Xen Harg Management Co, The Pecglies Pregaety invesirmism = 36.46
LS fepublc of China
G RET (M) Pre. Ld S Singapore irvestment hoiding - I6.46
S5 REIT (WA) Pro Lid.*% Singapore Imvpstment holding - J6.46
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

EDINETOOOO
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Hald through Starhill Global Real
Estate Investment Trust
{"SCREIT'Y, {cont'd,}
56 BEIT (WA} Trust™ Australia Proparty Imvestment - 3646
S0 REIT (WA} Sub-Tnsil S Australia Praoperty imeestment - 3646
S0 BEIT (SA) Suh-Trust2 S Austrzlia Praparty InWestment - 3646
Starhill Glokal REIT japan 5PC Ome Pte, Sinpapam Imastmant holfing - E
Lud.*5
Starhill Glebal REFT japan SPC Tem Pre. Singapare Investmant hakhng - 3645
Ld.~%
starhill Global REFT MTH Pac. Lid,*% Sirgaporn lsguer af notes undor thi Medium Term - A6
Nate Programm
searhill Global REIT One TS Jagan Praparty Investment = I AG
Starhill Global ML K'Y Japan Master lessee of japan properes - AL
Top Sure Ineestment Lid,* Hareg Kang Investment halding - 3646
Held throwgh Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Austanis Metal Sdn. Bhd,* Malaysia It tiwe 10000 10000
fustasla Timbers Makaysia Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Inattive 100.00 100.00
Buildérs Brickworis Sdn. Bhit Maliyiia it Tt 93.80 9380
Construction Lease (M) Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Leasing, hire parchese B credit 100.00 10000
Dayang Bay Develapmant Son Bhd. Malaysia Praparty imaastmant and developmont 10000 10000
Dayang Bunting Resors Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Froperty imvestment ard deyvelopment 10000 10000
Cynamic Marketing Yon. Hhd, Malaysia Irading of buliding & comstrsction matedals 100000 10000
Hioted 25 Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Hatcd sperator 100,00 10000
First Commenckil Developmeant Sdn., Bhi, Malaysia Froparty imeestment 100.00 10000
Kampung Tiong Dovelopment Sén, Bhd, Malaytia Froperty devolapment 7000 7000
Lay Seng il Palm Plantations Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Cultivation of oll palms 100,00 10000
Morthwastem Devopmont Sdn B Malaysia Froperty investmant and development 100,00 10000
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of thie subsichanes an as follows: (oontd)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Hold through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tieng Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
[cont'd)
Parmal Property Managament Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia Inactive 100,00 10000
Suri Travel & Tours Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Rental of mator vahicles, air tickating & 100.00 10000
other related senvices
Trarmportable Camps Sdn B, Mataysia Trodweg & rental of tramponiable cabim & 100,00 10000
wiod based products
¥ap Yo Hup Brickeamiks (Parak) Son, Malmycia Inactive 93.80 9380
B,
Yeuh Tiong Lay Realty Sdn, Bhi Malaysia Really, imvestment & management services 100000 100,00
¥TL Construction Intematonal Cayman lslands Imvestment hodding in comstruction refated 100000 10000
{Cayman) Limiteg® acThitiEs
¥TL Construction (5) Pre; Ltd* Sangapore Cormtraction related activitles & real pstate 100,00 10000
devaloper
¥TL Civil Enijirmaeiinng Sain, Bl Mty sia il emginmzering works S Corstm Uon 90.00 9000
¥TL Development Sn. Bhd, Mataysia Imactive 70.00 .00
¥TL Progect Management Services Matlaysia Provislon of management services for 10000 10000
Sdn. Bhd. construction projects
¥TL Technologies 5an, End. Mainysia Senvicing & hiting af equigmant 9921 g9.21
¥TL THP [v Sdn, Bihd Malaysia Imactive 70.00 0,00
Held through ¥TL Cayman Limited:
|imt Haritage Sdn. Bhd * Malaysia Imestment holding 100,00 10000
Starmill Chobal REIT Imyestments Cayman llands Irepstment hifding 100.00 10000
Limited"
Siarhill Chabal REIT Managamert Cayman klands  Imvestment holding 100.00 10000
Limired'
¥TL Construction {Thalland) Limited® Traiard Construction activities 74.89 74.89
¥TL Powaer Services Scn. Bhed, Maaysia Operation & maintenance of power station 100,00 10000
¥TL Broperty investments Limited® Cayman klands  Irvestment holding 100.00 10000
179
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through ¥TL Cayman Limited:
{cant'd.)
YL Starhill Clabal Property Singapars Froparty managamant services 100,00 10000
Management e, Lid*
YL Startell Ciabal RET Management Singapae Investmant hokding 10000 10000
Huoddings #te, Lid*
YL Startall Chobal RETT Managemont Singapare Inyestment advisor, property fund 100,00 10000
Limifid® managemant senices and 10 act as tha
Manager of SGREIT
Held thraugh YTL Cement Berhad:
Azsodated Fan Malaysia Cement sdn. Malaysia Manufacture and sale of cinker and cement 7546 Mab
Bha.**®
Biatu Thga Quasry Sdin, Bhd. Malaysia Quarry business & trading of granite 98,03 98,03
aggregates
Eeatu Tiga Quasmy (54, Builoh) Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Guarry busness & ralated senioes 98.03 98.03
Beting Dama Sinosowce Trading The People's Trading of mechanical dlectrical equipment 98,03 98,03
Co. Ld® Republic af China and parts, and tachnology transler,
develapment and consuitancy
Bantara Gemilang industries S, Bhd, Malaysia Quaarry busness & relaied services 49,02 43,02
Binh Cwong Fioo Cemeant Single Mamber Vietnam Manufacturing cement, line & plaster GA.62 -
Liemitest Lishility Comparty®
Buildeon-Cimaro Concrete Sdmn. Bl Malaysia Mamdaciuring b safe of ready-mued conoee 88L03 98,03
Auildenn Condrate Enterpeise Sdn, Bhd Maliyuia Imestment hokfing 98.03 9A.04
Bulidcon Concrete Sdn, B, Malaysia Mamsfacturing & sale of ready-medconcete. 90,03 98,03
Buitdonn Comtrate (KL} Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Ines T 98.03 98,03
Ll Quarrying & Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Quarry usiness & related services. 98.03 98.03
C1. Reachymix Sdm, B, Maliyiia Mamaaoiuring & sale of ready-msedcongrene. 98,03 98,03
CMEM Pemiagaan Sdn. Bho ** Malaysia Trading of cement and other bullding 7546 Thab
inatid s
Competent Teamwork Sdn. Bhd Malaytia Imestmant holding 98.03 98.03
Concrote inousires Pie Lul® SO Doanman 98.03 98.03
Conerete Star Limited Cayman Islands Imestmant holding 98.03 98,03
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of thie subsichanes an as follows: (oontd)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Held through YTL Cement Barhad:
[cont'd.)
Equity Covporation Sdo, B Malaysia Cuaaimy bunsinirss & retatod services 9803  S60.03
Fico Tay Monh Cement joint Stock Vietnam Manufacture & sale of oodinary portland ~ BE.G2 -
Company** cement & blendod cemant
Fico-YTL Cement Sales and Marketing Vietnam Sale & marketing of cementitious products . BEUGE -
Company Limited**
Gemilang Pintar Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Marieting & trading of quarry products BB.E2 Bl
Geotyele Erlranmental Services Malaysia Wakis management incoment marufaciuring 7546 TE.46
Sein Bl *® acthvities
Gootycha Malydla Sdn. Bha ** Matayida Teading of any type ol cemantitious 7548 754G
materals for cement ar concrete use
Green Enahle Technologies Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia Consutancy services in relation fo the 2803 Sa03
prosmatian of the gasification of munidpat
sobd waste for disposal in cement kilns
Haleim [Malaysia) Sen. B *® Mataysia M acturing and sake ol camant 7546 Th46
Hapelleld Enterprises Limfed* Hong Keng Irvestiment holding 9003 oa.03
ndustrial Procurement Limited' Cayman Blends  Imesimenit holding 98.03 Sa03
Jaksa Quarry Sdn. Bhd, Madaysia Qusary businias & rokrted sonies gE03  SA0d
Jumewah Shipping Sdn. Bhd.*® Mataysia Shipping of bulk cement and chartering ol 75.46 7a.46
wessals
Jirong Cement Limited [formerly known Sngapore Imeestment halding, importers, destars of 98.03 B899
a5 Holrim {Singapore) Limited)*® ready-mix concrete, dry-mix mortar
products, busireds ol awners of §Lafage
tenring Facilities & sales of cement
Kedah Cement Haldings Deshad*® Mataysln Irvistmidit hioldkng 7546 46
Kadah Cement Sdn Bhd. Malaysia Manutacture and sale of clinker and cement 75,46 1546
{tormerly mawn as Lafarge Demont
Sdn. Bral)*®
¥edah Coment jetty Sdn. Bhd *# Mataysia Management and operation of a jetty 7546 Mh4B
K son Codstrugton Maliviists San, Mulaysia I kv 98.03 Sa03
B,
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{cant'd.)
Eanneman Northem Quarry Sdn Bld Malayia Manulaciuring, soffing & dntribution of  9BL03 a8.03
premix prodects, constiction B bullding
Inatidias
Lafarge Aggiegates (Kota Tinggl) Sdn, Malaysia Quarmying and tredng of granite and quairy 7546 7546
Bha ** pOuCTS
Lafarge Aggregates (Pantal Remis) Sdn, Malayiia Produces and supplier of agpegates ard ~ TEAB 546
Bha. ** related products
Latarge Aggregates Sdn, Bhd *® Malaysia Imestment holding, trading ard quarrying 7546 754G
of aggregates and related products
Latargn Concrote [Fa Malaia) Maliytia Dovrmand 70.38 70,38
Sdn, B, [in membsers' voluntary
liguidation}**
Lafarge Concrete (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Manufacture and sake of ready-mix concrate To.3@ 7038
-
Latainge Canciste ndistrias Sén Bhid Malayia Manaifarture and sk af toady-file foncma e Fo.3m man
-
Latarge Drymix Sdn. Bh,*® Malaysia Manufacture and sale of coment and drymix 7546 7546
products
Latargy Marketing Pro, Lo ** Singapony Ivestment hokfing T5.46 346
LS Pre. Lud, (Formerty known as Singepore Bulk import and sale of coment and trading 7546 7546
Lafarge Cement Singapone Pre, Ltd) of other building matesials
e
LCS Shippng Pre. Lid.® Singzpare Shipping of bulk cement and chartering of 75.486 To.46
VAR
LMCE Holdings Pre. Lid.** Singapore Imsestmant hokfing 75.46 7546
Makaln S S, B, Maliyiia Guiarry lnramirss & relatied services 98,03 98,03
Malayan Cement Barhad*® Malaysia Imestment hokding 75.46 7546
M-Ceirmnt Scin. ehe *# Malaysia I stmant halding TEAG 754G
[mi-Mi Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Manutacturing & sale of ready-mix concrete~ 98L03 9H.0H
B hiring af vienickes
Mabdark Sea Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quary business & related services 98.03 98,03

182

449/620

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Motes to the Financial Statements

450/620

= 30 Jung 2020
15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of i subsicharies ane as tollows: (contd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Hald through YTL Cement Berhad:
(eomt'd.)
Mutual Prospect Sdn. Brd, Matmysia Queniry buesiness & related seniies 98.03 a3
MNanyang Cement Pre Lid® Sangapors Cament termanal operation, bulk breaang 98.03 SE03
activities and trading in cement
Nhiu Anh Investmant joint Stock Vietnam Irvestment haldag 98.03 -
Comgany**
Dasis Vision Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Production, selling & distribution ot 3500 35.00
constructon B bulldng msenials
Pahang Cement Markating Sin, Bhd. Malaysia Inactive 98.03 SR.03
Pahang Coment Sdn. Bha, Maaysda Manutacture & sale of grdinary portland 58,03 SRDT
cemant, clifkir & reled products
Parak-Hanjoang Simen Sdr. Bh, Malaysia Manufacture & <ale of odinary portland  98.03 =tk
cement, clinker & related producis
Peymodalan Hitec Sdr. Bhi Malaysla Quary business & related senaces 98.03 SE0I
PHES Tradineg Sen Bl Malaysia Managemant of plant a8.03 et E S
PMOWE Enterprces Me. Ld*® SHngapore Irvestment holding 7546 546
Probwuildars Centre Sdn., B Mataysia Trading of cement and other building 7546 7546
(i members valuntary gudation)=* materals
PT. ¥TL Semen indonesia® Indanesia Mardacture & tale of acdinary portlsnd 88,03 s ES
cement & ready-mied conrete
RC Aggrevatis Sdn. Bl Malaysla Hanifling of constructon wade materiah. 28,03 S03
and sales of the recycled concrele
Eqqegates
Simen UWama Marketing Sdn, Bha ** Malaysia Carmant 7546 7546
Sino Mabske and Heavy Cquiament Matlaysia Trading & maintenance of trucks & paris ~ 98.03 anal
Scn B B heavy equipment
Slag Cement Sn. Bhd Mataysia Manutacture & sale of ordinary portland 9803 =
cimant E hlendod oomenn
Slaq Cement (Southern) Sdn. Bha. Mataysia Manufacture & sale of odinary portland  98.03 SR.03
cemant & blended ceméent
SMEC Mix Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia Inactive 98.03 SE03
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{cant'd.)
Solatis Concept Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Praduction, selling & distribution of 50,00 50,00
constnuction & buiiding materals
Stralts Gemant Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Mamfactime & sale of ordnary portland 98,03 58,03
cement, chinker and related products
Supermix Corcrate Pre. Lid*® Sirnjepars Inevarstmant halding 75,46 7h4b
Tugas Sejahtera Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Imestmant holding 08.03 98.03
YTL Cement (Cambodia] Hakdings Pre. Singapae Dertmant 98,03 9a.03
Ld.”
YTL Coment Erterpimse Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Inverstment hokfing 908,03 98.03
YTL Cement (Hong Ecng) Limited® Harng Kong Imestmant holding a8.03 98,03
YTL Cement Markoting Sdn. Bhd. Malayiia e B marketing of comontitious predscts 98L03 ga.03
YTL Cement Marketing Singapote Ple. Singapare Sale & marketing of cement. cementitious  98.03 98.03
Lid* poduts B oother related construction
roducts
YTL Cement Myanmar Compary iyanmar Mamifacte & sale of ordinary poridand 9803 08.03
Lirnitet® camant k retated products
YL Cement (Myaniiar) Holdngs Pla Sirjapar Invastinant hokling 98,03 98.03
Ltgk*
WTL Cemaent (Phiippires) Holdings Pe, Sirgepang Dorenan 98,03 8.0
Ltd.*
¥TL Cemant (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia InESTImENT Rokding 9803 9803
YTL Cement Shared Services Sdn, Bhd. Malaysla Accounting shared services, and 7546 7546
{farmerly known 25 Lalarge Shared managemant comsulting services
Services Sdr. Bhd )
YTL Cement Singapore Pie. Lod.* Singapore Imvestment holding. general mponers & 98,03 98.03
iapofars af consThiction matedkak
YTL Cement Termdnal Sarvices Ple. Singapare COparation ef port terminal & handling of  98.03 98.03
Ltad.* ementithous. products
YTL Cement (Vietnam) Pre Lid® SingEpore Inverstmznt hokding 98,03 96,03
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of i subsicharies ane as tollows: (contd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Princlpal Activities T L
Held through ¥TL Cement Barhad:
{cont’d.)
¥TL Concrote: (5) Pe. Lid® Sangppare Monutodture of ready-miked concrete,  S8,03  SR03
whaolesae of structural clay & conorote
products B msed construclicn aCtivtes
¥TL Prisnix Saln, Blel Mulayuia Trading ol building materials & milated 98.03 803
WAL
Fhegarg Hangrhou Dama Cement The Pecpe's Manutacture & sale of ordinary portland ~ S8.03 SR
Co. Ld* Rapubilc of China cement. dinker and related products
Fhefiarg YTL Coment Marketing Thi Pocgiers Sale B marketing of comentitious products 98,03 R0
Ca, L* Repubilc of Ching
Held through ¥YTL Charters
Sdn, Bhd.
fshand A Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Chartering of arrafts ao.00 8000
Rusantara Sakti Sdn. Bhd, Malayiia Camiage of pastengerns & ak carriors Bo.00 B0
Held through YTL e-Solutions
Berhad
Alrped Senvices Sdn, Bhd, Mataysia Inactive 56.00 5600
Airpad Broadband 5dn, Bhd, Malaysla Prowiding wired line & wireless broadband 70,00 70.00
Intannal socess serdtas B devaloping.
produring, marketing, selling &
maimtaining software applications.
research b development. consiftancy b
redated services
Birwur! M3C Sdn. B Makaysia Inactive G60.00 BO.O0
Inf gscreen Networks Lid® England & Wales  ivestment holding 100.00 10000
PropartyMathsia (Mataysia) Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Inactive 100.00 10000
¥TL info Screen Sdn. Ghd. Mataysia Creating provideng B advertising content. 100000 10000
media, weh mecia & up to date informatian
i clectronic media
s Sdn. Bhil Maysia Imactive 100,00  [000D
¥-Max Networks Sdn Bhd Malaysia Providing computer nebwarking & relsted 60,00 BOOG
Infermation technalogy sarvices
¥-Max Soluthons Holdings Sdr. Bhe Mataysia Irvestment holding 100.00 10000
1B5
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Hald through YTL [Guarmsay)
Limived:
¥TL Comstruction [SA} (Proprietary) Lid!  South Africa Inactive 100,00 10000
Held through YTL Hospitality REIT
(“YTL REIT™):
Starhill Hospitality [mrsiraa) Pry, Lid.” Australia Trustee campany 56.95 56,95
Searhill Hospitality RETT [Aestroka) Australia Real estate imeestment 56.95 56,95
Trust®
Starhil Hospitaliny RETT [Brishars) Australia Real estate Investment 56.95 5695
Trust®
Srarhill Hospatality RETT (Melbourne) Austraila Roal estate inmestment 56.95 5695
Truet*
Starhill Hospitality REIT [Sydney) Trust® Australia Real estate investment 56.95 5695
Starhill Hospitality RETT (Australa) Sdn Malaysia Investmant hakding 56.95 5655
Bhd.
Searhill Hotul (Australia) Sdo Biad, Maloysia Ewstimunt hokling 56,95 56,95
Starhill Hotel (Brishens) Pry, Lid* Australia Hotel npevator 56.95 5645
Starhill Hotel (Melboume) Pry. L Australia Hotel operator 56.95 695
Starhill Hotel (Sydney) Py, Ltd.® Australia Hotel operator 56.95 56,95
Seartill REIT [Ausiraka) Pry. Led® Aliktfalla Trukles compurny 5695 SR.ASS
Starhill REIT Nheko GK.* Japan Purhase, possession, deposd, lease and ~ 56.95 56.95
inanagemnent af sl opeies
YTL REIT MTN Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia T undartake the msusnce of mediam tesm 56.95 56,95
TOAEs
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties 5dn, Bhd.:
Autndome Sein, Bhil Mk sia Cpetator of food R oeverage outers & 300,00 10000
anb-letting of premises
Dusth Hotel & SPA BV Mitherlands Ivestment halding lo0.00 10000
Barh Hotel snd 5P Lid® England £ Wales  Hatel developar and opesator 100,00 10000
Bamen Cosmecputical Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Cowelopment of holiday resors 90.00 90,00
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15. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of tha subsidiaries ane a5 tollows: (contd)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place af 2020 2019
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L %
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: (cont'd.)
Bomeo kland Villas Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Darmant Bo.00 B0U00
Camenon Highlandys Resort Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Haotel & resort oparitor 100.00 10000
Diamoad Recige Sdn, Bhi Mataysia Operator of lood E beverage cutlet 100,00 5100
Flite Dinnireg Sen Bhd,! Makaysia Cperator of fondd & bevetage outiet 100,00 -
Calnabedaugh Hotel [Bath) Limibed® Emgland & Wales  Hodel aperatians 100.00 10000
Glasshowse Hotel (Cayman) Limited* Cayman islands  Imvestment holding 100.00 10000
Glatehouse Hotl Limitod* England & Wales  Imeostment holding 100L00 10000
Happy Steamboat Sdn, Bhd Mataysia Imactive 100.00 10000
Magna Bourdary S, Bhil Malaysia Mot B rosart operpar 90,00 G000
Marbile Valley Sdn, Shd. Malaysia Management & Imvestment holding 8000 5000
Marbile Vsl Tiwn 54dr, Bl Malaysla Hatal apacatar 64,00 G400
M Hotet Management Fie, Ld.* Singapore Haitel managemant senices 5100 5100
Monkiry hiland Propertes Limited® England & Wales  Investment & progesty holding 100.00 10000
Nenw Architectune (Bray) Limited* England & Wales  Hotel aperatar 100.00 10000
Minekn Village KK Japan Qwning, managing, maintaining and L0000 0000
developing the Miseko Vikage Besart
Niseko Village (5) Pre. Lwd® Singapare Irvestmisil holdng 100.00 NOO.00
W Land GaC° lapan Construction, developmendt, sale & purchase 100,00 10000
af mal propertios
P.T. jepun Bl Inchoneesla Managing & oparating a hotel 100.00 10000
Restoran Eisap Sin Bhad Matinysia Iric e 100.00 10009
W Cower Street Limited® England & Wales  Hotel aporations 100,00 10000
AW Creenside Place Limited® England B Wales  Hol operstion 100.00  |0GO0
RWwW Threadneedhe Streot Limited* England & Wales  Hotel operations 100.00 10000
Samui Hotel 2 Cou Lid® Thaiard Hatel aperatar 100,00 10000
Sentul Park Kol Centre Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Hrepders, whiesaers, re@ies b dsinbuion 1O0LDD  TOO00
ol ki Bish
Siarhill Hoted (Porth) Pry, Lid! Australia Trusteo compary 100,00 10000
Staibill Hobel [Perth) Sdn, Bhik Malnysia Irmepsimisiil Tldng 100.00 10000
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %

Hald through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: {eant'd.)

Searhill Hotal (Perth] Truse® Auitralia Real stata inestmont 100,00 10000
Searhill Hotel Operatar (Penh) Pry. Lid* Austrzlia Hated operator 100.00 10000
starhill Dffice {Perth) Pty. Ltd." Australia Trustes company 10000 10000
Starhil Office {Perth) Tust! Australia Real estate Imeestment - 10000
Starhill Retall (Perih) iy, Lid.' Australla Trustes company 10000 10000
Starhill Retail {Parth) Trust! Avrstralia Roal otate invostment - 100.00
Star Hill Hoted Sgn. Bhad Malaysia Hatel operator 100,00 10000
Thermae Developimant Company Encland & Wales  Lirente to operate the Thermae Bath Spa 100,00 ¢ 10000
Lirmitesd™ nmipley
Thieadnesdles Hotel Limtes Cngland & Wales  Imvestment halding 100,00 10000
YIL Hentage Hotels San. Ehd Malaysia Dormant 100.00 10000
YTL Hotels 8" Metherlands Imestment halding 100,00 10000
YTL Hotals [Cayman) Limeted" Cayman Islanes Hotel sperator & hotel management 100000 100,00
SRIViCEs
YL Hotels Central Servdes Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Ramman 10000 10000
Y¥TL CHM Sadn. Bhit Malaysia Prowiding professional & commertial Fo.00 000
ediscation & training In hospitaity
YTL Hotels [Singapore) Pre. Ltd.” Singapars Traved and haspitality relted business 10000 10000
Y7L Magestic Hotel Son. Bhd, Malaysia Hoted operatar 10000 10000
Held thraugh YTL Industries
Barhad:
Yieul Thog Lay Brivkwoiks Sci, Bl Maliysia i i 10000 10000
Yeoh Tiong Lay Management Sdn Bhd Malaysia Domant 10000 10000
Held through YTL Land Sdn. Bhd.:
Eatagreen Dewelopment Sdn Bhd Malaysia Fraperty lzasing and management 100,00 10000
Piritar Projek Sdn Bl Malayiis Managemant of real estate imyestment  70.00 0.0
trust funds, Ftorsing ol (radomarks &
brand management
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of thie subsichanes an as follows: (oontd)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T Y
Hald through YTL Land Sdn. Bhd.;
(eomt'd.)
Puncak Semuniding 5n. Bha Matinysia Darmant 100,00 10000
Haritage jourrey Sdr. Bhd Mataysia Operator of food and Diverage 100.00 10000
¥TL Design Services Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Darmant 100,00 10000
Held through ¥TL Land &
Development Berhad:
Amanresorts Sdn, Bhd Maiaysia Darmant 96.60 6526
Bayumaju Devidopemsm Sdr. Bhd Maslaynia Proganity disnelugnimnt 96.60 65.26
Burdaya Barsatu Sdn, Bhd Mataysia Property developmant B6.60 6h.26
Emesald Hioctares Sdn, Bh. Malaysin Darmant G7.62 45,60
Lakefront Pre. Ltd® SUNgape Real estate development 96.60 L]
Lot Ten Security Sin, Bhd* Malayela Inactive 96,60 G520
Mayany Sasl Sdn. Brul* Malaysla Inactive 06.60 B5.26
HNatvwansa Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Darmant 86,60 G526
Pakatan Perakbina Sdn. Bhi Mataysia Propenty development 96.60 B65.26
Pminacke Trend San. Bhd, Malaysia Propey developmsant 96,60 B5.26
PYP Sondinan Berhad Mataysia Proporty developmant 96.60 6526
Sandy Biand Pte, Lid.* Singapore Real estate development 96,60 6526
Satria Sl Sdn Bhwl Malysia Darmant 96.60 A5%26
Sartul Raya Sdn, Bhd* Malaysia Property davelopment and property 9660 B5.26
rvestment
Semul Raya Gotf Club Barhad® Malaysia Inactive 96.60 68526
Sartul Raya City Sdn Bhd * Malaysia Pregorty dovelopmant 9660 E536
Sentul Park Managament Sdn Bhd * Maiaysla Park management 96.60 6526
SR Property Managemst SEn. Bho.” Mataysia Provision of prooerty management servioes . 9660 6526
Syarikat Kemajuan Perumahan Negara Mataysla Property development 96.60 Bh26
Sdn Bhd
Tiend Acres Sdn. Bhd, Malyiia Property developmant 96,60 65.26
Udapakat Bina Son. Bhd Madaysia Fregty developmant 8660 6576
YL Land & Davefopmert [MMEH) Malaysia Darmant 96,60 G520
Sdn. Bhl.*
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Etfective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Land &
Development Berhad: {cont'd.)
¥TL Land & Devalopment Managemeant Singaparg Provigion af finandial and managamant 9E.60 B5.26
Pre. Lid® omsultancy services
¥TL Westwood Properties Me. Lid* Singapae Real estate development 96,50 6526
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Power):
Abion Water Limited* England & Wales  Water supply and wiste waler services 28.16 2816
Bal Alr e Hadg Behoet BY.* Watharlands Iastment hokling 4575 .2l
frahazon Estates Limited ' England & Wales  Domant 55,21 -
BV, Hotel Bl Air Dun Haag® Wbl Larvds Bl iy 45.75 5521
Callular Structures Sdn. Bhd * Malaysia Inactive 3313 3313
Enterprise Laumdry Services Limited® England & Wales  Laurdry sennces 55.21 5621
Equingx Salar Farm Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Development. ownership, operaton and 5571 -
maentenanie of wilar alsokonltair pevenr
plants and related engineering,
procuremant, construction and
COMIMIAIoNING sanices
Extiva Commurscations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Inexc five 3313 3113
Figper Limited* Englanid b Wales Uity Switching services 35.89 1589
FrogAsia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Licence resefler Focused on prosding wirbual 55.21 E5.21
Ieaming eduzatian platfarm :
Frog Education Limied* England & Wales  Sales imto the education market and further ~ 38.06 30,06
dinelopment of the welb envifanmant
product
Frog Education Group Limited® Enciland B Wales  Imestmont halding IA.06 006
Frog Education Sdn, Bl Malaysia Licerise reseller Focused on provdding wirual 38.06 3006
leaming educatianal platarm
Ganeco EV (5) Pre. Lid® Singepare Electric vehicke charging staticn 55.21 55.21
Caneca Limited* England & Wales  Food waste reatment 55.21 5521
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of i subsicharies ane as tollows: (contd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Hald through YTL Power
International Berhad
{“YTL Pawer"): (cont'd.}
Geneco [South ‘Wast) Limited* England & Wales  Food waste treatrment 55.21 5521
Glabal Infrastructume Assets Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Imvestment holding 5521 5521
Granete Investments (Cayman lands) Cayman tslands  Darmant 55.21 5521
Limated’
K5 Ahman Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia Imyestment holding 2319 2119
Karsartium fringsn Selangar Sdn. Malaysia Planning, mmplememation and maintenarce 2313 3313
Bhd.” of telecommunication towers and
telecoimenundcatian related servioes
Patroteraya Pte. Lid * Singapore 0l trading & od tank leasing 55.21 5521
BT YTL |awa Tamur® Indonesia Construction management, consultancy 55.21 55.21
services and power station operation
SEIVCRE
P YTL Power Sorvices indonesis' Imiammsia Danmant 52.45 5245
P.T. Tanjundg Jatl Power Company® Incdonesia Design and construction of 3 coal-fired 4427 4417
Pt generating facility
Seraya Enargy and Imeesiment Pte Singapore Imeestment holding 55.21 L |
Lid*
Saraya Energy Pte Lid* Singapare Sale of electricity 5521 5521
SC Technology Dedtochland Camb=* Caosimang Wastp troatimemt !.E.ZI. 55.21
SC Tedhnology GmbH* Switzesland Imeestment holding 55.21 55.21
5C Technoiogy Nededand BW.* Methotands Waslo troatmant 5521 5571
SIPP Power Sdn, Bihd, Malaysia Darmant 38.65 365
Suria Salar Farm Sdn B Malaysia Development, ownershig, operation and 55.21 -
mairtenance of solar photovoitac power
plants and related engineering
procurement, construction and
COMMISSArmng servees
Swword Badeo (Hokdings) Limited® England B Wales  Darmant - 5571
Sword Bidoo Limited ~ England & Wales  Darmant - 55.21
Swinrd Haldings Limetod = Cayman Klands Dafmarit - 5521
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Poiser
International Berhad
{"YTL Power™): (cont'd.)
Sword Midoo Limited = England & Wales  Domnant - E6.21
Taser Power Pre. Lid. Singapae Own and operate anergy Tacilities and 55,21 -
senvices [full value chain of electicity
feeneratic ingluding ading of physcal
Taal and fuel related defivative
inshumeants, =l sale of by-products from
e @HBCTTICITY DENETaTIN pIOCEss)
Water 2 Business Limited® England & Wales  Non-household water retailer 38.65 3865
Wessex Concienge Limited® Encland f Wales  lovestment hokfing 5521 5521
Wessax Electricity Litiithes Limited England & Wafes  Dommant - E5.21
Westexn Cnoineering & Constructon Cnoland & Wales  Cngineering services 5521 21
Services Limited*
Werisix Logistics Limited = England f Wales  Domiasnt - 55.21
Wesson Promations Lid.® England & Woles  Domant - Ehal
Werisan Proparty Senvices Limimed England & Wales  Domant - 55.21
Wrksan Spring Water Limited = England & Wales  Dommisn? - 55.21
Wessey Water Commercial Limited * England fs Wales  Domnan: - Eh.21
Wikt Water Engineeting Sendces England B Wales  Dommnang 5521 55.21
Liemited !
Wessen Watnr Enterprises Limited England ke Wales  PoOwar Qeneranion and wasti Treatmant 55.21 55.21
Wessex Water Intemational Limitec * Cayman |slands Domans 55.21 Eh.21
Wesan Waler Limited® England f Wales  Ivestmint hokling 55,21 3521
Weszay Water Pension Scheme Trustee  England £ Wales  Domant 5521 E521
Lirmitead "
Wessan Wiater Senvces Finance Pic® England & 'Wales  Issue of bonds 5521 5521
Weszae Waler Seeacedt Limitsl® England fs Wales  Water supphy and wasle waler senvices 55.21 3zl
Weszex Water Trustes Company England & Walas  Dommant 55.21 E5.21
Lirmited !
Wessay Uity Solutions Limded* England & Wales  Enginesring services 55.21 6521
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of thie subsichanes an as follows: (oontd)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T Y
Haold through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
["YTL Pawer"): (cont'd.)
Yakin Telese| Sdn Bhd.* Malaysia Planning, implementstion and maintenarce 16.23 1823
of teleCommunicacions infrastnictune and
telec ommunecation related services
YouLine Sdn Bhd Malaysia Provision of solition and services relating 3313 EENE]
1o infernat of Things (l0T) initiative
¥TL Broadusd Sin, Bhi Mty sid Provislon of wired line and wireless 26,50 2650
broadirand access winl othel related
SEIVCES
¥TL Communications Intermationad Cayman klands  rvestment holding 3313 EENE]
Liritad !
¥TL Commumications Sdn. Bl Malaysia Provision of wired line and wireless 3313 3414
broadtand access and other related
NG
¥TL Communications [5) Pre, Ltd* Singapore Computer systems integration activities 3313 3313
and sysiem integration sendoes
¥TL Developmants (UX) Limited* England & Wales  Housirg developmont 55.21 5521
¥TL Dagitad Sdr. Bhil Matmytia Inactive 33aa EERES
¥TL Education (LK) Limied' England & Wales  Dormant 55.21 5521
¥TL Emergy Hokdings Son. Bhd, Malaysia Irvistment holding 5521 5570
¥TL Engineering Limied" England & Wales  Darmant 55.21 5524
¥TL Evenitd Limiad* England & Wales  Concert promaticn 55.21 5521
¥TL Finance (Cyprus) Lid" Cypius Fimanclal Services 55.21 -
YL Globl Metworks. Limibed " Cayman tslands  Darmant 3313 3213
¥TL Homes Ltd* England & Wales  Housing development 55.21 55481
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
{7YTL Power™): (cont'd.)
YTL Infrastrscture Holdings Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Imestmant holding 55.21 E6.21
¥TL Infrastrscture Limited ' Cayrman |slareds Investmant hokding 55.21 55.21
YTL jawa Energy BV, Hetharlands Investmant holding and finanoing activities G621 5h21
YTL Jawa O & M Haldings BV, Hatberlands Ivvastmant hokfing 55.21 E5.21
YTL Jawa O & M Holdings Limited® Cypns Imverstmant hokfing 55.21 55.21
WL dwia Povet BLY. Mt | anids livsersbinent holdsng FLES S5
¥TL Jawa Power Finance Limited ! Cayman Iklands  Financial sendces = 5a21
¥TL Jawa Penwer Haklings DY, Mietherland Inestment hakfing JLES FL5S
YIL Jawa Hower Holdings Limited™ Lypns Ivvestmznt holding b financing actties 55.21 bhel
YL jordan Power Holdings Lmigod® Cyprues Imestment holding & Tnancing actitios 5521 55.21
YTL josdan Services Holdings Limited® Cyprs Imestmznt holdng 55.21 E5.21
YTL Lamd & Froparty [UK) Lid.* England F: Wales  Invastmant holding 5521 55.21
¥TL Places Limitea" England & Walss  Domant 55.21 6621
YTL Power Austiaka Limited ' Cayman |slands Invastimant haokfing 5521 55.21
¥TL Power Finance (Cayman) Lemited'  Coyman Islands  Gommant 55.21 £5.21
YTL Power Deneration Sda Bhd,* Milayila Develaplng, constrecting, completing, 55.21 521
maintaining ard oparating power planis
¥TL Pawer Haldingt Sdn. Bhd Malayruia Damang 556.21 55.21
YTL Power iwestmsnts Limies ' Canyman Islands imestment holding 55.21 5521
YTL Pewsor irvtormatinnal Holdings Caiman |slands Immstmpnt hakding 5571 55.21
Limmited !
Y¥TL Pawer Resourtes Sdn. Ohd. lalmyrtia Investmert hakding 55.21 5521
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15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of i subsicharies ane as tollows: (contd )
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
MHame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities T T
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad
["YTL Power"): {cont'd.]
¥TL Powerseaya Pre. Limited. Singapore Cwwn 2nd operate energy faclities and 55.21 5521

semnvices (full value chain of efectricity
peneration including trading of physical
fuels and fuel related dervative
InStuments, Tank leasing activities and
salia of by-products Trom the alactricity
OENBTATON ¥ O0E%s)

¥TL Powvet (Thailand) Limined ' Cayman klands  Darmant 5521 5521
¥TL Power Tracing (Labuan) Lid Mataysia Darmarit 55.21 5521
¥TL Progerty Holdings (LK) Limited* England & Wales  Housirg development 55.21 5521
¥TL Seraya Limited ! Cayman klands  Irvesiment halding 5521 5521
¥TL Services Limited ' England & Wales  Darmant 55.21 o521
¥TL SIPP Py Holdings Sdn. Bhl Mataysia Ireestment holding IDES IES
FTL Utilities Limived * Cayman Blands  Imeestment holding 55.21 55.21
¥TL Utilities Finarce Limited ' Cayman klands Financial 4endcios 5821 5521
¥TL Utilities Finance 2 Limited ! Cayman islands  Imvestment holding 55.21 L |
¥TL Wrilities. Finance 3 Limited ' Cayman llands  Financial sanioos 55.21 5521
¥TL Wiiitles Finance 4 Limied ' Cayman kslands  Inactive 55.21 5521
¥TL Wtilities. Finance 5 Limitied ! Caymian hlarids Inactive 5521 3521
¥TL Utiitles Finarce & Limited ' Cayman lslands  Financial sarvices 55.21 554
¥TL Utilities Finance 7 Limitad ! Cayman tslsnds  Inactive 55.21 5521
¥TL Wtilities Hodings Limited ' Cayman slands  Imvestment halding 5521 5521
¥TL Utditles Ho'dings (5) Pre. Limited® Singapore Irvestment holding 55.21 5521
¥TL Urilities (5) Pre. Limited® Singapore Irmeestmi=nt hinlding 55.21 5521
¥TL Utdities (UK} Limiged® Emgland & Wales  Irvestment holding §E21 5531
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the cubssdianes are at follows (cont'd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarparation Princhpal Activities T %
Held through YTL Power Sarvices
Sdn. Bhi.:
¥TL Power Services (Cayman) Lid ' Cayman islands Inactive 100,00 10000
YTL Power Services (Leb) SARL* Lebaran Cperation & maintenance of power station 100000 10000
YIL Power Sarvices (%) Pre, Lid* Singapare Operation & maintenance of pewer station 100,00 10000
Held thraugh YTL Singapore
Pie. Ltd.:
Cuangehou Autedome Food & Beverage  The People’s Cateding management & hatel menagement 100000 10000
Management Co., Lid.* Repuiliic af China
Shanghal Autodome Food ke Beverage Thi People's Catefing, sae of beverage, wing, tableware, 100,00 10000
Co., Led* Respublic of China saUvenir B armsare
Shigixjhal ¥TL Hodirls Manageiment This Prpbir's Hotel management serviges, hiolel - 100,00
Co, Led*~ Republic of China developmeant. design advisery servces &

other retated wervices

* Sulbsddiaries not audited by HLB Les Lum PLT

*  Dissohved duing the Tnanclal yea

Entities ame either @xemgitied or ol STAUEGSy required 1o be audited

Thase subsldiaries have changed thelr francial yeat end from 31 December to 30 june effedtive fram 18 November 2019,
First audited Tinanciad statements in 2021

Prénnoesly wids an assonated comgany and beceme @ Sulisidany during e finandial year,

Previously was a subisadiary and berame an assotiated company during tha financial year
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15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
[3] Acguisition of subsidiaries
Acquisitien in 2020
(I}  Acquisiton of Floo Tay Minh Cement joint Stock Company

On £ August 2019, Concrete Star Limited (Concrete 51ar] and Industrial Procurement Limited (T industrial Procureémeant’),
bith afe wholy-cwnad subsidanas of YTL Cament [Hong Kong) Limited which in turn i & whaly-owned subsdiary of
the Comparry, acqured 309 and 20% of issued and paid-up share capital of Nhu Anh Investmant Joint Stock Compary
{"Hhu Anh) comprising 63,000 and 46,000 ordinany shares of YROL0,000 each for cash conskderation af VNOZ7E 400000000
and WHDIBSE00.000.000 respattively, A% & resull, Nhu Anh Became an irdirect subsadiany of e Company.

Frllowing this acnuisition, Fico Tay Ninh Cement joint Stock Company (Fico Tay Nan Cement™) and its subsdiary, Fieo
Binh Diarg Cement Single Momber Linstod Lisbillty Conpany baeamp indireet subisstianies af the Campary theaugh the
shareholdings by Mh Anh and indistrial Procurement.

Detaik of the consideration translerred arec

RMO00

Purthase consideratsan 15176
Less: share of net assets acquired

Fair value of net assets acouired G55, 4408

Share to non-coptraling mieneats {11450

513998

Provvisioral goodiill 201,180

Thie pravisonally détevmingd fair valoes af the aiders and lahilites as a8t the date of acquisition ane 85 follows:

Falr value
RMO00
Broperty, plant and equipment 333,208
Intangihle assets .99
rvestment in assooated company =1
Other investmanis 180291
Defemed tax assets i
mveniories 40,535
Recaivaliis 24,973
Cash and tash equivalents 101,640
Other assets ELERE]
Payablies and Scruped exprses [66.555)
Identifiable nat assats acquired 655,448
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{a} Acquisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.}
Acquisition in 2020 (cont'd.)
{iy Acquisition of Fico Tay Ninh Cement joint Stock Company (cont'd.]
Detalls of cash flow arising from the acqusition are as follows:

RM'O00
Puschase cormsideration 5178
Trarster of oot of invesiment in farmer assocates naw became subsidianes [FEEAT
Additienal prrchase consderation 62,663
Less: cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acguired [10LG40)
Acquisitinn of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 18,977

Acquisition in 2019
() Acquisitien of Lafarge Malaysia Barhad ("LME™)

Ori 2 May 2019, ¥YTL Cement Bashad ["YTL Comsent™| entened intD 3 sale and purchase of shares agreemen with Assocated
Intermatonal Cement Limited for the acquisition of 433,344,693 odinary shares in Lafarge Maaysia Barhad (LMB7.
representing approamately 51.0% of the lssued shane capetal of LMH for @ total cash consideration of RMLbES, DM 255 5
o RMA.TS oo LMA Share (CAcuitition”),

Thee Acquisition was completed on 17 May 2019 and, accordingly, LME became a subsidiary of ¥TL Cement. Fallowing the
Acquisitian, ¥YTL Cement launched an undanditional mandatory genoeral affer [MGD0) for the remaining shares in LME not
already cwaned by YTL Cement at an offer price of BMA75 per LMB share, At the closing of the MG on 13 june 2019,
acceptance of the offer have been recened for 220,764,635 shares with a total cash onsloeration of AMBZ?, 867361
AS 3 result, YTL Coment cwnied a tofal of 76.98% of the fioued thane capital ef LMA.

Details of the consideration transformed ans

RM 00O

Purchase considesation 2452910
Lirs shawo of 18 255075 doquired

Falr vatue of net assats acquied 2466070

Share goodwill 1o non-controling interests (248, 360)

2217710

Provisional goodwil 235,200
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15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
[a) Rcguisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.)
Acquisition in 2019 joont'd.)
(i} Acquisiton of Latarge Malaysia Berhad (“LMB") (cont'd.)

Thie prowisionally determingd camying amount of (he assets and latelites a5 a1 the date of acqusition s as follows

Carrying
amaunt
RM'O00
Property, plant and equipmant LETT633
Investment proporties 4467
Intangible assets LA04.349
Irestment in pint ventires 22332
Other enstimsrty 4,107
Deferred 1ax assets T202T
frvenianies EEECES]
Recetvaliles 396,351
INCome tax 3558t 42970
Cash and Lash equivalents 48.938
Payables and accroed expenses {a7L. B3
Barhiraings (929.835)
Retirement benefits (54,016)
Desvative Tirancial irfruments 160
Mon-cantrolling intoerests {B.414]
Identifizhle nat assats acmuired 2AEROT0
Dietails of cash lowy arising from the acquisition are as foliows:
RM000
Purchase carsideratian Z452910
Less; cash and cash eguivalents in subskdary acquited (48,938)
Miet cash outlioe: on scquiition 2403972
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

{a} Acquisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.}
Acquisition in 2019 {contd.)
{il} Holcim {Singapore) Limited {*Holdm®)

On 19 june 2019, YTL Cemant Singapore Pre. Lid, YTL Cement Singapore™), a wholy-owned subsidiary of YTL Cement
Berhadl, atquired 90,78% of the Bsued shara copital of Hokim (Singapara] Limited ["HGL7), comprising 40236655 ordnary
shares, at a total cash consideration of SGD65,9868,114.20, As a result, H5L became a subsidiary of ¥TL Cemant Sngapare
and an indeect subddiany of the Group.

Detalls of the consideration transferned ans

RMOO0

Purchase consideration 201,950
Lessss dhaia of Ml astets aoguirad

Fair value ol mel assels atguied 17,090

Shate goodwill o an-controling interests [L376)

15,514

Provisional goodwll 186,436

The prowssionally determinad carrying amaunt of the assats and lisbilities a5 at the date of acguisition are a5 Tollows:

Fair value

RM'DO00

Property, plant and squipment 50,547
Irventones 5387
Roonvabies 18,008
Casth and cash equivalents B850
Payables ard acorued expenies {34.586)
Icentifiable net assets atquired 17080
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
[a) Acquisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.)

Acquisitien in 2019 jcont'd.)

(i) Holcim [Singapore) Limited (“Holcim™) (cont'd.)
Detais of cash flow ansing from the acqusiman @e as folknws:

RM"O0O

Purghase consideratkan 201950
Lesscash and cash eguivalents In subshdarny acgured {8.650)
Mt cash outtiw on aruisition 193,300

The purchase price allocation of the acquistion of Lafarge Mataysia Berhad and Holcim (Singapere] Ltd in the financial year
ended 30 june 2019 were provisioral as the Group s 3t in the process of ascertaining the fair value of the identifiable
AEl A55Ets

(il) Complation af purchase price allocation for Lafarge Malaysia Berhad and Holcim [Singapore]) Limited

During the year 2020, the Group has completed the purchase price allocation exercise 1o determing the Tair values of
thie nat assets of Ladarge Makaysia Berhad and Holom [Singapore] Limited withn the stipulated thme period, le 12 months
fram thie acquisition date of 17 May 2019, in accordance with MFRS 3 "Busingss Combinations”,

The Infermation are as follows:-

Lafarge Halcim
Malaysia (Singapore)

Barhad Limited

RM'000 RMDDO

Purthase considaratan 2452510 201950
Liss: hirt dssots acquired after less pon-contramog Inberosts [2192135) {724)
Final gandwil PROTTS Fari B LT

Duwe 10 immateral difference beoween Tinal and provisional goodwill, the Group used prospective mathod instead of
mitioapective methad on the adustment of goodwall
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

{b) Derecognition af SGREIT

Sace Apnl 2020, Tha Crowp has previded an undertaking to the trustes of SCREIT to grant the other unitholdars the right to
enckirsi ar re-endarse the appoimiment of directors of YTL Stashill Glatsal REIT Management Lemited at the annual general
meatings of SCREIT. The Group has. determined that it does not hawve control over SGREIT but continues 1o have significant
Irflsence awer the irvestment

At date of
disposal
RMOO0
Property, plant eaquipment &0
IMVESTMENT properties 9244013
Right-af-use assets 2,030
Trade and other recalvabies 45571
Derhvativis inancial nsoroments 2,349
Cash and cash equivalents 24587
Trade and other payables {215.235)
Hands and Borrowings (3493431
Lease llabfties [2.053)
Deferred tax labaldios [15.348)
Dervative linancial insiromoents (Bl @1
Ircomie tax llabaries {9,639)
Met assets and llabilities 5741374
Shara of net assets derecognition of 2108770
Fareign exthangs masng (256, T4E)
[ain on derecagnition to the Group 250,506
Total conslderationfrecognition on asseciate company 2111528
Thit meT cash Tlows on derecogninion is determned as Tollows:
Cash and cash equivalents o derecognised subsidary [245,871)
Cash outflow to the Group on derecognition [245.871)
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[c} MNon-controliing interests in subsidiaries
Thi L.mup 5 subeidlaries that hase macesial mn-n:-l:nlrnlmg intEests "N arg as Tollows:
Difer
Maliyan  Individuslly
¥TL Power SGREIT ¥TL REIT Cement Immateniz
Group Gresip Growp Beshad  subsidiaries Tatal
AMOG0 RAMO00 RHODO RM D00 RH'000 RM000
Group - 2020
O effectve equiy nienes! #4.75% e ] 43.05% 23.00%
Camying amours of RO 1884214 = 655,741 208,172 360466 3149533
Lirss)/Profn allacaid 1o HO faLsz7) 24,603 17.276 [31,150) 44,632 13,834
Sumrmarised Fraccial informaton befone
Inter-pampany elreaton
As ¥t 30 Jume 2020
Hor-OuTent 3sseTs 35,685,632 - 4409243 3044454
Cipment msets 11452503 = 104,293 55767
Herurar Babiitiey [25.418,661) = [203TAE4) f243.197)
CuTent fabities {5,676, 720) - 00.173F  [L095.706)
Nift vt 12,042,754 - 2555099 2.200MB
Year ended 30 June 2020
R e 10637017 435,212 426,445 1399476
Frafitfoss] for the year 127.704 174,354 0,594 [133,136)
Tatal comgrehersive flossynome {130,651) 39,558 (86,800  [134534)
Canh Flow from operting actiifies L2786 302656 1g5.381 93,769
Carth Plow usod in investing activitiss f{L517.95) {74.700) [B.624) (24,731)
Cast Pow s in fieanging activities (128,076)  (20LE91)  [184.305) [43,640)
Nt changes in cash and b eguivalests (724,247 25,996 (7,548} 15,338
Devidendd pand ta I 1I7.aT8 138,495 43,235 -
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15. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{c) Mon-controlling interests in subsidiaries {cont'd.)

Thie Group's subsidianes that have materal non-cantroliing interests ("NO®) are as follows (contd)

Other
Malayan  indiddually
YL Power SCREIT YTL REIT Cement  immaterial
Growp Groug Graup Berhad  swhsidiaries Total
RHG00 RM'C00 RM000 RH0O0 AMO0D RMO0D
Group - 2019
WOl effextive oguity mborost 4479 B A305% Z305%
Camying ancunt of NCI 2537 806 AmLieEa TIEA3T 246.3TH 220046 THILES
Profit i) afotated v NI 70,738 198445 AL125 [EE:] [33.402) ATES528
Summarad finangal infefmaton Belor
Inte-company elmination
As at 30 jane 2019
- Cumend ety M IEEB22 8373 T8 ABALAS 3432128
Crrent wsets 12104155 235,935 183,518 1008743
Waretumeet Babiites EAIEA [ Gad) {LOIT, 35 (33255
Cumend iabiiti=s (HOLL2T,005] [B00.395] (LIED.3TT) [L873537)
Mt Jusets 12870662 S506535 L732100 2544075
Yot ended 30 fune 2009
Aesvirun 11732716 B335 490,905 1E2022
Profit/flass) for the year Bl3524 108,282 104,673 {17294y
Totad comprehensive incomelass) 414374 230 152743 {17155
Cash fhow fremifised in| operating activities 1248400 94 221678 B35
Cash Now Trsmused in] rwssng aciites 137412 [23.202) [M7E95) I
Cash Herat st inlenm Nnancie achaties [1.267.562) [P4T.734) Pk -Hd .
het PG i Cirsh and cirsh equialnms 118250 a3 =535 (LT
Umnden pasd %o MU 114 B2 SR.005
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Group Campany
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM000 RM'DO0 RM 000 RM000
Quoted shares, at cost 2111715 = 170,994 -
Unijuoted ondnary shanas, at cost 1.324.158 L7443 205,241 205241
Share ol post-acquisition [osores B49,170 Qo538 - -
Arcumidatad impalmant [oses (&8, 210) (BSOE) -
4,216,843 238L16S 376,235 el5241
Details of the asociate se as follows
Effective Equity
Interast
Flace of 2020 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities S %
Held by the Company:
Express Rail Lnk Sdn. Bhd.® Malaysia Operaticn & madntenance of the Express  45.00 A45.00
Rail Link radweay system batwaen iuaki
Lumpur Intemational Airport and Kuala
Lurnpur intemnational Alrpart 2 in Sepang
with Kuala Lumgur Sontral Statian
Trans-Padfic Resorts Sdn, Bhd Mataysia Inactive 50.00 50.00
Held through Dusiness & Dudget
Hotels Sdn, Bhd.:
Bisiness & Budger Hoatels {Kuantan) Malmysia kot aparstar s0.00  S0.00
San. B,
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn., Bhd.:
Harth South Development Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Realty. investmart & management services 49,00 49.00
Held through YTL Cayman Limdved:
¥TL {Thailard) Limited® Thafand Imvestment holding 49,90 4990
Starhill Chobal Real Estate Investment Sigapore IPrvsTmiEnt i prime real estate 36.74 -
Trusy™?
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Cementitious Products Pte. Lid* Sanapore General wholesals frade {including gererl 49,00 4901
impartess and sxporters)
Fico Tay Minh Coment oind Stack Vietnam Manufacture & $ale of ordinary portiand - 49,04
Comgpany** cement & blended cement
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D.)

Dotals of the associate arg a5 follows: (oonbid.)

Effective Equity
Intarest
Place of 2020 2019
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities ¥ Y
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{eant'd.)
Hangehou Liran Hemn Conseruction Thee Peoples Quarry business B ralated services 2840 940
Marerials Co., Ltd* Repubiic of China
v Anly Invrsimont joint Siock Vininam Iranstment hakfing - 4900
LWIJEI‘U"
Supih Aggregates Sdn. Bhil Malaytia Extraction, remaval. proacesting & wale af  49.01 aam
sand
Tan Son Company Limited® Virtnam Quarrying of stone, sand & lay 20.58 -
Held thraugh ¥TL e-Solutions
Berhad:
Erslloss Momentum Sdn Bhd,® Malyyrsia Inverstment holding 2000 3000
Held through ¥TL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
Eastem & Orental Express Lid ™ Bermuida Ownership & management of the lusury  32.00 3200
train services known g the Eastorn &
Orieaal Expeesy’
suin Bay Company Lid, ** Thailand Hatet aperaimt 45.00 43,00
Trans-Pacfic Hotels San. Bhd. Malaytia Inactive 50.00 S0.00
Held thraugh YTL Power
international Berhad:
Electrablet Py, Lid+* Australla Frincipal eflectrcity trarsmission 18.50 1850
Enalit jordan B! MNetharlands Iestmant halding 16.56 1656
P.T. jawa Powor=* indoncsia Cpedating a coal-fired thermal powor STathn 11.04 1104

*  [ompanies not audited by HLE Les Lum PLT

U Companies with financial year end of 31 December

' Entities are cithor exemgited or nat statulonby requied 1o Be auditod

+ The Croup's direct Intedest in Electradet Py, Lid and P.T. jawa Power are 33.5% and 35.0% respectively
' Previously was an assocated company and became a subrsidiany during tha financial year

b Previcusly wias 4 wibidlany and becaing an awmociated coimpany during tha inangial year

Ao imefcated above, the fgncial year enc of cenen assodiatied companies ane ol co-terminous with that of e Gowp, For the
purpose of apgying the sguity methol ol aocoumting, thess companies’ unadited Tnanclel statements mede we te 30 june wane
Lsed in canunction with thesr audited financal statements foc the financial year ended 31 December &5 the case may ba.
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTD.

Thig Summansed Tinancial intormation o1 matenal a5s0Ciates adjusTed Tor any Aerences in aounting policies DeDween the Group
andd tha associlet and recontlimion 1o the (emying amount of the Croup's mterest in the associates ame as follows:

(a) Summarised financial infarmation:

Starhill Clokal Beal Estabe Fices Tiry Kinh Cemedd

FT. [ani Power Electrabiet Pry. Ltd Imnvestment Trust Jalet Stnck Company
Faih L] fra 1] 208 Fa 1 Pt e 2020 Fricil]

A0 ANGOS  RMOO AMOD  RMOGD RHIO00  RAO00

M- Dt B st

nen
EHD00
4545345
{uren ety LOsEATE 1LTa410 1aTaed (¥ AN
[se241)
(252.964)

iiRElE IBEPLIEI  SEmIE AESAR i
200 E S =
M-t it EIRS (RTERIE] (EETEE)  (R400.04%) ]
Cumen babiltes @37 | [HZI51%) LEITY | (REL9GT) - - [
N sty 4T4E51S ST LI343M0 LBE0T SA3SSIS SR
Frafitin ot the firarcl yeir 1155080 B0 I lss [FRomy E
Tehed cixrprabenibe bty . . RLTS  O7RE 5] -
Tod copreherie oot LISROSDT  BRDE SATR SRS (4TRSRR) . -
included im the total
o ehits e Fme i
Ap 2168 BEESS  LOBASE LS LA . 25
e infeermation:
Dhviders regeive rom associate Mo W - - T4m
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D.)

The sumamarised finarcial information of material associates adjusted for any differences in acoounting policies bEtween the Goup
and the ssodastes ard reconciliation to the carrying amount af the Groups interest in the awoclates are o5 folows: (cont'd)

{b) Reconciliation of net assets to carrylng amount:

Startill Gaokal Resl Eiticy Tic3 oy Wil et

1T s P Eectrabiet Fy. L1 ivectment Trost Joit Stack Company Tota!

wea s i | it} ] 9 o F 1] o) F L]
Gpmmpretame Iy AAEME A LEGED  LdE - - s SMLME  SGEIIW
et of 2 fumes stk

[EOE TR O

y . EMLEY : T :
FORER Y - - 11 - B 1807 Bl
Frofifiey for e

i pes AL T =T TEE mEs [arLodd) - ERr RS - T v ]
TR (IR

ety - e T TR T - o
Fore it ;

e L L T . 1 R am - s ma e
Dhiend pesd ) - . + @I ) s
Oeegatones Nhee  ANESIS QB3N LIMW0 SO0 SAKSS - MRS ISMEAM  EM02
T P AR

Smitcdyubulay MM BN TSN HDe XEMK 4 &

P Em LR W am 1w < PE O ASEN  zse
Ly st LEA  URE W S 180 . MM AWSER e

Gondwll amounting to RM23, 357,000 (2015 AMIE511,000) was indluded In the camying amount af vestment in assodated
CUATIpanEs,

The individually immaterial assoclata’s cammying smount s AMI1L167.000 {2019 RM358,364.000) and the Group’s share af
fotal comprehensivie kiss |s AM3E 176,000 (2005 toral comprenensive loss is AMB020,000),
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EI‘IHJP
2020 2019
RM 000 RM000
Unquoted ondnary shares, ak cost 276,786 265,363
Share ol post-acquisition recerves {107.32E) 2205
Accumidatod impaimment losses |4.286) (3,388)
165,174 264,184
Details of the joint ventures are az follws:
Effactive Equity
Interast
Flace of 2020 2019
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activitios L T
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
Aliarce Conorele Singspore Fe, Ltd Singapare Production and sale of ready-mi concrate Ir.7a EEAE]
Held through YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Shonefront Development Sdn. Bhad Malaysia Property development 4830 1263
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad;
Altarat Mindong Company BY, Methedtancts Miniing & supply af il sheke £24.84 24,64
Attatat Operation and Maimananca Metherands Operaticn & maintenance of Power Plant 24.84 24.84
Company BV,
Attarat Poweer Holdirg Company BV, Ritherkanch Irvestmunt bakfing and financing activiters. 24,84 24,04
Birstol Wessex Billing Services Limited  England & Wales  Billing services £7.61 P |
H¥ehanging Maliyuia Sdn, Bhd Malaysia PMobile Intermit and cloud-bated tochnalogy 1657 1657
solutions
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D.]

The summanised financal information of mateia joim seniums adjusioed Tor any diferences in accounting poliches bohwesn thi
Groug and the joint vendures and reconciliation to the carrying smount of the Croup's sntenest in the joint ventures sm as lolkows:

{a) Summarised financlal information:

Attarat Powar Holding Arrarat Mining
Company B.V. Company B.W.
2020 2019 2020 2019

RM'OO0 RM'DO0 RM'O00 RMDO0
Non-ClTent assets B,049,694 5,484,153 9,290 3251
Current assels 61,145 31526 337,590 354,220
Mon-ciamant llabilites (7.880,832) {B7ILO14) - .
Curredwt liatelities (310, 466) (SFES58) {132,650} {123.313)
Net assets (80,459) 206,109 214,230 232158
[Lems)/Profit for the Fnancial year [35.117) (20.E35) 16,844 107.234
Other comprehenshe |ows [253,204) (1'28,096) -
Total comprefensive (loss)fintomea (288,411} [218.231) 16,844 07234
Includad in the total comprehensive

Income is:

Revenue - - 57,960 475,499
Other information:
Cwidends received from joint venture - - 18.930 9.278
Cash and cash equivalisnts 32 457 26135 26,633 FADEE
Sharehoiders boan and related Interest [2.464,519) ({1,936,891) - -
Biank bomawings [4.976,577) (16I5914) - -
Cerivitive feancial mstrumants (431.520) (168.208) - '
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17. INVESTMENT IN |DINT VENTURES (CONT'DL)
The summarised financial infomation of material joint ventures afjusted for any diffe/snces in lcounting policies between The

Grouip and thie jint sentuies snd redondiBation 10 the cangng amount of the Group's interest in e [aint ventures are a5 Tolows:
fcontd)

[b) Reconcliiation of net a55ets (o CAFTYing amount:

Attaean Power Holdings Attarat Mining
Cempany B.V. Comgany BV, Total
2020 209 2020 2019 2020 2015
RM'000 RN RM 000 RM000 RH'000 RM000
Opening net assots, 1 iy 206,109 FE.H5 232,158 141524 438,267 20TES
TMIE3SE i pgurty” - 362,424 - - - 290
(LosslPt for the financial year [35,117) (20.135) 16.644 107,24 18.273) i)
{ther comprehenmde ks {253.254) {198,096} - - 253,204 (%8056
Devivsrnl il = . [42.067) [Z0.617) [42.067] [BOELT)
Foreagn ewtbange diferences 1643 21 7.295 4017 5.138 LIE
Clasing; et avsets, 30 june [, 459) 100 24,230 EERAL 1337 4T
niteiest i joing verees drect hokd by
wbcdary 45.0% 4500 45,0 506

Geougr's interest [26.207) 2145 56,404 104,871 68,157 157,220
drmecogrised share of net amets 36,207 - - - 36.207 -
Carmying armount - 37,745 95404 144871 96,404 197,230
Curmtitive shane of lesses 36.207) - - [36.207)

*  During the previous financial year, gint venture sharehaolders of Attarat Power Hokling Company BLY, made share premium
contrilsution on it shares in Ataat Powe Holdng Company BY. for censidetation of RM362.9 milkon; settiement by way
of offsetting the loars owing to the respedtive pint vontere sharehalders

The Individually immatenal jeint venfures’ carmying amsaunt is BMED D millien (201% RMEZ.O million). Group's share of prafits is
RMA2.3 million (2015 RMZ.7 mallion] and the Groug™s share of tatal comprobensie ks is RTM3E1 million (2005 o1l cotnpr shondive
foss of RMEBL4 million),
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18. INVESTMENTS

Graup Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Mote RM'000 RM D00 RMDOO RM'ODO
Hon-current assels
Financial assets at fair valua through
profit or joss 16[a) 362,195 346,510 35,226 34,968
Financial assets at fair valuo through
ather comprehansive income 18[n) 42,716 E3451 9,599 QA7T
404,911 409,971 44,825 A4, 4485
Currant assets
Fimanclal assats at fair vatue theough
profit or loss 16[a) 2.301.989 23520947 755,189 T
{a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The ivestments are in relatian to the follewing
Graup Campany
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'OO0 RM'D00 RM'000 RM'DO00
Incame funds®
= Within Malaysia 476,102 B30T - -
= Duisice Malaysia 912,940 A59,158 - -
Exquity finds
Withiri Malaysia 5,909 5976 5.809 5976
= Dutside Malaysia 341,799 226,391 18,437 18,183
Quoted equety imestments
= Within Malxysia 3.071 4155 3,071 4,155
- Dutside Malaysia 7.809 6,340 7.809 6,340
Uingqixated equty investrams
= Dutsice Malaysia 3,607 3540 - -
Unguoted preference shares
- Within Malxysia - : - 5
Lingueated wain frusts®
= Within Malzysia 012,947 BE2,082 755,199 raran
2,664,184 2599457 790,425 BAZ245
Ml Bair yalue gain on imestments 25,976 B2.507 B23 1.288

* Financial assets a1 fair vialue through profit or oss consist of imvestmant in income funds and wnit sts placed with
licemsed financial institutions, The income furds and unit trusts are bighly lioud and readiy convertible to cash,
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[b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
The investments are in relazion to the falowang:
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 20149
RMO0DO RM'O00 RMO00 RM'O00
Quinted gquity mweitmants
- Within Malaysia \.097 1033 LS 4
- Cuitside Malaysia 14.141 11239 1 1
Unguated equity ivestments
- Within Hala;.r-;la. zl:_l.m 21343 9,594 9472
- Cutside Malaysla 412 L1 - »
42,716 BIAE] 9,599 3477
Het fair walus (loss)/gain on investmants (12,325) 11713 123 277
213
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19, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The details of intangibée asseis ane a5 follows:

Contract Goodwill on Saftware
rights  comolidation assels Others Tatal
Nate RMO00 RIMO00 RMO00 RM'O00 RHOOO
Group - 2020
At cost
At beginning af the financial year 143.995 7,960,260 - ‘89,869 8,194,124
Additans 13.266 = 162,102 - 175,368
Argubsition of sutridiaries - 243,332 - - 243,332
Currency transiation dif fesences 3828 36,031 [2.658) 127 ar.aza
Tranates fram propesty, plant and
eqipment * - - 386,204 - 386,204
At end of the financial year 161,000 8,239,623 545,647 B09,996 0,036,356
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At beginning of the financial year [24,720) (120.167) - (26,037) (170.924)
Amortisation tor the year 1 (B.8683) - 55.230) (5493 {69,606)
Currancy transkibon ditforondes {545} {150) B1E - 121
Impaime loss 7 3 (1.723) 3 = (1.723)
Transfer tmm propety. plant and
Equipment* - - [163,130) - {163,130)
At end of the financial year 34.144) (122.040) (217,544 [F1.530) (405,262)
Met carrying amownt
Al 30 |ure 2020 126,942 8,117,583 328,103 58,466 3,631,004

* Qg the feancial yoar, the Ceogp aeded o efae it arakis of aveets and kentity skements of o5 35561 tock B could Bo cisuf iod 5 inanghie sty
Foliowing] thes ememn, those bieh which maet the de'rition wen bansfenod Fom propedy, plasd and squpmedt 5 imaigdls et
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The details of intangible 355615 ane &5 Tobows: (Con')
Contract Goodwill on
rights consalidation Othars Taotal

Hote RH'OOD RHMOOO RM000 RM000
Group - 2019
Al cost
Al bieginning of the linancial year 137385 5,972 469 62314 6122168
Aafitions 4215 - - £215
Agupition of subsdaries . 1776586 27,783 1,804,362
Currency translation diffsrences 2395 261,205 (220} 2631372
At end of the linancial year 143,995 7,960,260 03,869 B.194.124
Accumulated amortisation and impairmant
At beginning of the financial year (17.281) {117,021} {11.991) [146,293)
Amoetisatian for the yoar 7 {7289 - 3527} {10,B0E)
Acquisition of subsdaries - - 10523 {13523)
Lumency translation differenices (156} [3148) - {4,302}
At end of the financial year |24, 720) {120,167) (26,037) [170,924)
Net carrying amount
Ar 30 [une 2019 119.275 740,093 63832 8,023,200

Cnodberill onby asises in businsss tombinations. The amaent of goodwill initialy moognised 4 depandent on the allocation of the
purchase price to the far value of the identifizble assets acquired and the Babllites assumed The determination of the fair value
of the assets and labiltes 5 baded, to 3 considerable extent. on managemant udgamant

Far the purposes of mmpalrment testing goodwil is allocated to the Group's cash-generating undts (20T identified according 1o
th Tollowing business segmants

Group

2020 2019
RMO00 RMO00
Lhilities 5,484,637 5454797
Coment manufacturing & trading 2,143.823 1,855,968
Management seraces 299,556 200,444
Property investment & development 96,231 96,231
Halol & mestaurant oparations 659,579 G217
Dahiess 23,757 25479
8,117,583 7840093
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19, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

Goodwill is- tested for impairment on an annual bass by comparing the casmying amourt with tha recoverabie amouwnt of 1he CoLS.
Thi recoveralie amount of these COUE was detenmined beted on value-ifeuse calculations, Creh Now projectsom wied In thase
calculations ware based on financial budgats approved by management covaring & fiva-yaar period. Cash flows beyand the five year
poriod wene extrapolated using the estimated growth rate The growth rate did not exceed the kang-tem awerage growth rate for
thi segment business in which the CGLE aperates,

{a) Hey assumption used in the value-in-use calculatien

The fallowing assumptian has bean applied in the value-in-use calodation for the two of the majoe goodwill in utiitles segmeant
ampunting to RM4.6 bifion (2015 RMAS billion) (A%) and RMEZ0 million (2015; AMB20 million) (787, respectively, and one of
the magoe goodwil in cement mamdfactring & trading (C7) segment amounting to RMLE billlan (2019 1.6 billon),

2020 2019
A B [ & A 1] [
] B b s £ ] ko] B
Prée-tax disoounts B3 21 91 6.3 44 1na
Terminal growth rate 200 (o&) 22 20 ol 21
Revenus growth 40 10 - 40 a7 -

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGUL The discount rates applied to the cash
flen prefEctions afe derhyed from the cost of capital plus & reasonable dsk premium at the date of the assessment af the
rerpet Ui COLL

Far DG A, cash iy propsctaons used n the viabue-in-uss caltulation wore bated on spprowed Ninancial budgets and lorecasts
v i Fve-ywar period, o Tosees beyond T Frye-yean period wiere extrapolated using the estinated growilh rates stated
abiove, The growth rate did not exceed the kong-temn everage growth rate in wiich the 06U operates.

Thea terminal growth rate indicates the expecied growth of cash flows afar tha Torecast period of fve years.

That Fevenue growth rate = caltulated using the Compound Annual Growth Rate method and applied on 1hi Current pears
SaliEs Tiguees cvor th Torecast period

Far CGU "B, cashi flow projections used 0 th value-in-use cale ilation were hased on apgeoved Tnaneial budgers and forecasts
cowaring a one yei perod, to confomm the final datemminations appraved by OFWAT, the economic requlator of the water
sector in England and Wales

Far 06U C7, cash fow prajections used in tha valua-name calculation ware baned on approved financiad budgets and Torecasts
cowering 3 five year pariod

Thix tormiral growth rate indicates the cxpeted growth of cash Taws ofter the Torecast peniod of fve years,
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19, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

{b) Sensitivity to change in key assumptions
Changing the assumptiors seacted by management used i e cash fow projections could significantly affact the Groups
rersll The Groug's neviews includes. porfoming sensitivity analysis af by asssemprions.

The cicumstances where @ change in key assumptians will result in the repoverable amounts of goodwil on the OGUS fo egual
the camespanding carmying amounts assuming no change in the ather variabies an as Tallows:

2020 2019
A B c ] B C
L % ¥ B B %
Pre-tax miscounts 74 428 193 bl 210 12
Tarminad growih rita 07 [\ a8 03 12 L0
Ry ety 20 (87} - 20 20 -
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Growig Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Mote RM'DOO RMOOO RM'DOO RM'O0OO
Non-current
Tiade meovivabiles 413 43,669 -
Othes recenabios 2133 11,556 -
Less: Allowance for mpalrment {2,133) {2,544} - -
Ot recivabies (ne1) - a,012 -
Desposits 16,670 541 -
Prepayments 66,345 15,668 - -
Hat ivestment in lease F2(a 11,693 -
Rocivables from asseciate companmy ™ 220,718 220,208 - -
Recewvables from 2 joint veniwe® 1L.104.266 BPLTS2 - -
1,419,705 1,159,120 -
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES [CONT'D.)

Group l:\ump-lm_'
2020 20159 2020 2018
Note RMO00 RM'ODO RM'000 RM'O00
Current }
Trade reccivablos 2,081,689 2732574 - -
Sharcholder amounts held by salicitors 23,742 67103 ) .
2,105,431 2800,077 0 .
Loy Allowance for impairment |557.230) [491.117) - -
Total trade meoeivahles [nat) lmzm £,308,5960 -
Other mecrivables** 401,705 B992.654 6,705 14,420)
Loss: Allowance for imparment | [154.E15) _(1SB086] {L765) (1.76%]
Total other recelvablos (net) 327.080 541618 4.940 12,655
Unbilled receivabikes TE6106 SH2E63 - .
Lats: Allirwsaics Fio linipainiiais _(7.568) = = -
Total unibited recewvables fnet) 758,538 W EET - =
Prepayments 360,608 104,693 28 63
Niet [rvestment In bease afa) 4193 - 4 5
Deposits 206,351 B,593 LO72 327
3,204,981 4,196,733 5110 13,345

~  Recewables from assodate comprise three loan notes 1o an assaciate. The notes have been issued by an assodate in acoordance
I @ iaan nate facity agimement. Thase moeivalios will marune in Detobor 20300 Cantingent intenests am recenabin on inan
mates o the extent that thene is sufficient available cash. I the event that cash & msufficient; inerest will be sccrued. The
interest rate of the loan notes averages at 13.25% per annum.

0 Recevables from a joint veniure comprse sharenolder ioans to Attarat Power Holdng Compary BV, that wholly oans Attarat
Power Camgany (CAPCDTL APCO iy developing a 554 megawatt oil shale fired power generation praject in the Hashemite Kingdom
of jordan. APCO has signed 3 30-yoar power purchase agrepment (including construction posiod of 3.5 years) with the Mational
Elactric Powed Company ("NWEPLOT, jordan's state-awnad wiiity, lor the entine electrical capadity and anergy of the power plant,
with an option for NEPCD 1o extend the power purchase agreement to 40 years (from the commencial operation date of the
propects second unit). Thie shanekolder loans and accrued interes? are repayatle on demand, The interest rate of the shareholder
lgans i a3t 15008 per amum. The sharehalder lgans inchudad a conwersion option to equity and waere measured at FUTPL o
AN The com@rsian aption was walved duing the financal year wihich represented a signefeant modifieadion of the contract
Lo, Tharisfore, U sharehokder kaas a1 FYTPL has Deen derecognised and it s now redognised o1 Tair vakie and subsequintly
meaasured at amortised costs.

** In 2015 a foreign subsdiary of the Group has recogresed ather receivablies, arsing from kqudated damages for early termination
o (P wi iniciny retall comiracty basisd oo Uwe anlfobiedbie dghts stipulabed in thie nesghscting contracts, Thie el was Dieard
at the end of 2017 followed by a further hearing in Movember 2018, An allowance far impaiment of recelvables of RMP0.Y
million [SG023.4 million) was recognised during privious financial year ended 30 une 2019 based on tho decikion ol the High
Court on 2 pauary 2015,

The fair value of recovables approsimate thedr casnging amounts,

Expacted Cradit Loss (ECLY) meviment analysis b5 discised untor Note 389 1 the financial statemernts.
218

485/620



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Motes to the Financial Statements

= 30 Jung 2020
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Thie Growp's dervative financial instruments are analysed as Tolows:
Contract/ Fair values
natiomal
amount Assats Liabilities
RM000 RM000 RM000
Group - 2020
Cash-Tlow hedges
- fuel of swaps 1.343,133 51,469 171622
= cumency forwards. 1,427,691 24.663 5,148
Falr value through profit or loss
= fuel oil swaps 82,613 8.7z 13,388
= turrency farwands 4,740 - 187
Bd4.844 190,345
Current portion 74,259 174,944
HNan=turonl jorton 10,585 15,401
B4, A44 190,345
Group - 20019
Cazh-Tlow hedges
- fuel ol swaps 1,657,600 4,000 47872
= curmency forwands LBGSITE 7433 10,320
= IAterost rate Twair 2,931,554 - 43533
- CFOrs CFTRNCY SwWaps 112538 &G -
Fair valug through profit or loss
- fuel ol swaps 273138 B5T 4,942
= currency forwands 213439 288 1507
= CUPTURCY Oplion. cotitac® 1656, 800 - 3333
3744 11v.607
Cument portion B5.022 B340
Han-cwrrent portion layze SA.116
B3, 4 r.e07

*  The Groug entered o ey options contracts b enjoy interest rate reduction in related borowings with an accepable
risk profie, The Tair value B determined wsing the spot rate, interest fate, basls curve ard vodatifity of the related cumenthes
anid time 1o maturity of the contracts.
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2L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ICONT'D.]

Hidging instements wsed in the Group's hedging sTategy:

Changes In fair vaiue wed for
Cartying calculating bedge
ameant IneHeciveness
Hedge

Comtrachsal Finsyuacial ineffectivengss. TWeighted

netienal Assels! statament Hedying Hedged  recogeisedin R Maturity

amount  flisbiities) fingitem  instrumant it peafit of foss hedged rata date

REE00 RH000 RH0 R 000 RM000
Greup - 2029
Cash Now hedge
Fuel of price sk
» Fusel il e 52 o L1514 [130.433) Detvating [ATLA0T) ey - RMLI98E  |uly 2020~
highly probadie Fisantial por mpdric ton  fasmary 2023
AT R Estuments
= Fuel ofl swap 12 hexige pit 18340 Derivitiim 158 ILEEE) - RMISLD  July 2020 -
highly prosase Firancial perbbl  [me 2027
tramtions (NG| imtumenty
Fovegh enthanige ik
= Foreard ot LAFT.6N 13515 Derivatre .05 [47.159) = RMaZ oy 3000 -
e by prodatie firancal USOLOD  Maerch 2083
AT imtuments
Group - 2019
Lash Mow hedge
Fuoed ol priee risk
= Fueh ol Sy 12 i FLTHAL FLE":] Derative [Sa10E 51 . MLABRD iy #IG-
heghly prodacie firancal per metri T NeveTioer 2021
T (HERT) AITATSAT
-~ Fued ol s 1 hedige B4 454 {G00y Deriwaiive (073 Lo . AMZEID iy MS-
highly probutie frarcal per bt Dcenber 2000
amactions (NG Irinaments
Foveign exchenge risk
- Forward ontTC s ® LEXEs =i Deiative 5495 408 - 2 20 July 1S -
e bty produie firancd VSO0 muary 2352
TamAtion ity
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

Period when e cash fiows oncash Mo hedges are eopected 10 00w of & Tact the Income SIatemenis:

(2] Fuel oil swaps

Fueal oll swaps are antered Into to hedge highly probable forecast fuel puchases that are expectad 10 oo at various dates
within 31 manths (2019 29 months) from Tinancial year end The fuel oll swaps have maturity dates that match the expecied
occurmende of thess ransactions. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging resene prar to the occumenca af thee ramsactions
are transfermed 1o the Imentory of fuals epon acguisition or cost of sales upon consumption of natural gas. The gains and losses
relating 1o fued ofl imentony are subsagquently recogrised in the Income Statements upon corsumption of the wderkying fues.

The fak vabue of Tuel oll swaps is datermined using a benchmark fuel price index at tha reparting date,

(b} Currency forwards

Currency fonsaeds are emaned into o hedge highly probable Torecast ransactions dencmingted in Foraign cumrency axpected
to oocur at warous dates within 33 months (2005 51 momths) from financial year end, The cumancy forwands have matusity
dates that match the expected oocwTence of these Transactons.

Gans and losses relating to highly probabie forecast Fusl payments are recognised in the hedging resene pricr to the oumance
of e wansactions and are rransfernad to the imentory of Tuels upon acquisition of cost of sales upan consumption of
natural gas, Thi gains and losses relating to fuel oll inventoly s subsequantly Transfemed to IRComi SUETeMERLS uban
comsumpton of the underfying fuets

For those currency forwands used to hedge hghly probable forecast foresgn currency payments of purchase of property, plant
and equipment. the gains and losses ane included in the cost of the assets and recognised in the income statements over their
estimated usetul lives as pan of deprecintion expense,

For those curmency Torwards wsed 1o hedge heghly probable forecast foregn cusrendy transacbons for maintenance contracts,
the gains and lesses ane mcluded in pEyments and recognised in Infome STatements over the pediod of the conracts.

The fair wahues of forwand curmency montiacts s determined using ouated forwand turmency rates at the reporting date.

[c] Imtorest rate swaps

Thie Group entered into nterest rale Swap coniracts 1o manage (15 mnlerest rale fss asing pimanly from nlerest-bearing
podrowings. Barrowings at Tosting rate axpose the Lroup o fair valee interest rates and the derfvate financial instruments
minimess Th flucTuation of cash fow due 1o (anges in the market nlermst raves The gpivative Tinancial imstments ae
axptuled with crecit-warthy Tinanclal irstiutions which are govesmed by appropivate policses and pocedures with a vew o
limit the credit rick exposure of the Group.

The dertvative financial instnments are stated at fair value hased on banks’ nuatas. The far value changes on the affective
portinn of the desivatives that are designated and qualify &s cash fiow hedges are recogrised innther comprehensive income.
T galn e lose mlating 1o tha meltesthe portion & ecogniued irsmaatoly in incamn Ltatamant.
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2L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ICONT'D.]

{d) Cross-currency swap

Th G kad entensd into (0SS CUNENCY Swap CoMract 10 exchangs interest paymants and prncgal denaminated in two
A10FONT CUFTNERS To REdge AGAMAT T exposire of 115 DOrrowings to interest mie risk and foeign exchange k.

Thie changes i the fair valoe of these cross naTency Swagp onmracrs that are designated a5 hedges are included a5 hedging
resares i ety and continuoutly releisad to the moome statements until the mepayment of tha bank bormwings or maturity
of ross currency Swap contracts whichever s earliar, For tha ooss curmency swap contracts that ane not designated as hedges.
the changes in the fai value are recognked as other income or other Expense in the Income statements

22. INVENTORIES

Group
2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'OO0
Consumabile stes ‘.i't.lﬁ 24,797
Fnished goads. 174,013 £58,487
Fusel 59,734 207.225
Propesty hedd Tor sakes 1,288,681 1679118
Raw materials 228,483 234,562
Spane pars, 341.342 565,823
Wark-in-peogress. 20,024 24211
2,184,363 2783723

During the fingncial year, included in the mventonas of the Group with carmying value of RML143.395000 (2019 RML595.560,000)
phedged as secunty for & barmewing granted 1o the Group.
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23. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Freehold Leasehold Development
land land Costs Tatal
Mot RM'O0D RMO00 RMODO RM'O0G
Group - 2020
Cumulpial propifty devolahmant costs:
At beginning of the financlal year 99,299 68,998 391.063 579,360
Corst inourred during (e fiencial yes - - 27,155 27,155
Trarsder from mvestment properties 13 51,787 - - 51,787
Transfer to propedty, plant and equipment n (69.122) - (312.243) (381.365)
Transdior to invantories - [5.290) {100,463} (106, 759)
Tramrider tram kand hodd for proporty
development 14ia) {7.322) - - (7.322)
Rovarsal of comploted projects - (2.852) (20,425) (23.277)
Currency translation diff sences {245} - 2,091 2.746
A% prd ol the financial yaar 74,397 80,856 [12.528) 142,325
Cumilstive cost recognesed in profit o loss
At beginning of the financial year {17.423)
Recogrised during the finandial year 5 [7.222)
Reversal of (ompleted profects 23,277
At end of the financlal year (1. 4G8)
Property development costs at end af the
Tinarcial year 140,857
223
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23. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (CONT'D.)

Freehaold Leasehold Development

land land COsts Total
MNote RM'O00 RM'DOO RM'OO00 RM'DO0O0
Group - 2015
Cumidative propery dowslopment cols
At beginning of the financial year 76461 B4,050 206,521 I67.032
Cosl incuned duing the finarndal year - LETS 97421 99,296
Transfed from irmestment propertios 13 23225 - - 23,225
Transfer from land hald for propery
chroel gt 14ia) = 1073 ol5 3368
Transfer from project development
expenditure 141 % = 3,131 83131
Currency translation difersnces 38 - 015 2688
At ond af thir Finamgial year 99,299 [zzhe=ie] 391,063 579,360
Cumulative cost recognised in profit or hoes:
At beginning of the financial year -
Roqnised during e Enancial yoar 5 (17.427)
At end of the finandial year (17.423)
ProgedTy dissiopiman T COSTS &1 end of thi
fimandial year 561.937

Inchided in property develogrent costs of the Group is interest tapitalised during this financial year amounting to &M4,906,000
(2019: RMIZ.463,000),
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24, CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Group
2020 2019
RM000 RM0D0D
Non-current
Contract msets 540 2,486
Coaviract cost assals 1.165 130
Crntrart liabilities (31.326) (#6.PR4)
Current
LContract assets 201,468 205 948
Coavivart cost assets 26,151 33,592
Conviract labilities (633.343) 9364200
Graup
2020 2019
RM000 RME0O00
Represanting:
Cosnirac ety 202,008 208418
Conviract labilities (664.663) [LO22,684)
(462,661} {EL4,26E)
Confract cost aasets 27.316 T2
ﬁmup
2020 2019
RM'000 RMO00
Representing:
Lnilities. (187.272) (155.487)
Proparty davelapemient (133.202) (208.850]
Consruction {109,000) (41L.767)
Hatel (29.934) [36,765)
Cement {3,241) {1.397)
Dthets 12} -
[462.661) (E14.266]
225
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24. CONTRALCT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
{a} Utilites

Sgnificant changes In contract assets and liablites:

Group
2020 2019
RM'000 RMOO0
Contract assats
AT begnning af the Financial year 158,566 JHI7L
Transfeq to rade receivables (6.749) {7B,495)
Addition due to revenue recognised during the yaar 277 I57.263
Currency transkation dflerences - 15
Wilte back af {Allowdanoe (o) ingairment of conliact assets 2ra [3BE)
At end ol the financial year 154, 866 158,566
Group
2020 2019
RM'OOD RM'DOO
Contract liabilities
AT giring ol the Tinangial year 314.053 272,096
Hevenie recogresed that wis included in the contract liabiity balance at the
Begiining of thi Hiantial year (313.562) {319, 806)
Increases due 10 cash recetvad, excluding amounts recogresed as fFevenue
diring thir Nnanc year 340,800 EICRTE
LCurrency transiation cifferences a47 (earg)
AL end of tee Tnancial year 342,138 14,053
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRALT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

[a] Utilities [CONTD.)
(I} Assets recognised from costs to obtain ar fulfil a contract
Thie Croup capitalses costs 1o abtaln or (UM 3 contract which inlute sales comimessions wiben thisy are incremerntal and
eapicted 1o be recoveried onst mons than a year. Thee Gioup also Cipitalses axpendiune Dnassets such 4 waler mains’

SEWETS OF maw Lonnectioms relating 1o contracts 4 they @ incumed fo fullll the tontrect This b presented within
COMECE oost dssels within "comsact assers” in the statements of financlal positian,

Group

2020 2019

RMOOO RMO00

At Beginning of the Hranoal yeas 36,721 3353
ASSETS regognised Tram Casts 10 abtain o Tullil & contract dunng the Tinangial

yoar 27.975 35,083

Amartisation recognised dusing the financial year (7.842) [11.565)

Charged to cost of seles duing the finandal year (29.665) {26,686)

Currency fransdation dtferences 1 {263

At end of the financial year 27,316 ¥57a2

The diosing bel=nce of contract cost assets consist of:

2020 2018

RM000 RM"O0O

Contract acquisition cost 111 so7

Contract futfiliment cost 27,205 36,125

AL end of the linancial year 27,316 T2

(i) Unsatisfied parformance obligations

As at 30 june 2020, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated 10 unsatisfied performance obligations.
resuiting from contracts with customens (s AMES7.2 milion (2019 AM382 6 milion]. This will be recogresed as revemue
% the sorvices are provided 1o customer, wivch bs eapectod to socur aver the next 1 to 15 years (2019 1 10 15 years),

Thi: Croup appled the practical expedient in MFRS 15 and oid pot diclose information about wnsatisfed perlormance
abiigation for cartain contracts, wharn thi transaction price corespands dractly with the Group's lewel of porormance
In the future.
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24. CONTRALCT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{b) Property development
Mavemant af cantract atsets and conract lablites in elaton 1o property devalopment & analysed as follows:

Graup
2020 2019
AM'000 RM'D00
Al beginming af the Tinarcia year (208, B50) 700175
Rewenus recogrssed curing the Tinanclal year 420,007 ABL.203
Progress bilkngs during the financial year {345.111) [(G19,536)
Corvéderation payable to customer Gr2 1o
At end of the financial year [133,202) (208,850)
Ropresenting:
Contract assens 28,638 359,456
Caritiact Balulitis (161,840} [248,308)

[133.202) (208,850)

Revenue from popary cevelopment &Ctvitkes s recognised over time using the input mathod, which is based on the actual
cost incurred to date on the property dovelopment projedt a5 compaiod 10 the 1otal budgeted oot for the respecinie

development projects.
i) Unsatistied performance obligations
Tisb afgrogate amaiunt of the transaction peiot allocated 1o thie performance alligations that am ursaticlied or partially
satisfied as at the reportng date was approxmately RMS5,758,000 (201 % RMSL579,000), of which the Group expects
to be recognise as revenus within one year from the financial year end
{c] Comstruction
Mavement of contract assets and contract Rabilites in relation 1o comstniction is anabysed a3 follows:

Group

2020 2019

RMO00 RM OO0

At pegnning of the finarcial year (411767} [40.816)
Rewvanus recognisad curing the financial year 2.316,005 Le19.495
Cost incumed for project yet [0 recognised revenui 6,432 [LE]
Progness bilings during the financial year {2.019.670) [L.590,407)
At end of the linancial year {109,000) (411,767}
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{c} Construction [cont'd.}
Construction contracts represent tha timeng diffSdences i resanie recognitean and the miestons bilings. The milestans Bilings
are structured andfor negotisted with castomers 1o reflct plysical complebon of the contracts.

Comract assets ane ranstemed 1o recelvables when the nights o economic berefins become unconditional. This isually ooours
whan the Group saues biling to the custemer. Confract liaksiities are tecognined ax revenue whan performance ohligations
are satisfied,

Thisra wera na sigrificant changes in the contract assets and Rabilities during the Tirancial year,

ncluded i aggregate costs moured 1o date of the Group i the dopreciation capialsed duripg the financia year amounting
1a BM3,290,000 (2015 RM7,550,000)
(I} Unsatisfied performance ebligations

The aggeegate amount of the trarsaction prce Slocated 10 the performance obdgations that ane unsatsfied or partialy
satisfied a5 at the reporting dite was appmsimately RMASY bilion (2019: RMEIS hillion]) of which the Group expaects
o be recognised as revenue in the fimnancia stataments in the next thiee years,

[d} Hotel aperations

The Group recognisos comtract linbdities when @ onstomer pays consideration, or is contractually requined to pay consideration,
oefore the Group recognéses the mlated revenue. The contract kabeithes are expected to be recognised as revenue within

3 year,
Group
2020 2019
RM000 RM0DO
Conract Lishilites 26,934 35,765
Group
2020 2019
RM000 RM000
Significant changes 1o contract Nabilities balantes dunng the period are as folloes:
Contract liabilties 25 a1 the beginning af the period recogaised as revenue
turing the yiar 35,532 20714
faiwances recened dunng the yoar 151,770 169248

Customer deposits represent atvance payment by customers for future bookngs of Fotel rooms, food and bevarage and
trarspoit
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24. CONTRALCT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{e) Cement manufacturing & trading

Group
2020 2018
RM'O00 RMOO0
Amount received in advance of delivery of goods 3.241 1347

Aewvenue |5 recognised when the control of thie goods b fransfemed to the customes, besng at the pont e goods are deliverad
o tha customar. When the cstamar intially perchases the goods, the traniaction price received at that paint by the Group
ts recognised as contract liabilty until the goods have been delivered to the oustomar,

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES

Group Campany
2030 2019 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'0O00 RM'O00 RMO00
(a]  Amoungs due from elsted parties
Armounts duse Troe:
- Halifing compay 17 38 - -
= Sutwidiaries - E 1,299,910 1011391
= Related companies 23,389 13,631 3,458 2907
- ASSOCIaTed companes 27,549 17238 (] 57
Joirtt wentunes 2.739 24 -
53,694 EiRE 1,303,468 1014435
() Ameunts dus to relited partien
Amounts due to
= Holring company 324 - - -
- Suwiliaries - - 4,655 54096
- Riatid paries 5,945 AGAT 53 50
= Assacialed companses 10139 531 - -
= JoirD v funis &2,798 [FREIE - -
39,212 16,006 4,708 5,546

ey The amounts due framfo related partlés pertain mainly 10 trade receiables/ipayabies, advances and payments on behall, The
ol sanding amounts ane ursecured, interest free and payable on demand excopt for advances given to subsidianes amaunting
R4 million (200 % 16,0 million) which bear interest rate of 41% per anmum (2019; 54% per anrum),

(0] Thee sigreficant nelated parties transactiorns ol the Group and af the Company ame distioed inNote 20 8o the Tinancial statements
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group cﬂlﬂl&ﬂ!
2020 2019 2020 2019
Note RM000 RM0OD0 RMODOD RMOD0D
Ceposit with a licensed bank 10,396,221 10635,496 102,070 196,360
Cash and bank bakances 1,265,011 L171.006 1.929 122,948
11,661,232 10806502 103,959 321308
Bark overdrafts 1 (45,147) (42675 = .
Deperaits with inatuity 50 days and et {516,019} - -
Cash and cach squivalents
as per statements of cash flows 11,100,066 1L.763.82T 103,999 21308

Cirsh and bank bakances of the Craup included ameunts 10taling RM4GEZ000 (2019 AMB.BE2000] held pursuant to Section TA
of the Houseng Developers {Controd and Licensing] Ao 1966, Those amounts were restricted from use in other operations,

Tha sangr of inteeest rates of Goposing that wire effeciive an the meporting date wene i follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
L L] S B
Deposits with lieensad banks 0.03-4.25 0.25-3.95 0.03-3.35 160-3.50

Deposits of the Group and of the Company have maturities ranging from 1 day to 365 days (201% 1 day to 365 days). Bank balances
are depasits hedd ot cal with banks,

InCluced in the deposits with kensed banks amounting to BMS7 846,000 {2019 BMA 16700} & pledged as a security fed a
Barmowwang a5 dsclosed in Note 31,

The Group and of the Comgany seek 1 evest casn and cash equivabents sately and peofitably with oredgstworthy loca and affshose
Brmnred banks, The cradit quality of the kacal and olfshare licensed Banks are PL as ried e RAM Rating Seoades Bhd, and Moody's
Iwestors Servica, b, respectively
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Group/Company
Number of shares Amount
2020 2019 2020 2019
‘oo0 R i) RM'O00 RMODO
lssued and fully paid:
At beginning of tha financial year 10,919,560 10,910,560 3,340,111 3,340,111
Share Exthangs Dffar 112.202 - 127,444 -
At end of the finandal year 11,022 762 10,910,560 3,467,555 3,340,111

Dul of & total of 11.022,762,5340 [2019: 10,210,559, 429) ardnary sheres Bsued and fully paid-up ordinary shares, the Company
holds 372,506,618 (201% 34LB62.418) ofdnary Shares a5 1reaasury shanes. As a1 30 june 2020 the rumber af ordinasy shanes in
Isse and Tully pakd net of treasuey shares are 106496855722 (201%; 10.568,697,011).

Tre noiders. of ordanaey shares [except easury shanesh sre entitied 1o feceive dividends a3 and wihen decksed by the Compargy,
All prdinary shares camy ane wote per share and rank equally with regard o the Company’s resiiual asset.

{a) Treasury shares

The shareholders ol the Company granted @ mandate to the Company 1o repurchase its owe shares at the Anmsal General
Maeting held on 12 Decamber 2019 The Directors of the Company ane committed to enhance the value of the Compary to
its shareholdees and bolievs 1hat the ropurchase plan can be appiec in e best interest al the Caompany and its shanehalders

During the financial year, the Company repuchased 31044200 {2019 109,030,600] ordinary shates of its ssuad share capital
from thie open market. Thie sverage pce pald lor thi: shares repurehased was RMOS4 (2009 RML24) per shate, The iepuithase
transac tions were financed by internally generatod funds, The shares repunchased are being held as treasury shares in
acoordance with Section 1276) of the Companies Act 2016

As at 30 |une 2020, tha Company hekd a5 treasury shares i total of 3729066168 (201%: J4L862.418) of its 11022762340
(2019 10,910,559, 429 Issued ordinary shares. Such treasury shares. are held at a carrying amount of RMSO0LEI6.069 (2019
RMATZ, 723 16%)

{b) Employees' Share Option Scheme (“E505°)

On 1 Al 2011, the Comgpany implemeanted a new share ssuance scheme known 25 the Emgioyees Shaie Optlon Scheme
wiich ek v Ly e shereludiders of e Comglany &l an Extiatrdinasy Central Meeting el on 30 Noweinbes 2010,
the 505 ks for eligible emgployess. and directors of the Compamy sndi/or its subsidiaries who maet the oriteria of eligitility Tor
participatian as 921 out In 1he by-laws of the E305 [By-Laas)
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)

b} Employees” Share Option Scheme [“ES057) (cont'd.)
This salient tenms of 1he ES05% are at Molows:

{1 The BSOS shad be in force for a period of ten {10) years, ettective from 1 April 2011

{ily  The maximum nuimber of shares 1o be allotied and Bsued porsuant 1o The seercse of e options which may be grarted
unider the ES0% shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the total issoed and paid-up share capital of the Company at
e point af time throughout the duration af the ESOS,

(iiy  Any employee (ncluding the directors] af the Croup shall be elgible 1o participate in the ES05 B, a% at the date of offer
of an opllan ("Offer Date”), the parsan:

aj  has attained the age of elghteen [18) years:
b) s adirector or @y empioyee employed by and on payrod of a comparny within the Group; and

t]  inthe case of employess, has been in the employment of the Group for a pericd of at least ore (1) year of contimos
senice priar to and up to the Offer Date, inthiding senvice during the probaton pediod, and s canfirmed in service,
The optiors committae may. at its discretion. nominate any employee (inckiding directors) of the Group fo be an
eligitsie employes despite the @igililing eiteria under Clause 3A0H) of the By-Laws tat being mel, at ang tme and
from time o lima

(i) The subeceiption price for shares under the ES05 shall be determined by the Board upon recomméndation ol the aptions
committee and shall be fieed based on the weighted average market price of shares, = quoted on Bursa Seowities, for
thia five |5) markiet days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the options with a dscount of not more than ten par
cend {109, if deemed approgriate. or such lowor ar bgher limit in accandance with any prevaiing guidcines issued by
Bursa Securities of any other relovant authordties as amended from time (o time.

{v] Sulbject 1o Clause 13 of the By-Laws. the aptions commities may, o7 amy tme and fram time 1o time, befare or altes an
aption is granted, Bmit the exercime of the option 10 o maximum number of new crdinary sharms of the Compary and/ar
such percentage of the totzl mdinary shares of the Company compeised b the options during such pericd(s) within the
aption perod and Impose any ofher tenms andfior conditions deemed appropriate by the optons commities in 15 sole
distretion induding amendirgfvarying any terms and conditions impased earier. Motwithstandng the above. and subject
10 Clauses 10 and 11 of the By-Laws, the options can only be exerised by the grantee no earlier than theee [3) years
after the Difer Date or such ather period & may be determined by the options committes &t 13 absolute decetion, by
notice in writing 10 the aptions committee, provided however that the options committee may at #s dscredion or upan
e reguest in wiiting Oy the graniee allow the oplions 1o De exercised al any earler or other period,

(v} A grantes shall be prohibited from dispesng of the rew ondinary shaes of the Company sllotted and kssued to him for
a perlod of ane [1) vear from the date on which the option |s exerclsed or such other pariod as may be determined by
W OpToNS Committme a1 s Asolite discreton,
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.}

{b) Employess’ Share Option Scheme (“ESD57) (cont'd.)
Thie mavesmaanits during the financlal year in the number af shane aptions of the Coenpary are as Tollows

Financial year ended 30 june 2020

[ — Mumber of share aptions ower edinary Shares ———-—=———- 3
At beginning
Expiry Exercise ol the Al end of the
Grant date date price financial year Granted Lapsad financial year
HMishare ‘000 ‘0o ee] ‘000
SChimiy
16072012 1032021 1n 120,500 - {1.405) 119,455
1403 2008 31052021 L& 258294 - [4,321) 247,973
373,194 * (5.726) 67,468
Financlal year ended 30 June 2019
L — Mumber of share options ower cedinary shares s
At beginning
Expiry Exercise of the Atend of the
Grant date date price financial year Gramnted Lapsed fimancial year
R shae ‘000 ‘o0 oo ‘a0d
Sehame
1607202 31032001 i § 125855 - {4,995} 120,500
14052008 032021 L% 55463 - {7169 25
H537 [12.164) 313194
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)

b} Employess’ Share Option Scheme ["ES057) {cont'd.)
he options grantad to employees on 16 July 2012 vested an 16 July 2015, whils the aptions grantod to emplayecs on
L4 March @018 will virst on 14 Marcn 2021,

The far value of options granted tor which MRS 2 applies, was determined wsing rhe Trinomial Valuation modsl The significant
irnpnets in thie mncel are av follows:

Share options  Share options
granted on granted on
16.07.2012 14.03.2018

Valuation assumptkons

Expue Dist) wolamiiny 23.6% 2%
Expected dividend yield 4.5% 5%
Expecied option iife 3 - 4 years 3= 4 years
Rink-feee inborest rabe per snnum (Dased on Malaysia securities bonds) 3.1% L]

The expacted volatiiity reflects the assumption that the historcal valatibty s incicative of future tends, which may not
neossarily be thi aciual autoome.

Value of employee sendices receved for Bsue of share options:

Group Company
- aozn 2019 2020 2019
RM'O0O RM'O00 RMODO RMO00

Share ofitian exparnries

Iry the Compamy 16,509 165679 16,509 16,679

by the subsidiary 5.133 5353 - -

Miacatioh to subsidianes - {9.B50) 10,000}

Allscation to related companie [ (12 15) (12}
TotM s option axpendi 21637 22020 6.554 RERT
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28. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

{a} Other reserves

Fartign
Equity cumency Share Terad
Capital  component Eramsiaiion opties  Siatulary Hedging uther
TesETe ol ICULS esarye MESEnT rewnie’ Fna resene fesenves
EMDO0 RMD00 RHB0Y RHT L] REFOON RHODG R0
Gioiap - 2020
Aibegnnng o the francid yew 7317 T8 T48,375 S2801 18,042 (29,798} (95599 007066
Changes i fa valee = = # . i35 (a6Ry [P0
Enthurge ifferences : - (4168 z L
Totah comprehermig ks
Hos the e {27,185 {235  [pagey (0%
Comvenir of K4S - (RS - - - - - (s
Share optin agperee - - - 19343 . - . 1838
S apten Lgrad - . - (L] . - . 52
SRR shars ophon By T = x (35 i - = (8
Cumeney iranslation diferences {147} - £ - E50 - (5. 7E) -
Ktead of e finarcl jear .10 Il SE04% s 1868 [42123) OEROPY 0 S25E
Group = 2019
At begnning of the francl e T4 TE4e k) T 1858 [IG.085] WAl amLgn
Changes i far vale: . - - . . (L L=ty B R T 2]
Emciinge dilferiross - - 12851 - - - - 128361
Totdl comprohemive inmee! fioss)
tor the year . - 128 %1 . : (IR Rk B
Share nption aperses . . - 1863 . - < 16535
s ogton lipad \ . r [ ’ g - (L7158
Subsihianys chars pebon Dpeed f : i B3R . = . 7]
Lumenty ranslabion difererres ikl ] - [ ] . & = 1537 -
A1 ead of T Tirnancial pear wa TiEae T 5288 e [P976) a5 o066
Mate:

! This reoresents 2 vesaree whith need o be set #side pursant to koal siafutary regirement of an msocated company.
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[a) Other reserves [cont'd)

Share Tatal
options Fair valua othaer
reserve reserve TEServes
RM"00O0 RMOO0 RMO00

Company - 2020

At beginning al the linancial yeas 64,040 Z2.636 66.676
Changes in fair value - 123 123
Share oplion ¢geeries 16,509 - 16,509
Share opthan lapsed (527) - (527)

At end of the financial year B0,022 2,759 82,781

Company - 2019

At heginning of the financial yea a5 109 2359 51,468
Changes in fair value - 217 21
Share oplion exparses 1669 - 16,674
Share optian [apsed (L7aE) - (1748}

At end of tha financial year G4.0a0 2536 66,676

29, LONG-TERM PAYABLES
Group

2020 2019

RMO0O0 RMO00

Delerred dicoms 1,087,304 58,774
Deposits 48,662 123,517
Payabile to non-controling intevests 120,241 116,365
nhes payabiles 1.093 32,763
1L257.300 L23lale

Oepaosits comgitse amount collected fram retall customers in relation 1o the provision of e'ectridty and deposis recelved fiom developers
o heskng deseapment in relation (o the prvvision of water and sewerage iNfrasiruciune and secunty deposies T1om progemy t2nans.
The deferred income s n retation to assets transferred Tnom customers and =ertces of the water and sewenge segment which ae
yet to be provided ard shareholdar loan interest reverue. The far value of payabées approsimates thair camying values,
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30. BONDS
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
HNole RM'DDD RM'0D0 RMOD0 RM'0D0
Current;
Madium Term Motes Mk a) 220,000 10,024 - -
Commarcial papers - 10,000 - 10,000
220,000 520,024 - 10,000
Hon-curment:
Medium Tarm Notes AN 9,652,636 10,373,669 2,500,000 2,500,000
35294 Retall Price indes Guaranteed Bonds  300L) 435,657 422,492 - -
5.75%: Cusranteed Unsecured Bands ey 1,824,667 1.818,003 - -
5.375% Cuaranteed Unsecuied Bonds HKd) 1,045,940 L.043,000 -
175 Indey Linked Guarariteed Bonds e 1,171,955 1136539 -
136906 ard 1.374% Index Linked
Cuaramecd Bonds 304T) 1171955 L138539 -
1 AR, 1.495% and 1.409% ndox Linked
Cuaranteed Bonds gl 1,104,074 LO74.476 -
2186% Index Linked Gustarteed Bonds
Due 2039 30ih) 360,010 240,611 -
A.0% Guaranteed Unseoured Bonds N 1,583,640 1582157 -
1.5% Guarantesd Unsecured Bonds o] 1,304,105 - - -
Japan bends 20lk) - 25.480 - -
19,655,630 18,961 666 2,500,000 2500,000
Tatal 19.875.639 194816590 2,500,000 2510.000
Thie bonds are repayatle:
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'000 RMO00 RM'O00 RMO00
Med later than | year 220,000 520,024 - 10,000
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 7.079.115 6,000,358 1,000,000 -
Later than 5 years 12576524 12871278 1,500,000 2,500,000
Tatal 19,675,639 19 A8L690 2,500,000 2.510,000
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30. BONDS [CONT'D.)

This wisighted average STHRCEVE BTREsT rates of the bands of the Group and of the Compsny a5 3t the reporting date ae as fokows

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
% L] % L
Medium Teem Nates 398 22 463 447
Bomds 4,00 482 - AED
The tair values of the bonds of the Groug and the Compary as at the reporting date are as lollows:
Graup Company
2020 2013 2020 2019
RM00O RM000 RM000 RM000
357% Ratd Price Indax Guarantaed Bors 292 651 2Tl - .
5.75% Cuarantesd Linecured Bends 2,763,282 2B AP - -
5.375% Guarantesd Unsecured Bonds 1.364.607 L3I5.425 - -
1.75% index Lirked Guarantesd Bonds 1,735,032 L7z28.881 - .
1369%% and L374%: Index: Linked Guarantesd Bonds 1,743,250 L7a7755 =
1L489%, 1495% and 149996 Indext Linked
Casaranteed Bonds 1,737,765 L 730,638 - -
218E%,: Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds Due 2039 424,060 424,695 - -
4 0% Guarantesd Ursecured Bonds 1,635,886 1571827 -
1.5% Guaranteed Limecured Bords 1,327.959 = = *
Hedlum Tesm Notes 10,460,962 6,704,608 2,366,078 2,366,078
lapan bonds - 25,480 - :
23,486,454 20,322,300 2.366.078 2,366,076

[a) Medium term notes ["MThs")
{i] The MTHs of the Company were issued pursuant to:

A} Commiercial papeds ("CFS) and Medium tem notes (MTRS) Programmie with o combined mastes Emitof RM5.0 billion
and a sub-limit on the OPs programme of RMS00.0 million [collectively the “Bond Programmes”) pursuant to a
programime agreement dated 17 une 2019;

A nominal value of RMS00 million of MTHs was issued on 25 june 2019 1o refinante the Company's exdsting RMS00
millian nominal value MTHS. The coupan rane of the MTAHS s 4.50% (2019 4 50%) per annum, payaike semi-annualy
I antears ard the MTha ae redeamabie on 23 jure 2034 at nominal value,

During pressaus financal year, the Company Issued nesw CPs with a nominal valus of B0 million The cougan rate
af the CP3 i 360% per annum and was fuily repaid during the Tinandial year.
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30. BONDS (CONT'DL)
{a} Medium term notes (“"MTNs") (cent'd.)
{ij The MTMNs of the Company were ssued pursuant ta: (cent'd.)

b A MTMs lssuence programmae of up to RM20 blon constituted by @ Trust Deed and Programme Agreement, bsth
datad 26 Masch 2013

A nominal value of AM1,000,000,000 of MThs was ssued wnder the programmae on 25 Apiil 2003 at 3 coupoen rane
4.38% (2015; 4.38%] por anrum, payable semiannually in arroars. The MTHs are redeomable on 25 Aprll 2023 at
naminad viaslue,

A romnal value of RMED0.000,000 of MTHNS was issued undet the programimie on 11 Nevember 2016 at 4 coupen
rate 515% [(2001% 5.15%) per annum, payable serri-annually in arrears. The MTHs are redeemabie an 11 November
2036 at nominal vk

A nominal value of AMS00.000,000 of MR was issued uder the programme on 11 November 2016 at a coupon
rate §63% (F00% 4.63%) per annum, payabie semi-annually in amears. The MTNs are redesmabie on 11 Maovemie
ZORG 1 hominal vakee,

(i) The MTHs of YTL Power international Berhad ("YTLPI") were [ssued pursuant to:
3 A Medium Team Notes programme of up 10 RMS.000,000,000 constituted by @ Trust Deed and MTNS Agreement.

bath dated 11 August 2011, The faciity bears imterest rates ranging from 4 45% 10 4.99% (2015 4,35% to 4.959%0)
per Snum.

bl Tha Klamic MTHs af YTLP were istued purdcant in islamic Medom Temm Notes faciing of up io RMEZ 500,000,000
in nominal vae under the Shariah principle of Muahahah (va Tawsmug Arangemant) which constituted by a Trust
Deed and Facllity Agency Agroemont, bath datod 20 Apll 2017, Tha Facllity bears o profit rate of 50506 (#009:
5055 per anmmim,

{ili} The MTNs of Starhill Global REIT (“SGREIT™) were Issued pursuant to:

3  Singapore MTNs [Seriss D02 Notes)

Th Giop susd SC0100 millisn untaciad sevan-year Singadons MTH compdised n Serles D02 (the “Sedas D02
Hates™) in Febnary 2014 (matuing in Febuary 2021) undar its 5002 billion Multicusrancy MTNS Programme. The
Sories 002 Notes bear a fiked rate intevest of 3.50% per annum payable semd- annually 0 armears and have @ rating
of "BAB+" by Stondard & Poors Rating Services,

b  Sngapare MTNs [Series DOF Notes)

The Group lssued 560125 million unsecured eight-year Singapore MTHs comarised in Sarles 003 (the “Seres 003
Hotes™) in May 2015 (maturing in May 2023) under its SC02 billion Multicurrency MTHS Programme, The Seres 003
Hotes bear a fimed rate interest of 140% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears and have a rating of “BBE+
by Standard & Poor's Rating Services.
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30. BONDS [CONT'D.)
[a] Medium term notes (“MTNs"] (cont'd.}
{lil} The MTHs of Starhill Global REIT [“SGREIT") were issued pursuant to! (cont'd.)
€] Sligapore MTHs (Series 004 Notes)

The Group lssueg SC070 million unsecured Ten-year Singapore MTHs comprised in Sedes 004 (the “Serles 004
MNotas™) in October 2016 {maturing in October 2026) under its 5002 bllion Muttcurrency MTH Programme. The
Sertes 004 Hotes bear a fixed rate interest of 3.14% per anmum payable semi-annually in arrears and have a ramng
of "BES+" by Standard & Poor's Rating Sendces.

) Malaysia MTNs

SGREIT has outstanding five-year fixed-rate senlor medum term notes of a nomingl value of AM3I0 million [Sensar
MTH} isswed 2t a discounted cash conuderation of appeoximately RMIZS millan The Senior MTH bear a lixed ceupan
rate of 448% per annum and have a canying smount of approomately RM329.8 mdlion (SC0107.8 millian) as at
30 junie 2019, The notes have an expected maturity in Seplember 2019 and legal matusity In Manch 2021, and are
segured, inter afia, by a Tiked and thoating chage over all the assets af Ara Bintang Berhad.

Dumng the finanoa! year, SGREIT and ity sulnidiary companies’ ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group,

(iv) The MTHs of ¥TL REIT wene issued pursuant o

Thie MTNs of the Group were issued pursisant 1o & HTNS isssance programme of up o AMLES0 milion constituted by a
Trust Deed and Programms Agreement, both dated 11 May 2016 As at erd of the reporting period. RMEI0 milllen {2019
AMBL0 inillion) wire msued as follow:-

&) A nominal value of RMG5 milllon of MTHS was mseed on 23 May 2017 10 linance the renovation costs carmed out
at The Ritz-Carfton, Kuala Lumpur - Suite Wing and Hatel Wing. The MTNs are redeemable an 23 May 2022 at
nisminal value,

By Anominal value of RM3B3 millon of MTNS was issued on 3 November 2007 to finance the acguisition of The Mapstic
Hotel Kusla Lumpur by ¥TL REIT, The MTH: ane redeemable on ] Novembser 2024 41 nominal value.

t] A nomingl vale of RM205 million of MTHS was Bseed on 23 Mevember 2017 10 réfinancs the cadsiing bormawings
af ¥TL REIT. The MThs are redeamabile on 23 Nowvember 2022 at nominal valuse

d) A nominal walue of RMLD millan of MTRs was Bseed on 24 May 2019 to refinance YTL REFT esisting AMI0 milion
nominal walue MTha The MTHs are redeemalide on 23 May 2022 at nominal valus,

&) A nominal walse of RMAES milion of MTNs was ssued on 28 June 2019 to finance the rencyation costs carmed out
o W Mo Hotel Kuala Lumpir, The MTRS are ridleemabie on 28 june 2027 at nominal vahee,

The MTMs bear Coupon ates ranging from 4.21% 10 5.05% (2019 4.70% to 510%) per annum, payable semi-annually
In armears ardd iy secured by certain properties,
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30. BONDS (CONT'DL)

{a) Medium term notes ("MTNs") (cont'd )
{v) The MTNs of YTL Cement Berhad ["YTL Cement”) were issued pursuant to:

I 2016, Kedah Cement Sdn. Bhd, (Formeity known as Laf arge Cement Sdn, Bhd.) MECSET], a subsitizry of 1he Group, had
esTablishadd 3 Suiok Wakalah Programma (“Sukuk Wokiadah') for the issuance of up 1o RMS00,000,000 in nominal walue
of Sikuk Wakaah, It provices ECSH the flexshility o raise funds trom tme 1o tims which can ba utitised to Hinance ard/
o to reimburse the acquisiion of property, plant and aquipment/irvesiments, to fund working capital requiremants and
tn redinant g paisting hank hothnsings of KCSH, The Sukuk Wakalah Pmgramena Ras a tengra of 7 years teom the date of
first Bssuanca of the Sukuk Wakalah,

On 13 Janiary 2007, KOSE made % fint and wocond issuance af RMLO000000 snd RM1B0,000,000 in naminal vilue
of Sukuk Wakalah, respectively based on the Shariah princple of Wakalah ard Murabahah under the Sukuk Wakatah
Pragramma to fund working capltal requirements af KLSE, The Suluk Wakalah bore peofit based at 4 405% and 4.80%
et annum wnd has been Tully Sonlad in 2008 and 2020 respoctively

On 13 Decembes 2017 and 30 [uly 20149, KCSE made Its third and fourth ssuance of BM100,000,000 o nominal value of
Sk Wakalash, based on the Shariah principle of Wakalab and Murabahah under the Sukuk Wakalabk Programme 1o fumnd
working capital requirements of KCS8. The Sukuk Wakalah are due on 11 December 2020 and 8 july 2022 and bear profit
a1 5.00% and S06%: et snnum, poyabls semi-annually.

On 10 juty 2019, KOS58 made its fifth issuance of F120.000.000 in nominal value of Sukuk Walkalah, based on the Sharlah
principle of Wakalah and Murabahah undes the Sidaik Wakalah Programme 1o fund wodking capital requirements of KCSA.
Ther Sukuk Wakalah e due on 9 |uly 2020 and bear profit at 4.10% per antum,

On 13 Janupry 2020 and 9 July 2020, KOSD mads its sixth and seventh ssuance of RMISO,000,000 in nominal vl of
Sakulk Wakalnh, based on thi Shariah principle of Wakalah and Murabahah ureder the Sukuk Wakalab Programme 1o fund
working capital requirements of KCSE. The Sukuk Wakalah are due on 13 [anuary 2023 and 7 july 2023 and bear profit
a1 4/60% and 4,555 per annum, payabike semi-anmaly.

{b) 3.52% Retalls price index guaranteed bonds [“RPIG Bonds")

The RAPIG Bantts of Wessex Water Services Finance Plc. bear Interest seme-arnually on 30 january and 30 july at an interes)
rabir of 3,520 initially, ihesed ug Ly e inflation rate every yiar, The elTectve oleiest rale oy o1 30 June 2020 5 577
(2015 6.71%) per wnam, The RPIG Bombs wall be iedesmed in Tull by bsaer o 320 july 2023 ot e indesed value logathen
wiith all accrued interest,
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30. BONDS [CONT'D.)

[} 5.75% Guaranteed unsecured bonds

On 15 October 2003, Westay Wated Senaces Finanta PIC Clssuer), a subsitiary of thd Groad, rsaed GEP 350,000,000 nominal
il 555 Guararteed Unmecured Bordds dul S033 75,05% DU Bond 7] uncondsticnady and imevocabiy quarantiad by Wesses
Watef Sennces Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, The 5.75% GU Bonds are constituted under a Trust Deed dated 15 October
2003, The nominal value of 5.75% GU Bonds issued amounted to GBPIS0,000,000 and as at 30 june 2020 GBPIME532.441
{P019: GRP246,358,315) remained outstanding, net of amortsod faes and dscount, The ned procaeds of the 5.75% G Bards
were isedd for refinancing of existing finandial indebtedness and for general cooporate purpases.

The Bonds baar intorost at 5755 poe annum, payable annually on 14 Octaber of each year Tha bands will b medeemad in
Full iy the Issuer on 14 October 2033 a1 thelr nominal walue 1ogather with 3l accrued interest

(d} 5.375% Guaranteed unsecured bonds

On 10 March 2005, Wessar Water Services Finance Plc. [Tssuer”), o submsidfiary of the Group, tssued GRP200.00M000 noainal
vale 5375% Gusranteed Unseoured Bonds due 2028 ("5375% CU Bonds"} urcorditionasty and imevocably quarantesd by
Wascer Water Senices Limited {'Guarantor®), a subsidiary of the Group. The 5375% GU Bonds-are constituted under 3 Trust
Deed dated 10 March 2005

Thie nesminal value of 5 375% CU Bongs resued amented 1o GER200,000,000, af which GEF19E.B30,197 (2019: GHPLO8,708,230)
romained cutianding 2% a1 30 june 2020, net of amortised Teos and distount. Thi net protecds af the bonds were wied for
refinancing of existirg financial indeotedness and for general corporate purposes.

The Bonds boar inferest at 5 375% per annum, payable annually oo 10 March of each year. The bonds will be edeemed in
full by the Issuer on 10 March 2028 at thalr nominal value together with &l acoued intarest.

[e] 1.75% Index linked guaranteed bonds

On 31 july 2006, Wessex Water Senices Finante Plo. (Thauer™) issied b (2) tranches of GEPT5, 000,000 nomina valise 1.75%
ndex Lirked Guarantesd Bonds [ WG Bonds 17) unconditionaly and imevocably guaranised by Wessex Water Senices Limited
("Guarantor”), Thie ILG Bonds 1 wirs each comstifuted under @ Trust Deed dated 31 july 200G and 15 unietured.

The ILG Bands 1 bear interest seml-annually on 31 jamiry and 31 july at an intevest rate of 1.75% initlally, indexec up by the
nllatan rate every year. The el Tectbae nteiest rate a5 at 30 june 2020 is 4.00% (2005 4,945 per annum. Tha bands will
e redeemed in full by the Bsur on 31 July 2046 Tor one tanche, and 31 jdy 2061 for the other rainche at their indexed
vl logether with gl accrued imerest

(1) 1.369% AND 1.374% Index linked guaranteed bonds

On 31 january 2007, wessax Water Services Finance Pic (Tysuer”) ssued GBPTS,000,000 nomina! verue 1.365% index Linked
Cuarantesd Bords and CB275,000,000 nominal value 1.374% Index Linked Guarantesd Bonds, bath due 2057 (LG Bonds 27)
unconditionally and irrevocabldy guatanioed by Wessex Water Services Lmited ["Guarantor”). The LG Bonds 2 were each
constted under 4 Trst Deed dated 31 january 2007 and are Wnsaoured,

Thie ILG Bomds 2 Bear intesest semi-annually on 31 [anuary and 3] July at an iniemest maie of 1,369% and 13745 initalty,

Indexead up by the inflation rate every year, The effective interest fte as ot 30 june 2020 5 3.62% (2019 4.56%) per anrum.
Thee bonids will be redeemed in full by the 1ssweer on 31 uly 2057 at their indaxed value together with all aconied interest.
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30. BOMDS (CONT'D.)
(g) 1.4E9%, 1.495% AND 1.499% Index linked guarantesd bonds

On 28 September 2007, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic, (Tssuer) ssued GEPS0.000.000 nominal value 1 4E09 Index
Linked Crasramtaed Bonds, GEPS0,000,000 nomid valee 1T.455% Mdex Linked Guaantoed Bonds and GRPS0.000,000 nominal
value 1 499% Indey Linked Guaranteed Bonds. all due 2058 (LG Bongs ') unconditionally and imevocashly quarantesd by
Wiesse Water Sereces Limited (Guaranioe™), The ILG Bonds 3 wore each constiuted under & Trust Deed dated 28 September
2007 and ame urnacued

The ILG Bonds 3 bear interest semi-annually cn 29 Movember and 23 May at an interest rate of LAB9%, 1495% and 1.499%
Iritialty, indoxad up by the inflation rata evory year, The ol fective intorest rate as o1 30 une 2020 & 412% (2019 3.93%)
par anum, Thie ILG Bonds will be radeemed in full by the Bsuer on 29 November 20508 3t their Indexed value together with
#l acensedd interest.

{h] 2.186% Indax linked guaranteed bonds

On 7 September 2000, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic. (lsswer”) issued CHSS0,000,000 mnominal walue 2186% indax
Linked CGuaranteed Bords due 20353 (ILG Bonds 47) unconditionaly and imevocably guaranteed by Wessex Water Senvioes
Limited ["Guarantor), The ILG Bonds 4 ware constituted under a Trust Deed dated 7 Septembor 2009 and are unsetured,

The ILG Bonds 4 Bear intenest semi-anmally on 1 December and 1 june at an intenest rate of 2106% intlally, indessd u by
the inflatioh ate evory hall pear. The elfective intenest rate a5 a1 30 Jene 2020 1s 274% (2019 254%) por snnuem The ILG
Bonds 4 will be redeemed in full by the Issuer on 1 june 2039 at thelr indaxed value together with o acorued interest.

{il 4.0% Guaranteed unsecurad bonds

Cn 24 pwary 2012, Wedsax Water Services Finanoe Pic, "seer™), a sulsidiary of the Groug, issued GBF 200,000,000 rominal
villuie 4,00% Cuaranteed Unsecured Bands due 2021 4% GU Bonds®) vnconditionally and imevocably guasanteed by Wessex
Water Services Limited ("Guarantar), a subsidiary of thie Group. The 496 O Bords are comstituted under @ Trust Deed dated
24 [anuary 2012 The nomina value of 4% QU Bonds msued amounted to GEP200.000,000, of which GEP1S9,607,155 (201
GEP199,400,679) remained sutstanding a5 at 30 jure 2020, net of amortised fees and discownt. The net proceeds of the 4%
G Bonds were used Ter refinancng of existing finantial indebtecness and for general corporate purpases,

O 30 August 2012, Wessex Water Senvices Finance Pic, (Tssuer”), a subsiciery of the Group, ssued GBP100,000,000 romenal
value 4 00% Cuaranteed Ursecursd Sords due 2021 (4% OU Bonds™) uvnconditionally and lnevocably guaantesd by Wessex
Waler Services Limited (Canranitor, o sulnidioy of the Group. The 4% OU Bords ae corstituted uicher o Trnd Deed doted
30 Aurgust 2012 The nominal walue of 4% GU Borads Rsued amounted to CEP100,000,000 of which CBF101,050,703 (2%
GEPIOZ0ES, 593 iemaingd cutstanding as at 30 june 2020, net of smortied Tees and discount, The net poceds of he 4%
GU Bonds were used Tor tefinancing of existing finantiy indebiadness and fof genersl Corporie purpases,

The Bonds bear imerest at 4,00% per annuin, payable annuaty on 24 September of @ach year, The bonds wil ba redeemed
i full By tha kssuer on 24 September 2021 81 thair nominal value together with all accruad inferest

Thix 4% CLF Bands CEP]00.000,000 due 24 Seplomber 2021 wer cormalidated 1o fofm b Sngle seres with thi 4% CU Bonds
GAP200.000,000 which was issued on 24 [anuary 2012,
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30. BONDS [CONT'D.)

[} 1.5% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 17 Seplember 2019, Wessos Water Services Finanoe Ple. TEsuer), 3 subsidiary of thi Group, issted GEPZS0/000.000 nominal
i 1500 Guaranteed Unsequned Bonds due S029 (retaning GEF 50,000,000 M5 GU Bords™) unconitionally and inevocally
guarantesd by Wessew Water Services Limited {Tusarantor]. a subsidiary of the Group. The 1.5% GU Bonds are corstituted wndar
a Trust Depd dated 17 September 2019, The nomnal vake of 1.5% GU Bords swed amaunted o GEPZ00.000,000, af which
CRF9A, 43600 remaned ugstarding as o 30 june 2020, nat of amontsed fees and discount, The net proceeds of the | 5%
(G Bonds weerz uned for refinancing of eeisting financial indebitedness and for general comporate pumoeses.

On 15 June 2020, Wirisen Wates Sendces Financa Pic. (Tssued), o subsiony of tha Group, soid the retained GEPSD,.000,000
nominal value 15% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds dua 2029 The nominal value of 15% GL) Bonds ssued amountad to
CEPS0,000,000, of which G3P49.231,124 memaned outstanding as ab 30 |une 2020, net of amortised fees and dscount. The
net protoeds of the 15% CU Bonde wore ued far refinancing of axisting fnandal indobtodness and Tor qonetal comporate
DLEpOSEs.

The Bondi Boar interest ot L50% par annum, papahile anmally on 17 September ol @ach yaar. Tha Borls will be redeemed in
full by the Issuer on 17 September 2029 at their nominal vaiue together with al accrued inferest,

[k} |apan bonds

Stathil Global RET Dre THE ("SCREIT Ong TMKT), 4 subsidiary af the Croup, has [PYETE millien (SCDRS million) of [apan bonds
outstanding as at 30 june 2019, maturing in August 2021 The interest rate for the japan bond wars hedged via interest ate ca.
‘whilst na security hat been pledged, the bandholders of the apan band have 3 S1atutory prefamred right, under the Japan Assat
Liquidation Live, to receive payment of all chigations under the jopan bond pror to other crediton out of the assets of the ssuer
[SGREIT One THI). During the financlal yaar, SCAEIT and its subsidiany companies’ ceased o be subsidanies of the Group.
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31. BORROWINGS

Group Company
2020 z019 2020 2019
HNole RM'ODO0 RM'0D0 RM'O00 RM'00D0
Current
Bankars' a'caplances Aja) 28,726 4,347 - -
Hank dverdratts =111 45,147 4267 - -
Fnance |lease kabilities A1ig} - I0.285 - 565
Iredesmabie comanible wnsecured loan
SIS A1dy 2.103 15,600 - -
Revobdng credit eI ] 3.688.009 1354043 1,750,654 L2566, 855
T Inans an 7.333,571 11,370,304 - 200,000
11.067.556 14837243 1.750.654 1457420
Hon-currant
Finance |ease llabilities EHLA] - 17,489 - 550
Irricleemabde canverible insécuied kban
stocis iy 3,539 - - =
Revebdng credit ENT ] 1,747,204 565,935 - -
Teim loans Eali)] 10,841,940 11,177,431 - -
12,592,683 11,760,855 - 550
Tatal
Bankers' acceptances ya) 28,726 24.347 - -
Bank cverdrafts k) 45,147 42,675 - -
Finance leasa labilities Alje} - 47754 - LIS
Irreclettmatile canvertible wnsecured lban
ockt EL}] 5642 15,609 - .
Ruyiduing cradit ) 5435213 3,919,978 1,750, 654 1.266855
Tem inans Ei ] 18.175.511 22547795 - 200,000
23,690,239 26,598,098 1.750,654 La67.970
246

513/620



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Motes to the Financial Statements

= 30 |une 2020
31. BORROWINGS ICONT'D.)
The bosrowinigs of the Group and tha Compary ane repayable a5 Tollows:
Later than
1 year but
Mot later nat later Later than
than 1 year  than § years 5 years Total
RMO00 RM'000 AM'000 RM000
Group
At 30 June 2020
Barkers aoteptances 28,726 - - 28,726
Bark aqverdrafts 45147 - - 45147
KuLs 2103 3,539 - 5,642
Revalving credit 3,688,009 1,747,204 - 5,435,213
Tarm loans 7.333,571 10,173,500 GG, 440 18,175,511
11.097.556 11,924,243 GE&H.440 23,690,239
At 30 June 2019
Barkory' aotoptancas 24,347 - = 24,347
Bark averdrafis 42675 - - A2R75
Finance lease liahilitias I0.2R5 17,489 - 47,754
KULS 15609 - . 15.609
Resalving credit 3354043 425935 140,00 ana.gm
Term oans 15370304 9,555,068 1822363 22,547,735
14,837,243 0996,492 1762363 26,598,090
Company
At 30 June 2020
Revalving credit 1.750,654 - = 1,750,654
1,750,654 - = 1.750.654
At 30 June 2019
Finance lease liabilities 565 S50 - L1115
Riraalving cradi 1266855 - - 1,266,855
Term kaans 2060, 000 - - 200,
LAB7AZ0 550 - LAGT 970

The caarying amournts of the bomowings of the Group and of the Company as at the reporting date approkimated their faer values.
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'DL)

Thi wiighited ave-age affecthe intidost rates of 1he bomowings of the Group ard the Company 35 & tha reporting date ane as

fallows:
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
% h Ha B
Tenm loams - Fra | EAN] - 4,34
Rivohiing credit 416 410 Z.85 190
IS 749 7.49 - -
Bankers acceplances 4.01 305 - -
Bank cverdralts 110 289 - -
Finance loase liabilities - LED - 2.40

{a) Bankers® acceptancos
All he Bankes acoeptances are wisedured and repaysble on demard,

{b) Bank averdrafts
Al th bank aueidratt Tarkties 2m unseoued and ripayatie on demand

{c) Finance lease labilities

Finarice laase liabiites were inchudad in bormowings until 30 june 2019 and weme redassified to lease fiabilitias on 1 july 2009
upan thie adoption of MERS 16, For the Empact of the changes in accounting policy Tor leases and adjuiiments rcoghised on
adoption of MFRS 16 on | july 2009, pease reler to Mote 44 1o the financial statemants

Thi: Crowp's nance kease baars Interest rates ranging from 1.56% to 4.97% per anndm and the Compary™s finance lease
hears interest rate 3t 2.27% per annum,

Group Company

Z019 Z019

RM'O0O RM'DODO

Payahle not later than 1 year EIFrrdl 509

Payable later than 1 year and not later than & years 12702 5kb
Laber than 5 years 53

Total minimum lease payments 49,476 1,165

Less: Finanoe chaies (1.722) 150y

Present value of minlmum lease payments A7.754 1115
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)
[d) Irredesmable convertible unsecured loan stocks (“ICULS")
ICLLS 2013/
On 31 October 2011, ¥YTL Land & Developmesnt Berhad (YTL Land'), a subsidary of the Group issued 992,378,023 ten (10)
YT 3% S10PEING up o 6% ICULS a1 0 rominal value of RMO.S0 each. maturing 31 Octobor 2021 CMaturity Dame’)
The sallent tenms of the ICULS 201172021 are as foldows:

{1 The ICULS 201142021 bear a coupon rate of 30% per anmim from date of ssue (Bse Date’) up to fourth annivessany
af th ksue Date and 4.5% por annum from the date after the fourth anniversany of the ssue Date up to the seventh
atinhvarsary af tha s Date. Thaseafter, tha IDULS 201172021 bead A pouipan rate of &05% per annim ap ta the matusty
date, The interest |s payable seml-annually in arrears.

{iiy The ICULS 2Z0L1A2021 are corvertible at any time on oc after its Isswence date into new ordenaey shares of YTL Land at
e comyersion price, which is fixed on a step-down basis, as foloes:
Far conversion at any time from the date of Issue up to the fourth anniversary, convarson price s RML32

= For corversion at amy tme after fourth anniversary of Bswe up 1o the seventh anniversary, conversion price is B0 99:
and

»  For conversion at any tme altor seventh annersary of Siue up o the maturity date. COnwersion phice is BMOES

({lly  The ICULS 201112021 are not redeemabée and ary BKULS 200142021 remaining iImmediately atter the maturity date shall
b mandatodly corveried into oodinary shares at the conversion price.

(v} The new ordinary shares ssued from the conversion of ICULS 2010/3021 will be deemad fully paid-up and rEnk parl pegsu
ir all retpects with all xisting ordinary shares of YTL Land

A certain amount of the IKULS 201172021 are held by the Company (refer Mote 15 to the financlal statements). The relevant
amaurs have been eliminated o the S@tements of Finandal Pasigien.

(e} Rewelving credit
Sawa for RMZB6,209,000 (2015 AM180,000,000) revolving credit faclity of YTL Lard & Development Berhad, a the nevalving
credit facilities are utmecured and epayable on demand.

fy Term loans
(I} Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds

a)  The term loans of RM394,912,500 [GBP7S,000,000] (2019: RM3093,667,500 [GOPTS,000,000]) are wnsecured loans
of Wessox Water Senices Limited snd afe quarantesd by Wassex Water Limited. The loams bear Intorest rates
ranging from L.21% to 1.27%5 {2019 1L05% to 1.50%) per annum and are repayable in full an 22 July 2021,
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'DL)

{f} Term loans (cont'd.)
{ij Term loans denominated in Great British Paunds {cont'd.}

bj  The term ieans of RM1L053,100,000 [CEP200,000,000] [2019: RML,04%. 780,000 [CEP200,000,000f) an: wsecund
R & Wessn Water Services Limited and are guaranieed by Woster Water Limited. The First kaan of GEPS0,000,000
weas drawn down on 30 jamiary 2015 bears an inferest rate of 21696 (2019 216%) per annum, the secand loan
of CEPSO000,000 was drawn down on 9 March 2015 bears interest rates ranging fram 1.27% to 1419 (2009:
115% to L.A42%] por anmumy the third koan of CEPS0,000,000 was drawn dovwn on 9 Apil 2015 bears an intarest
rate of 1.99% (2019: 1.99%) per anrum, #nd the fourth loan of GBPS0,000,000 was drasn down on 25 May 2016
pears nterest rates rangng from LES% to 1.75% (2019: 14%% to §.77H) per annum. All the loans are repayable
i 1l botween 30 January 2024 snd 25 May 2025,

€ The term loans of RML053,100,000 [GBP200,000,000] (2009 RMT 34,845,000 [CHP140.000,000]) was drawn by
Wessex Wintes Services Limited of which RMI, 044,436,958 [GB#]96.354, 756 (2019; AM728.262.064 [GBFLIE 745.658])
remalred outstarding as at 30 june 2020, net of amortsed fees. The loans bear inferest rates ranging from 181%
by 2.03% (2019 LEI% 10 203%) pet annum and ane repayable with a 0% bulet iepayment on 31 january 2026
wiith the emaining 40% being repaid in egual Seml-anmsl imtalments commencing 31 anoary 2081,

Al thia Tanm [Dars e unsecumd,

{ii} Term loans denominated in US Dollars

#  Tihe term ioan of RMEZH,AU0000 | 0@ ULO00,000] of previows year was drawn down by YL Power Infemationad
Berhad (Y TLPT) om 28 May 4005 and was tully repaid curing the financial year, The Domowing bears iMerest rates
ranfing from A06% 10 3.71% (2019 163% 1o 4.04%) par annum.

bl Tha teem loan of RMBSE,000,000 [LSD200,000,000] (201%: RMBZ2E, 200,000 [LISD200, 000, 000 |k wak drawn dowi
by YTLP @h |7 December 2015 and repayable on 17 Decomber 20200 The barnowing bears irarest rates ranging
from L25% to 3.36% (2009 3.36% to 3.74%:) per annum.

o} The tesrm loan of RMLOMLO0G,000 [USD250,000.000) (200% AMLOZS.500,000 (WSOZS0,000000]) was drawn
dawn by YTLPI an 31 March 2017 of which RMLDG63.537.133 [USD248,489,984] (2015 AML.025,641.237
[US0247,668,092] ) remained ounstanding 25 af 30 june 2020, net of amortised fees. The borrowing bears et
rates ranging from 1377 to 360% (2019: 3.27% to 3.72%) per anmum and is repayable on 30 March 2022,

g The term loan of #M942,305,000 [USDZE7,500.000] of previous year was drwn dawn by YTL Corp. Finance
{Cayman) Lirited on 16 March 2016 and are quarantioed by the Company. The ioan bears interest rate of 320%
(2019 374%) per annum and was Tully repaid during the financial year,

Al thie tarm loarms s unsecunsd

(i} Term loans denominated in Ringglt Malaysia
Save far the term lcan of RM1L954 450,000 (2019 AML996,313.000) of the Group, S8 thi 1em bans ane unsstuned.
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)

(1} Term loans {contd.)
(v} Term hoans denominated in Singapore Dollars
inctuded in the term nan are:

a)  The teqm kan of RME,064,.272,85]1 [SG01.974,177.238) (2012: RME,038, 721,474 [5CG0],9731,1B0438]) wars arawn
down by YTL PowearSeraya Pte, Limited (Y TLPS") on 14 Septambar 2017 and repayabla in Tul on 12 Septembar
2022 The borrowing Is an unsecured ioan and bears intesest rates ranging from 1.455% to 116% (2019 283% o
344%) per anmum,

The bank hommwings ane subject 19 ioan covenant clauses stipulated in the loan agreement, A at 30 june 2020,
WTLPS ditd nat mest thie iequirement of 2 certain Ban cowmants and a5 & st the bommangs han been classified
w4 oerent liakility B thee statement af Tinantis position of the Gioip On 23 September 2020, ¥TLPS retatend &
waiver from the consortium of banis on the reguirement 1o comply with the above loan covenants 36 at 30 June
test date The wanver effecisvely extended the ban covenants compliance requirements to 30 Newember 2020, The
extersian provides YTLPS with the cppartunity to meat two key requirements namely completion of the securitisation
documentation and Tuaspang Pre. Lid [Tuaspring”) acquisition

Sawe Tor the term koan of RML 102,464,000 (2005 RM755.294.000) ol the Goug, all 1he term loans are unssoursl.

[¥] Term loans denominated in Australian Dellars
Al the torm bean are secured by Tirst fixed charge aver the proportied.

(wi) Term loans denominated in japanese Yen

Save for the term lean of RM236,500,000 of the Group, all the term |pan are secured fy first fiwed charge over the
propertios.

32, LEASE LIABILITIES
The details of lease Rabdities s a5 Follows:

Group Company
2020 2020
RMDOO RMDOO

Prasented as:
Cuiffent 176,495 7.254
Non-(ument 1.447.352 2479
1.623.847 89,733
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

Thie Group's maturity profileof kease Habibties ane dischosed in Note 39(2) to the financial SIatemnie

Extension and termination options are included in 3 number of property and equipment leases atross the Group and the Compary,
Thiese are used 10 mazimise operational Thexiblity in termes of managing the assets usad in the Group and the Company’s operations.
The majority of extension and torminatian optiofd held aro excrciable only by the Croup and the Company and nat by the
respective lessor

Some property leases contain vanable payment terms that ame liked to ssles with percentages rangag hrom 1% fo 5% of wales.
Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period which the condition that triggers those
PAYMENTS OO

{a) Metinvestment in leases

Graup
2020
RM'O0Q
A1 baginning af th financial year -
Effect of atoption of MFRS 16 16,739
Additions 5087
Interest income Liz8
Lease payments received [7.068)
Al end af the financial year 15.886
Premenied oy
Curfont 4,193
Won-rismant 11,693
15.BH6

£5¢
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32, LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
{a) MNetinuvestment in leases [cont'd.)

Thi Grou keases conciete mixer tricks 1o third parties. Each of the leases containg an intial mon-cancelable penod of 7 years.

Thesa leases transter substantially all the sisk and rewards ncidental to ownership of the concrete mixer trucks. The Group
upects the reskdual value of the concrete mixer irucks at the end of the lbase term to be manimal. These leases do not irclude
nuy-pack areaments ar feskhual valis guarantees

The lease payments 1o he rerelved are a5 follows:

Group
2020
RMO00
s thai 1 yeas 4,766
I to 2 years 4,507
2 to 3 yeas 3.524
3 to 4 ywars 2,598
4 1a 5 years 1.345
Mpge than 5 years 537
Tatal undiseounted lease payments 17.277
Uneamed interest income (1.391)
Ket investment in leases 15,886

Duing the finanoal peried, the Group has recognised a gain of RM77.000 for entering into new finance subs ease

33. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Group

2020 2019
Note RMODO RMO00
AL beginning of the linanclal year 560,828 248,493
Curmancy translatan dilf senies 1.665 (1.124)
Amortisation of grants and comtrbuticns 7 [15,166) 15,973
Recewad curing the Tinancial year 48,342 29,438
At end of the financal year 596.669 560,628

Grants and contributions represents govemment granls in Tofelgn subdidianes in espact of speciftic quallfying expenditune an
il rastuctune assets, nan-infrastruciure assets and a cogeneration plant,
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'OOD0 RM'000 RM'000
At beginning of the finangial year, as reparted

previausly 2,073,144 2143967 113 n3

Effect of adoptian of MFRS 16 (5] -
A1 beginning of the financial yoar, as restaned 2,073,139 2143967 113 13
Charged to Incoma Statements 144,558 9,395 - -
= Praparty, plant and equipment 184,067 22,386 - -
- Praparny davidapmant 692 (F=0) - -
- Inwestment Eoperties 2,226 5HO - -
- Retimment henafits 16,550 4,360 - -
- Provision To7 {1131} - -
- Unutilised capital aliowance {20,625) [5.591) - -
- Unatsorbed 1ax lossas (ZLETT) [B.aE9) - -
= Lepses (3.575) - = -
- Dihiess (13,807) {L479) - -
Currency translation differences 10,234 (3.778) - -
Aeuisition of subsidiary 4,933 {GE.497) - -
Credited 1o Cther Comprehensive ncome* [49,984) (7.943) - -

Derecognition of subsidany (18,876) - -
At ard of tha Financial yoar 2,164,004 2073144 113 13

This 5 in retation to re-measurement of past-employment benefit obligations,
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34, DEFERRED TAXATION ICONT'D.)

Delarred tax assets and liabdties aa attset whon there is a legally enforceatés nght 1o 56T off INComie Tax 35515 AQMUNST ACome
ta liakalities and when the detesred taxes molate to 1he same 14 aulharity, The fallewing Amaunts determined after apprograte
iiisatting are shawn in the Stalements af Financial Position-

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
RHO00 REOOO RM'000 RMODD
Dolorred tax assets provided ane in respect af
Deferred tax assets before affsetting
Urnstiiruedd capital alowaand i {168,899) [115.424) - 2
Retiremant benefits (174 567) [134.299) - -
Unabsorbed tax losses {229,587) {23416} - -
Provision (5.915) {16.406) =
Leaus {8,166) . - -
Ohess [113.352) (20,637} - -
(700,486) (5170604 = o
Difsetting 700,406 17,000 - =
Deferred tax assers aftor affsotting = =
Defarred tax labiities prowided aa i1 respect of .
Deferred tax liabiltes bofore offseniing
Property, plant and equipment
= capital alowances n eacess of depraciation 2,800,277 2,530,400 113 HLES
Lardd bl far progeity developmpnt 38,825 arEaz = .
Uihess 25,388 £1.931 -
2,864,490 2500224 113 HLE]
Ddlsetnling (700, 486) (517,080) - -
Delerred tax hobiities atter offsetting 2,164,004 2073144 1nzx RE ]
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D.)

Daferrd 1ax assnls havo not Beon redognised in respact of tha Tolowing |Tems:-

Group
2020 2019
RM'G00 RMO00
Linsbsorbed tax losses 1.390,181 1L&81.A78
Unutilised capital allmwantes 1,300,968 2551985
Deductible temporary differences 170,634 TrA0G
Tamable temparary diffefences - property. plant shd equipment (B20,424) [L1B8,767)
2,241,359 2,822,502

Thir unatrorbed tax losses and unutised capital aliowanies are Subiect 1o agroemaent with tha inland Revenue Boatd. On the athid
hand effective from year of asessment JO19 a5 snounced in the Anmual Budget 2005, the unused tax losses of The Croug as a1
31 Uecembes AHHE and thereafter will only ba available for camy forward fior a periad of F consecutive years, Upan expiry of the
T wears, the anabsorbed losses will be dsmganded

35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00 RMO00
Defined contribution plans - Current

- Malaysla F5(a) 5.2681 4874 287 305
Defined benefit plans - Non-current

= Maaysia 35(b) 21,937 55,346 - .

- Uniltiedd Kangiaim F5e) BED, 245 BB7,950 - -

- Intomnesia 50 19,716 16.350 = -

910,898 750646 =

{a) Definad contribution plans

Groug companies incompornated in Malaysia contribute to the Employess Provident Fund. the natiohal defired contribution plan
Unce the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligations,
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

(b} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia

The oetined henatit plans Typcally exposes e Goop 1 actuanial nsks such a5 kengewity rick and salary rse

i} Lengewity risk
The present vakie of the defined bensfit plans kabeity s @lculated by reterence fo the best estimate af the mortalty
af plan particpanis dunng ther empoymeant. An increase in the ife expectancy of e plan particpants will increase the
plar's labiliy,

(i) Salary risk
This presant valin of the chtind Benetie plan iabiliny is calolated by mbeanon 10 e Dufure salanes of pan participants.
B ounch, an inceease in the salary al thie plan participants vwill nererde the plan's ity

Thie morst recent actuarial valuatian of the plan sssets and the present value ol the defined benefit obligatian wene carried
aut on 29 Awguet 2020 by an extemal actuany,

Thie present value af the defined benofit abligation, and the eltod current Saren cost and past serdc CosT, wire masunod
wiing the projected unit cradl mathod,

The principal actuarial assumpricas at the end of the ropoing poricd are &5 folows:

Group
2020 2019
] ¥
Discoun raz 3.9 51
Fiitiee salary moreass rate 5.0 1)

'qllj‘llrlh'ml actuarial .“.';ul'l"lli.lf‘l.ri for the fetaminatian af the dedines] Bensli !ﬂﬂljﬂlil'lrl % Ehe e aunt e, The wane |'p|'|}'

analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumption occumng &t the end
of the repening peried, white haking all ather assumgitions constant.

f the dgiscount rate increasef{decrease] by 05%, the defined benafit obligation would decrease by RM1.081.738/Anmease by
AML016,616 (Z01F: decrease by RMZAT3.490Amreas0 by RMEZ 538, B53),
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT DBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
{b) Defined bencfit plans - Malaysia (cont'd.)
Sersitivity aralyss. {rantd]

Thix maviements (n the net labikty recognised n the Statements of Financial Posioon are as follows:-

Group
2020 2019
RM'D00 RMO00
A1 beginning af the Financks year 55,346 -
Arrpuisition of subdidianes - 54,816
[Resersaly'Charge for the financial year (19.487) 530
Benefits paid!payabies (16,261) '
Actuarial less recognised i other comgrenensive intome 2.339
At end of the financlal year 21,837 55,346
Th ampunts recognised in the Staterments of Finenclal Position are analysed as Tolloes:-
Group
2020 2019
RM'O00 RM 00
Present value of unfunded chilgation 21,937 55,346
Reconciliation of the present value of unfunded obligation &e s follows:-
Group
2020 2019
RM‘OO0 RMOO0
At Boginning af the Tinarial yoar 5L 346 ;
Acguisition of subsidianes = 54,816
Actuarial loss 2,334 -
Aetiefits pakd! payiabies [16,261) "
Curresnt Sendioe cost [1.695) 04
Lurtaiment gain (1r.8ra) -
Interest cosl a7z 226
At end of the Tinancial year £21.937 56,346
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
[b) Defined benefit plans - Malaysia [cont'd.)
The amauEnts fecognised in the InCome Statemeants 28 as followe-
Group
2020 2019
RMDO0 RM000
Currant service cost {1.695) 304
Inferest cost a7 22
Curtallment gain {17.879) -
Tatal change 1o income Sratements (19.487) S0

{c) Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom

A subsidiary of the Croup operates final salary defined bersefit plars far s employoes in the United Eingdom, the assets af
wihich are held in separate tustee-administered funds. The latest actuanal valuation of the plan was undertaken by a gualified
actuary a5 at 30 September 2010, This valuation has Been adjusted to the Feporting date s &t 30 june 2020 taking account
of expenence ower the period since 30 September 2019, changes in market conditions. and differences in the firancial and
demogranhic assumptions by the gualified actuary,

{1} Profile of the scheme

The defined berafit ohligations inchade benefits for cument emplayees, former employees. and curment pensioners. Broadty,
atioul £7% of the Batabiles are attributable to ouTent employess, 16% 1o fommer emaloyess and 57% 10 cutent pensioners.
The schwermes duratices is an indicalon of e weghied-ienage Ume wilil benedn payments ane made, For the scheme o5 a
witiake, the duration is around 17-18 years refletng Ue approximate splt of the defined beneli obligation belween cument
ergloyees (duration of 24 years), deferred members (duration of 24 years) and cument perskoners (duration of 13 yearsh

{if) Funding requirements
UK legishrtion requires That parsionh schemes s funded prodently, The st funding valuation raport, 30 Saplember 2009
showed a deficit of GEPLS7.0 million (RMB26.7 million). The subsidiary |s paying deficit cantributions af:-
= GEPI304 malion (RMEEE million) by 1 August 2020
GBP14.80 millon (AMTT.S milkon) by 1 juy 2021,
+ GBPISED millan (RMEF4 million) by § july 2022
»  GBP1EA0 millon (RMS5 S milion) by 1 july 2023
+  GEPFZ0.20 million (RM136.4 million) by 1 |uly 2024
*  GBPZZ00 million (RM11SE milion] by 1 july 2025
* GBPZEIAD0 milion [AM125.3 millian) by 1 Aphil 20285;

witiich, along with investmant returns from retwm-secking assets, s oxpected o make good this shortfall by 1 Apid 2026.

The next furding valuation i due no kater than 30 Septermber 2022 at which progress towands Full funding will be reviewod.
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DELIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{c) Defined bencfit plans - United Kingdom [cont'd.)
{il} Funding requirements (cont'd.)

Tha suibsidiary also pays contributions of 217, increasing 1o 24.6% from 1 Aprl 2021, of pensionable salares n mapect
of cunment accrua’ and nor-irmdstmant related expenses, with active memboers paying a furthor 7.4% of pondarable salires.
o0 aversge. A contribution of GEFL3.04 million (AMSEE millon) is expected o be pald by the subsidiary during the year
endng cn 30 |une 2021

{iii) Fisks associated with the schema

Asnet volatdity - The liabilitios ane cafculated using a discoint rate set with reforence to corporate bond yields i assots
uncerperfom 1his vield, this wil create a defict. The scheme holds a sgnificant propoction of giowth assers {equities
inchuding a deaersilied growth fund and a glabal absokite retum fund) which, though expected bo outpetlorm corpotate
bands in the kong-tesm, create volatility end risk in the short-1erm. The aliocation 1o growth assets s monitored to ensure
It remains approptiate glven the scheme's long-term objectes.

Changes In bond yelds - & decrease in corporate bond yields will Increase the value placed on the scheme's labdlizles for
aLpiivleng s alllough s will be partially offsed by & ieass i W il of e S hene's bonid Molilng.

Infiation risk - The majority of the scheme’s benafit obligations are linked o inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher
llabidimies (aithough, in MosT cases, caps on this levid of inflationasy INCreases e in place 1o protedt agalist exreme
Irflanion). The majority of the assets are either unaflected by of only loosely cormelated with indlation, meaning 1ha an
Incresse i nfiaton wil also incease the deficit

Life sopactancy = Thi majonity of the srhama’s abligationt are 10 piovida benafits far the §fe of the membsar, &0 inmeases
in Iife espectancy will result in an increase in the labites,

Thae tiustees |mure cartan benelits payable on death belore retiremant,

Thie mavements dunng the financlal yoar in thir amounts ecsgnesed in thie Statements of Finandal Pesktion are as follows:-

P

2020 2015

RM'OO00 RM'D00

AL puly GB7.950 G7LG2S
Persbon cost 76,778 BO0.526
Contributions and berefits paid (125,949} (110,159)
Currency translation differences 1,063 (6.355)
Remanaurement hoss 229,403 308
At 30 pne BEG, 245 647,950
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
[c} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom {cont'd.)
The amounts recognised in the Statements af Financkal Position are & foliows-
Group
2020 2019
RMODO RMO0O
Presont value of funded abligaticns 4,424,366 4,081,555
Fair value of plan ansets (3.555.121) {3,393.505)
Liabdty in the Statements of Finanoal Position 859,245 BE7.950
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are as fallows-
Group
2020 2019
RMODO RM'OO0
ALT July 4,081,555 3522374
Euchange differences 9,610 (38,236)
nienest oSt 95,364 111,022
Current senviie cost 57475 56,506
Contributions by schame partipants 530 1,068
Past service cost - 2,669
Net benefits paid [143.04E) (147.852)
Ra-miasurimint {gan )ios-
- Actuadial gain arising from demographic assumptions {73.643) (146,250}
= Actuadial Igss afisding from financal ssumplions 321,589 27T
= Aciuadial lxse/(geen) ardng fram exparionce sdustmoents 75,232 (7.473)
Prewent vl af defined benefir abiigations, a8 W0 June 4,424,366 4.0[1.555
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DELIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{c) Defined bencfit plans - United Kingdom [cont'd.)
Changes in falr value of plan assets are s folows:-

Graup

2020 2019

RM'TO0 RM'D00

ALy 3,393,605 3,250,745

Exthange diflerences 8.547 {31.883)

Interest income 73,470 92,340

Contributicns by empleper 125,949 110,153

Conmtributions by scheme panicipants 530 1.O&H

Net benefits padd {143.046) [147.852)

Admimistration ekpemes (3.704) {2668)
Re- miasuremest gair:-

- Return on plan assets exouding interest income ‘93,775 121,697
Faif wahs af plan astets, at 30 |une 3,585.121 3,393 605
This persian cest recognised is anatyted i followss

Group
2020 2019
RMO00 RM'O00
Current service oot 57175 56,506
Irterest cosl 15.894 18,682
Past service tost - 2660
Administration expenses 3,709 2,669
Total chaeger to Income Statmments 76,778 80,526
Thes chamge 1o noome Statements was included in the Tellowing ling items:-
ki
2020 2019
RM'O00 RMO00
Cost of sales 45,663 46,383
Admimistraiion eperos 15,221 15.461
Interest cost 15.894 18,662
Toral charga te intoma Slatements 76,778 B.526

cbe
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e} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom {cont'd.)

Thiz principal assumplions weed in the actuanal tEkiulathons were a5 Tolows:-

Discount rate

Enpectid rate of NCreass i pension payment
Expecter rate of salary increases

Price irflation - RFY

Price irflation - CP1

= 30 June 2020

Group
2020 2019
L LT
160 230
1.90-2.60 1.90-3.00
180 L7
2.70 EN (]
2.20 210

Mortality assumpriarns:-

Th mariaity assumptions are based upon the moent actual mortality experience of schome mambers, and alow for expected

future impravements in mortality rates.

2020 2020

Male Female

Yoars Yoars

Litie pxpecTany - curtent age GO 25.9 283
Lite expectancy - [urment age 0 47.0 49.5

2019 2018

Male Female
Yoars Yoars
67 fE3
4r4 495

The mostality table adopted is bawed vpon 105% of standard tables SIPMFN adjusted to allaw Tor indbedual years of barth.
Futuno improvements e dssumed to be in ling with the EM1 2018 core projection, with a long-torm improvement rate of LO%

o, for all members.
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DELIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
{c) Defined bencfit plans - United Kingdom [cont'd.)
SEnEIthity arahyos-
Thir kiry assumptions wsed for MFRS 119 are: descount rate, inflation and mortaling. o diffenent assumptions are used, 1his coukd
iy & matedal of foct on e redulls dieclomd. The sensitivity of the rosults to these Msumpnions am st oul befow, For th

purpases of these sapsitivities, It has been assumed that the change in the discount rate and inflation has no impact on the
value of schame ascets

Scheme kabilitles Scheme deficit
Increass by Incréaie from Increase ta Intrease from Increase to
Key assusmptions RMOD0 RMDCD RM000 RHB00 RMO0
A reuction i the discount rate of 0%
[From 16% 1o 15%] Bl036 4404366 4504402 B4 49280
An incredrde in the inflation of 0%
[Prom 2:2% 1o £ 35 for
[Ft and 2 7% 1o 28% for AP 10558 4474358 4434929 B69.244 939602
An Incresrse in e expectancy of 1yesr 1823 4,474,366 & 60708 BaS.24H LOGLSSY
Thie plan assets comprised the following-
2020 2019
RM'D00 k] RM'000 8%
Equity nstramsent 1.142.087 ) 1,335,845 394
Dbt Instrsment 1,948,235 548 1802472 231
Property 193,770 55 141,565 56
Cithars 271.030 76 61711 18
3,555,122 100.0 3,393,613 1000
Group
2020 2019
RMO00 RM000
ACTLAl retumn o plan aseels 173,245 714,037
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

[d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesis

Summary of ohbatons relating 1o emglayes Benatits dud under prevailing law and egidatons as well a8 under the Indonea
subrsidiary's reguiatons e as prosentod o

Group
a_ma 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Obégation relatng 1o post-cmpioyment benefits 17.261 14021
Dbigation retating 1o other long-term employes berafits 2,455 2329
Tatal 19.716 16,350

A subisidiary of the Group has & defined contribution pension plan covering 1S qualified permanent national smpiayess in
widor@sla, The subsadiany’s confribution is 6% of employes basic salacy, while the employees contribution ranges fiom
I 1o 149,

The contributions mada 1o the delined contribution plin s acceptable for funding the post-employnent benefits uondar The
labowr requiations.

The olligations for post-employment wnd other long-temm employese Benefits were recognised with releenda 10 aduarial
reparts prepared by an independant actuany. The latest actuarial report was dated 30 june 20200

(i} Post-employment benefit obligations

The movements during the financial year in the ammmits recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as

follows-
Group

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'0D0
At july 14,021 11,916
Pension cost 1924 1689
Contributions. and benafits paid 1633} {537
Currendy Tranilation @Hforences 534 2R
Ha-measuremeant loss 1.415 733
AL IO june 17,261 14021
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT DBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
{d) Defined bencfit plans - Indonesia (cont'd.)
{iy Post-employment benefit abligations (cont'd.)

The abligations relating to post-employment benediis recognised in the Statements of Financial Position ame as follaws-

Group
2020 2019
RHM'ODD RMOO0
Present value of obligations 17,261 14021
Charugos in present value of defined banafil obligations are as Tollows:-
Group
2020 2018
RMO00 RMOO00
AL july 14.021 11916
Currency trarmiation diff ererces 534 220
Interest cost lLo13 o911
Current service cost a1 e
Rt hemating paid (633} (537)
Revmaasuhomen? ke[ gain)!
- Actuanal loss from demographic assumptons 1.698 -
- Actuarial loss. arising from financial assumptions - e
- Actuanal gain agising from sxperende adjustments (283} [4E)
Present value of defined henetit abligatans at 30 june 17261 14,0
Thee pension cost recognsed can be analysed as follows:-
Group
2020 2019
RMO00O RMOO0
Current service cost 811 TTH
Interest cost L1013 411
Tofal charge to InCome Statements 1,924 1LE8G

cbb
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
[d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia [cont'd.)
(i) Other long-term employes benelit obligations

The obligations reatng 10 ether kng-term employes bensfits e, long leave senae benefits) recognised i the Statements
al Finangial Position e as foliows-

Group
2020 2019
RMDOO RMDDO
Presant value of obligations 2,455 2329

Thiz mowements. during the linancal yes i the amount recognised in the Stetemants of Financsl Position ae s lolliwes:

Group

2020 2019

RM'000 RMODO

At uly 2.329 1,964

Pension cost 503 36

Actuanial gain (32) -
Contribemics and benains pad [d24) (E1H]
Currency translation dtferences 79 a0
At 30 junie 2,455 2323

Changis 0 present value of dafined benelit abbgatiom are as follows:-
Group

2020 2019

RMO00 RMO0O

AL July 2,329 1964
Cuttancy 1ranslation difarences 79 a0

Curvent sendce cost 485 BiE

Actuarial gain [32) -

Ifterest cast 18 -
Met benefits pad [424) (311}
At 30 june 2,455 2329
267
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (cont’d.)
{il} Other lang-term employes benefit abligations

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
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The amaunts refating to ather leng-term emplopes benefits ablgation recognised in the income STatements are as

Tl -

Group
2020 2019
RM'GO0 RMOO00
Current sarvice oot 485 636
That eharge abawe was included in the cost of sales.
The principal assumptions used In the actuar calowations were as follows-
Group
2020 2019
Y
Discount rate 73 73
Future salary Intrease rate a.0 LT
SENEIRATY andiys-
Reaomably possilo changos to 1he koy sssumglions, would have affectid thi dolingd bonalit abligstians By the amaunts
shown badoias-
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 1172 1,303 az3 L1029
Future salary Instregse rate
(1% mawement ) 1701 L5682 1339 1224

This anabysis provides an approximation of the samitivity of the assumplion showrl but does nat take atcount of the

variahility in the timing of distribution of banefit payments expacted under the plan.
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36. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AMD CHARGES
Rectification Damages
works Rostructuring claims
I6{a) 36(b) 36(c) Total
HNote AHO00 RM'000 RMOO0 RMODO
Group - 2020
Al beginning of the finencial year 6528 23,903 101,182 147.613
Curmonty tranelanon diff sendes (4] 42 2,192 2.229
Charged 1o Noome Statemenis 7 - [4.437) - (4.437)
Payments {1712} [7.092) - (B.BD4)
Arend of the financial year 4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
Group - 2019
A1 beginring of the Tinancial year B.132 35,382 102451 146,005
Curnency tramlation diff prantes 134 (e 165 2l
Charged to income Statements T - a.219 (5499) 1,540
Payments {1,738 [3G19) {775) 6,132}
&t end of 1he financlal year 5520 39,903 1ohae2 147613

[a] Rectification works

The phasdsian ralated 1o the estimated tost of rectification works lar completod projoct.
[b) Restructuring

The prostsion for lablitles and changes relates 1o scadng down of operations, emdronmental liabilithes and asset retiremant
abgation

[c} Damages claims

The provison of damages claims relate to projects undertaken by subsidiaries and are recognised for expected damages daéms
Based on the term ol thie applicabls sgreements.
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37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

RM'O0D RM'000 RMO00 RM'O00

Trade payables 1.331.951 201355 - -

Dther payables BO5, 750 613,442 ara 70

Deferred income - @133 10,491 - -
Security deposits 176802 112510

Azcrusd experros® 981,288 917254 16,583 16,768

3,044,920 36850652 17,462 1TA8E

* Aduivied expeses manly Coonpiise (nteest payalies, repuldiony costs and capital expentitune.

The credit tenms of trade payables granted to the Group vary from 30 days to 180 days (200% 30 days to 180 days). Other oredit
Tefms are assessed and apvoved on 3 case-Dy-Case Dasi,

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Thir Group's and the Campany's oporatians are Subject 1o forssgn cusrency oxchangi k. loroe rato risk, piice risk, crodit rise and
lipulcity risk.

The Group's and the Company’s financial risk management policy soeks to ensune that adeguato resountes se availablo 1o manage
thie abowe risks and to create value for its sharebiolders. 1t Is not the Group's ard the Compamy's palicy to engage in speculative
TEnsacion.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees polices ard procedues for managing each-of thesa risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Foreign currency exchange risk

Fareign curmancy exchange risk is tha risk that the fair valie or future cash flowes of @ financial imstrumant will flictuate becare
of changes in foretgn exchange rates,

Thie Gromp B eaposed 1o i arksing rom vaious curmency exporsunes: primarily with fespect 1o e Great Britesh Pounds [GEFT)
anid Singapore Dolars (SG07). The Group has Imvestments n foreign operations whose net assats ane exposed 1o foreign
CLETENCY TENiaan sk SUch exposwes ane minganed ithrough Domosdngs dencminated in the espacive fundtonal cumences

Where necessary, the Group enters into forward Torekgn cwrency eschange contracts 1o limit its exposure on foresgn cusmendcy
recehvables and payables. nd on cash Hiows gensrated from antidipated transacticns denomnated in laregn curendes.

There Is no significant exposure to foreign cunmandy exchange sk for the Group and the Company.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [(CONT'D.)

(b} Hedge of a net investment in Australia

A% Hva reporting gate, 1he Group's iwestmant n its Austraia salssdianes ars hidged by AUD Bank 16an with & caemying ameunt
of RMLE bllion (AUDA0BL million] wiich mitigates the curmency ik arlsing Trom the subsisdiany's nel issets, Thi lGan is
designated as a net imvestment hadge

The Group determines the existence ol an ecenomic relationship betwean the above hedplng instrumsent and hedged item
Dased on the currency and amounl. The Growp has established a hedge ratio of 1 1 0.8 as the undarlying risk of the hedging
Instrument |5 identical 1o the hedged risk component. The Group has assessed the effectiveness of the above hedging
relaionahin 01 the reporting @ane by comparing eRanoes in th carying Gmount of thi ke that & anibutatie 1 ehanges in
e axchange rata with the changes in the net inestmeant In the foreign operation dus to movements in the axchamge rate,

{c] Imterest rate risk

mierest riFe sk i 1he risk that the falr value of future cash Tiows of the Group's and the Company's Tinmncial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's and the Compaty's exposune 10 interest rate risk arise primarily from their fioating rate bonds and barmeeings,
wihich s partialy oftset by the depodits and short-tesm Investments hald at variable rates. The Group and 1he Company manage
el casn fawe imerest rate risk by using a mix af feed and variable rate debes Detvative Tinanclal instraments. ane used,
whife appropriate. (o genesate thie desired interest rate poalile.

The mterest rate peatile of the Group's and the Compary™s significamt mierest-beaning financial instruments, based on Their
CaTying amaunts a5 at the reparting date, ame s follows:-

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
RMDOO RM'ODO RMDOO RMODO

Fixed rata instruments ;
Finarcial liabiities 19,490,639 20,1868 2.500,000 250,000

Variable rate instruments

Financial assers 11,309,168 1LAa97.508 B57.269 S95.637
Financial llablities 24,075,239 25,891,105 1,750,654 1467970
35,384,407 37,388,684 2.607.,923 2463507

AL tha reporting date, if the interest rates had beer 50 basks. paints owenfhigher, with all other variables held constant, the
Geroup's and the Compary's profit afer tax woukd be highes fowe by approcdmately RMIZ0.8 million (2019 AMLESS million)
and RMBELE milion (2015 RM7.3 million), respaectivoly, o5 a rosult o |owod/hghor mloros? spense on barimeings.

The Ceoup and the Company do not account for any flxed rate instruments at falr value threwgh profit or oss. Therefore, a
chanige in iMerest rates &t tha reparting date would nat atfect their pealit alter ta
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
(€] Interest rate risk {cont'd.)

The pess funds al the Crowp and the Company are iwested in hank deposits and other short-term insruments. The Group
anid thee Company manage their lquidsty nsks By placing such eoess fusids on shsr-Torm maturtses to match (15 cash Now
neads. If miesest deposit rates increased/darreased by 10 hass points, imterest income of the Group and the Company for the
Financial year wiald increaseddecrease by RM11.3 million (200 % BMILS milion) and B=00 millon (200 % 810 mallion), respectively,

{d) Price risk

Equity price risk
Tha firup's and the Company's pxposies 1o equity price rek arise primarily fom their investments in quoted saoimities

To manage thair price ik arfsing fmm investments n equity weciste, the Group and the Company diversfy thele partf ol

At the raporting date, the Group's and the Company's exposure 1o quated equity ivestments at falr value are RMLA22 160,000
(2005 RMLS43,420, 0007 and RM10.3082.000 {2019 AM10503.000) rowparctively,

Tha Pellewdng table desnonstratid the indicathen elfocts on the Group's and th Comaany's equity apphying reasanably formspsabls
market movements o the quetad marke? prices at 1he reporting date, assaming all othar variabls remain constant,

Increasal
Decrease
in quoted
Carrying market Effect on
amounts prices equity
REDOO L RM 000
Group - 2020
Lotal eruities 487,270 +/-10 48,727
Fareign equities 934,890 +[- 10 93.489
Group - 2019
Local equities B46,695 = 10 64670
Fareign equities BO6.745 +1 10 88,675
Company - 2020
Local emuities 3,071 *f- 10 307
Fareign etuities 7.009 +/-10 781
Company - 2019
Local equities 4,155 - 10 416
Fareign equities 6,348 +- 10 635

e7e
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)

(d) Price risk (cont'd.)
Fuel commodity price risk

The Ganup hedges its fuel commadity price risk by the use of derivative Instruments against Nuctuations in fuet o prices which
alfect the cost of fuel

The Groug has contracts for the <ala of eleciicity to the Singapode eleciricity poal at prices that are tixed in advance avery
hree manths wnd 1o retail customers [Thase meeting a minimum Jyetage monthly consumption) a1 prices that are aither fced
I amount or in pricing formda for perods up te a rmber of years. Tha fiking of the prices undar the rontracts = based
langaty on the price of fusl oll required to genemte the slactricity, The Croup enters inta fuel ol swaps to hedge aganst
avarse price movaments of [ual ol prices. The Graun tgecally eator I6e 2 wap to pay a lwed price and roeeise a vanable
price indexed to & benchmark fusl price Index.

Exporiuinn 1o price fluctuatons arsing from the purchise of fued oil and natuwal g ae substantially managed via swags whore
the price is indexed to a benchmark fuel price Index for example 100 C5T fuel oil and Dated Brent. The Croup's esposure 1o
the fhetuation of forward price cunve is immaterial

(o] Crodit risk

Credit risk ks the potential financial boss resufting from the falure of 3 counterparty to sette their obligations 1o the Group
and the Comparry,

The Groug's exposurna to credt risk arses primarily from trade and othar reoeivables. Meanwheie, the Company's exposmes o
crovdit risk adlse from other recetvables. For ather financial assets [(ncluding ivestment securithes, cash and cash cquialents
and] desivative firandal imstruments), the Group and the Company minirises credit sk by deaing exclusively with high credit
rating countenpartias.

Concentration of credit risk

Due v e noture of the Group's business, customens s manly segregaled according to bisiness segmems, in ihe Groaup's
powEr genaration business in Malaysla, trade recevables are solely from its off taker, a national electricity utility company and
the colmerparty (i is considersd to be minimal. A5 for the Group's power gensaration bisiness in Singapare, credit reviews
are performed on all customers with established credit limets and generally supported by colatersl in the form of guarantees.
For the Groug's water and sewerage business, the cedit risk of receivanles is mitigated through strict collection procedures.
The Directoss are of The view that credit sk arising from these businesses i limited due to the lange customer base,

Trode receivables, unbilled recefvaobles ond controct ossets

The Griup apphes the MRS O simplified agpooach fo measw e ECL whith ses 3 Metime expected loss alowance for all rade
resitatilis, unbiled receveblies and contract sasets To measwe e ECL, Dade ieceivatles, unbilled ieoeivailis and contiact
avsaty have been grouped based on shared cradil rise characteristics and the diys past doa,
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.]
{e) Credit risk [cont'd.)
Trode receivables. unbilled receivables ond contract assets {cont'd.)

The expected loss mies ane determned Dased on 1 year to 14 years af héstonical ageing profile and the comespanding histoeical
CdiE koases anpd enod within this pericd. The histonca loss rates ane adusted 1o eflect forward-looking infformation an
macroeronemic factors attecting the ahility of the customens to settle the receivables. Some of the factors which the Group
hias identified include unemgloyment rate, sconemic tends and annual Gross Domestic Poduct [TGOE) growth and has adjusted
thi= hitarical lnss rates hased an exparted changes n sach factor

O that bass, the o46s allewance was cetermined &5 Tolliws for trade recewables, unbilled recevables. confract assofls and

rolatiod partied
S E
Current 1-90days 91 -120 days » 120 da Tatal
RMODO RMOO0 RMODD RM'0DD RM'ODO
Group - 2020
Gross camying smount
= T recoivalies 1.045.367 169,582 45,814 Bad GG6E 2,105,431
- Unbdled recesvaliles T6E, 106 - - - 766,106
= Conlract assets 202,118 - - - 202.118
2,013,591 169,582 45,814 B44, 668 3,073,655
Allowance for imparment
Trata receivables (12,631) {21,203) {10,353) (513,043 {557.230)
- Unbehed recoaables [7.568) - - - [7.568)
- Contract assets {110) - - - {110)
{20,309) (21,203) {10,353} {513,043) (564.908)
Met carrying amount 1.993.282 148,379 35,461 3TL625 2.508.747
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38. FINANMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.}
{e] Credit risk {cont'd.)
Trode recedvables. unbilled receivabies ond controct assets fcont'd. )
T T Ty 1 [ 17 (R pp—————
Current 1-90 days 91 -120 days » 120 days Total
RM'00D RM'ODD RM'0OD RM'000 RMDOO
Group - 2019
Gioss carrying amount
- Trade recevabion 1794597 7B 16,322 GGOA24 ZBonory
- Uniiilled recenvabies 962,063 - - - 962,063
- Confract assets 208,806 - B - 2080806
2966 666 AZVEIA 16,322 BE0.924 197746
Abowance far impairment
- Trad roceivabio {6, 347) (15,971} (5,B24) (402,975 (421,117
- CONMract asepts TE 1] - = - [TEH)
[&6.731) [15.971) (5H24) (02579 (491L505)
Met carrying amaunt 28905935 311.863 10498 257,945 3480241

At tha reporting data, the masimum oxposues to credit risk of the financial auate of the Group ard tha Company ant representod
by the camying amounts in the Statement af Financial Position, except for the Croup's trade receivablas on elactricty and
steam sales whene the Group will assess each customer individually and typecally require collateral in thie form of bankers’
guarantees of depodits from seleciod Custamens.

Cash and bank balances

The Group and the Company place its cash and bank balances with a mumber of creditworthy finandal institutions. The Group's
angl the Company's policy bmit the concentration of finandial expature 1o any single Timargial irtitution. While cash and bank
balances are aho subject to the impairment requirements of MFRS 5, the identified impairment loss wirs Immaterdal.

Derivative financial instrumernts

Tramaction invalving derivative financial instruments e alowed only with counerpartios that ane af high credit quelity, As
such, management does not expect any counferparties to fall to meet their oblgations. The Group and the Compary consider
the risk of matenal loss o0 the event of non-pedarmance by a financial counter party ta be unkoely.

Gther receivables

The Group and the Company use the 3-stages spproach for the ECL on the other recevables and emount due from related parties.
The 3-stipes appuoach neflects their recenables oredit gk aod how the ks allowance is determingd lor 8ach of those categories.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
(2) Credit risk (cont'd.)
other receivables (cont'd.)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Crow's and the Company's ECL mada) ks as follows:-

Category Group's and Company’'s definition of category Basis for recognising ECL

Performng Debtors hawe a low ek of defaull and a strong capscity 1o meet 12 month ECL
contraciual cash Mvws.
Underperforming Destars for which there Is a significant increase in credit sk s presumad. Lifetima ECL
I interest andfor prinopal repayments are 90 days past due,
Non-performing Detiors and repayments are more than 365 days past due, Lifetims ECL
Write-nd Theane is medence Indirating that thene is nn easonshle pxpectatinn Assel i wiitten ofi
ol recovary basad an unavailabilty of debtors sources of intoma
or assets to generate sutficient future cash flows to repay the
ameunt.

Hased an the s, o allowancoe B maasuned on eibes 12 manth ECL o ifetime ECL wring a PD ¢ LGD x EAD methadalogy
whara -

« PO (piebalslity of dilaut’) - v Selibood that the debion would na? be alle To repay duiiig Wie colirsctas] perod:

= LGO ('lass given default) - the percentage of contraciual cash floves will not be collected it default happens; and

+  EAD (exposee at defaull’) - the sutstandng amaunt that is expased 10 default risk.

I deriving the PO and LGO, the Group and the Company corsider historcal date by each debtor by category and adpusts for
ferwand-Iooking macroecanamic data The Graup and the Compary have idemtilied the industry and geograghical area which
the debice operates in fa be the most relevant factom, and accordingly adumsts the histarical loss rates bmed on expecied
changes in these factors. Loss afowance s measured at a probability-wesghted amount that refiects the possiblity that a
credit kess occurs and the possibikty that no credit loss ooours. Mo signif cant dhanges to estmation technigues or assumptions
were made during the naparting period

Thie mamimum Credit risk exposure of the financlal assets of the Group and the Company &¢ approslmstely thelr carmyling
aemounts as at ihe end of thi opoetiog period,
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.
{e) Credit risk {cont'd.]
Movement on the Groug's and the Company’s loss allowances i as Tollows:-
Trade Unbilled Contract Related Other
recebeables  recoivables Fiels parties  recelvabiles Tatal
AM'O0O RH'ODO RM'000 RM 000 RMOD0 AMO0O
Group - 2020
An L july 2019 490,117 - 388 34 160,580 652119
Hrising from acguisition 7158 - . - 138 T.357
Alrwance lor impairment of
recehabies 160,965 T.615 - 100 L9739 170,559
Darpcognition af subskfisry (2200 - - - - [2.201)
Wiie back of impairmant of
recahabias [12.285) - 278) - [4,629) {17.192)
wiritten off during the financial
year 4 uncalectibly (B8,238) - - - [1,693) (9,937)
Exchange défferences T4 a7 - - 318 985
AR 30 |Juni 2020 557,230 7.568 110 134 156,748 721780
Tm! :‘ — nmm mr
recelvables assels parties  recefvables Total
RMO0D RM000 RMODD RIH'OO0 M 000
Groasp - 2019
An L july 2018 450,009 445 - B410% hi4563
Arising from acguisition RG2S - - . Bh25
Nipwance for impalmrent of recehvabies B9,128 L TE.001 165,163
\wirite back of mparment of recewables (a.605) 57} - (390) (10358
wiriitan off during the financial yoar ay
uncciiectible (B0.SLE) - - - [B0,318)
Exchange differences [4.124) : . B&D 13.264)
At 30 june 2019 491117 3HH 34 160580 Be2119
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)

{e) Credit risk (cont'd.)

i
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Related Other
parties receivables Total
RM'DOO RMOO0D RMO00
Company - 2020
At 1 july 2019/30 June 2020 116,859 1.765 118,624
Company - 20119
At 1 july 2008/30 June 2019 116,659 1765 118,624

Liguidity risk

Liguidiity risk (% tha ridk that the Group and the Coampay will encounter difficulty & masting Minancial obligaticn due to Ahortsdge
of funds The Group's ard the Company's exposune to liguidity risk arses primarly from mismatchas of the maturities of financial

ansety and HabBtees

The Group's and the Company’s objective are to malntain a balance between continuity of funding and fledbilty through the

use of stand-by credi faciites
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38. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONT'D.)
[t} Liguidity risk (cont'd.)

Thi table below sumimarses the matunty pratile of the Goug's and the Lompamy’s. financial kabilities at the reparting date
Dased on contractual undrstounted repxyment oblgations:-

on demand
or within
1 year 1ito5 years  Ower 5 years Total
REO00 RMO00 RMO00 RM000
Group - 2020
Non-denivative:
Trade and orher payabies 3,115,572 169,997 - 3,285,569
Baruts and bomowings 12,764,591 17,744,755 27,742,528 58,251,874
L fiastilities £70,108 830,439 1192, 724 2293272
Aelated parties 39,212 - - 35,212
16,189,484 18,745,191 28,935,252 63,869,927
Derivative:
Fuel ail wwogr 171711 13,299 - 185,010
Curreny forwands 3,233 2,103 - 5,336
174,944 15,402 - 190,346
Company - 2020
Non-derivative:
Trade and other payabies 17,462 - - 17,462
Bonds and bamowings 1,939,236 1,375,080 2.037,850 5.352,166
Liasa Sadilities 7.074 2,358 - 9.432
Related parties 4,708 - - A4.709

1,968,481 1377438 2,037,850 5.383,769
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{f} Liguidity risk [cont'd.)

Thie table below summarises the maturity profide of the Group's ard the Company's financial llabites at the reporting date
based on contractual unddgounted repayment obligations: (oontd )

On demand
or within
1 year 1to 5 years  Dwer 5 years Total
RMO00 RM'DOO RM'O00 RMO00
Group - 2019
Mon-derivative;
Trade and othar payables 16745378 272,645 - 947,023
Bonds and borrowings 16,906,218 19,411,741 25,676,237 62,994,198
Related parties 16006 . 16,008
0,596,502 19,684,386 2E616.237 BE.O%7. 225
Darivative:
Net - interest rate swaps 19162 17.5549 - 36,741
Ful ail Swafns 8642 14,872 . 52,014
Currency Tonwards Q633 1.BES 3ng 1827
Currency options comiract 6 2665 - 3,333
EH1ES 363681 309 104,815
Coimpany - 20019
Han-derivative:
Trade and other payables 17488 . ] 17488
Bands and Dorrawings 4.305.268 2911787 2053777 QUynELE
Related paries 5.54b - - 55408
4128302 291787 2053777 3093846
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39, FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
[a) Categories of Tinancial instruments
Thie fable below provices an analysis of tnancial mstruments categarised &5 folows:
&— R 1 121 2 [ 1L ]
Fair value Dasivatives
Amartised thraugh used far
cost  profit or loss hedging Fvaki Total
Mate AHQ00n RMODD RM'0D0 RM 000 AMDDO0
Group - 2020
Won-curremt
TWERTTIENES 18 - 362,195 - 42,716 404,911
Trage and oher recehables 20 1.353,360 - - = 1,353,360
Dertvative financial instruments Fal - B 10,585 - 10,585
Current
TWESTITHNS 18 - 2301989 - - 2,301,985
Jenvatwe finanda instruments 21 - B.712 65.547 - 74,2549
Trade and cther recehables 2 2844373 . - - 2844373
Amoun due from reiated parties 5 53,694 - - 53,654
Fined doposits 26 10,396.221 - - - 10,396,221
Canh and banik balances &% 1265011 - - - 1,265,011
Total 15,212 658 2,672,096 76132 42,716 18,704,403
P s = ———
Falr value Dt atleies
thraugh wsed far Amortised
prodit or loss hedging a8l Taotal
Maote AWa00 RM'O00 AM'O00 AM'000
Geoup - 2020
Non-urremt
oA pavalies 2 - - 169,996 169,996
Bonds 1} . - 18,655,635 19,655,635
Betrowings 1l - - 12,552,683 12,502 6B
Lngse Rabdities ¥ - - 1.447,352 1447 352
Jerivabives Fnandal instruments i 13,575 1826 - 15401
Current
Tinde and siher payabies ) - 3,036,791 3,036,791
Dervatives financial instruments. i - 174,944 - 174,944
Amount due to relatad paries l B - 3n.z212 Eo ik
Bondh i} - - 220,000 220,000
Bomotngl il - - 11,007 555 11,097 556
_eate habiimes Er - - 176,495 176,495
Total 13,575 ETI0 48435724 4B.625,065
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35, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

{a)} Categories of financial instruments (cont'd.)
Thie table balow provides an anabysis of financal instrumenits categonsed as follsws: (cont'd)

o — — Financlal ASSBLE ——-r———r—mrrrmrrmrams -
Fair value
Amortised through
eedt  paaliner less FVoC| Total
Note RM'000 RM'D00 RMO00 RM'000
Company - 2020
Mon-current
Ivestments 18 - 35,276 a.5049 44,875
Currant
Trade and rther recefrchies Fai] GOl - - 6012
Amount due from related parties &5 L303.468 - - 1.303.468
Imostmenits L] - 755,199 . 755,199
Fhied depeeits % 102,070 E = 102,070
Carsh and Bank balances k-] 1,929 - - 1929
Totd 1,413,479 790425 9,599 2,213,503

[ Finarcial Liabilithes - ]

Amortised
cost Tatal

Hote RM'DO00 RMO00
Company - 2020
Non-current
Bands 30 2. 500,000 2500000
Lease liatlgss 42 24749 2479
Current
Trade and other payables =1 17.462 17,462
Amount due 1o relited ety <3 4,708 4,708
Biiinwigh Ell 1,750,654 1,750,654
Lease liabdities 2 7254 7.254
Total 4,282,557 4,282,557

c8e
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35, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
[a] Categories of financlal instruments (cont'd.)
The 1able below provides an analysis of financial mstruments categansad a3 folows:
T T m.m' f T T |
Fair value Dasivatives
Amartised thraugh used far
cost  profit or loss hedging Fvaki Total
Mate RH000 REo00 AM'00D0 RM 000 AM'DO0
Group - 2019
Hon-curremt
nwesiments. 18 - 46510 - G461 #1571
Trade and ceher recebables 20 213460 BTS2 - - 1145232
Dervative financial imstrumants 2 - . layee - ez
Current
mestments 16 - 2352047 - - 235207
DJervatve finandd instrumants 2l : 45 A . BS022
Trade snd cther retehables ] AE04. 034 - - - AEa094
Amount due from related paties 23 EINEDS - - - LI
Flaged dasparsits o5 0G5 495 . - - 10535456
Cimh and basnik batances o6 L171.0056 . - - LITL00G
Total 16005147 I5T2154 B2t G3.461 19723561
B e R Financial Liabilitbes ——-————rmeeen ¥
Fair value Derivatives
thraugh used far Amortised
profit or loss hedging L Tatal
Mote AMDO00 EM'O00 AM000 L]
Group - 2019
Hon-current
_ong-temm payables | - - 2645 2r2eds
Sonds ] - - 18561566 18,961 666
Bomowings EH - - 11760855 11,760 E65
Dtvateees Arancial instramints 21 92 a4 334 - S 106
Current
Trace and oihir piyabies £ . - LET4.56] LE74.561
Derivatives Bnancial instruments 2 - 53,451 - B3.451
Amout due o related pames 25 = ¥ 16,006 16,006
Sonds e . - 520,024 S20.024
Botrowings i - r 14,037,243 1837243
Total a7z 107,825 50.043.000 SO160.607
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35, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

{a)} Categories of financial instruments (cont'd.)
Thie table balow provides an anabysis of financal instrumenits categonsed as follsws: (cont'd)

f el o (P 1, i P 11111 L R e =3
Fair value
Amortised through
cost  prafinor less FuoLi Total
Hote RM'000 RM'000 RMO00 000
Company - 2013
Mon-current
Ewestments 18 - 34,958 a4m 44,448
Currant
Trade ani niher recefvehies il [Fd: 5 - - 12982
Amaunt dug from related parties & Lol4.435 - - 1014 445
Imeeitments L] . rarEn - raren
Fued depaeits. 26 198,350 - - 158,350
Carsh and bank balancst k.-l 122548 - - 122548
Tou L34B.7E5 @3z.243 a4 2150447
i ———- Financlal Liabilities ——3
Amortized
cost Total
Hote RM'OO0 RM'O00
Company - 2019
Non-current
Rands 30 2,500,000 2.500,000
Brarawsings E 550 550
Current
Trade and other payaiios w 17.488 17488
AMCUnt due 1o relajsl panes 25 5,546 5,545
Barids 30 10,000 10,000
Boriumwings Eil LAGT. 420 LAGT 420
Total 4,001,004 4,001,004
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ICONT'D.)

[b} Fair value measurement

The table belma analyses fnancial NSUruments carmed at fair value. by valuation methed The different levels have boen
detmegd as Moo

Iy Ll 1 Quotod peices [unadjustod] in active markets for idongical assets or Rabiligies.

(i} Lewel 2 Inputs othed than quoted prices indluded within Level | that are abkandabie Tor the assel of lability, aither deectly
(L. pricea) of indrectly (Le. derved from prices),

(i) Levsl 3: nputs for the asset or llabiity that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputsh

AR tha raparting date, the Gooup and the Compary Bald the folawing firancial instruments caimied a1 fa vaboe of the STMsments
of Finanial Positan

Lavel 1 Levael 2 Lawel 3 Total
RE'OOO0 RH'OOO RMO0D RM'000

Group - 2020
Assets
Financkal assets a1 Tar valug through profic or

s

- Trading desivatives - 8,712 - 8,712

= Incomefeguity furds - 2,326,334 323,363 2,649,687

- Equity invastments 10,880 3.607 - 14,487
Derivatives used for hedging - 76,132 - 76.132
Financial assets at fair value through ather

eampr el e income 22,238 412 20,066 42,716
Tatal 33118 2.415,197 343,429 2,791,744
Liabilitios
Finaneial liatdbtes at fair vaus thiough proafin o

kass:

= Traling deratngss - 13,575 - 13,575
Denvative used for hedging - 176,770 - 176,770
Tata - 150,345 - 150,345

285

552/620



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

¥TL CORPORATION BERHAD

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 Jung 2020

35, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

{b) Falr value measurement (cont'd.)

Al the reporting date, the Group and the Company held the Tollswing fnancal instruments earmied at fair value on the Statements
of Financial Position: {contd.)

Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Tatal
RMO00 RM'DOO RMOOO RMODO

Group - 2019
Assets
Fmancial assats at fair value throwugh

profit o loss:

- Trating derivatives - 845 = 045

= I earmn i by funels - 23T 412 307,902 2685314

- Erpsity investments 10503 EL ] - 14,145

- Recetvables from a jont ventura - - B 752 B7L.752
Darivativers Lised far hedging - w2793 - 82,799
Financial assers at Tair value twough

arher comprehesion income agare a0 £1.343 B3.46]
Total 52575 EAESB42 1200557 38414
Liabdlities
Financial Eabilities at fair value through

profit or loss:

- Currency options contracs 3313 - - 31333

= Trating derluatives - F449 - 440
Dermvatie used for hedging = 107.EE5 = 107825
Toral 33313 14274 - nursa
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

b} Fair value measurement [cont'd.)

AL T TEParmng date, the Lo and the Lﬂl‘l'l,pﬂ'lf hesddd thie !nlamng Timancial instruments camed a1 fad valiue on the SEatsmenis
af Financial Possborn: (ontd)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
RE'O00 RM000 RMOO0 RM'000
Company - 2020
Assets
Financid assets at fair value through
profit or loss 10,880 755,199 24,346 790,425
Financkdl assets at fair value through
other comprehansve income 5 - 9,594 9,559
Tatsd 10.B85 755,193 33,940 800,024
Company - 2019
Assals
Financkal essets at Fale value thiough
profit or ks 10,503 THETT 24 485 B32.245
Finarchal essets o1 a0 value thiough
othed compiehensive incomms 5 - 9,472 9477
Tatsl 10,500 L7 33937 041,722

Theing the current mancial yeas, theee were no ramfers batwean Level 1 and Lewal 2 Fair value maasuraments.

40, SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purpose af these financial statements, parties afte considered to be related to the Group iF the Group or the Company has
the ahility, directhy or indirectly, to control the party or exencise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating
deisicnm, o vice vorss, of whede thee Greup of the Company and the panty ame subject 1o comiman cantral of common signilicant
influpnce. Related parties may be indiiduals or ather entities.

Koy management personnel ane defined a3 thowe persons having autharty and respansiblity for planning, directing and comtialling
the activities of the Group efthar directly or indirectly. The key mansgament personne include all the Directars of the Group.
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40. SIGMIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D.)

{a} Significant related party transactions

i} Inadditian o relzted party discosures mentioned efsewhere in the finandlal statlements, set out below are other signilscan
rolatod party transactons,

Group
2020 Z019
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RM'O00 RMOO00
Buniness & Buiget Hotals Ansoclated Management lee. centive les and 767 L225
[Kuantan] Sdn. Bhd. LOmparTy SO Twale MmanTenane Cosl
Lease rental of imestment 6,300 6,300
property
Commercial Central San. Bhd, Subsichary af Rental of office and car ek 314 2735
nalding company
Camarate Promations Sdn. Subsidiary af Advertising & pramolsan expemes 2377 3025
Blwl. halding comipany
Express Rall Link Sdn. Bhd. Assaciated Progress bilings related 1o chal 7420 26577
COMpanT enginsoring & comtruction
warks
East West Veniunes Sdn Bl Subsidiary of Lease rentdl of Investment 21,626 21626
hakding eompany property
East West Ventunes Sdn. Bhd. Subsideary af Hotel accommodation & lease rental 2.665 3647
holding company of equipmen
Share aperating cost 538 445

Rental mcome from outsource of 17,602 T.058

hatel ropms
Starhdl Global REIT Assaciated Lease sapense 13,653 -
company
Progress biling 78,510 -
Management fee 10,267
Oriental Place Sdn. Bhd Subsidiary of Rental ot premises espenses ¥.440 am
haldineg eampuny
Syarikat Palanchangan Pangior Subsidiary of Lease rental of investment property 8820 B.B20
Lanil Sendhrian Berhad iakding) coimn iy
Hntal accommodatan 1138 2754
Management fees & dara processing LT26 2173
Tosrss B rowalty incoma
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 5520
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40, SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D.)

{a) Significant related party transactions (cont'd.)

(i) Imaddition to fedated pamy discosunes mentioned eleawhers in thie fnancisl STEtemants. st out bebne ane other sgiticant
relitedd Ty TranSactonm. {cont'd)

Grotip
2020 2019
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RMOOD RMO00
Thumdar Match Technosogy Sdn Subeidiary of Commission. Incentives andsor 1,675 AA4TS
B auaclated meimbursement of bundie devioe
Company s
X¥changing Malaysia win Bhd jomt venture Il Comsultancy b related services 36,425 42084
COMm{ny EXpRTLES
Company
2020 2019
Enfity Relationship Type of transactions RMO00 RM0O00
YTL Lard B Dovelopmant Berhad Subcidiany ICULS interest incame 89,731 21511
Sufl Travel & Tours S0n. Bhd Subrsidiary Travaling expenses 1081 1290
Haotel accommedation & rolated
Suw Ml Hatel S Bha, Subisifiary CRpEnLES BOG 05

(il Tha fallowing tignificant transac tions which have been tramadted with clote Tamily mambers of kay managoment
personnel and entites contralled by key management personnel and close family members are as follows:

Group
2020 2019
RMODO RMO0O
Progress billings rélated to purchase of properties 78,766 4360

Thie Diroctors o al 1 opénion that the above trarsactiars havo boon ontensd infa in the nemal course of business
and have been established on terms and conditions negotiated and agreed by the related partles.
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40. SIGMIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D.)
{b) Hey management personnal compensation

Kay management personned ane those persons having autharity and respansiblity for planning, directing and controliing the
activities of 1ne Group and The Company, direcily of indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or offseraisa) of the
Company:

Key management porsennel of the Group and the Company inckides. the Directors of the Compaty.

Group Company
2020 019 2020 2019
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'O00 RMOO0
Directors’ and key management personnals
Temuraratian
- Shoft-term emplayes benefits 59,882 76,416 1,985 w47
= thalined contribution plims 4,615 6,334 134 12
- sl -irt- kel 1,294 7z - =
= shate ootion expenses 7.509 7.8909 4,735 4,735
73,701 91,471 6,054 T
41, COMMITHMENTS
{a) Capital commitments
Graup
2020 2018
RM'O00 RMOOO
Authonised Dt not comracted far 782,205 95,078
Contractid but not provided foe 1,088,500 £3517.418

Thir above commitments manly comprise purchase of spare parts and property, plant and equipment.

Group
2020 2019
RM'ODO RMOOQ
Capital commitments n relation to sddition rvestment 75,174 Teab0
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41. COMMITHMENTS (CONT'D.]
[b) Operating lease commitments
{l} The Group as lessee

The Group leases land, offices and werehouses ender non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The keases have
VATYInG TR, RAFU0N O a0 rondwal rights, Excopt for o few iong-1orm Dases in land, the Group's loases generaiy
range from one 1o fee years. None of the lesses inchded contngent rentals.

Futuse minimam lease payabies unider non cancelable operating leases af 1he repodting date ane as follows:

Group
2018
RM"ODO

Mot later than 1 year 193,093
Later than 1 year and not kater than 5 years I66051
Later than 5 years 473658

LO33.702

As dsclosed In Note 210, the Group has adopred MFRS 16 on 1 jly 2002 These lease payments have been recognised
a5 ROU assots and lease Babilltes an the Statements of Financial Pasiton as at 30 june 2020, sxcept far short-term and
low value leases,

(i} The Group as lessor

For the financial year ended 30 june 2020

Thie Graup keases ot s land and bullding. telecammunications equipment, plant and machinery. The Graup classified
thesa i2ases 45 Dperaling leases, because thay do rot transfer substantialy all of the ks and rewards incidenta o the
ownership of the assets, The follewing table sets our the matuity schedule of undiscounted lease payments 1o be
received aftar the reporting date,

Group
2020
RM'DOO
Less than 1 year 168,860
Batween 1 to 2 years 121113
Between 2 1o 3 years 116,035
Batween 3 10 4 years 110,862
Batwsmen 4 to § yeam 94,272
Later than 5 yoars T3.979
Tatal undiscounted leasa payments to be edceived 685,121
Those leases classifiad as finance leases are disclosed in Nate 32(a).
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41. COMMITMENTS (CONT'D.)
{b) Oparating lease commitments (cont'd.)
(i} The Group as lessor [eant'd.)
For the financial year ended 30 jJune 2019
Thet future miremum lease recelables under non-cancellable operating leases at the repormng date are as folows:

Group
2019
RMOO00

Nat later than | year 554,841
Later tham 1 year and nol later than 5 years L525156
Later than 5 years b72.479

2792576

Except for one long-term loade, thi Geoup's Bases for its metad propedies qemeally range from one 16 (e years. Thie
future minkmum ‘aase payments recelvable re‘ating to retall properties from non-related parties are approximately RM3.3
brifion. The Group keases out (15 hotel properies under operating beases for the lease totm of fifuoen years. All lease
arrangaments ars provided with 4 step-up rate of 5% evary fee years and an option to grant the respectiva lesseas to
renew the leasa for a further term similar to the original lease agreaments. The future mindmum kease payments recelvabie
refatng to hated praperties from non-related parties are apprasimatcly RM334 milian

Iraddition, the payments receivable under the power purchase agreement [PPAT) whith are classified as operating lease

are & Toliows:
Graup
2020 2018
RM'O00 RMO00
Mot later than | year 55874 60,779
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 9,839 63,821
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42, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Thie Growp Pas seven reporfable segments as described Deiow:

{a)  Censtructian
by miormation technglogy b e-commarce relbed Dusiness
{r] Hotel cperations

{dy Cement mamnstactwing & racng

{8} Managernent services R athars

{f) Property mvestmant & davelopmant

) Lnilities

Management has datermired the operating segments basad on the reports reviswed by the chiaf operating detision. maker (TTODMT)
that are used to mako stratoge deckkans

The CODM recelves separate reports for pawer genaration {contractad). Mubl utilities business (merchant], water and sewerage
and mobile broadband network, thiey have been aggregated Into one reporable segments (Utiitkes) as they have similar econemic
charactaristios and those detall segments infonmation disclosed in YTL Poser Intornations] Barhads anmsal report which available
Tor public wse,

Although the infermation techPology & & commarce reloted busingss segmont doas not moet the quantimatyve thresholds reguirad
try MFRS 6 for eportable segments, managemant bas concluded that this segment should be roported, as it i dosely monitoned
by CODM 25 imgedtant segment.

The COOM considers the business from both a geographic and business segment perspective. Geographically, managament manages

and manitors the busness in theee primary geographic areas: Malaysla, Unlted Kingdosn and Singapore: The details of the geographical
segments e disthosed in the below rote af the financial statemsants
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.}

The segment information prosided to this CODM For th reportable segments ic 25 foliows:

Infarmation
tethnolagy &
s-{anmuit Cemant  Managenimt Fropeny
relaed Hotel  masedaturing SENICES  [mresimest
[Canstructing buinets  opedations & trading Eethers  denslopmant utifities Tedal
REH00 RM000 R0 R0 000 L] R 00D R0
2020
Rrwanee
Tetal reving: L3455 8,361 L134,048 407,832 B2 L206881 18341524 19767068
- St fevne [29.509) [B20) {LE481) (658 (40593 (ELLTEY) (B6423)  (SEELELL)
Extomal revenus LIEO0S s LIILGES L0174 708 o P LR ]
Results.
e e 1748 1m 29 3094 17553 hLiriE] 18 5,185
Finaeh (A% f5.194) B RN (ES0%)  (RISS9E) @7L00Y] (F9R7RO)  (LEGO.JAT)
Shara ol seus of asocisted
COMEarieS AN Nt LS . - 4041 13417 [407ZH)  (7iZEE]  ASLISS 257,159
Segrent prefit before 1 154,681 41 96,567 [L458] U6l [I62.764) 31618 410754
Segment assels
veiament in asotiates
COAgEriss and joint wetures - . WL 40670 s o180 Lizsi A3
{Other segrment sty L1EnT30 Wi2E  AMLMT  GBD4E  ILIGEFE MO0 JLATRIGD  BRSRG.AIE
‘Segmient labiities
Bonéy and berrowings . - 006 4BMAEM  LJES0IE  19BG0S4  100B2ERD 43 SESETE
Othes segrem, lisbizes 386,590 420 Jea.0e9 L0093 945,939 LI97.015  GEGL498  10.T3RGE
Deher seqrent infamatan
Capbtal mpenditure 54 LA ¥ 1 126530 SETOT SNl LSRN 24l
Impaiment et back) - 1744 [5.461) L9654 10 e 120,633 183.30
Deprocation ard Emertaiton 18772 Gap ik 40068 16,206 148,255 LIS4ST LES 4
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42, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
Thiz Segment information provided 10 1he CODM for the mponaiie Segments 5 as lollemas: [oontd)
Infornatien
technlogy &
E-LORTRICE Crmend  Haragement Property
related Hatel  manulaciuriag servioes  inuesment b
Comtructian business  opefations ki tradisg Eaothen  development Lhrikeies. Tatal
RMO00 RHE00 RMDOO RM000 R0 FM000 RHCa AM000
Faot]
REVETUE
Tot reverue LahEmR ELE L] Lesms LEHHSES Tan 13i¥8 I13%5M WaseE
TSl TP LETT) [B05E3 [5.415] 730 [PELAZT) [EELIE ] (453 [PELAZ
Enzind revue L 4% 3B L2¥ 388 2R 455055 LIN2% L2 EMiss
Fesalty
Irties? imoirme 25X B43 L= oA 25T 1o 751 TG
Firance (psis ) £ FIH]) (TR0ET] (LI (291408 (Teeelm  (1anaE)
e of resits of amodiated
g and jd ventares . - 735 14758 2424} B4 A0S AL
Seqmest ool before o B4 2560 a5k 54T 1% [il-e] =] Lresa?
Segnant aswets
It in ssoated
rompankes and ot v - - warm 48145 A 04 Fal ol FER L]
Do fogment st Lz L LE(7 B0 Q43535 Bz RIEE4ID 08B0 TELM
Segmant Eabilities
Borwk i brming L. . THam 4 FRd 148 18047953 TeEALS mEmIT &E0T17ER
e seqgment RabllTies ik sTar FAMG 1150 TRA.13 SERAT ROBAT a5 Thd
Othes segment infernation
Capet expendifure 33716 183 15008 1IE54% T Failed 1565060 LBeLTL
TRt il bad) . 1) o] 20 1620 4m 153558 L=
Deprecialion and s Thation yE E80 BAER BER s i LDETE02 L2561
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.}

{a} Geographical information
Thi Graup's seven bisiness segments. operate in three man gesgraphlcal areas

(i} Mataysia - Constrsction
- Information echnology & e-commerce related business
Hotel aperations
- Cement matufacturing B trading
- Management services & others
Praparty imvestment & development

= Litis
(i) United Kingdom UtHitios
Hotel aperations

[ii) Sngapane = Utinties
- Coment manufacturing & 1rading
Praperty investment & development

Revenue Hon-curment assets

2020 2019 2020 2019

RM'D00 RM'DOO RM'O00 RMDOO

Malaysia 7,430,763 5764, 796 12,329,432 10,608,467
United Kingdam 3.647.137 548,577 18,786,918 17,934,054
Singapone 6.841.129 7447008 8,243,533 17,718,828
Cther couniries 1.259.420 1187.087 4,346,176 3,865,355
19,178,449 18,047,528 43,706,059 50,127,504

Kon-cuttent psets information presented above comist of the lolawings (tems as prasentad In the Statemants of Financid

Position
Non-curmant assats i
2020 2019
RMO00 RMO00
Propisity, plant and equipmin 30,499,583 30,759,493
Right-of-use assets 1,636,035 -
Irvesiment properties L1126 10257573
Devidapment expenditunes 1.128.221 1,127,230
Intangibie assets 8,631,004 8,023,200

43,706,059 50,127,504
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42, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
[b} Major customers
The folowing & the mae fustomer with revenus egual of mofe than 10 per cent of the Gredps revenue
2020 2019
RM'ODO RMOOO Segment
Energy Market Company 2452877 184,498 LAilities

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primany chiettives of the Group's and 1he Company’s capital management are bo ensure that it maintaing healthy capital ratios
i order to sUpPOrt Its existing business and masimice charehaolders” value,

The Group and 1ha Company managas 1% capital structuse and makas adustmants ta it in the light of changos in atonamic conditions.
To maintaln or adjust the capltal strecture, the Group and the Company may adust the dividend payment 1o sharchodors, reiurn
capital to shareholders or issue new shanes. There wete no changss in the Group's and the Company's aparoach to capital management

during the yaar,

Thee Geowp and the Compary monitors capital udng o cebr-to-equity ratio, which is net debt dovided by 1ot capital plus net dibr.
The Group includes within net detit, total bosrowdngs kess cash and cash equivalents, Capltl includes equity attributable to the
owners af the parent.

Group Company

2020 2018 2020 2019

Note RMODO RM'O00 RMODO RMO00

Bonds. E 19,875,639 19,46] &50 2.500.000 510,000
Bomowings: Ell 23,690,239 £6.506,096 1,750,654 1,467,970
Bomniks deul Do roeings 43,565,678 AR, 075 TE8 4,250,654 1gyT.am
Less; Cash and cash equivaients - {11,661,232) [11.806,502] [103,999) {321,308}
Het debt qum ESREE R 4,146,655 1656662
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 12,460,336 13.262,686 6,086,744 6.228,0859
Capital and net debt 44,364,982 47535972 10,233,399 9,885,551
Dedt-1o-oquity ratio (%) 72 Jz 41 ar

Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Practice Note No. 17720045, the Company I8 fequined to maEmain a
comsalidated shanehniders’ equity equal 10 or not less than the 25 percent of the ssued and pald-up capital jesciuding treasury
shares) and such thareholders oquity i nat iess than &40 milion. The Company has complicd with This reguirgment.
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44, SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thie Group's and the Campany's adaptian of MFRS 16 Tram 1 july 2019 (effactve from 1 january 2009) msutod in changes in accounting
policses and adustmants 1o the Group's and the Comparsy's finandal position as at 1 July 2009, Tho pew stcounting palices urder
MFRS 16 have been disclosed undar Note 2(ae) te the financial statements. The Tollowing describes the impact of tha adoption,

(a) Adoption af MFRS 16

During thie financial year, the Group and the Company changed s accounting palicies on leases wpan adoption of MFRS 16,
The Group and the Company have elected to wse the modified retrospective transition method and o apply a number of
mractical expedients as provided in MRS 16

Under the modified retrospective transition method, the comparative information was not restated and the cumuiative effects
ol inftial application af MFAS 16 where the Group and the Company s a lewise wele recognisad as an adjustment o the
opehing balancs af retalned sarnings a5 &t 1 july 2019, The comparative irdormaton contmued to be reparted under the
previous actounting pokices govemed under MFRS 117 Leases [(MFRS 1177 and IC Int. 4 "Detemining whether an Arrangement
Contairs & Lease” [iC Int4)

fis @ bessar, the Group and the Company are not required to make any adustment on ransition, except for the reassessment
of existing operating subleases at the date of initial appicatan ("DATL

In addition, the Croup and the Company have elected not 1o reassess whether a contract = or contalms 3 lease at the Dla.
Insbeatt, for confracts entersd into betore the transition date the Group and the Company relisd on s AsSessmant mades
Applying MFRS 117 and i it 4

(i} The Group and the Company as lessea

o)  Looses cimsified a% aperanng leases under MERS 117

On adoption of MFAS 16, the Craup recognised lease labiktes in rolatsan to leases which had previously beon
clataified an ‘operating kases' undar the principhos of MFRS 117, These llabilities weda moasurad at the present valug
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s Incremeantal borrowing rate as of 1 july 2009, The
wighted-average rate applied |s between 1.23% 10 4.50%.

ROU assets wore measured on a kease-by-lease basts at the amount equal 1o the lease llability or retrospective
caltulation, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or sccrued lease payments relating 1o that bease retagnised in
the statement of financial position a5 at 30 une 2009,

As permitted bry the exemptions under the standard, the Group and the Company have nat applied the pincples of

MFRS 16 1o short -1erm keases (4 lease with kease term of 12 months or less from date of commencement) and eases
for which the undeslying asset is of low value.

2398
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44, SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{a) Adoption of MFRS 16 {cont'd.)

[I} The Group and the Company as lessee (cont'd.)

@

&

Leases clossified 05 opevating legses under MFRS 11T (oondid)

In applying MFAS 16 for the first time, the Group and the Company have applied the follpwing practical expedents
parmitted by the standand 1o leases prestoins'y classifiad as operating laases under MPRS 117:

o the une of 4 single decount rate 1o a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar charactesistics
= pellanoe on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous

*  tha MCOUNTIRG for operating leases with o remaining kase term of loss than 12 manths s at 1 |uly 2019 a5
short-tenm leases

+  the excluson of inital drect costs for the measurement of the R0U asset at the DI and

+  the use of hirdsight in determining the lease tsrm where the contract contains options to extend o (=minate
Lhat beasee.

Leoses clossified os finance leases under MFRS 117

Far leases meviously classified as finance leasas (pther than nire purchase cediars) and presented a5 3 part of
‘roperty, plamt and equipment’, 1he Group and the Compary recognised the camying amount of the lease Fset and
Iease lkatility Immediately before transiton which were maaswed applying MFRS 117 as the camying amount of the
ROU asset and the lease kability at tha DA

The adoption of MRS 1b impacts the Group's perfomandce in the cument financlal penod as below:

i

{iiy

O thue Income Statements, expenses which predously intuded Basing eopenses wathen Eamings bofam Inferest,
Tant, Depraciatinn and Amortisation [FRTOAT) wers mplacad by intemest mopense on lsase liabilities and dapracation
ol the ight-ol-ise assers

On the S1atements of Cash Flows, oparating lease rental outflows previously reconded within “net cash flows from
operating activities” wene reclasdfied as “net cash flows used in financing activities” for repayment of the principal
and interost of nato Rabilities.

299
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44, SIGMIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{a} Adoption of MFRS 16 [cont'd.)
{ijy The Group and the Company as lesses [cont'd.)

Thar ieconcilation betseen the operating lease commitments dischosed applying MFRS 117 &t 30 june 2019 1o the ease
lakititiers recogrisod at 1 July 2019 i as Tolows:

Group
RMO00
Cparating ease CommINFanis discoed o5 an 30 une 2009 1033708
[Less): short-1erm leases recognised on a swaight-ling bases as expense (18,03E)
[Lemss): hpwi-value leases ecognied on a stiaight-line Besls as axpense [932)
[Lesa): cantracts reassessed as service agreements (294,484)
(Less) extension and termination options reasenably cerain 1o be exercised (66,119)
B54,131
Discounted using the kessee’s incremental borrewing rate of at the date of nitiad application 485,875
Add: Tnahce leate Rabilities recognised a% 01 30 june 2019 47754
Add: coniracts reassessod & loate conracts 74236
Addflessk adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options 31758
Lizase lability recognised s af 1 jJuby 2019 953629
Of which amo:
Current ieasa liahilites. 190
Ran-cimrent leasa kahilities TRATTS
953623

{il} The Group and the Company as lessor

Thee Group and the Company did not need to make sy sdjustments o the accounting for assets held as lessor urdes
operating keases a5 a result of the adoption of MRS 16

300
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44, SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{a) Adoption of MFRS 16 {cont'd.)
(i) Adjustments

The effect ansing from the adoption of MFRS 16 on the statoment of hinancial poston af the Group and the Company

ane a5 follows:

30.6.2019 1.7.2019

Previously Effect of

stated MFRS 16 Restated
Group RMO00 RMO00 RMODO
As at 1 July 2019
Mon-current assets
Progerty, plart and cquipmant 0750453 [B42621) 116,865
Fsghit - ot - assets - 1472778 1472716
Trade and other recelvables 1159020 15.685 1175.005
Current assols
Trade anid ather rorsivaliley 4198733 3677 & 02410
Equity
Raemained amings Q480,302 121.567) 9,465,735
Mon-comioling interests 763155 (34.581) 757274
Hon-cumrent labflitles
Deferied tax Eabilitiss 2073144 [5) 0711
Barmowings 11,760,855 1?4649 11.743,366
Loasa abilities Tez fi ]
Currant liabilities
Borrowings 14837,243 {30,265) 14806978
Leasa Bshilities - 100,844 190,644
301
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Motes to the Financial Statements
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45, SIGMIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Thir autbreak of tha COVID-19 pancomic has impecled economs. aCtivites wolldwidie Mary countries Rad imposed 1DsIictions o
nof-assantial Sorvicos and busness operations, and have sl implementod trved nestrctans, boided dlotures and olher quarntine
measures that have sgnificantly curbed the normal mavernant of goods, sanvices and people. For the fimancial year ended 30 june
2020, the impact af COVID-19 have been reflected in this set of finantial statements,

As the situation is still evabving and will be affected by the degree to which governments are able to contain the spread of the
wirus in countries where the Group operates, the full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic an the Group's performance for the financial
year ending 20 june 2021 could not be reasonably eicertained whon this set of financial statements was authormed for isasnce.
The Growp and the Compary are taking S1eps 1o proactively manage the businesses and rake the pecessary actions 1o ensure that
e long-tesm busiress prospects of the Group and the Company remain stable.

46. AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thit Tinancial sEamants have boon authorwed fof ssuoe in aceonbsnce with aomesolution ol 1he Basd af Ceactars on 30 Septombes
2020

302
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Company No: 92647-H

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 117 to 324.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2019, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Valuation of investment properties
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 12 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Investment properties of the Group amounting to RM10,218 million, comprises 13.3% of total assets and is
measured at fair value. Most of the investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts
comprise of 94.1% of total investment properties.

The investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts are stated at their fair values based
on independent external valuations using the income capitalisation approach, which capitalise the estimated
rental income stream, net projected operating costs, using a discount rate derived from market yield.
Valuation of these properties was carried out once a year.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the balance and the complexities in determining the fair

value of the investment properties, which involves significant judgement and estimation that could result in
material misstatement.

Our response:
Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:
evaluated the competency and objectivity of the independent valuers;
assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the valuation methodology and key assumptions
used; and
reviewed the adequacy of disclosure in the financial statements.
2. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 18 to the Financial Statements respectively.
As at 30 June 2019, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM7,840 million which represents 10.2%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,

water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia. The
goodwill for these businesses comprise 88.5% of total goodwiill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 18(a) and 18(b) to the Financial
Statements respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUSs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows.

3. Net realisable value of property held for sale in Singapore classified as inventories
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 21 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the property held for sale in Singapore comprises 57.3% (RM1,596 million) (after the
write-down) of the Group’s total inventories. The challenging property market environment was mired by the
issues such as cooling measures undertaken by the authorities in Singapore have contributed to the slow
sale of the completed properties during the year. The Group continues to monitor the realisable value of the
inventories to ensure that these inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (the
estimated selling price less estimated costs necessary to make the sale).

The estimates of net realisable values are based on reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are

made and take into consideration estimated fluctuations of future property prices. Such estimates often
involve certain degree of subjectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

The net realisable value assessment carried out by the management resulted in a write down of inventories
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Estimating the selling price and costs necessary to make the sale for the properties often involve certain
degree of objectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

evaluated the objectivity, independence and expertise of the firm of independent valuers;
evaluated the management’s assessments and assumptions of the estimated selling price (less
estimated cost necessary to make the sale) of these inventories by making reference to the recent
transacted prices of comparable property within the vicinity;

4. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE") of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 7.2% (RM2,227.7
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the business which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires

significant judgement on the future cash flows, average revenue growth rate, discount rate and the useful life
of the assets applied to the calculation of the FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the financial budgets approved by
the Directors;

checked the assumptions used, in particular the average revenue growth rate and useful life of the
assets and benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the
FVLCD.

5. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 25.1% (RM7,735.3
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant
and Equipment (“MFRS 116”).

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

understood the nature of costs incurred through discussion with management and checked whether the
costs incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116; and

compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances corroborated and discussed with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

6. Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and
sewerage segment

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 33 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the water and sewerage business’'s post-employment benefit obligations comprise
90.0% (RM688 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 33 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amounts
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in
pension payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance
of an actuary specialist;

compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and
checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in the key assumptions, performed by the actuary.

7. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 18.9% (RM445.3 million is net of
impairment charges of RM226.8 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

As this segment operates in the United Kingdom (“UK”), there is a statutory requirement to continue to
provide water to all customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the
impairment of trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends
and economic trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of impairment for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the controls over assessment of impairment of trade receivables and the operating effectiveness
of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection data used for the impairment
assessment;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of impairment used by management against
each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
impairment; and

compared the level of impairment applied against similar companies within the industry in the UK.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

1. As stated in Note 44(a) to the Financial Statements, YTL Corporation Berhad adopted Malaysian Financial

Reporting Standards on 1 July 2018 with a transition date of 1 July 2017. These standards were applied
retrospectively by Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the
Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2017, and the Income Statements,
Statements of Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows for
the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the
restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 have, in these
circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1
July 2018 do not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 30 June 2019 and
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
LLP0021174-LCA & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

LUM TUCK CHEONG
01005/03/2021 J
Dated : 26 September 2019 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur

600/620



2020 12
55100
205
33
2020 2019 30
30 2019 26
2020 12

201906002362 & AF0276

601/620

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

Our ref: GEN/0757/2020

Your ref:

8 December 2020

The Board of Directors
YTL Corporation Berhad
33rd Floor, Menara YTL
205 Jalan Bukit Bintang
55100 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs,

You have informed us that the accompanying financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and the Group
financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries as of 30June 2020 and 2019 together with our
reports thereon dated 30 September 2020 and 26 September 2019 are being included as part of the Annual
Securities Report.

At 8 December 2020, we are not aware of any matters which would prevent the inclusion of our audit reports in the
aforementioned Annual Securities Report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
Firm Number:
201906002362 & AF0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
Partner of the Firm
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2020 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 100 to 302.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2020, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM8,118 million which represents 11.6%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia. The
goodwill for these businesses comprises 92.7% of total goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on VIU calculation.
The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial Statements
respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

agreed the value-in-use (“VIU") cash flows of CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;
discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUs and assessed the
potential impact of Covid-19 outbreak of the VIU cash flows;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries which included the impact of Covid-19
outbreak as at year end,;

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

2. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 8.8% (RM2,688.5
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD”) cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors, adjusted
to reflect market participants assumptions;

checked the assumptions used, in particular average revenue growth rate and useful life of the assets
and benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry, including assessing the impact
of Covid-19 outbreak using industry data;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the
FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 25.9% (RM7,889
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant
and Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over capitalisation and authorisation of selected
projects’ infrastructure assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure
assets;

understood the nature of costs incurred through discussion with management and corroborated with
supporting information provided and checked whether the costs incurred met the capitalisation criteria in
accordance with MFRS 116; and

compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances discussed and corroborated with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

4. Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and
sewerage segment

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 35 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, the water and sewerage business’'s post-employment benefit obligations comprise
94.9% (RM869 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amount
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

understood and assessed the scope of work by the external actuary engaged by the management;
assessed the fair value of the scheme assets by obtaining the valuation from the relevant fund
managers as at balance sheet date and corroborated with independent sources;

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in
pension payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance
of an actuary specialist;

evaluated the impact of Covid-19 outbreak on the valuation of assets held within the pension scheme;
compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and
checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in key assumptions, performed by the actuary.
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5. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 20 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 29.0% (RM448.6 million is net of
expected credit losses of RM244.8 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2020.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and
economic trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the controls over assessment of impairment of trade receivables and the operating effectiveness
of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection data used for the expected credit
losses assessment;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management
against each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which included management’s scenario analysis of the impact of Covid-19
outbreak; and

compared the level of expected credit losses applied against similar companies within the industry in the
UK.

6. Revenue recognition from construction contracts
The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year as disclosed in
Note 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements is RM2,316 million and RM2,061 million respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue and profit on these

contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).
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Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter because of the
judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the assessment of performance
obligation, revenue recognition arising from variations to the original contracts, assessment of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate of provision
for foreseeable losses and liquidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumption used based on historical
performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed information
provided by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with the terms
of the relevant contracts;

evaluated the management’s updated budget costs and forecast costs to complete by assessing the
basis of their calculation;

recalculated the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and

inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2022 J
Dated : 30 September 2020 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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